# **PROJECT MANUAL**

# Volume 1 of 1

# Training Building Rehabilitation Project for City of Kenai

AUGUST 2019







# **BIDDER INFORMATION**

See Instructions to Bidders for Bid Proposal Information

Name:\_\_\_

Address:

Telephone: \_\_\_\_\_

Project No.: <u>2950.001.00-041-000113</u>

Set No.: \_\_\_\_\_

#### **PROJECT MANUAL**

# FOR

# TRAINING BUILDING REHABILITATION PROJECT

AT

#### ALASKA REGIONAL EMERGENCY SERVICES TRAINING CENTER

#### FOR THE

CITY OF KENAI 210 FIDALGO AVENUE KENAI, AK 99611

Prepared by:



(Blank)

## TRAINING BUILDING REHABILITATION

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### LEGAL AND PROCEDURAL DOCUMENTS

#### SECTION

- 1.1 Advertisement for Bid
- 1.2 Instructions For Bidders
- 1.3 Project Bid Form
- 1.4 Agreement between Owner & Contractor
- 1.5 Special Provisions
- 1.6 Measurement and Payment
- 1.7 City of Kenai General Conditions
- 1.8 Federal Provisions For Construction Contracts
- 1.9 City of Kenai DBE Program
- 1.10 Federal EEO Bid Conditions
- 1.11 Forms

#### **DIVISION 01 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS**

- 01 01 00 SUMMARY OF WORK
- 01 02 70 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT
- 01 04 50 CUTTING AND PATCHING
- 01 05 20 GRADES, LINES AND LEVELS
- 01 06 00 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
- 01 09 00 REFERENCE STANDARDS
- 01 20 00 PROJECT MEETINGS
- 01 25 00 DEFINITIONS AND EXPLANATIONS
- 01 31 00 SCHEDULING
- 01 34 00 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES
- 01 37 00 SCHEDULE OF VALUES
- 01 40 00 QUALITY CONTROL
- 01 50 00 TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS
- 01 56 90 CONSTRUCTION CLEANING
- 01 60 00 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT
- 01 61 00 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING
- 01 62 00 STORAGE AND PROTECTION
- 01 63 00 PRODUCT OPTIONS AND SUBSTITUTIONS
- 01 67 00 SYSTEM DEMONSTRATION
- 01 70 00 CONTRACT CLOSE-OUT PROCEDURES
- 01 71 00 FINAL CLEANING
- 01 72 00 RECORD DOCUMENTS
- 01 73 00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA
- 01 74 00 WARRANTIES AND BONDS
- 01 75 00 SPARE PARTS AND MAINTENANCE MATERIALS
- 01 89 50 EROSION, SEDIMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL

#### DIVISION 02 - EXISTING CONDITIONS NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 03 – CONCRETE NOT APPLICABLE DIVISION 04 – MASONRY NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 05 - METALS

NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 06 - WOOD, PLASTICS, AND COMPOSITES NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 07 - THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION07 55 00EPDM ROOFING07 62 00FLASHING AND TRIM07 90 00JOINT SEALANTS

DIVISION 08 – OPENINGS NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 09 - FINISHES 09 65 10 RESILIENT BASE 09 68 00 CARPETING

DIVISION 10 - SPECIALTIES 10 92 50 MISCELLANEOUS SPECIALTIES

DIVISION 11 - EQUIPMENT NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 12 – FURNISHINGS NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 13 - SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 14 - CONVEYING EQUIPMENT NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 15 – 20 NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 21 - FIRE SUPPRESSION NOT APPLICABLE

#### **DIVISION 22 - PLUMBING**

22 00 00 BASIC PLUMBING REQUIREMENTS 22 14 00 STORM DRAINAGE PIPING 22 40 00 PLUMBING FIXTURES

#### **DIVISION 23 - HEATING, VENTILATING, AND AIR CONDITIONING (HVAC)**

- 23 00 00 BASIC HVAC REQUIREMENTS
- 23 01 30 HVAC DUCT CLEANING
- 23 05 29 HANGERS AND SUPPORTS
- 23 05 53 MECHANICAL IDENTIFICATION
- 23 05 93 TESTING, ADJUSTING & BALANCING
- 23 07 00 MECHANICAL INSULATION
- 23 09 00 INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROL ELEMENTS
- 23 09 23 CONTROLS AND SEQUENCE OF OPERATIONS
- 23 11 23 NATURAL GAS PIPING
- 23 21 13 HYDRONIC PIPING
- 23 21 16 PIPING SPECIALTIES
- 23 21 23 PUMPS
- 23 31 00 DUCTS
- 23 34 00 FANS
- 23 52 35 HEATING BOILERS AND ACCESSORIES
- 23 57 00 HEAT EXCHANGERS
- 23 64 23 AIR COOLED SCREW WATER CHILLERS

#### **DIVISION 24 - 25**

NOT APPLICABLE

#### **DIVISION 26 - ELECTRICAL**

26 27 26 WIRING DEVICES 26 51 00 INTERIOR LIGHTING 26 56 00 EXTERIOR LIGHTING



CITY OF KENAI 210 FIDALGO AVENUE KENAI, ALASKA 99611-8236

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BID

 Project Name: Alaska Regional Fire Training Center Building Rehabilitation
 Pre-Bid Meeting: August 14<sup>th</sup>, 2019 at 1:00 pm at City Hall Council Chambers Site Visit / Tour of Site
 Last Day for Questions: August 21<sup>th</sup>, 2019 4:00 pm, local time.
 Bid Due Date and Time: August 29<sup>th</sup>, 2019 by 2:00 pm local time.

Project consists of the Rehabilitation of various Building Components at the Alaska Regional Fire Training Center located at 450 Daubenspeck Circle, Kenai, AK 99611. Scope of Work includes mechanical, electrical, controls, flooring, and roof replacement.

All interested parties, including Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, are encouraged to submit bids. The City of Kenai will not exclude bidders on the grounds of race, color, creed, national origin, or sex.

Persons with a disability who need special accommodations concerning this advertisement for bid should contact Public Works at City Hall at the above address and telephone number.

Special Note: The time line above is fixed and will not be extended. Owner urges Bidders to review documents and submit questions early. Funding for this project is contingent upon the timeline indicated.

Bidders should contact the Public Works Department at (907) 283-8236 to be placed on the plans holders list. Questions may be submitted to <u>publicworks@kenai.city</u>.

Bids must be delivered in a sealed envelope clearly marked with the project name to the Public Works Department at the address above. Bid documents can be obtained on the City of Kenai website at www.kenai.city or at City Hall for a non-refundable fee of \$150.00 including sales tax for each set of documents.

This contract will be subject to the provisions of the Federal Davis Bacon and State of Alaska Title 36 Wage and Hour Administration Pamphlet Statutes and Regulations and will require 100% performance and payment bonds.

Publish: Anchorage Daily News – August 1, 2019 Peninsula Clarion – August 2, 2019

AD

Rev 2016-01-22

## SECTION 1.2 CITY OF KENAI INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

# 1. GENERAL

These instructions specify the form and procedures for the submission of a complete and acceptable bid. To obtain addenda in a timely manner, you should be on the City of Kenai's plan holder's list. Downloading project specifications and drawings from the City website or other online plans rooms does not place you on the City's plan holder's list. To be added to the plan holder's list, please contact the Public Works Department Administrative Assistant bv phone (907) 283-8236 or by email at PublicWorks@kenai.city.

# Project Name: Training Building Rehabilitation Project

Pre-Bid Meeting: August 14<sup>th</sup>, 2019 at 1:00 pm at City Hall Council Chambers Site Visit / Tour of Site
Last Day for Questions: August 21<sup>th</sup>, 2019 4:00 pm, local time.
Bid Due Date and Time: August 29<sup>th</sup>, 2019 by 2:00 pm local time.

Local Preference per Kenai Municipal Code: No (Not allowed by FAA)

# 2. EVIDENCE OF QUALIFICATIONS

Upon request of the City, a Bidder whose bid is under consideration for the award of the Agreement, shall submit promptly to the City, satisfactory evidence of the Bidder's financial resources, their experience, their performance in completing other projects of a similar nature, and the organization and equipment they have available for the performance of the Agreement.

# 3. BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS

Before the bid is considered for award, the City reserves the right to determine whether or not a Bidder is responsible and to require the Bidder to complete a Bidder Qualification Form and/or provide a current financial statement prepared by a Certified Public Accountant. The City shall determine whether a Bidder is responsible on the basis of the following criteria:

- The skill and experience demonstrated by the Bidder in performing Agreements of a similar nature.
- The Bidder's record for honesty and integrity.
- The Bidder's capacity to perform in terms of facilities, personnel, and financing.
- The Bidder's past performance under City Agreements. If the Bidder has

failed in any material way to perform its obligations under any Agreement with the City, the Bidder may be determined as a non-responsible Bidder.

• A Bidder's representations concerning their qualifications will be construed as a covenant under the Agreement. Should it appear that the Bidder has made a material misrepresentation, the City shall have the right to terminate the Agreement for the Contractor's breach, and the City may then pursue such remedies as provided in the Agreement Documents or as provided by state statute, City code, or as appropriate.

Any final determination that a Bidder is non-responsible will be made by the City Manager. Such determination will be made in writing to the Bidder setting forth the reasons for such determination.

# 4. CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE WORK

The Bidder shall examine carefully the site(s) of the proposed work and the bid documents before submitting a bid. The submission of a bid shall be an admission that the Bidder has made such examination and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the work and as to the requirements and accuracy of the bid documents.

The City assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations concerning conditions made by any of its officers, agents, or employees prior to the execution of this Agreement, unless such understanding or representations are expressly stated in the bid documents or Addenda.

The Bidder shall include in their bid, sufficient sums to cover all items required by the Agreement and the conditions of the site(s), and shall rely entirely upon their own examination in making their bid. The submission of a bid shall be taken as prima facie evidence of compliance with this paragraph.

If information or documentation required for submitting an accurate and complete bid is absent from these documents, the Bidder is required to notify the Public Works Director by facsimile (907) 283-3014, or by e-mail to <u>PublicWorks@kenai.city</u>.

# 5. SECURITY TO BE FURNISHED BY BIDDER

If the bid exceeds \$100,000, a certified check, bank cashier's check, or bid bond, made payable to the City of Kenai amount equal to five (5%) percent of the total bid, shall accompany each bid as evidence of good faith, a guarantee that if awarded the agreement, the Bidder will execute the Agreement and give bond as required. All Bidder's checks or bid bonds will be retained until the successful Bidder has entered into a satisfactory agreement and furnished bonds, as required. The successful Bidder shall furnish the City a Performance and Payment bond in the full amount of the Agreement and shall maintain the Bond in force during the continuance of the Agreement. The bonds must be furnished prior to the City's execution of the Agreement. The Bond shall be for the faithful performance of the Agreement in all respects including, but not limited to, payments for all materials and labor. All alterations, extensions of time, additional work, and other changes authorized by the Agreement Documents may be made without securing the consent of the Surety or Sureties. Power-of-Attorney for the person signing the Bond for the Surety must be submitted with the Bond. These Bonds, in whatever amount required by the specific agreement, shall be administered and deemed governed by the provisions of Alaska Statutes Title 36, Chapter 25, and shall comply with all requirements for payment and submission of claims as provided by that chapter.

# 6. LICENSING

Alaska State Statutes requires that all businesses wishing to engage in business in Alaska obtain license(s). All Bidders are required to furnish with their bid, the applicable, current licenses required to perform the work. Applicable licenses may include the following: Contractor's License, Specialty Contractor License, and Alaska Business License. Failure to submit license(s) with the bid may result in rejection of the Contractor's bid.

# 7. TAX COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

No agreement will be awarded to any individual or entity that is in violation of the tax laws of the City of Kenai or the Kenai Peninsula Borough unless the violation is cured within ten business days of notice. The Tax Compliance Certificate must be signed by the Bidder only and submitted with the bid. The City will obtain verification of tax compliance from the Kenai Peninsula Borough for the successful bidder. Bids submitted without a completed Tax Compliance Certificate may be considered non-responsive.

# 8. INTERPRETATION OR CORRECTIONS OF BID DOCUMENTS

Bidders shall notify the Public Works Director promptly of any error, omission, or inconsistency that may be discovered during examination of the bid documents and the proposed work site(s). Requests from Bidders for interpretation or clarification of the bid documents shall be made in writing to the Public Works Director and shall arrive no later than the time and date specified in Section 1 of these Instructions to Bidders. Questions may be faxed to (907) 283-3014 or emailed to <u>PublicWorks@kenai.city</u>. The subject line of the email or fax must include the name of the project.

Oral questions may be presented at a pre-bid conference if one is provided for in Section 1 of these Instructions to Bidders. Interpretations, corrections, or changes, if any, to the bid documents shall be made by Addendum. Bidders shall not rely upon interpretations, corrections, and changes made in any other manner, including orally, at the pre-bid conference. Interpretations, corrections, and changes shall not be binding unless included in an Addendum. All Addenda issued during the time of bidding shall become part of the Agreement Documents. Questions or requests for clarifications shall be directed to the Public Works Director. Only written interpretations or corrections by Addendum shall be binding, and no other forms of interpretation or correction will be binding on the City of Kenai.

It is the Bidder's sole responsibility to ascertain that they have received all Addenda issued by the City of Kenai. Addenda will be issued electronically and/or by facsimile. All Addenda must be acknowledged in the space provided on the Bid Form. If no Addenda have been issued, write or type zero or "N/A" on the Bid Form in the space provided.

# 9. PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Bids must be received at City Hall prior to the time and date specified in Section 1 of these Instructions to Bidders.

Bids must be submitted on the Bid Form furnished. Bids must be completed in ink or by typewriter, and must be manually signed by an authorized person. If erasures or other changes appear on the forms, the person signing the bid must initial each erasure or change in ink.

Bids shall specify a unit or lump sum price, typed or written in ink in figures, for each bid item called for. In case of error in the extension of prices, the unit price will govern. Bids may be rejected if they show any omissions, alteration of the forms, additions not called for, conditional or alternate bids not called for, qualified bids, or irregularities of any kind.

It is expressly agreed that the quantities shown in the Bid Form, whether for a "Unit Price Bid" or in connection with a "Lump Sum Bid" on the Bid Form are approximate only for use as a basis for comparison of bids and are not to be taken to be either representations or warranties. The City does not expressly, nor by implication, agree that the actual amount of work will correspond therewith.

The Bid Form invites bids on definite plans and specifications. Only the amounts and information asked for on the Bid Form will be considered as the bid. Each Bidder shall bid upon the work exactly as specified and as requested on the Bid Form, and Bidders shall bid upon all alternates as indicated. When bidding on an alternate for which there is no charge, Bidder shall write the words "No Charge" in the space provided.

One (1) complete bid package shall be completely sealed in an envelope clearly marked with the Bidder's company name, and the "Project Name" and "Bid Due Date" specified in Section 1 of these Instructions to Bidders. A complete bid package shall include the following documents:

- 1. Bid Form
- 2. Tax Compliance Certificate
- 3. Applicable Licenses
- 4. Non-Collusion Affidavit
- 5. Bid Bond with Power-of-Attorney (If Bid exceeds \$100,000.00)

- 6. DBE Attachment 1 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Declaration
- 7. DBE Attachment 2 Bidder's Registration Form (for Prime contractor only)
- 8. DBE Attachment 3 List of Potential Subcontractors
- 9. Buy American Compliance Certificate (See Supplemental General Conditions)
- 10. EEO Certification

Bids received without all the required documents may be considered non-responsive. Bids received after the bid due date and time will be considered non-responsive and will not be accepted.

No responsibility shall be attached to the City for the premature opening of, or the failure to open a bid not properly addressed and identified.

Please note that overnight delivery from the lower 48 states is generally not available. Prospective Bidders should anticipate a minimum of two to three days delivery time for express, priority or expedited delivery services.

# 10. MODIFICATION OF BIDS

Bid modifications will be accepted by the City at <u>publicworks@kenai.city</u> and binding upon the Bidder where the modification:

- is received at City Hall prior to the time and date specified in Section 1 of these Instructions to Bidders.
- does not identify the adjusted Bid Total price. Only adjustments to the sealed bid will be accepted. For example:
  - CORRECT Decrease the Unit Bid Price of Item XXX by \$2.50 per ton and the Bid Total by \$2,500.
  - CORRECT Increase the Unit Bid Price of Item XXX and the Bid Total by \$5,000
  - INCORRECT Decrease the Bid Total by \$5,000 for a new Total of \$95,000.
- is signed by the same individual who signed the original bid.

Should there be more than one bid modification from a Bidder, only the last modification received prior to the deadline shall be applied to the bid. All earlier modifications shall be disregarded.

Any modification which fails to meet any requirement of this section shall be rejected, and the bid shall be considered as if no modification had been attempted.

It is the Bidder's responsibility to confirm the City's receipt of any bid modification.

# 11. WITHDRAWAL OF BID

At any time prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids, any Bidder may withdraw their bid, either personally or by written request.

After the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids, no Bidder will be permitted to withdraw their bid unless Notice of Award is delayed for a period exceeding ninety (90) days.

A bid may not be withdrawn after opening without the written consent of the City.

# 12. ACCEPTANCE – REJECTION OF BIDS

The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive minor irregularities in any bids or in the bidding procedure, and to accept any bid presented which meets or exceeds said specifications and which is deemed to be in the best interest of the City. However, the requirements for timeliness and manual signatures shall not be waived. The City is not obligated to accept the lowest bid and is not responsible for bid preparation costs.

# 13. EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS

The successful Bidder shall be required to execute an Agreement for the work within ten (10) days after receiving the Notice of Award and Agreement documents from City; if Contractor does not return executed copies within this time, then, at the option of City, the bid may be rejected.

# 14. AWARD OF AGREEMENT

It is the intent of the City to award the bid to the lowest, qualified, responsive and responsible Bidder. Unless otherwise stated in the bid documents, the Agreement, if awarded, shall be awarded to the responsible Bidder who submits the lowest responsive bid. When bid documents contain a base bid and alternates, only the total of the base bid and the alternates to be awarded shall be used to determine the low Bidder.

The amount of the Agreement shall be the total sum of the amounts computed from the estimated quantities and unit prices and/or the lump sum awarded by the City and specified in the Agreement.

On all bids, Notice of Award or rejection will be given within ninety (90) days of bid opening. The notice will be in writing and signed by the Public Works Director. A Notice of Intent to Award, and no other act of the City of Kenai or its representatives, constitutes an acceptance of a bid. The acceptance of a bid shall bind the successful Bidder to execute the Agreement.

# 15. AGREEMENT AND PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND SIGNATURE INSTRUCTIONS WHEN BONDS ARE REQUIRED

The successful Bidder shall insert the full name and business of the Contractor in the Agreement and on the Performance and Payment Bond, hereinafter the Bond.

If the Contractor is a partnership or joint venture, all partners or joint ventures shall sign the Agreement and the Bond except that one partner or one joint venturer may sign for the partnership or joint venture when all other partners or joint venturer's have executed a Power-of-Attorney authorizing one partner or joint venturer to sign. The Power-of-Attorney shall accompany the executed Agreement and the Bond.

If the Contractor is a Limited Liability Company (LLC), a person with appropriate authority to bind the LLC shall execute the Agreement and Bond unless a Power-of-Attorney or Corporate Resolution accompanies the executed Agreement and Bond.

If the Contractor is a corporation, the President or Vice-President and Secretary or Treasurer of the corporation shall execute the Agreement and the Bond unless a Power-of-Attorney or Corporate Resolution accompanies the executed Agreement and Bond.

The Bond shall be returned undated as to Agreement Date. The Agreement Date shall be inserted on the Agreement when the City signs the Agreement and the Bond shall be dated the same as the Agreement Date.

# 16. SPECIAL PROVISIONS

If funded in part or in whole by a grant or grants, the contractor and their subcontractors will be required to comply with the requirements of these grants, including insurance and purchasing requirements, if any. If any permits are included with the bid documents, e.g. a U.S Corp of Engineers wetland permit, all conditions of this permit must be met by the Contractor and their Subcontractors.

# 17. APPEAL PROCEDURE

KMC 7.15.120 Appeal procedures.

(a) Any party submitting a bid or proposal for a contract with the City and who believes that they are adversely affected by the City's relevant ordinances, regulations, procurement process, or by any acts of the City in connection with the award of a City contract, may file a protest appeal with the City Clerk. All protest appeals must be to the City within five (5) calendar days of the issuance of the City's notice of its intent to award the contract. The appeal must be hand delivered, delivered by mail, or by facsimile and must comply with all requirements of this section. If the fifth day is a City-recognized holiday or a weekend, the deadline for appeal shall be the next work day. It is up to the protester to choose a method of delivery to assure timely receipt by the City.

(b) Rejection of Appeal. The Clerk shall reject an untimely or incomplete appeals. Such rejection shall be final and may be appealed to the Superior Court pursuant to the Court Rules of Appellate Procedure.

(c) The protest appeal must be in writing and shall include the following information:

(1) The name, address, e-mail, and telephone (and facsimile if available) numbers of the protesters;

(2) The signature of the protester or the protester's representative;

(3) Identification of the contracting agency and the solicitation or contract at issue;

(4) A statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest, including copies of relevant documents; and

(5)The form of relief requested.

(d) Stay of Award. If a timely and complete protest appeal is filed, the award of the contract shall be stayed until all administrative remedies have been exhausted, unless the City Manager determines in writing that award of the contract pending resolution of the appeal is in the best interests of the City.

(e) Notice and Response. Notice of the stay and protest appeal shall be delivered to any party who may be adversely affected by the City Manager's decision by facsimile, first class mail or in person within three (3) business days of receipt of a properly filed appeal.

(f) City Manager Decision. The City Manager shall issue a written decision to the appellant within ten (10) business days of the date the appeal is filed. If multiple appeals have been filed, they may be consolidated for purposes of the decision. Copies of the appeal and decision shall be provided to any interested party requesting one. The decision may include any lawful action, including without limitation an amendment of all or any part of the recommended award. For good cause shown, the City Manager may extend the date for the decision for such additional period as may be necessary.

(g) If the City Manager sustains a protest in whole or in part, the City Manager shall implement an appropriate remedy. In determining an appropriate remedy, the City Manager shall consider the circumstances surrounding the solicitation or procurement including the seriousness of the procurement deficiencies, the degree of prejudice to other interested parties or to the integrity of the procurement system, the good faith of the parties, the extent the procurement has been accomplished, costs to the agency and other impacts on the agency of a proposed remedy, and the urgency of the procurement to the welfare of the City.

(h) Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b) immediately above, if the City Manager sustains a bid protest appeal in whole or part, the protester's damages shall not exceed the reasonable bid or proposal preparation costs.

(i) Appeal to Superior Court. Appeals may be taken from the written decision of the City Manager within thirty (30) days of the date of the decision pursuant to Part VI of the Alaska Rules of Appellate Procedure.

(Ord. 2852-2015)

# **18. COMPLIANCE OR ACCEPTED ALTERNATES TO SPECIFICATIONS**

Bidder hereby agrees that the material offered will meet all the requirements of the specifications in this solicitation unless alternates have been deemed acceptable by the City. Manufacturer's names, trade names, brand names, model and catalog numbers used in these specifications are for the purpose of describing and establishing general quality levels. Such references are not intended to be restrictive. Alternates will be approved via addenda, and only via addenda. Request for alternates must be submitted no later than the Last Day for Questions in the Advertisement for Bid. An alternate must be requested via email sent to the addresses in section 1 with an explanation giving in detail the extent of the alternate, the reason for which it is requested, and why the City should approve the alternate. Provide as much detail as possible. If multiple models or options are provided with your submittal data clearly indicate which you are requesting. The City of Kenai will be the sole judge of whether an alternative is acceptable to the items specified.

This page intentionally left blank

## CITY OF KENAI

#### **BID FORM**

TO: City of Kenai Public Works Department 210 Fidalgo Avenue Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

FROM: Name of Bidder's Company or Business Entity

#### **BIDDER'S DECLARATION & UNDERSTANDING**

The undersigned, hereinafter called the Bidder, declares that the Bidder has carefully examined the Addenda, Specifications and Drawings, Agreement, General Conditions, and Instructions to Bidders (hereinafter called "Bid Documents"), and the location(s) where work is to be performed for the project, and that the Bidder has satisfied themselves as to the quantity and condition of work involved.

It is expressly agreed that the quantities shown in the Bid Form, whether for a "Unit Price Bid" or in connection with a "Lump Sum Bid" on the Bid Form are approximate only for use as a basis for comparison of Bids and are not to be taken to be either representations or warranties. The City does not expressly, nor by implication, agree that the actual amount of work will correspond therewith.

The Bidder further declares that the only person or parties interested in the Bid are those named herein, that this Bid is, in all respects, fair and without fraud, that it is made without collusion with any official of the City of Kenai, and that the Bid is made without any connection or collusion with any person submitting another Bid

The Bidder agrees not to withdraw this bid within ninety (90) days after the actual date of the bid opening

#### DOCUMENTS TO SUBMIT WITH THIS BID

- 1. Bid Form
- 2. Tax Compliance Certificate
- 3. Applicable Licenses
- 4. Non-Collusion Affidavit
- 5. Bid Bond with Power-of-Attorney (If Bid exceeds \$100,000.00)
- 6. DBE Attachment 1 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utilization Declaration
- 7. DBE Attachment 2 Bidder's Registration Form (for Prime contractor only)
- 8. DBE Attachment 3 List of Potential Subcontractors Form

# DOCUMENTS TO SUBMIT WITHIN 5 DAYS AFTER INTENT TO AWARD

- 1. DBE Attachment 4 DBE Utilization Report.
- 2. DBE Attachment 5 Letter of Intent
- 3. DBE Attachment 6 Summary of Good Faith Effort Documentation (if DBE goal not met) DBE
- 4. Attachment 7 Contact Report Form (if DBE goal not met)

5. DBE Attachment 2 Bidder's Registration Form (for each DBE and non-DBE subcontractor) working on the project.

# DOCUMENTS THE CITY OF KENAI IS TO RECEIVE WITHIN 10 DAYS AFTER NOTICE OF AWARD

The Bidder agrees that if this Bid is accepted he will deliver to the City of Kenai, within ten (10) calendar days of Notice of Award, the following:

- 1. Executed Agreement
- 2. Certificate(s) of Insurances\*
- 3. Construction Schedule
- 4. List of Subcontractors
- 5. Performance and Payment Bond
- 6. Power of Attorney and/or Corporate Resolution (See Instructions to Bidders)

\* The City shall be named as an additional insured on General Liability and Automobile Liability insurances with respect to the performance or failure to perform under this Agreement.

# TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Bidder agrees to commence and complete work as follows: Owner anticipates issuance of a Notice to Proceed on or about October 1, 2019 with a Substantial Completion date of February 28, 2020. Final Inspection and Completion, March 27<sup>th</sup>, 2020. The training center begins classes on April 1, 2020.

Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages will be charged at Fifteen Hundred Dollars (\$1,500.00), plus Actual Damages, including additional services and expenses of the Engineer for each calendar day that expires after the contract time required for substantial completion to the actual date of completion as provided for in the Agreement Documents. Liquidated and Actual damages will be withheld from Contractor payments.

# **BID TABULATION AND SUMMARY**

Bidder agrees to perform all of the work described and per the conditions in the Bid Documents for the prices stated on this Bid Form.

Prices are to be shown in both words and figures. In case of discrepancy, the amount shown in words will govern. In case of error in the extension of prices, the unit price will govern. Bidder understands that the City reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive irregularities in the bidding.

BID GUARANTEE: The Undersigned further agrees that the check or bid bond accompanying the bid is left in escrow with the City, that the amount of the check or bond is the measure of damages

which the City will sustain by failure of the Undersigned to deliver said documents within ten (10) days after written notice of the award of contract to him or her, and that check shall become the property of the City, or the bid bond shall remain in full effect, should he or she so fail. But if this bid is not accepted within ninety (90) days of the date set for the opening thereof, or if accepted and the Undersigned delivers said Agreement, and performance, and labor, and material payment bonds as required, the check shall be returned to him or her and the bid bond shall become void.

#### **CERTIFICATIONS**

Buy America Certification (Title 49 U.S.C. Section 50101)

As a matter of bid responsiveness, the bidder or offeror must complete and submit this certification statement with their proposal. The bidder or offeror must indicate how they intend to comply with 49 USC § 50101 by selecting one on the following certification statements. These statements are mutually exclusive. Bidder must select one or the other (not both) by inserting a checkmark ( $\checkmark$ ) or the letter "X". Additional information regarding Buy American Requirements can be found in Section 1.8.A.2 Buy American Preferences.

#### **Certificate of Buy American Compliance for Manufactured Products**

(Non-building construction projects, equipment acquisition projects)

Bidder or offeror hereby certifies that it will comply with 49 USC § 50101 by:

- a) Only installing steel and manufactured products produced in the United States, or;
- b) Installing manufactured products for which the FAA has issued a waiver as indicated by inclusion on the current FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued listing, or;
- c) Installing products listed as an Excepted Article, Material or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 25.108.

By selecting this certification statement, the bidder or offeror agrees:

- 1. To provide to the Owner evidence that documents the source and origin of the steel and manufactured product.
- 2. To faithfully comply with providing US domestic product
- 3. To furnish US domestic product for any waiver request that the FAA rejects
- 4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.
- □ The bidder or offeror hereby certifies it cannot comply with the 100% Buy American Preferences of 49 USC § 50101(a) but may qualify for either a Type 3 or Type 4 waiver under 49 USC § 50101(b). By selecting this certification statement, the apparent bidder or offeror with the apparent low bid agrees:
  - 1. To the submit to the Owner within 15 calendar days of the bid opening, a formal waiver request and required documentation that support the type of waiver being requested.
  - 2. That failure to submit the required documentation within the specified timeframe is cause for a non-responsive determination may result in rejection of the proposal.
  - 3. To faithfully comply with providing US domestic products at or above the approved US domestic content percentage as approved by the FAA.
  - 4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.

#### CERTIFICATION OF OFFEROR/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY

**CONVICTIONS:** The bidder must complete the following two certification statements. **Refer to Section 1.8 –Federal Contract Provision, Item A24.** The applicant must indicate its current status as it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting a checkmark "X" in the space following the applicable response. The bidder agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification in all lower tier subcontracts.

- The applicant represents that it is / / is not / / a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability.
- 2) The applicant represents that **it is** /\_\_\_/ **is not** /\_\_\_/ a corporation that was convicted of a criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

**CERTIFICATION OF EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY:** During the performance of this contract, the bidder agrees to follow the requirements listed in **Section 1.8 - Item 13. Equal Employment Opportunity**. The Bidder shall complete the following EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CERTIFICATION by checking the appropriate boxes.

- A. The Bidder **has** /\_\_\_\_/ **has not** /\_\_\_\_/ participated in a previous contract subject to the equal opportunity clause prescribed by Executive Order 10925, or Executive Order 11114, or Executive Order 11246.
- B. The Bidder **has** /\_\_\_/ **has not** /\_\_\_/ submitted all compliance reports in connection with any such contract due under the applicable filing requirements; and that representations indicating submission of required compliance reports signed by proposed sub-contractors will be obtained prior to award of subcontracts.
- C. If the Bidder has participated in a previous contract subject to the equal opportunity clause and has not submitted compliance reports as required by applicable instructions, the Bidder shall submit a compliance report on Standard Form 100, "Employer Information Report EEO-1" prior to the award of contract.

## **EXECUTION OF BID**

Bidder shall complete and submit all pages of the Bid Form.

I have received the Bid Documents for the Project: Training Building Rehabilitation Project.

I have received Addenda No(s). \_\_\_\_\_\_ and have included their provisions in my proposal.

I have examined both the Bid Documents and the work locations, and submit the following bid with the understanding that I agree:

- 1. To hold my bid open ninety (90) consecutive calendar days.
- 2. To accept the provisions of the Bid Documents.
- 3. To enter into and execute an Agreement, if awarded, on the basis of my Bid.
- 4. To furnish all labor and materials and to accomplish the work in accordance with the Bid Documents.
- 5. To accomplish Substantial Completion as specified above in TIME OF COMPLETION.

Complete the Bid Forms on the following pages:

SCHEDULE 1 - TRAINING SYSTEM COMPONENTS					
SCHEDULE	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNITS	UNIT PRICE	TOTAL COST
1A	Replace SCBA Cylinder Filling Station	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	Dol	lars		
1B	Booster Pump and Controls Rehabiliation	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	Dol	lars		
1C	Pneumatic Valve System Compressor Replacement	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	. Doi	lai S		
1D	Effluent Building Submersible Sump Pumps Replacement	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	Dol	lars		
TOTAL SCHE	EDULE 1				
	(TOTAL SCHEDULE I: PRICE IN WORDS)		(тот/	AL PRICE IN FIGURE	S)
ADDITIVE	ALTERNATIVE 1-A				
A1-A	Hydronic Heating System Boiler Rehabilitation	1	LS		
		Dol	lars		

(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)

	SCHEDULE 2 - TRAINING BUILDI	NG REHA	BILITAT	ION	
CHEDULE	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNITS	UNIT PRICE	TOTAL COST
2A	Office area Ventilation and AC Systems Rehabilitation	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	Dol	lars		
2B	Install Ventilation in Apparatus Bay	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	_ Dol	lars		
2C	Heating System Rehabilitation	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)		iai s		
2D	Mechanical Control System Rehabilitation	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	Dol	lars		
OTAL SCHED	ULE2				
	(TOTAL SCHEDULE 2: PRICE IN WORDS)	=	(тоти	AL PRICE IN FIGURE	S)

SCHEDULE 3 - ROOF SYSTEM REHABILITATION					
SCHEDULE	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNITS	UNIT PRICE	TOTAL COST
3A	Roof System Rehabilitation	1	LS		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)	Dolla	ars		
	SCHEDULE 4 - FLOORING	REHABILI	ATION		
SCHEDULE	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNITS	UNIT PRICE	TOTAL COST
4A	High Traffic Flooring Rehabilitation	1	LS		
		Doll	ars		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)				
	SCHEDULE 5 - LIGHTING I	REHABILIT	ATION		
SCHEDULE	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNITS	UNIT PRICE	TOTAL COST
5A	Building and Site Lighting Rehabiltation	1	LS		
		Dolla	ars		
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)				
SCHEDULE 6 - MANEUVER AREA REHABILITATION					
SCHEDULE	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNITS	UNIT PRICE	TOTAL COST
6A	Maneuver Area Surface Rehabilitation	1	LS		
	Dollars				
	(UNIT PRICE IN WORDS)				

BID SUMMARY	
TOTAL SCHEDULE 1:	
(TOTAL SCHEDULE 1 PRICE IN WORDS)	(BID PRICE IN FIGURES)
TOTAL SCHEDULE 2:	
(TOTAL SCHEDULE 2 PRICE IN WORDS)	(TOTAL PRICE IN FIGURES)
TOTAL SCHEDULE 3:	
(TOTAL SCHEDULE 3 PRICE IN WORDS)	(TOTAL PRICE IN FIGURES)
TOTAL SCHEDULE 4:	
(TOTAL SCHEDULE 4 PRICE IN WORDS)	(BID PRICE IN FIGURES)
TOTAL SCHEDULE 5:	
(TOTAL SCHEDULE 5 PRICE IN WORDS)	(TOTAL PRICE IN FIGURES)
TOTAL SCHEDULE 6:	
(TOTAL SCHEDULE 6 PRICE IN WORDS)	(TOTAL PRICE IN FIGURES)
TOTAL BID (Schedules 1-6):	
(TOTAL BID: ALL SCHEDULES, PRICE IN WORDS)	(BID PRICE IN FIGURES)

<u>Award</u>: The Owner reserves the right to award the contract to the low, responsive, responsible Bidder meeting the requirements stated on the Bid Form, for the combination of schedules as selected by the Owner. Schedules will be awarded in order of priority as numbered. The Owner shall award one (1) contract for Project. The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or to waive any formality or technicality in any proposal in the interest of the Owner. Bidders shall submit bids on all schedules, unless otherwise identified. The Actual work awarded will be based on the availability of funds and concurrence from the FAA.

**Buy American Requirements for award of Contract:** If the Bidder indicated in the proposal that that it cannot fully comply with the Buy America preferences of Title 49 U.S.C Section 50101(a); the bidder therefore will require a request of a waiver per Title 49 U.S.C Section 50101(b).

The waiver request form (Exhibit B) is provided in *Part 12 Appendix - Forms*. The waiver request and any component calculation information shall be provided with all the required information within 14 calendar days of notice of apparent low bid. All waivers must be processed before the contract is awarded.

An Agreement shall not be formed and no rights shall exist under the Agreement until the final Agreement is fully executed by all parties. Bidder agrees to commence work immediately upon full execution of the Agreement or such later time as defined in a Notice To Proceed.

If provided a Notice of Award, Bidder agrees to execute and perform the Agreement in accordance with the Bid Documents.

By executing this Bid, I certify that I have authority to bind the Company or Business Entity submitting this bid.

Name of Company or Business Entity	Date
Signature	Title
Print Name	Phone
Address	 Fax
Address	Email Address
Acknowledge Addendum:	

This page intentionally left blank

# **SECTION 1.5**

# CITY OF KENAI AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

MADE AS OF THE \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_ 20\_\_\_

BETWEEN the OWNER:

CITY OF KENAI 210 Fidalgo Avenue Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

AND the CONTRACTOR:

xxxxxxxxxxx Xxxxxxxxxxx Xxxxxxxxxxxx

FOR the PROJECT: Training Building Rehabilitation Project

The Owner and Contractor agree as set forth below.

# ARTICLE 1 THE WORK

The Contractor shall perform all the work required by the contract documents.

# ARTICLE 2 ENUMERATION OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The additional documents which are specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference and which form the contract documents are:

- A. Any and all later modifications, change orders, and written interpretations of the contract documents issued by the Owner
- B. This Agreement
- C. Addenda
- D. Supplemental General Conditions (if any)
- E. General Conditions
- F. Drawings and Specifications Provided by Engineer. In the case of an inconsistency between Drawings and Specifications or within either Document not clarified by addendum, the better quality or greater quantity of Work shall be provided.
- G. Drawings and Specifications in the latest edition of the Municipality of Anchorage Standard Specifications (M.A.S.S.) In the case of an inconsistency between Drawings and Specifications or within either Document not clarified by addendum, the better quality or greater quantity of Work shall be provided. Contractor is responsible for obtaining the latest edition of the M.A.S.S

- H. The Request for Proposals / Invitation to Bid
- I. The Contractor's bid/proposal.

Any other attachments to this Agreement do not form a part of the Agreement but are for reference or proof of compliance with the requirements of the Agreement, except where the provisions of this Agreement provide such attachments will be or are a part of the Agreement.

These form the contract and what is required by any of the documents shall be as binding as if required by all. The intention of the contract documents is to require the furnishing of all labor, material, equipment, and other items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work and to prescribe the terms and conditions of the contract and payment, so as to include work

\* M.A.S.S. is the Municipality of Anchorage Standard Specifications, and Divisions 20 through 80 are hereby incorporated into these Contract Documents. Division 10 is specifically excluded. The Contractor is responsible for checking to ensure they have the most current version. Specifications, drawings, and general provisions provided by the Owner (City of Kenai) or their Agents (Engineers, Architects, or others as appointed by the City) take precedence over the M.A.S.S.and materials which may be necessary to produce the intended results.

#### ARTICLE 3 TIME OF COMMEN NT AND COMPLETION

Work shall commence upon receipt of the Notice to Proceed. All work must be substantially completed by December 1, 2019; \_\_XXX\_\_\_ days after the date of the Notice to Proceed. Liquidated damages will be charged against the Contractor as provided below.

## ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT SUM

The Owner shall pay the Contractor as provided in this contract the total sum price of \$X, XXX, XXX.XX for the successful completion of the specified work.

## ARTICLE 5 PROGRESS PAYMENT

Progress payments shall be made per the General Conditions.

# ARTICLE 6 FINAL PAYMENT

Final payment shall be made per the General Conditions. The Contractor shall request the final inspection at least five (5) days in advance of the anticipated date of inspection. If all work has not been satisfactorily completed, the Contractor shall be liable for all costs incurred by the Owner in making such inspection.

**SECTION 1.5** 

# ARTICLE 7 NOTICES

All legal notices relating to this contract, including changes of address, shall be mailed to the Owner and the Contractor at the following addresses:

#### <u>OWNER</u>

CITY OF KENAI Public Works Director 210 Fidalgo Avenue Kenai, AK 99611

#### **CONTRACTOR**

XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX

## ARTICLE 8 INDEMNIFICATION

No provision in the contract documents lessens, alters, or makes inapplicable the requirement for indemnification stated in the General Conditions or other documents incorporated into the contract by this Agreement.

## ARTICLE 9 JURISDICTION: CHOICE OF LAW

This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska, and any lawsuit brought thereon shall be filed in the Third Judicial District at Kenai, Alaska.

# ARTICLE 10 ATTACHMENTS

In the event there is any difference between an attachment to the original of this Agreement on file with the City of Kenai Public Works Department and any attachment to a copy of the Agreement, the attachments to the original filed with the Public Works Department shall control.

# ARTICLE 11 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Owner and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence in performance of this contract and the Owner will suffer financial loss if the work is not substantially complete within the time specified above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with contract documents. They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving the actual loss suffered by Owner if the work is not substantially complete on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay Owner Fifteen Hundred Dollars (\$1,500.00) for each calendar day that expires after the contract time required for substantial completion to the actual date of substantial completion determined as set out in the Contract Documents. The Owner and Contractor agree that this amount is a reasonable forecast of just compensation for the harm that is caused by the delay.

**SECTION 1.5** 

PAGE 3 OF 10

# ARTICLE 12 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY

This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit of each party hereto. Nothing contained herein shall be construed or deemed to confer any benefit or right upon any third party.

OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, Agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Contract this day and year first above written.

OWNER: CITY OF KENAI	CONTRACTOR
Ву:	Ву:
Title:	Title:
Business Address	Business Address
City State Zip	City State Zip
STATE OF ALASKA ) )SS.	STATE OF ALASKA ) )SS.
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )	THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on Thisday of20 Paul Ostrander, City Manager, City of Kenai, Alaska, being personally known to me or having produced satisfactory evidence of identification, appeared before me and acknowledged the voluntary and authorized execution of the foregoing instrument on behalf of said City.	THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on Thisday of20 (title) ofbeing personally known to me to having produced satisfactory evidence of identification, appeared before me and acknowledged the voluntary and authorized execution of the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation.
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR ALASKA My Commission Expires:	NOTARY PUBLIC FOR ALASKA My Commission Expires:

Approved by Legal: \_\_\_\_\_ Approved by Finance: \_\_\_\_\_

The foregoing Contract, including all Contract Documents which are a part thereof, is in due form according to the law and is hereby approved.

Attorney for the City of Kenai, AK

#### See attached forms:

- A. CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS, LOANS, AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS (Requires Signature)
- B. DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (Requires Disclosure)
- C. LETTER OF INTENT (Requires Signature If Utilizing DBE)
- D. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES (Requires Signature)

#### Attachment "A" CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS, LOANS, AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobby Activities," in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon with reliance was placed when this transaction was made of entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Signed:

Dated:\_\_\_\_\_

Contractor's Authorized Representative

# Attachment "B" DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

1. Type of Federal Action: a. Contract b. Grant c. Cooperative Agreement d. Loan e. Loan Guarantee f. Loan Insurance	2. Status of Federal Action ¨ a. id/Offer/Applicatior ¨ b. Initial Award ¨ c. Post-award	3. Report Type: a. Initial filing b. Material change For Material Change Only: YearQuarter Date of last report		
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity: "Prime "Subawardee Tier, <i>if known:</i>	and Address of Prime			
Congressional District, <i>if known:</i>	Congressional District, <i>if known:</i>			
6. Federal Department/Agency:	7. Federal Program Nam CFDA Number, <i>if appli</i>			
8. Federal Action Number, <i>if known:</i>	9. Award Amount, <i>if know</i> \$	wn:		
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Entity (if individual, last name, first name, MI):	different from No. 10a) (last name, first name,	Services (including address if MI): on Sheet(s) SF-LLL-A, if		
11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply):	13. Type of Payment <i>(ch</i>	eck all that apply):		
<ul> <li>* " actual " planned</li> <li>* a. Retainer</li> <li>* b. One- time fee</li> <li>* c. Commission</li> <li>* d. Contingent fee</li> <li>* e. Deferred</li> <li>* f. Other; specify:</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li><sup>a</sup> b. In-kind: specify: naturevalue</li> <li>14. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be Performed and Date(s) of Service, including officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) contacted, for Payment indicated in Item 11:</li> <li>(attach Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLL-A, if necessary)</li> </ul>				
15. Continuation Sheet(s) SF-LLL-A attached: "Yes "No				
Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. Section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.	Signature: Print Name: Title: Telephone No:			
Federal Use Only:		Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form - LLL		

SECTION 1.5

F

# DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES CONTINUATION SHEET

Reporting Entity:	Page of

**SECTION 1.5** 

# Attachment "C" LETTER OF INTENT

The Letter of Intent form shall be completed, and **submitted with the executed contract documents**. A separate Letter of Intent form is required for each proposed DBE subcontractor.

#### LETTER OF INTENT

Name of Bidder's Firm:		
Bidder's Address:		
City:	State:	Zip:
Name of DBE Firm:		
Address:		
City:	State:	Zip:
Telephone (including area code)		

Description of work to be performed by DBE firm:

Bidder intends to utilize the above named DBE firm for the work described above. The estimated amount of work is valued at \$\_\_\_\_\_\_

Bidder's confirmation of intent to use DBE contractor:

Bidder's Signature:

#### Attachment "D" ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

This	acknowledgement	dated	this	da	y of				, 20	,	by
	-			[CON	RACTO	R]	wherei	n C	ONTRA	ACT	OR
ackno	wledges and agree	es that	the o	construction	contract	which	is the	subject	matter	of t	this
submitted bid contains a liquidated damages clause.											

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that because this is a construction contract, it is impracticable or extremely difficult to fix, determine and prove Owner's actual damages for delay in completing the project within the time specified, and for this reason a liquidated damages clause is both appropriate and necessary. It is mutually agreed that a sum of  $\frac{\$0.00}{\$0.00}$  per day is a reasonable and good faith estimate of the anticipated and probable damages the City of Kenai will incur should the Contractor fail to complete within the contract time specified. Contractor acknowledges that this mutually agreed upon liquidated damages amount has been specifically taken into account in arriving at the dollar amount of Contractor's submitted bid. This liquidated damages and agrees to be bound by this amount.

The mutually agreed upon liquidated damages amount may be deducted from money due or to become due to Contractor should Contractor be awarded the construction contract and should Contractor fail to complete the work within the time specified.

By:	
•	(Contractor)
Its:	
	(Title)

### SECTION 1.5 SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR ALASKA REGIONAL TRAINING CENTER KENAI, ALASKA

#### 1.00 Location and Scope

- 1.01 Location
- 1.02 Scope

#### 2.00 Contract Documents

#### 2.01 Specifications

2.02 Plans

#### 3.00 Pre-Bid Conference / Pre-Construction Conference

- 3.01 Pre-bid Conference
- 3.02 Pre-Construction Conference

#### 4.00 Project Award, Financing and Scheduling

- 4.01 Funding
- 4.02 Scheduling
- 4.03 Permits
- 5.00 Number of Prime Contracts
- 6.00 Construction Surveys by Contractor

#### 7.00 Contractor Operations

- 7.01 Underground Utilities
- 7.02 Job Site Safety
- 8.00 Materials Testing and Quality Control
- 9.00 Contract Time, Liquidated and Actual Damages 10.01 Contract Time
  - 10.02 Liquidated Damages and Actual Damages

#### 10.00 Payment to Contractor

- 11.01 General
- 11.02 Partial and Final Payment
- 11.03 Payments to Subcontractors and Suppliers

#### 11.00 Engineering Interpretations

11.01 Engineering Decisions

#### 12.00 Emergency Situations

#### 13.0 Insurance – Refer to City of Kenai General Conditions

#### 14.00 Submittals

- 14.01 Initial Submittal
- 14.02 Shop Drawings
- 14.03 Procedure
- 14.04 Engineer's Approval
- 15.00 Dispute Resolution (Mediation)
- 16.00 Federal AID Relationship (FAA Grant) to Instruction to Bidders.
- 17.00 Underground Utilities
- 18.00 Record Drawings and Material Testing Summary
- **19.00** Buy American Supplemental Information
- 20.00 Work Area Cleanup
- 21.00 Change Order Limitations
- 22.00 Smoke and Dust Control
- 23.00 Contractor's Certificate and Release

### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

The following Special Provisions are hereby made a part of this contract and shall supplement and/or supersede any articles of these specifications in conflict therewith.

Any subsequent addenda issued after these specifications have been prepared shall supplement and/or supersede any article of these specifications.

Herein the *Owner,* shall be understood to be City of Kenai, Kenai, Alaska

Herein the Engineer, shall be understood as the firm of Morrison Maierle, Inc

Herein where the term **FAA** is used it shall be understood as the **Federal Aviation Administration**.

### 1.00 LOCATION AND SCOPE

- 1.01 Location: Alaska Regional Emergency Services Training Center, Kenai, Alaska
- 1.02 <u>Scope</u>: The major elements of work include:

Schedule 1 – Training System Components

Schedule 2- Training Building Rehabilitation

Schedule 3 – Roof System Rehabilitation

Schedule 4 – Flooring Rehabilitation

Schedule 5 – Interior and Exterior Lighting Rehabilitation

Schedule 6 – Maneuver Area Rehabilitation

### 2.00 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2.01 <u>Specifications</u>: As itemized in Table of Contents of these specifications.

2.02 <u>Plans</u>: The plans for the project are bound separately but are as much a part and parcel of these contract documents as if they were bound herein. Said plans are itemized by sheet title and number on the title sheet of the plans.

### 3.00 PRE-BID / PRE-CONSTRUCTION / PRE-PAVING CONFERENCE

3.01 <u>The Pre-Bid Conference</u>... There will be a Pre-Bid Conference, at the time and location referenced in the invitation to bid. Interested Prime Contractors are encouraged to attend. The purpose of the conference will be to discuss safety, construction scope, and scheduling. A tour of the project site will be conducted for interested parties following the conference. The Owner will not provide additional tours. A pre-construction conference will be scheduled with the successful bidder(s) following contract award and prior to construction.

#### 3.02 Pre-Construction Conference.

The Prime Contractor(s) shall submit within seven (7) days prior to the pre-construction conference(s) a construction schedule in a form that shows the daily schedule of work. The schedule shall be capable of updating to show actual progress of work, and enable revisions, if required, to be easily made. Construction operations may begin no sooner than five (5) days after approval of the construction schedule. This time is necessary for coordination of the Airport users.

At the pre-construction conference(s), the Contractor(s) will be required to discuss details of how they expect to conduct their operations. These details shall include their best estimate of timing on such things as delivery of materials and the commencement of the various construction activities as per the Schedule outlined in the plans and specifications. Costs associated with the pre-construction conference(s) shall not be paid for directly, but shall be absorbed in other items of work.

### 4.00 PROJECT AWARD, FINANCING AND SCHEDULING

4.01 <u>Funding</u>: This project is to be built with the Owner's local funds and grant(s) from the FAA. Therefore, award of the Contract by the Sponsor will be made subject to concurrence of the FAA.

4.02 <u>Scheduling</u>: The Notice to Proceed with construction of the project will be issued to the Contractor after FAA concurrence in Contract award is made and grant issued for the project.

The Notice to Proceed however is dependent on the issuance of a grant by the FAA and the Owners ability to issue a notice to proceed.

4.03 <u>Permits</u>: All permits required to complete the work are an obligation of the Contractor to obtain at the Contractor's expense.

### 5.00 NUMBER OF PRIME CONTRACTS

The Owner reserves the right to enter into a single contract with a single Contractor for the combination of schedules and alternate schedules as selected by the Owner. See City of Kenai General Provisions as it relates to limitations on subcontracting portions of the contract.

#### 5.01 Subcontracts:

The successful prime contractor shall provide a copy of all subcontractor contracts on the project.

### 6.00 CONSTRUCTION SURVEYS BY CONTRACTOR

All survey requirements shall be the responsibility of the Contractor and shall comply with the requirements of the Technical Specifications as applicable.

### 7.00 CONSTRACTORTION SURVEYS BY CONTRACTOR

**7.01 Underground Utilities.** The Contractor shall be responsible for checking with the Owners of underground utilities as to the location of their underground lines. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any damage done to these installations due to failure to locate them or to properly protect them when their location is known.

It shall be solely the responsibility of the Contractor to fully coordinate his work with the agencies and to keep them informed of his construction activities so that these vital installations are fully protected at all times.

**7.02** Jobsite Safety. Jobsite health and safety is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. Neither the professional activities of the Engineer/Owner, nor the presence of the Engineer's/Owner's employees and subconsultants at the construction site, shall relieve the Contractor, Subcontractors or any other Contractor entity of their obligations, duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or procedures necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of the work of construction in accordance with the contract documents and any health or safety precautions required by any regulatory agencies. The Contractor shall indemnify and defend the Owner, Engineer, and Engineer's subconsultants from all claims arising from the performance of the Contractor and his Subcontractors.

It is understood and agreed that the Contractor has sole responsibility for jobsite safety. Notwithstanding this Contractor responsibility, if the Engineer observes situations that the Engineer believes to be a hazard or safety violation, the Engineer shall report the matter to the Contractor, the Owner and the Project Manager. The Contractor agrees to indemnify the Engineer and hold the Engineer harmless from any claims, demands or liability arising from the Engineer's exercise of professional responsibility in this regard.

<u>Personal Protective Equipment</u>. All Contractor personnel shall wear safety vests and other applicable personal protective equipment (PPE) while on the project site in accordance with the Contractor's safety program. As the Contractor is responsible for all jobsite safety, the Contractor may direct the Owner and Engineer to utilize required PPE while in their designated work area(s).

### 8.00 MATERIALS TESTING AND QUALITY CONTROL

### 8.01 <u>Testing Responsibilities.</u>

#### Contractor

The Contractor shall provide an independent certified testing laboratory (approved by the Engineer and meeting project specifications) to perform all materials, acceptance, and quality control tests called for in the specifications, at no cost to the Owner.

Testing results shall be provided to the Engineer at the time of the test. Handwritten reports shall to be delivered to the Engineer the next working day, with a typewritten report to follow. A full copy of the typewritten testing results on applicable FAA forms, and an electronic copy on a CD, shall be provided to the Engineer from the testing laboratory at the end of construction. No work on a particular item shall be accomplished until the required preliminary and suitability tests have been completed for that particular item. At the Owner's request the Contractor shall provide samples of materials for independent test verification at the Owner's expense.

Acceptance and rejection of materials will generally be determined from tests made of the various courses complete and in-place in the field. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to conduct, control and test his production operations in such a manner that the material produced will meet the specification requirements.

- 8.02 Acceptance and rejection of materials will generally be determined from tests made of the various courses complete and in-place in the field. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to conduct, control and test his production operations in such a manner that the material produced will meet the specification requirements.
- 8.03 In addition, the Contractor shall provide a summary of all materials testing performed on the project in a neatly organized bound document covering all materials testing organized by each specification section. The summary of the test results shall be provided in electronic format.

### 9.00 CONTRACT TIME, LIQUIDATED AND ACTUAL DAMAGES

The project schedule is anticipated to be:

October 1, 2019 – Issue Notice to Proceed.

#### Schedule 1 – Training System Components

March 2, 2020 – Substantial Completion Inspection March 2 – March 6, 2020 - Commissioning of Equipment March 27, 2020 – Final Inspection and completion of project

#### Schedules 2-6

**June 5, 2020** – Substantial Completion Inspection **June 19, 2020** – Final Inspection and completion of project.

These dates may be subject to changes based on availability of grant funds or other occurrences.

9.01 <u>Contract Time</u>: Contract time is as follows:

#### October 1, 2019 – Issue Notice to Proceed.

#### Schedule 1 – Training System Components

March 2, 2020 – Substantial Completion Inspection March 2 – March 6, 2020 - Commissioning of Equipment March 27, 2020 – Final Inspection and completion of project

#### Schedules 2-6

#### June 5, 2020 – Substantial Completion Inspection June 19, 2020 – Final Inspection and completion of project.

Liquidated damages apply to overrun of contract time.

A pre-construction conference will be held prior to beginning construction, at which time, a Notice to Proceed will be issued. The Notice to Proceed (NTP) dates is contingent on the construction schedule proposed by the Contractor and approved by the Owner.

Once the Engineer agrees that the contract is substantially complete, the Engineer will examine the project and provide a punch list of items to be completed. Upon receipt of the punch list, the Contractor shall have ten (10) calendar days to complete the punch list items and any other items remaining to complete the project, unless otherwise agreed to by the Owner in writing. Typically, the project will not be considered substantially complete until at least 95% of all work has been satisfactorily completed.

Should the punch list items of work not be completed within the time period, the Owner has the right to employ another company to perform the work and withhold payments to the Prime Contractor to pay for completion.

#### 9.02 Liquidated Damages and Actual Damages:

The Owner shall be entitled to liquidated damages for failure of the Contractor to complete the work within the specified contract time noted above.

The Contractor further agrees to pay damages for expenses incurred by the Owner for additional engineering services during the contract time overrun; for unscheduled employment of the Engineer necessitated by the Contractor working overtime, Sundays, or holidays; and for furnishing materials or equipment not in conformance with the Contract Documents.

A. As compensation for damages incurred by the Owner as a result of the Contractor exceeding the specified total contract time, the Contractor shall be assessed a liquidated damage of \$1,500.00 per calendar day for each calendar day that the work remains uncompleted beyond the specified contract time for the total project.

C. The Bidder further agrees to pay actual damages according to the following hourly rates for the unscheduled employment of the Engineer necessitated by the Contractor:

- 1. Working more than 10 hours per day, more than five (5) days per week and Saturdays (time and one-half), and holidays, and Sundays (double time).
- 2. Furnishing materials or equipment not in conformance with Contract Documents necessitating redesign by the Engineer.
- 3. Working beyond the time of completion established in the Notice to Proceed with Construction:

Description	Cost			
Supervising Engineer III	\$195/ hr			
Supervising Engineer II	\$185/hr			
Supervising Engineer I	\$175/hr			
Senior Engineer II	\$160/hr			
Senior Engineer I	\$145/hr			
Design Engineer II	\$135/hr			
Design Engineer I	\$125/hr			
Engineer Intern II	\$112/hr			
Engineer Intern I	\$103/hr			
Senior Engineering Technician	\$138/hr			
Engineering Technician	\$103/hr			
Land Surveyor III	\$135/hr			
Land Surveyor II	\$120/hr			
Land Surveyor I	\$108/hr			
Survey Technician III	\$95/hr			
Survey Technician II	\$85/hr			
Survey Technician I	\$72/hr			
Out-of-Pocket Cost				
Materials, Equipment, supplies,	At Cost			
transportation, lodging, subsistence,	Al COSI			
etc.				

Liquidated and actual damages noted above will be applied concurrently, if applicable, for each calendar day and occurrence in which the Contractor does not meet the criteria noted.

All damages shall be paid by deduction from monthly progress payments and the final payment.

### 10.00 PAYMENT TO CONTRACTORS

10.01 <u>General</u>: This AIP project involves payment to Contractors not only from funds the Owner has on hand for this purpose but also, to a substantial degree grant funds from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). The Contractor is hereby advised that the Owner and the Engineer will expedite partial and final payments to the Contractor as much as possible but since FAA grant funds must be obtained to make these payments, the Contractor should anticipate and allow time for obtaining these grant funds before expecting partial or final payments under this Contract.

10.02 <u>Partial and Final Payments</u>: Following is the procedure, which will be used in making partial and final payments to the Contractor. At the pre-construction conference the Engineer and Contractor(s) shall agree on a date each month when work will be cut off for that month's estimate. No later than ten (10) calendar days after said cut-off date the Engineer will prepare the estimate for payment to the Contractor and Federal Aid Application for FAA grant payment to the Airport which will be provided to the Owner within the ten day period.

- A. No later than seven (7) days after receipt of the Federal Grant payment from the U.S. Treasury the Airport will process and pay the claim for the partial or final estimate as the case may be.
- B. The Contractor may request in writing a reduction in the amount of retainage withheld.
- C. The Contractor will not be paid the final retainage of his contract price until the final FAA inspection has been held. There may be considerable delay in receiving final payment.
- D. Final Payment shall not be due until the Contractor has provided the Owner with an "Amounts Paid DBE Participants," in the form provided, Record Drawings as per General and Special Provisions, and Lien Releases or certification as per General and Special Provisions.
- E. The making of final payment will not relieve the Contractor from claims arising from the failure of the work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Document.
- 10.03 <u>Payments to Subcontractors and Suppliers</u>: The Prime Contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor and supplier under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than ten (10) days from the receipt of each payment the Prime Contractor receives from the Owner. The Prime Contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor or supplier within ten (10) days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Owner. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors and suppliers.

### 11.00 ENGINEERING INTERPRETATIONS

11.01 <u>Engineering Decisions</u>: It is realized that timely engineering decisions on construction activities or results have an important bearing on the Contractor's schedule. On this project the Engineer will make every effort to have a Resident Project Representative (RPR) readily available to the project during the construction schedule, who has the authority to make judgment calls on matters dealing with interpretation of the plans and specifications, with the one qualification, that he shall have the right to take twenty-four (24) hours to confer with other Engineers or FAA before giving said decision.

When the decision affects a plan design or specification change, it should be realized that more time may be required than twenty-four (24) hours to gain the necessary Owner and FAA participation in the decision process including time for formal change order preparation as required.

### 12.00 EMERGENCY SITUATIONS

12.01 Contractor shall take appropriate measures during emergency situations.

### **13.00 INSURANCE** – Refer to the City of Kenai General Conditions

### 14.00 SUBMITTALS

14.01 <u>Initial Submittal</u>: Prior to the first application for payment, the Contractor shall submit the following information:

- A. <u>Schedule of Amounts for Contract Payment</u>: This form shall contain a breakdown of the labor, materials and other costs associated with the various portions of the work and shall be the basis for the progress payments to the Contractor (Summary of Project Costs).
- B. <u>Subcontractor List</u>: The Contractor shall list all Subcontractors doing work in excess of \$5,000.00 and their current Contractors Registration Number.
- C. <u>Copies of all Subcontracts.</u>
- D. <u>Progress Schedule</u>: The Contractor shall prepare a progress schedule, using a form of his choosing, that is acceptable to the Engineer. The schedule show the estimated progress of the entire project through the time period allowed for completion.

14.02 <u>Shop Drawings</u>: See Special Provision 19.00 regarding Buy American Requirement and required timing of submittals.

- A. <u>Shop Drawings</u>: The term "shop drawings" includes drawings, diagrams, layouts, schematics, descriptive literature, illustrations, schedules, performance and test data, and similar materials requested by the Engineer to be furnished by the Contractor to explain in detail specific portions of the work required by the Contract.
- B. <u>Contractor's Review and Approval</u>: The Contractor shall coordinate all submittals and review them for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with contract requirements and shall indicate his approval thereon as evidence of such coordination and review. Items submitted to Engineer without evidence of the Contractor's approval may be returned for resubmission.
- C. <u>Buy American Certification.</u> The contractor shall provide with each product to be used on the project the "Buy American Certification" form or letter from the suppler or manufacturer certifying that the products meet the Buy American Requirements. The letter shall specifically state that the product complies with 49 USC § 50101 for steel and manufactured goods used on AIP projects.

#### 14.03 Procedure:

- A. <u>Date and Number</u>: Unless required otherwise due to Buy American requirements, at least ten (10) days prior to their need for approval, Contractor shall forward to Engineer all items required by the individual sections of the specifications. Unless a different method is called for in the individual sections, submittals shall be provided in electronic PDF format via e-mail and/or the number of hard copies provided that are desired to be returned to the Contractor.
- B. <u>Cover Letter</u>: All submittals shall be forwarded with a cover letter from the Contractor, identifying the project and the portion of the project to which it applies. Submittals that are related to or affect each other shall be forward simultaneously as a package to facilitate a coordinated review. Uncoordinated submittals will be rejected. The Engineer reserves the right to require submittals in addition to those called for in individual sections.

### 14.04 Engineer's Approval:

A. <u>Engineer's Approval</u>: The Engineer will indicate his approval and disapproval of each submittal and, if he does not approve the submittal as submitted, will indicate his reasons therefore. Any work done prior to approval shall be at the Contractor's own risk. Approvals shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of this Contract. If submittals show variations from the Contract requirements, the Contractor shall describe such variations in writing, within the before mentioned cover letter at the time of submission. Approval of such variations shall be accompanied with a Contract Modification. Minor variations not involving a change in price or time of performance will not be issued a modification.

### 15.00 DISPUTE RESOLUTION (MEDIATION)

Mediation must be initially used for dispute resolution for Claims for Adjustment, Disputes, Acceptance and Final Payment.

OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree that if a dispute arises out of or relates to the Contract Documents, or a breach thereof, and if the dispute cannot be settled through direct discussions, the parties agree to first endeavor to settle the dispute by non-binding mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Construction Industry Mediation Rules before having recourse to a judicial forum.

OWNER and CONTRACTOR further agree to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with independent Contractors, design professionals and consultants retained for the project and to require all independent Contractors, design professionals and consultants also to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with Subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers or fabricators so retained, thereby providing for mediation as the first method for dispute resolution between the parties to those agreements.

When a written decision of the Engineer states that the decision is final but subject to mediation, a demand for mediation of a dispute concerning such decision must be made within 30 days CITY OF KENAI– SPECIAL PROVISIONS - BUILDING R:\2950 - Kenai\Specifications\Combined Front End\Building\1.5 SPECIAL PROVISIONS- Building.doc SECTION 1.5 after the date on which the party making the demand receives the final written decision. Failure to demand mediation within said 30 day period shall result in the Engineer's decision becoming final and binding upon the Owner and Contractor.

### 16.00 FEDERAL AID RELATIONSHIP (FAA GRANT) TO INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Since a Federal Grant from the Federal Aviation Administration is involved in this project, any provision of Alaska law giving preference to an Alaska resident over a non-resident bidder **<u>does</u> <u>not</u>** apply to this Federal Aid Project.

### 17.00 UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

The Contractor shall be responsible for checking with the Owners of underground utilities as to the location of their underground lines. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any damage done to these installations due to failure to locate them or to properly protect them when their location is known.

It shall be solely the responsibility of the Contractor to fully coordinate his work with the agencies and to keep them informed of his construction activities so that these vital installations are fully protected at all times.

The following is a list of Owners and Contact Persons who are known to have utilities at the Airport. This list may not be complete and the Contractor is urged to communicate and coordinate his activities with all involved parties.

### 18.00 - RECORD DRAWINGS AND MATERIALS TESTING SUMMARY

The Contractor's Superintendent shall maintain at the project site, a "Record Set of Drawings" showing field changes, as-built elevations, unusual conditions encountered during construction, the manufacturer and manufacturer's catalog number of equipment supplied, and such other data as required to provide the Owner with an accurate "as constructed" set of record drawings.

The Contractor shall furnish this "Record Set" to the Engineer following the Final Inspection of the Project.

The Contractor shall furnish the "Materials Testing Summary" as described in paragraph 8.00 of these Special Provisions, to the Engineer following the Final Inspection of the Project.

The Contractor's final estimate and final payment will not be processed until the "Record Set" of drawings and the material testing summary are received and approved by the Engineer.

### 19.00 BUY AMERICAN REQUIREMENT-SUPPLIMENTAL INFORMATION

In submitting a proposal on the project the contractor is certifying that they will not acquire (or permit any subcontractor) to use any steel or manufactured products produced outside the CITY OF KENAI– SPECIAL PROVISIONS - BUILDING PAGE 12 of 20 PAGES R:\2950 - Kenai\Specifications\Combined Front End\Building\1.5 SPECIAL PROVISIONS- Building.doc SECTION 1.5

United States on any portion of the project, unless otherwise approved by the FAA. Therefore, for the contractors shall either:

- 1. Certify, in writing, all products are wholly produced in the US of US materials, or
- 2. Request a waiver to use non-US produced products, or
- 3. Certify that all equipment that is being used on the project is on the Nationwide Buy American conformance list.

The contractor is required to submit with each submittal a certification that the material or equipment meets the Buy American Requirements or is listed on a National Waiver List or is an excluded material. Forms are available in the project manual or available from the engineer.

#### 19.01 Types of Waivers

There are four types of waivers to Buy American:

- 1. Public interest waiver;
- 2. Insufficient quantity or quality.
- 3. 60% or more of the components and subcomponents in the facility or equipment are of US origin and final assembly is in the US; or
- 4. Applying Buy American increases the cost of the overall project by more than 25%.

Many pieces of equipment are constructed with some non-US produced components or subcomponents. Therefore, it is expected that the majority of grants will have waivers issued unless the project is constructed of materials that already have a nationwide waiver.

#### 19.02 Nationwide Waiver

Much of the equipment that is frequently used on AIP projects has been reviewed by FAA Headquarters and a nationwide waiver has been issued. The Nationwide Buy American conformance list is posted on the www.faa.gov website at the following address:

http://www.faa.gov/airports/aip/procurement/federal\_contract\_provisions/ by clicking the tab, "Equipment Meeting Buy American Requirements"

If the equipment is on the nationwide waiver list, no additional waiver is required, however the appropriate forms shall be filled out as provided in the project manual.

#### 19.03 Who can Issue Waivers

Only FAA headquarters may issue waivers for reasons 1 and 2. FAA field offices (Regional Offices and/or Airports District Offices) may issue waivers for reasons 3 and 4.

Waiver request forms are available in the project manual or from the engineer.

# <u>19.04</u> Defining the Project, Facility and Equipment, and Final Assembly Location in the <u>60%/US final assembly waiver</u>

The waiver can be considered if "at least 60% of the cost of the components and subcomponents in the **facility or equipment** are produced in the United States and the final assembly of the facility or equipment has occurred in the United States." The correct application of the terms is discussed below.

#### Project

The "**Project**" is generally the project that is being bid. The "**Project**" does not extend over multiple grants or phases, even though the overall project may be phased or may be built in multiple bid packages.

#### Facility or Equipment

- For a building, the portion of the building that is being funded under the AIP or ARRA grant is the "facility" listed in the waiver.

- For other projects, the bid items as described in the latest edition of FAA Advisory Circular 5370-10 will generally be the "equipment" referred to in the waiver except for airfield electrical equipment.

- For airfield electrical equipment, the "L-" items listed in the Addendum to FAA Advisory Circular 5345-53C, latest edition will generally be the "equipment" referred to in the waiver.

- For a vehicle or single piece of equipment like a snow plow or ARFF vehicle, the single vehicle itself is the "equipment."

#### Final Assembly Location and Labor Exclusion

Final assembly is the substantial transformation of the various components and subcomponents into the equipment. For a building, the final assembly is actual construction of the building.

- For any project other than a building project, the final assembly location is the location where the equipment is assembled, not the project site itself.

- For a building, the final assembly location is the airport building site.

In any calculation of Buy American percentage, the labor for the final assembly is excluded. This is because the Buy American statute is based on the cost of materials and equipment, not labor. For a building, this means that only the costs of the materials as they are delivered to the airport site are considered when calculating US and non-US component and subcomponent costs. For equipment, the costs of the final assembly at the manufacturing site are excluded.

Component calculation forms or sheets are available from the Engineer.

#### <u>19.05 Common Materials that are waived or excluded from Buy American - Cement,</u> <u>Concrete, Asphalt and Steel</u>

Cement and concrete is excluded from the Buy American preference requirements (although the steel used for reinforcement, ties, stirrups, etc. must meet Buy American.)

Asphalt and other petroleum products are waived as an excepted item under AMS Guidance T3.6.4.1.e: Foreign Acquisition – Definitions identifying Asphalt as a petroleum product.

Steel is specifically identified in the statute. Therefore, all rebar and discrete, identifiable steel components must be manufactured in the United States.

### 19.06 FAA Waiver

After the FAA has determined that the final assembly location is in the US and the percent of US

components and subcomponents is above 60%, a waiver may be issued. The waiver is for the single project – not a nationwide waiver.

#### 19.07 What Information is required to Issue a Waiver

For waiver type 3, a waiver can be considered if "at least 60% of the cost of the components and subcomponents in the **facility or equipment** are produced in the United States and the final assembly of the facility or equipment has occurred in the United States."

Contractors must request waivers from the Owner in writing, with sufficient supporting information. The Owner will forward the request to the FAA. Contractors are responsible for ensuring their waiver request is complete and accurate using project specific information.

The FAA will conduct its review and approval based on the information provided by the Contractor.

The information that must be provided for either equipment or for a building:

- Project Number
- Project Name
- Airport Name
- Total Project Cost (excluding labor)
- Total Equipment or Bid Item Cost for which the waiver is being requested
- Total Equipment or Bid Item Cost excluding labor for final assembly.
- For equipment, the following additional information is required:
- The equipment or bid item for which the waiver is being requested
- The manufacturer and country of origin of the equipment or bid item.
- The location of the final assembly of the equipment or bid item (not the airport site)

For equipment, the following additional information is required:

- The equipment or bid item for which the waiver is being requested
- The manufacturer and country of origin of the equipment or bid item.
- The location of the final assembly of the equipment or bid item (not the airport site)
- The cost of the US components and subcomponents for the equipment or bid item for which the waiver is being requested
- The cost of the non-US components and subcomponents for the equipment or bid item for which the waiver is being requested
- The resulting percent of US and non-US components

For a building, the following additional information is required:

- The building (called the facility in the Buy American statute) for which the waiver is being requested
- The manufacturer and country of origin of the US and non-US materials that will be used in the building,
- For a building, the location of the final assembly is the airport site
- The cost of the US components and subcomponents for the equipment or bid item for which the waiver is being requested

- The cost of the non-US components and subcomponents for the equipment or bid item for which the waiver is being requested
- The resulting percent of US and non-US components

### 19.08 Common Misconceptions

- Belief that if a manufacturer is "FAA-certified" that Buy America has been satisfied. This is not true. The FAA certification certifies that technical standards have been met. However, FAA-certified equipment manufactured outside the U.S. does not meet Buy America provisions of the AIP unless a waiver has been issued.
- Misconception that the North America Free Trade Act (NAFTA) exempts equipment manufactured in Mexico or Canada from "Buy America" requirements. This is not true for AIP.
- The Buy American Requirements for other Federal Grant programs may be different than AIP grant programs. The Buy American Requirements for the ARRA, FHWA, and other federal grant programs reference different section of federal code as it relates to the Buy American Requirements for the AIP grant program.

#### <u>19.09 LIST OF SUPPLIES/MATERIALS THAT THE U.S. GOVERNMENT HAS</u> DETERMINED ARE NOT PRODUCED IN THE UNITED STATES IN SUFFICIENT AND REASONABLY AVAILABLE QUANTITIES AND OF SUFFICIENT QUALITY (JANUARY 1991).

Acetylene, black Agar, bulk Anise Antimony, as metal or oxide Asbestos, amosite, chrysolite, and crocidolite

Bananas Bauxite Beef, corned, canned Beef extract Bephenium Hydroxynapthoate Bismuth Books, trade, text, technical, or scientific; newspapers; pamphlets; magazines, periodicals; printed briefs and films; not printed in the United States and for which domestic editions are not available Brazil nuts, unroasted

Cadmium ores and flew dust Calcium cyanamide Capers Cashew nuts Castor beans and castor oil Chalk, English Chestnuts Chicle Chrome ore or chromite Cinchona bark Cobalt, in cathodes, rondelles, or primary ore and metal forms Cocoa beans Coconut and coconut meat, unsweetened, in shredded, desiccated or similarly prepared form Coffee, raw or green bean Colchicine alkaloid, raw Copra Cork, wood or bark and waste Cover glass, microscope slide Cryolite, natural

Dammar gum Diamonds, industrial, stones, and abrasives

Emetine, bulk Ergot, crude Erthrityl tetranitrate

Fair linen, altar

Fibers of the following types: abaca, abace, agave, coir, flax, jute, jute burlaps, palmyra and sisal

Goat and kidskins Graphite, natural, crystalline, crucible grade

Handsewing needles Hemp yarn Hog bristles for brushes Hyoscine, bulk

Ipecac, root Iodine, crude

Kaurigum

Lac Leather, sheepskin, hair type Lavender oil

Manganese Menthol, natural bulk Mica Microprocessor chips (brought onto a construction site as separate units for incorporation into building systems during construction or repair and alternation of real property

Nickel, primary, in ingots, pigs, shots, cathodes, or similar forms; nickel oxide and nickel salts Nitroguanidine (also known as picrite) Nux vomica, crude

Oiticica oil Olive oil Olives (green, pitted or unpitted, or stuffed, in bulk Opium, crude Oranges, mandarin, canned

Petroleum, crude oil, unfinished oils, and finished products (see definitions below)

Pine needle oil

PAGE 17 of 20 PAGES SECTION 1.5 LIST OF SUPPLIES/MATERIALS THAT THE U.S. GOVERNMENT HAS DETERMINED ARE NOT PRODUCED IN THE UNITED STATES IN SUFFICIENT AND REASONABLY AVAILABLE QUANTITIES AND OF SUFFICIENT QUALITY (JANUARY 1991).

Platinum and related group metals, refined, as sponge, powder, ingots, or cast bars Pyrethrum flowers

Quartz crystals Quebracho Quinidine Quinine

Rabbit fur felt Radium salts, source and special nuclear materials Rosettes Rubber, crude and latex Rutile

Santonin, crude Secretin Shellac Silk, raw and unmanufactured Spare and replacement parts for equipment of foreign manufacture, and for which domestic parts are not available Spices and herbs, in bulk Sugars, raw Swords and scabbards Tantalum Tapioca flour and cassava Tartar, crude; tartaric acid and cream of tartar in bulk Tea in bulk Thread, metallic (gold) Thyme oil Tin in bars, blocks, and pigs Triprolidine hydrochloride Tungsten

Vanilla beans Venom, cobra

Wax, canauba Woods; logs, veneer, and lumber of the following species: Alaskan yellow cedar, angelique, balsa, ekki, greenhart, lignum, vitae. mahogany. and teak

Yarn, 50 Denier rayon

"Crude oil" means crude petroleum, as it is produced at the wellhead, and liquids (under atmospheric conditions) that have been recovered from mixtures of hydrocarbons that existed in a vaporous phase in a reservoir and that are not natural gas products.

Talc, block, steatite

"Finished products" means any one or more of the following petroleum oils, or a mixture or combination of these oils, to be used without further processing except blending by mechanical means:

A. "Asphalt" - a solid or semi-solid cementations material that (1) gradually liquefies when heated, (2) has bituminous as its predominating constituents, and (3) is obtained in refining crude oil.

B. "Fuel oil" - a liquid or liquefiable petroleum product burned for lighting or for the generation of heat or power and derived directly or indirectly from crude oil, such as kerosene, range oil, distillate fuel oils, gas oil, diesel fuel, topped crude oil, or residues.

C. "Gasoline" - a refined petroleum distillate that, by its consumption, is suitable for use as a carburant in internal combustion engines.

D. "Jet fuel" - a refined petroleum distillate used to fuel jet propulsion engines.

E. "Liquefied gases" - hydrocarbon gases recovered from natural gas or produced from petroleum refining and kept under pressure to maintain a liquid state at ambient temperatures.

F. "Lubricating oil" - a refined petroleum distillate or specially treated petroleum residue used to lessen friction between surfaces.

G. "Naphtha" - a refined petroleum distillate falling within a distillation range overlapping the higher gasoline and lower kerosene.

H. "Natural gas products" - liquids (under atmospheric conditions) including natural gasoline, that:

1. are recovered by a process of absorption, adsorption, compression, refrigeration, cycling, or a combination of these processes, from mixtures of hydrocarbons that existed in a vaporous phase in a reservoir, and

2. when recovered and without processing in a refinery, definitions of products contained in subdivision (B), (C), and (G) above.

I. "Residual fuel oil" - a topped crude oil or viscous residuum that, as obtained in refining or after blending with other fuel oil, meets or is the equivalent of MILSPEC Mil-F-859 for Navy Special Fuel Oil and any more viscous fuel oil, such as No. 5 or Bunker C.

"Unfinished oils" means one or more of the petroleum oils listed under "Finished products" above, or a mixture or combination of these oils, that are to be further processed other than by blending by mechanical means."

CITY OF KENAI– SPECIAL PROVISIONS - BUILDING R:\2950 - Kenai\Specifications\Combined Front End\Building\1.5 SPECIAL PROVISIONS- Building.doc PAGE 18 of 20 PAGES SECTION 1.5

#### 20.00 WORK AREA CLEANUP

Sufficient time should be provided at the end of each work period to allow for cleanup and inspection of the work area before it is opened to traffic. All construction debris should be totally removed from the work area. All construction materials that must be left onsite should be secured so that they cannot be dislodged by wind. The Contractor's superintendent will accompany the project manager on an inspection of the work area before it is opened to traffic. The Contractor should have the necessary manpower and equipment standing by to perform any additional cleanup that may be identified during this inspection.

#### 21.00 CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE AND RELEASE.

Contractor's Certificate and Release shall be required to be provided to the Owner, on the forms as provided in the construction documents, or on forms approved for use by the Engineer.

The Final Application for Payment shall be accompanied with all releases and waivers in the Contractor's possession for obligations for labor, equipment, materials, subcontracts, taxes, fees, professional services, rent and royalties arising out of or related to the Work.

The Contractor shall also provide an affidavit certifying and warranting to Owner that all obligations for labor, equipment, materials, subcontracts, taxes, fees, professional services, rent and royalties arising out, or related to the Work will be fully paid and satisfied on receipt of final payment, and agreeing that the Contractor will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Owner against any and all claims, liabilities, demands, and expenses for any obligation, or asserted obligation for labor, equipment, materials, subcontracts, taxes, fees, professional services, rent or royalties, arising out of the related work.

## **SECTION 1.6**

## **Method of Measurement and Payment**

## **SCHEDULE 1 - TRAINING SYSTEM COMPONENTS**

## 1A Replace SCBA Cylinder Fill Station.

### 1A – 1.0 - Description:

Remove and dispose of existing equipment. Install new cylinder filling station in accordance with Specification Section 101.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**1A - 3.1 SCBA Cylinder Fill Station** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all materials, parts and equipment required, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

1A - 4.1 Payment to be made under:

Schedule 1A - SCBA Cylinder Fill Station – Per Lump Sum

## 1B Booster Pump and Controls Rehabilitation

**1B - 1.1** - Description:

### Pump Room Fire Training Distribution Supply Pump:

The existing vertical turbine pump was manufactured by American Turbine Pump Co., Inc. in 1997, company acquired by National Pump Company in 2012. Contractor to verify existing pump is American Turbine Pump Co. model 12-H-150, 2-stages, rated 1,200-gpm at 140-ft TDH and 79% efficiency, 1,750-rpm, 9.816 impeller trim diameter. Contractor shall remove one (1) existing vertical turbine pump, perform the following tasks, and replace the existing vertical turbine pump.

• Replace in-kind (or better) two (2) impellers on both stages with new impellers. Existing impeller material designated 48CL30Cl by manufacturer. Contractor shall verify in-kind (or better) replacement impellers to match existing head/flow curve, dimensions, hydraulic HP, and efficiency. Contractor shall also replace in-kind (or better) all wear items associated with rotating components/surfaces including bearings, bowl bearings,

bushings, and seals, in addition to wear items as recommended by the manufacturer. Existing 416SS shaft to remain.

- Replace in-kind (or better) the existing seal water system on the pump head. Replacement seal water system shall include seals, tubing, valves, etc. as required to provide a drip free system without visible leakage.
- Repair existing coating on pump head resulting from existing seal water leakage and subsequent corrosion. Remove existing coating in and around corroded areas, prepare surface per selected coating manufacturer's specifications, and recoat surfaces per selected coating manufactures recommendations to restore to original condition. Recoat to color match existing coating. Existing coating is Tnemec Series Pota-Pox epoxy-polyamide for potable water systems applied in two coats at 3.5 to 5.5 mils per coat.

Contractor shall also dewater the vertical turbine sump and remove accumulated sediments, debris, or otherwise deleterious materials.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**1B - 2.1 Booster Pump and Controls Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all materials, parts and equipment required, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**1B - 3.1** Payment to be made under:

### Schedule 1B Booster Pump and Controls Rehabilitation – Per Lump Sum

## 1C Pneumatic Valve System Compressor Replacement

**1C - 1.1** - Description: Remove and dispose of existing equipment, Ingersoll-Rand Model T-30. Install new in-kind air compressor and filtration system.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**1C - 2.1 Pneumatic Valve System Compressor Replacement** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all materials, parts and equipment required, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**1C - 4.1** Payment to be made under:

Schedule 1D Pneumatic Valve System Compressor Replacement – Per Lump Sum

## 1D Effluent Building Submersible Sump Pumps Replacement

### 1E – 1.0 Description:

Contractor shall remove two (2) existing submersible sump pumps and replace in-kind with two (2) new submersible sump pumps including mounting bases, associated floats/level sensing devices, class 1 division 1 HOA control, and water proof cable to motor starter. The existing sump pumps are each 2-Hp, 480-volts, 3-phase, combined starter and fused disconnect, HOA control device, with Class I Division 1 starter and wiring. Contractor shall verify existing submersible pump make and model for in-kind replacement with matching head/flow curve, dimensions, piping connections, and electrical requirements for complete and functional replacement. Submersible pump starters to remain.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**1D - 2.1 Effluent Building Submersible Pumps Replacement** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all materials, parts and equipment required, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**1D - 3.1** Payment to be made under:

Schedule 1D Effluent Building Submersible Pumps Replacement – Per Lump Sum

## **ADDITIVE ALTERNATIVE – A1**

## A1 - A Hydronic Heating System Boiler Rehabilitation

A1 - 1.1 - Description:

Complete component refurbish recommended by manufacturer to include worn-out and obsolete components, parts and control. Boiler is a Viesmann, Vertomat, Type VSB gas-fired condensing boiler.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

A1 - 2.1 Hydronic Heating System Boiler Rehabilitation shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all materials, parts and equipment required, delivered, installed and commissioned.

## **SCHEDULE 2 – TRAINING BUILDLING REHABILITATION**

## 2A Office Area Ventilation and AC Systems Rehabilitation.

### 2A – 1.0 - Description:

Remove and dispose of existing chiller, pumps, some associated piping, valves and piping specialties. Install new chiller, pump, piping, valves and accessories in accordance with Drawings and Specification.

Replace bearings at air handling unit fan wheel.

Remove and replace roof mounted exhaust fans in accordance with Drawings and Specifications.

Remove and reinstall existing room mounted intake hoods, relief hoods, etc. for reroof work in accordance with Drawings and Specification Sections.

Clean ventilation systems in accordance with Drawings and Specifications.

Rebalance ventilation systems in accordance with Drawings and Specifications.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**2A -2.1 Office Area Ventilation and AC Systems Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all materials, parts and equipment, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**2A - 3.1** Payment to be made under:

Schedule 2A - Office Area Ventilation & AC Systems Rehabilitation – Per Lump Sum

## 2B Install Ventilation in Apparatus Bay

**2B - 1.10** - Description:

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**2B -2.1 Install Ventilation in Apparatus Bay** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all required materials, parts and equipment, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**2B -4.1** Payment to be made under:

### Schedule 2B - Install Ventilation in Apparatus Bay– Per Lump Sum

## Schedule 2C Heating System Rehabilitation

**2C - 1.1** - Description:

Remove and dispose of existing equipment building's heating system in accordance with the Drawings and Specifications. Install new boiler system in accordance with the Drawings and Specifications.

Rebalance hydronic systems in accordance with Drawings and Specifications.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**2C - 2.1 Heating System Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all required materials, parts and equipment, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**2C - 3.1** Payment to be made under:

### Schedule 1C - Heating System Rehabilitation-Per Lump Sum

## Schedule 2D Mechanical Control System Rehabilitation

2D - 1.1 - Description:

Remove and dispose of existing pneumatic control system in accordance with Drawings and Specifications. Provide new DDC system complete with new control devices in accordance with Drawings and Specifications.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**2D -2.1 Mechanical Control System Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all required materials, parts and equipment, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**2D -3.1** Payment to be made under:

### Schedule 2D - Mechanical Control System Rehabilitation – Per Lump Sum

## SCHEDULE 3 – ROOF SYSTEM REHABILITATION:

## Schedule 3A Roof System Rehabilitation

**3A - 1.1** - Description:\_Contractor shall remove existing ERMA roof down to decking and reroof with an EPDM roofing system as shown in the drawings and specifications.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**3A -2.1 Roof System Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all required labor, materials, parts and equipment, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**3A -3.1** Payment to be made under:

### Schedule 3A – Roof System Rehabilitation – Per Lump Sum

## SCHEDULE 4 – FLOORING REHABILITATION:

### Schedule 4A High Traffic Flooring Rehabilitation

**4A - 1.1** - Description: Contractor shall remove existing carpeting and rubber base on the first floor as shown in the drawings and specifications.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**4A -3.1 High Traffic Flooring Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all required materials, parts and equipment, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**4A -4.1** Payment to be made under:

### Schedule 4A – High Traffic Flooring Rehabilitation – Per Lump Sum

## SCHEDULE 5 – LIGHTING REHABILITATION:

## Schedule 5A – Building and Site Lighting Rehabilitation

**5A - 1.1** - Description: Remove and dispose of existing lighting equipment. Install new similar lighting fixtures in accordance with Drawings and Specification Sections 265100 and 265600.

### METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**5A -3.1 Building and Site Lighting\_Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum, unit complete with all materials, parts and equipment required, delivered, installed and commissioned.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**5A -4.1** Payment to be made under:

Schedule 5A Building and Site Lighting Rehabilitation – Per Lump Sum

## SCHEDULE 6 – MANEUVER AREA REHABILITATION

## Schedule 6A - Maneuver Area Surface Rehabilitation

**6A - 1.1** - Description:

Remove and dispose of existing gravel surface to 6" depth. Install new in-kind 6" Type 1 crushed gravel surface to in accordance with the grades found on Drawing 10.

### ETHOD OF MEASUREMENT

**6A - 2.1**. **Maneuver Area Surface Rehabilitation** shall be measured per lump sum of gravel removal and replacement in the maneuver area.

### **BASIS OF PAYMENT**

**6A - 3.1 P**ayment shall be made at the contract unit price per Lump Sum. This price shall be full compensation for furnishing all surveying, materials, labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the item

### Schedule 6A – Maneuver Area Surface Rehabilitation - Per Lump Sum

### GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

#### ARTICLE 1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 1.1 The contract documents enumerated in the Agreement between Owner and Contractor form the final and completely integrated contract between the parties and supersede any prior statements, negotiations, agreements, documents or representations, written or oral. What is required by any one contract document is deemed to be required by all documents.
- 1.2 The contract documents consist of documents designated as contract documents and enumerated in the Agreement between Owner and Contractor.
- 1.3 The contract documents do not include any documents unless specifically enumerated in Agreement between Owner and Contractor.
- 1.4 Unless specifically provided otherwise in the contract documents the parties to this agreement intend that Contractor will obtain all permits, inspections, tests, bonds, and insurance required by state or federal law, rule, regulation or order, or local ordinance or rule or regulation or the contract documents, whichever requirement is greater, and provide all labor, equipment, transportation, water, heat, utilities, tools, scaffolding, materials, supplies, facilities, and services necessary for performance of the contract and that the cost of these requirements be included within the contract price. The parties further intend that the cost of all overhead, supervision, and other incidental expenses required or occasioned by the contract is included in the contract price. The parties also intend that minor items required to produce complete functional system(s) and sub-system(s) are deemed to be required by the contract documents at the contract price whether or not specifically expressed. The requirements stated in this provision apply whether or not the execution or completion of the work is temporary or permanent and whether or not it is incorporated or to be incorporated in the work or final product.
- 1.5 The requirements of the contract documents and the duties and rights of each party may be amended subsequent to execution of this contract only by:
  - 1. A written amendment to the contract signed by both parties; or,
  - 2. A change order issued pursuant to ARTICLE 9.1
- 1.6 The term "Work" includes all procurement, labor, materials, products, equipment, erection, installation, and alterations necessary to complete the construction envisioned by this contract. The term "Project" refers to the overall construction, of which the work required by the contract may be the whole or may be a part. The term "Architect" also refers to Registered Engineers as appropriate.
- 1.7 The contract between Owner and Contractor shall be executed and returned by Contractor within the time required in the instructions to bidders. A written Notice to Proceed with the work will be issued to Contractor within five (5) days after Owner has executed the contract, except as provided in ARTICLE 4.1.3.
- 1.8 Should any provision or requirement of one portion of the contract documents conflict with any other portion of the contract documents, unless otherwise provided herein, the conflict will be resolved by reference to the contract documents in the following order of priority:
  - A. Any and all later modifications, Change Orders, and written interpretations of the Contract Documents issued by the Owner
  - B. The Agreement
  - C. Addenda
  - D. Supplemental General Conditions (if any)
  - E. General Conditions

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Unless otherwise stated, all references to an ARTICLE refer to the articles of these general conditions.

- F. Drawings and Specifications Provided by Engineer. In the case of an inconsistency between Drawings and Specifications or within either Document not clarified by addendum, the better quality or greater quantity of Work shall be provided.
- G. Drawings and Specifications in the latest edition of the Municipality of Anchorage Standard Specifications (M.A.S.S.) In the case of an inconsistency between Drawings and Specifications or within either Document not clarified by addendum, the better quality or greater quantity of Work shall be provided. Contractor is responsible for obtaining the latest edition of the M.A.S.S.
- H. The Request for Proposals / Invitation to Bid
- I. The contractor's bid/proposal.
- 1.9 In case of difference between small and large scale drawings, the large scale drawings shall govern. Schedules on any contract drawing shall take precedence over conflicting information on that or any other contract drawing. On any of the drawings where a portion of the work is detailed or drawn out and the remainder is shown in outline, the parts detailed or drawn out shall apply also to all other like portions of the work.
- 1.10 In the event Contractor believes a discrepancy exists in the contract documents, Contractor shall submit the issue to the Project Representative together with Contractor's proposed course of action for performance of the work. Project Representative shall respond within seven (7) working days or advise Contractor that a response cannot be given within that time. If response will take more than seven (7) working days, Project Representative shall take steps to provide a response within a reasonable time. Any action taken by Contractor prior to or without Owner's response shall be at Contractor's own risk and expense.
- 1.11 Words and abbreviations which are not defined in the contract documents, but which have well known technical or trade meanings, shall be construed in accordance with the common meaning established by sound architectural or engineering practice in the State of Alaska.
- 1.12 Drawings, Specifications, other documents prepared for this project, and copies of them that are furnished by Owner and/or Architect or Consultant for this project, whether or not the documents or project are completed, shall be the property of Owner. All rights of use are reserved to Owner for this project and any subsequent project in which Owner participates in construction. Owner specifically relieves Architect or Consultant of any responsibility or liability pertaining to any subsequent use of the documents, in whole or in part, where those documents bear the stamp of a subsequent Architect or Consultant and are used for a subsequent project.
- 1.13 An electronic version of contract documents, typically in pdf format on a disc, will be furnished to the Contractor without charge. Contractor shall check all documents furnished immediately upon receipt and shall promptly notify Owner of any discrepancies.
- 1.14 The contract documents shall not be construed in any way as limiting Contractor's responsibility to perform the work completely, nor shall any prior customs or trade practices be held to constitute a waiver of the requirements of the contract documents or any portion of them.
- 1.15 The individual(s) executing the contract represent that they have the legal authority to execute the contract as or on behalf of Contractor in accordance with the bid instructions and the contract documents.
- 1.16 Execution of the contract by Contractor is a representation that Contractor has visited the site, become familiar with the local conditions under which the work is to be performed, has correlated personal observations with the requirements of the contract documents and enters this contract with knowledge of those conditions.

#### ARTICLE 2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

2.1 The term "Project Representative" shall mean a person or entity employed by or under contract to Owner to be Owner's on-site designated representative. The term Project Representative shall include the Project Representative's employees.

- 2.2 The terms "Architect" or "Engineer" (hereinafter used interchangeably) shall mean the person or entity contracted by the City of Kenai to provide design services for the project. Architect or Engineer also includes employees of the Architect or Engineer. Architect shall provide professional services during construction as described herein below or as authorized by Owner.
- 2.3 Project Representative will provide administration of this contract and all communication made to Owner, Architect or Engineer by Contractor shall be made through Project Representative.
- 2.4 Project Representative will be Owner's primary representative during construction until final payment has been made and the project has been closed out. Owner's instructions to Contractor shall be made through Project Representative, who shall have authority to act on behalf of Owner to the extent set forth in this contract.
- 2.5 Project Representative shall not have the authority to require additional work, changes in the work, modifications or waivers of the rights, work or duties required by the contract documents or the right to bind Owner to any change in specifications or drawings without the written consent of Owner except as provided herein.
- 2.6 Project Representative shall have authority to allow minor deviation in the requirements of the contract documents by Field Order to a maximum cumulative amount of \$5,000.00 per each additional work item, change in work, modification or waiver in the work. Field Orders are to be incorporated into a subsequent Change Order.
- 2.7 Project Representative will render interpretations of the contract documents necessary for the proper execution or progress of the project. All interpretations and decisions of Project Representative shall be consistent with the intent of the contract documents and shall be in writing.
- 2.8 Matters relating to design intent will be referred to the design Architect whose decisions will be final, consistent with the intent of the contract documents.
- 2.9 Project Representative, Architect, and authorized representatives of Owner shall have access to the project site and to the work at all times and shall be afforded every reasonable facility for ascertaining whether or not the work is in accordance with the requirements and intent of the contract documents.
- 2.10 All claims, disputes and other matters in question between Contractor and Owner relating to the execution or progress of the work shall be resolved pursuant to ARTICLE 12.
- 2.11 Project Representative shall have the authority: 1) to reject work which does not conform to the contract documents; 2) to require additional inspections or testing of any work during, prior to, or after fabrication, installation, or completion; 3) to specify both remedial work necessary to correct defective work and the time within which such work must be performed.
- 2.12 On the basis of on-site observations and inspections Project Representative will keep Owner informed of the progress of the work, and will endeavor to guard Owner against defects and deficiencies in the work. If Project Representative determines that any construction method, sequence, material, technique, safety precaution, act or omission of Contractor, Contractor's subcontractors, suppliers, or any of their agents, is detrimental to the progress, quality or safety of the work or to Owner's interest, then Project Representative shall inform Owner promptly, and Owner may, among other things, stop the work and order remedial measures. This provision shall not eliminate or reduce the responsibilities or requirements placed upon contractor and/or subcontractors by the contract documents and shall not place any liability upon the owner for action or omission in regard to this provision.
- 2.13 In accordance with the requirements of ARTICLE 8.5, Project Representative will determine amounts owing to Contractor and will recommend that Owner issue payment in the amount determined due.
- 2.14 Project Representative, with the concurrence of Owner, will determine the dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion. The Architect will receive and forward to Owner for Owner's review, written warranties and related documents required by the contract and assembled by Contractor.

2.15 Project Representative's duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority will not be modified without written consent of Owner and Project Representative.

#### ARTICLE 3 OWNER GENERAL RIGHTS AND DUTIES

- 3.1 At Owner's option, Owner may undertake any or all tasks of Project Representative described in ARTICLE 2.
- 3.2 Owner's directions to Contractor will be made in writing either directly or through Project Representative in accordance with ARTICLE 2. No verbal representation shall be binding upon any party unless confirmed in writing.
- 3.3 Owner shall have the right to perform work related to the project under separate contract(s) in accordance with the provisions of ARTICLE 6.
- 3.4 Owner shall have the right to issue change orders from time to time which may alter the scope of work required by the contract documents. All change orders will be subject to provisions of ARTICLE 9.
- 3.5 Owner will have the authority to reject work which does not conform to the requirements of the contract documents and to require such remedial work at no charge to Owner as is necessary to correct the defective work. Where defective work is being performed by Contractor and Contractor fails to correct the defective work within a reasonable period of time as set out in ARTICLE 10, or repeatedly fails to carry out the work in accordance with the contract documents, Owner shall have the authority to order an immediate halt to all defective work. Any losses suffered by Contractor as a result of the halt shall be borne by Contractor without recourse to Owner. Issuance of a stop-work order shall not be construed as constituting a breach of the agreement nor authorize Contractor to refuse to perform other portions of the work which Owner has not halted.
- 3.6 Owner shall have the right to terminate the contract or suspend performance of the contract as set out in these general conditions or other contract documents.
- 3.7 Owner shall promptly pay Contractor all sums properly due as provided by ARTICLE 8. If Owner fails to issue payment for a period of forty-five (45) days after the certificate of payment has been approved by Project Representative, without a written statement indicating why payment is being withheld, then Contractor may terminate the contract upon seven (7) days written notice to Owner and may recover from Owner payment for all work executed and for any proven losses sustained upon any materials, equipment and tools, including a reasonable profit and overhead.
- 3.8 Owner and Contractor warrant that neither party will maintain an action against the other for punitive or exemplary damages.

#### ARTICLE 4 CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL RIGHTS AND DUTIES

#### 4.1 EXAMINATION OF SITE AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 4.1.1 The term "Contractor" means the person or entity identified in the Agreement which has contracted with Owner to perform the work of the contract. This definition includes a responsible officer of Contractor's organization or its authorized representative who shall be made known to Owner.
- 4.1.2 Contractor represents by execution of the Agreement that Contractor has carefully examined the contract documents and the site upon which the work is to be performed and has developed familiarity with the nature, extent, site access, and risks involved in the work and with all local conditions and applicable statutes, ordinances and regulations that may affect the performance of the work. Contractor assumes full responsibility for having correlated Contractor's study of the contract documents and observation of the site. Contractor represents that Contractor has studied all available surveys and investigation reports of subsoil and latent physical conditions of the site and has made such additional surveys and investigations as Contractor deemed necessary for the performance of the work at the contract price, within the time specified and in accordance with the requirements of the contract documents.

- 4.1.3 Contractor shall not begin work until given a Notice to Proceed, which will be issued as promptly as possible after the Agreement has been executed by all parties. If Owner is required to delay issuance of a Notice to Proceed for more than five (5) working days because of fault of Contractor or other reasons which Owner deems sufficient, then Contractor shall be notified in writing of the delay and when issuance of the Notice to Proceed is anticipated.
- 4.1.4 Before commencing any part of the work, and prior to undertaking each subsequent phase of the work, Contractor shall carefully study the plans and specifications and check and verify all previous work and pertinent dimensions, figures and amounts shown in them and shall make all applicable field measurements. Contractor shall at once report in writing to Owner any apparent conflict, ambiguity, discrepancy, error or other omissions which Contractor may discover. Contractor shall be liable to Owner for failure to notify Owner of any conflict, ambiguity, discrepancy, error or other omissions which Contractor discovered, but failed to report to Owner and shall be responsible for providing a remedy.
- 4.1.5 Contractor shall lay out the work from established base lines and bench marks indicated on the drawings and shall be responsible for all measurements in connection therewith. Contractor will be held responsible for the execution of the work to such lines and grades. It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to maintain, preserve, or replace all stakes and other marks.
- 4.1.6 Drawings showing location of equipment, piping, etc., are diagrammatic and job conditions will not always permit installation in the location shown. If a situation occurs which may require relocation of an item or system which substantially differs from the location called for in the contract documents, it shall be brought to Owner's attention immediately and the relocation determined with the concurrence of Architect or Engineer. If Contractor relocates such items without approval, Contractor will be responsible for any cost or expense for removal or further relocation necessitated by installation without approval.

#### 4.2 SUBMITTALS

- 4.2.1 Within 10 days after the effective date of the notice to proceed and prior to commencement of work, Contractor shall submit to Owner the construction progress schedule and schedule of values required in Articles 4.2.2, 4.2.3 and 4.2.4. The schedule of values and progress schedule must be acceptable to owner and provide reasonable divisions of contract work with corresponding payment. No payment will be made under this contract prior to completion of this requirement. In cases of a unit bid project, the bid schedule on the bid form will be the schedule of values.
- 4.2.2 In accordance with the requirements governing submittals as provided in the contract documents, Contractor shall prepare and submit to Owner a detailed progress schedule for the work which reveals and identifies the critical path of progress, which is consistent with the work and time required by the contract, and which shall provide for the most expeditious and practicable execution of the work. Float time between work items is part of the project and not property of the Contractor. Float time is defined as the amount of time that spans from completion of one previously scheduled activity and extends to the point at which the next scheduled activity is set to begin.
- 4.2.3 Contractor shall also provide Owner with a proposed schedule of values upon submittal of a detailed progress schedule for the work. The schedule of values shall be allocated to various portions of the work and be prepared in such a form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as reasonably required by Owner. Each item of work shall include all applicable profit and overhead. This schedule of values, unless objected to by owner shall be the basis for progress payments made to Contractor and shall include specific lump sum amounts for "Final Payment." This line item shall be in conformance with guidelines specified in ARTICLE 8. Contractor, at the request of Owner, shall amend the progress schedule and the schedule of values as the work progresses.
- 4.2.4 The schedule of values must show a complete breakdown of all phases of the work required by the contract documents. Payment will be in accordance with ARTICLE 8. Pay requests, schedules of value and progress schedules must correspond.
- 4.2.5 Contractor shall submit for Architect's and Owner's approval all product data required by the contract documents in conformance with the dates specified in the detailed progress schedule. Such data include illustrations, standards, schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, or other

information necessary to assist Architect in determining whether a proposed product meets the intent of the contract documents.

- 4.2.6 Contractor shall also submit physical samples of materials, equipment or workmanship where required by the contract documents. After approval by Owner and Architect, the sample shall be established as the minimum standard of work, material, equipment or other quality which will be acceptable for work of which the sample is representative.
- 4.2.7 Submittal of shop drawings by contractor constitutes a representation by contractor that the submittal and work, or products required or to be used in accordance with that submittal, will meet or exceed the criteria and conditions of the contract documents and that performance of the work identified in those submittals will meet the progress schedule.
- 4.2.8 Before initiating any work for which shop drawings are required, Contractor shall obtain Architect's approval of the shop drawings, which include drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared by Contractor, a subcontractor, a manufacturer, a supplier or distributor to illustrate in detail that portion of the work. Contractor shall review, approve, and submit all shop drawings, whether prepared by himself/herself or subcontractor or supplier. It shall be the duty of Contractor to provide a whole or complete system and to coordinate all work depicted by a particular shop drawing with the work required by other shop drawings for that portion of the work.
- 4.2.9 Contractor shall provide a copy of all transmittal letters to Project Representative at the time the submittal is made to Architect. Architect will review Contractor's submittals only for conformance with the design concept of the work and the information given in the contract documents. Architect's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. Architect will return reviewed submittals to Contractor with written comments and forward one set to Project Representative with reasonable promptness so as to cause no delay. A minimum of five (5) sets of submittals shall be required.
- 4.2.10 Should Architect reject any proposed shop drawings, product data or sample, Contractor shall resubmit revised drawings, samples or product data and draw Architect's attention to any deviation or revisions other than those requested by Architect.
- 4.2.11 All of Contractor's submittals shall be made in conformance with the dates specified in the detailed progress schedule with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the work of Owner or any separate contractor.
- 4.2.12 The Contractor shall provide two (2) hard copies and an electronic .PDF file of the operation and maintenance manuals for equipment and systems incorporated in the work.

#### 4.3 SAFETY AND CONTROL OF SITE

- 4.3.1 Contractor is deemed to be in physical control of the work site. Contractor shall confine Contractor's operations at the site to those areas described in the contract documents or permitted by applicable statutes, ordinances or permits.
- 4.3.2 Contractor shall not unreasonably encumber the site with materials, equipment or ancillary construction. Contractor shall be responsible for eliminating or minimizing to the extent reasonably possible, public hazards and inconveniences which might result from this work.
- 4.3.3 Contractor shall at all times keep the premises free from accumulation of excess snow, waste materials or rubbish and shall keep adjacent public road clear of mud and dust caused by Contractor's activities. At the completion of the work, Contractor shall remove all waste materials and rubbish from the project as well as Contractor's tools, equipment and surplus materials. The removal and disposal of waste materials, rubbish, or other material, shall be accomplished in accordance with all local, state and federal requirements.
- 4.3.4 Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all necessary safety precautions in connection with this work and shall be responsible for ascertaining and adhering to all applicable federal, state, and local standards, laws, ordinances, regulations, requirements and any lawful order of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from damage, injury, or loss.

- 4.3.5 Contractor's duty to maintain a safe and secure project site shall include all precautions necessary to assure the safety and protection against injury and damage, of all employees engaged in the work and any other person who may be affected by the work including Owner's agents and employees; Contractor's agents and employees; and members of the general public. Contractor shall assure the safety and protection of all work, materials and equipment which may be upon the site; utilities and other property of Owner including portions of structures and utilities not designated for removal or relocation, trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements and roadways. Contractor duties include but are not limited to protection of project site from vandalism. Such precautions shall further include but not be limited to protection from dangers from hazardous materials.
- 4.3.6 Contractor shall take all necessary measures to prevent members of the general public from entering upon the site without the permission of Owner or Contractor.
- 4.3.7 Contractor shall comply with all OSHA requirements, give all safety notices, erect and maintain all reasonable safeguard notices and barriers, including danger signs and fences which may be required to protect the site and limit access to it.
- 4.3.8 In the event of an emergency, the Contractor will take all means necessary to minimize all damage to or exposure from effects of a catastrophic event. In such case, the Contractor may consult with Owner or seek Owner's assistance. The responsibility for protection of the site, work, and all material remains with the Contractor.
- 4.3.9 Contractor shall designate a person in Contractor's employ at the site to be primarily responsible for the prevention of accidents, identification of all applicable safety standards, statutes and regulations, including but not limited to those addressing hazardous material, and full compliance therewith. This person shall be Contractor's Superintendent unless otherwise designated by Contractor in writing to Owner.
- 4.3.10 Should Project Representative or other representative of Owner ascertain that a safety danger exists, Project Representative or Owner may order an immediate cessation of all dangerous activity and a correction of any safety hazard. Written notice of the order to stop work or to correct the safety hazard shall be made to Contractor as soon as practicable. Contractor shall have no recourse against Owner for any alleged losses or delays arising from this section unless the order to stop work or correct safety deficiency is wholly without basis.
- 4.3.11 Should Contractor elect to utilize explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or should Contractor be required to do so for the execution of the work, Contractor shall first give jurisdictional authorities and Owner notice of the intention to utilize hazardous materials, explosives or equipment at a particular time and date. Contractor shall use the utmost care in utilizing such materials and shall use only properly qualified and licensed personnel.
- 4.3.12 Contractor shall correct any damage to the property of Owner or other parties which arises out of the activities or omissions of Contractor, Contractor's agents, subcontractors, employees, personnel or suppliers. Contractor shall commence remedial activities within seven (7) days from the date of the damage. If Contractor fails to do so, Owner or the affected party may utilize his own forces to correct or replace the damaged property and Contractor shall promptly reimburse Owner or the affected party for all losses and costs thereupon. In the event Contractor fails to reimburse Owner as set forth herein, Owner may set off the amount due Owner from any amount due Contractor.

#### 4.4 SUPERVISION AND QUALITY OF THE WORK

4.4.1 Contractor shall supervise and direct the work using the best skill and attention. Contractor is responsible for, and agrees to comply with all applicable local, state and federal ordinances, laws, regulations and statutes. Contractor shall be solely responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures, and for the schedule and coordination of all portions of the work to be performed under the contract. Contractor shall also be required to coordinate the work with that of any other contractor working on the project so as to minimize delay, inconvenience, and expense to both. Where identified in writing by Owner at any time, Contractor shall be required to coordinate the work with any partial use of the site that Owner deems necessary.

- 4.4.2 All materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned, prepared or conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable manufacturer, fabricator or processor except as otherwise provided in the plans and specifications.
- 4.4.3 Contractor shall keep on the job site at all times during work progress, a competent resident superintendent capable of reading and thoroughly understanding the plans and specifications. The superintendent will be Contractor's representative at the site and all communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to Contractor directly. In the event Contractor decides to replace the superintendent, Contractor shall submit to Owner a written notice including the proposed new superintendent's qualifications. The superintendent shall not be replaced without this written notice and a statement of non-objection by the Owner.
- 4.4.4 Contractor shall provide sufficient, competent, and suitable qualified personnel to survey and lay out the work and to perform all construction required by the contract documents. Contractor is responsible for maintaining good discipline and order at the job site at all times and shall not employ any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to that person.
- 4.4.5 Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner for the acts and omissions of Contractor's employees and agents, Contractor's subcontractors and their employees and agents, and any other persons performing any of the work for the benefit of Contractor.
- 4.4.6 Contractor shall not permit the possession or use of alcohol or controlled substances on the site, and shall remove from the site any person who possesses, uses, or is under the influence of alcohol or controlled substances. Contractor shall require all Contractor's agents, subcontractors, employees or suppliers who perform work on site to sign a statement that they have been informed and will abide by the above policy. A copy of all such statements shall be kept at the job site throughout the duration of Contractor's work.
- 4.4.7 Contractor warrants to Owner that all work will be free from faults and defects and meeting or exceeding the requirements of the contract documents and all local, state, and federal legal requirements. All work not so conforming to these standards will be considered defective, and Owner may require its correction.

#### 4.5 DIVISION OF THE WORK

4.5.1 The division of the work into various specialties and divisions in the contract specifications and drawings shall not bind Contractor in apportioning the work among various subcontractors, specialty contractors or workers, and Contractor's own employees.

#### 4.6 TITLE 36 AND OTHER STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

- 4.6.1 Contractor shall give and post all notices and comply with all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, requirements and any lawful order of any public authority bearing on the performance of the work, and shall notify Owner in writing if the drawings and specifications or the contract documents are at variance therewith. If Contractor knows or should know that Contractor is performing work contrary to such legal requirements without giving written notice to Owner in time for Owner to give a stop work order, the Contractor shall bear all costs to remedy that work and to bring it into conformance with the applicable requirements. In the event Contractor fails to reimburse Owner as set forth herein, Owner may set off the amount due Owner from any amount due Contractor. This requirement does not lessen or alter the requirement for indemnification stated in ARTICLE 4.13.
- 4.6.2 Contractor and subcontractors shall strictly comply with all requirements of Title 8, Chapter 30 of the Alaska Administrative Code and Title 36 of the Alaska Statutes as applicable to this contract.
- 4.6.3 Contractor or subcontractors of the contractor shall pay all employees unconditionally as required by AS 36.05.040 and any other applicable laws or regulations. Wages may not be less than those stated in the advertised specifications, regardless of the contractual relationship between the Contractor or subcontractors and laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors. The wages are determined for the region in which the work is done and the rates are issued by the Alaska State Department of Labor (see attached Title 36 wage schedule). The scale of wages to be paid shall be posted by Contractor in a prominent and easily accessible place at the site of the work. If it is found that a laborer, mechanic or field surveyor employed by the Contractor or subcontractor has been or is being paid a rate of wages less than the rate

of wages required by this contract, Owner may, on written notice to Contractor hold Contractor in immediate default and terminate Contractor's right to proceed with the work or that part of the work for which there is a failure to pay the required wages, and Owner may prosecute the remaining work to completion by contract or otherwise, holding Contractor and Contractor's sureties liable for any costs in excess of the contract price. In the event Owner permits Contractor to pursue further work under the contract, Owner shall withhold so much of the accrued payments as is necessary to pay to laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors employed by the Contractor or subcontractors the difference between the rates of wages required by the contract to be paid laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors.

4.6.4 A copy of certified payrolls shall be provided to the Project Representative with each Progress Payment Request.

#### 4.7 **PROJECT RECORDS**

- 4.7.1 Contractor shall maintain at the project site copies of plans and technical specifications, approved shop drawings and manufacturers' information sheets, and other contractor documents which are necessary for the expeditious and correct execution of the work.
- 4.7.2 Contractor shall maintain at the project site a complete daily job report showing job conditions, work activities started, in progress, interrupted and completed; work force, including identification and number of Contractor's employees and subcontractors by craft; receipt and disposition of materials and equipment; tests performed, visiting personnel and any accidents on a particular day. Owner shall have access to the daily report at all times. A copy of each daily report shall be provided to Project Representative at the end of each week.
- 4.7.3 Contractor shall keep one record copy of all specifications, drawings, addenda, modifications, and shop drawings at the job site in good order and annotated to show all changes made during the construction process. These shall be available to Owner during construction and turned over to Owner prior to final completion of the work.

#### 4.8 ALLOWANCES

4.8.1 Contractor shall include in the contract sum all allowances stated in the specifications or plans, and all items covered by these allowances shall be supplied in such amounts, or by such a person, as Owner may direct. The allowance shall include the cost to Contractor, less applicable trade discounts, of materials and equipment required by the allowance; delivery at the site, applicable taxes; Contractor's cost for unloading and handling on the site, for labor, installation, overhead, profit and other expenses incurred by Contractor. Whenever the cost of the allowed item exceeds or is less than the allowance, the contract sum shall be adjusted equitably by change order.

#### 4.9 NONDISCRIMINATION

- 4.9.1 Contractor must comply with all federal and state laws, rules, regulations and orders, and all local ordinances, regulations and rules concerning wages, taxes, social security, workers' compensation, nondiscrimination, licenses, registration requirements, and similar provisions governing employment of individuals.
- 4.9.2 Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment or refuse employment to a person, or bar a person from employment, or discriminate against a person in compensation or in a term, condition, or privilege of employment because of the person's race, religion, color, or national origin, or because of the person's age, physical or mental disability, sex, marital status, changes in marital status, pregnancy, or parenthood when the reasonable demands of the position do not require distinction on the basis of age, physical or mental disability, sex, marital status, changes in marital status, pregnancy, or political affiliation. Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. Contractor further agrees to insert this provision in all subcontracts hereunder and to require the subcontractors to insert this provision in their subcontracts.

Notwithstanding the prohibition against employment discrimination on the basis of marital status or parenthood stated above, an employer may, without violating this provision, provide greater health and retirement benefits to employees who have a spouse or dependent children than are provided to other employees.

- 4.9.3 Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees to work on contract jobs, that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment in accordance with the above referenced nondiscrimination clause.
- 4.9.4 Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements which the State of Alaska may establish by regulation.
- 4.9.5 Contractor shall include the provisions of these paragraphs in this section in every subcontract or purchase order under this contract so as to be binding upon every such subcontractor or vendor of Contractor under this contract.

# 4.10 TAXES

- 4.10.1 Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other taxes for the work or portions thereof provided by Contractor which are legally enacted at the time bids are received, whether or not yet effective.
- 4.10.2 Contractor shall comply with Owner's requirements for payment of taxes. This contract is specifically subject to the provisions of City of Kenai Code, as it now stands or as it may be amended, including but not limited to termination of the contract for non-compliance. If the violation arises from failure to file or remit sales taxes, no payment will be made to Contractor until all filings have been made and all amounts due are paid.

# 4.11 PERMITS, FEES, AND NOTICES

- 4.11.1 Contractor shall secure the building permit from the City of Kenai at no cost. Unless otherwise provided in contract documents, Contractor shall secure and pay for all other legally required permits and government fees, licenses and inspections necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work. These are customarily secured after execution of the contract. These costs are part of the contract price. This provision does not lessen the requirements set out in ARTICLE 1.4.
- 4.11.2 Contractor is required to comply with all permits obtained by Owner for project, if any. Contractor is responsible for requesting information from Owner regarding any applicable permits obtained by Owner.

# 4.12 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

4.12.1 Contractor shall pay for all royalties and license fees. Contractor shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and shall save Owner harmless from loss on account thereof.

#### 4.13 INDEMNIFICATION

4.13.1 The contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City at its own expense from and against any and all claims, losses, damages or expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, of, or liability for, any wrongful or negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the contractor, its officers, agents or employees, or any subcontractor under this contract. The contractor shall not be required to defend or indemnify the City for any claims of, or liability for, any wrongful or negligence of the City. If there is a claim of, or liability for, the joint negligence of the contractor and the independent negligence of the City, the indemnification and hold harmless obligation shall be apportioned on a comparative fault basis. Apportionment shall be determined upon final determination of percentage of fault. If any such determination is by settlement, the percentage of fault attributed to each party for purposes of this indemnification provision shall only be binding upon the parties included in the settlement agreement. "Contractor" and "City" as used in this article include the employees, agents, officers, directors, and other contractors who are directly responsible, respectively, to each. The term "independent negligence of the City" is negligence other than in the City's selection, administration, monitoring, or controlling of the contractor and in approving or accepting the contractor's work.

# ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

#### 5.1 DEFINITIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 5.1.1 A subcontractor is a person or entity having a direct contractual relationship with Contractor, or with one of Contractor's subcontractors, to perform any of the work at the site. A supplier is any manufacturer or person or firm providing materials, equipment or assemblies to Contractor or to one of the subcontractors for inclusion in this project.
- 5.1.2 All contracts between Contractor, subcontractors and suppliers (whether or not in privity with Contractor) shall be in accordance with the terms of this contract and shall incorporate the General Conditions of this contract. Contractor shall include in such contracts, and require its inclusion in any subcontracts, a provision holding any subcontractor or supplier (whether or not in privity with Contractor) directly accountable to Owner for work which fails to meet the requirements of the contract documents, or which prevents Contractor or any subcontractor from performing work. This direct accountability to the Owner shall be in addition to Contractor's liability for any such failure.
- 5.1.3 The provisions in this ARTICLE shall not be construed as creating a right of recourse, or any direct contractual relationship, between Owner or Owner's agents and any subcontractor, supplier, or manufacturer (whether or not in privity with Contractor).
- 5.1.4 Contractor shall make all necessary copies of these contract documents available to Owner and to each subcontractor and shall require each subcontractor to make copies of these contract documents available to each of Contractor's subcontractors, if any.
- 5.1.5 Contractor shall be fully responsible for enforcing discipline among subcontractors, their employees and their subcontractors, and for insuring that each subcontractor performs the work in accordance with the contract documents and all safety regulations.
- 5.1.6 Contractor shall have the discretion to require subcontractor(s) to provide payment or performance bonds for work of the subcontractor(s).

# 5.2 AWARDS TO SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

- 5.2.1 At Owner's request Contractor shall submit to Owner a list of all principal subcontractors and material suppliers and shall not contract with any proposed person or organization to whom Owner voices a reasonable objection. This provision applies to substitution of subcontractors or suppliers subsequent to Owner's initial objection to a proposed person or entity. Such list shall be submitted in accordance with Division 1 requirements as provided in the contract specifications.
- 5.2.2 Rejection of a proposed subcontractor or material supplier shall not entitle Contractor to any increase in the contract sum or time.
- 5.2.3 At Owner's request Contractor shall submit to Owner a copy of any subcontract and any purchase orders for materials and equipment prior to purchase of such items.

# 5.3 CONTRACTOR PAYMENTS TO SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

- 5.3.1 Recognizing the importance of maintaining the integrity of a public contract, Contractor warrants that Contractor will pay all subcontractors and material suppliers at least monthly on or about the 20th day of each month upon approval of the subcontractors' and materials suppliers' billing, for all apparently acceptable work performed on the site during the preceding month and for all apparently acceptable material incorporated into the project or delivered and properly stored at the site during any month for which Contractor has received payment from Owner. If Owner retains a percentage of sums due, Contractor may retain a like percentage, but when retainage is paid, Contractor must pay to the subcontractor or supplier interest on retainage equal to interest rate paid to Contractor by Owner.
- 5.3.2 In furtherance of Contractor's warranty under this ARTICLE and ARTICLE 8, Owner, may require Contractor to declare Contractor's status of accounts with any or all the subcontractors and suppliers. A proof of payment to subcontractors and suppliers shall be made in a form acceptable to Owner. If Contractor

breaches this warranty and fails to pay each subcontractor and materials supplier within 45 days after a monthly billing has been presented, then Owner reserves the right to withhold sufficient sums from Progress Payments due to Contractor and to issue payment to the subcontractors or material suppliers directly. This ARTICLE shall not be construed as creating a right in the subcontractors or material suppliers to have direct recourse against Owner for payment. Contractor expressly agrees that Owner will not be liable for any exercise of Owner's discretionary right under this section, and Contractor agrees to release and indemnify Owner for any claims arising therefrom, either by Contractor directly or by any subcontractor or material supplier. Likewise, this ARTICLE shall not be construed as creating a right in Contractor's surety or any other subrogated party to have direct recourse against Owner for failure to withhold sums pursuant to this section.

# ARTICLE 6 SEPARATE CONTRACTS

- 6.1 Owner has the right to award separate contracts for work on the project that is not included in this contract.
- 6.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other work on the site, the term Contractor in the contract documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each separate contract.
- 6.3 Contractor shall afford other contractors and Owner's own forces reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and for the execution of their work and shall properly connect and coordinate Contractor's work with theirs as required by the contract documents.
- 6.4 Any costs caused by defective or ill-timed work under separate contracts shall be borne by the party responsible thereof and shall be paid promptly.
- 6.5 When separate contracts are let within the limits of any one project, each Contractor shall conduct the work so as not to interfere with or hinder the progress of completion of the work being performed by other Contractors. Contractors working on the same project shall cooperate with each other as directed.

Each Contractor involved shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with his or her contract and shall protect and save harmless the Owner from any and all damages or claims that may arise because of inconvenience, delays, or loss experienced because of the presence and operations of other Contractors working within the limits of the same project.

- 6.6 If any part of Contractor's work depends upon work performed by Owner or any separate contractor, prior to proceeding with the work, Contractor is required to report to Owner any apparent discrepancies, defects or delays in the other work which impede proper execution of the work required by this contract. If Contractor fails to report such unsuitable work by another contractor to Owner, then Contractor shall be deemed to have accepted the unsuitable work and any liability for all deficiencies, damages and costs which arise as a result of the defective work or of Contractor's use or covering of the unsuitable work.
- 6.7 Should Contractor or any subcontractor delay or cause damage to the work or property of any other contractor or person, Contractor shall repair the damage or settle the claim and shall further, to the extent allowed by law, indemnify, defend, and hold Owner harmless from any and all claims, costs, expenses, injury, damages, or loss of any kind, including attorneys' fees, court costs, or arbitration costs, which arise out of such delay or damage.
- 6.8 Should a dispute arise between Contractor and separate contractors as to the responsibility for completing, finishing or cleaning up particular work or a portion of the work, Owner may complete, finish or clean up the disputed portion and apportion the cost among Contractors responsible as Owner shall determine to be equitable.

# ARTICLE 7 BONDS AND INSURANCE

# 7.1 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

7.1.1 For contracts with a contract sum of one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000) or greater, or as otherwise specified in the request for bid, Contractor shall provide as part of the basic contract sum, a performance bond and a payment bond, each in the amount of 100% of the contract amount, prior to Owner's execution

of the contract. Contractor shall have no recourse of any kind against Owner, if Owner declines to award a contract due to Contractor's failure to provide the required bonds. These bonds, in whatever amount required by the specific contract, shall be administered and deemed governed by the provisions of Alaska Statutes Title 36, Chapter 25 and shall comply with all requirements for payment and submission of claims as provided by that chapter.

- 7.1.2 All bonds shall name Owner as the beneficial party and shall protect Owner for a period of at least one year subsequent to the date of final payment upon this contract. All bonds shall be executed upon a form acceptable to Owner and by a surety company licensed to do business within the State of Alaska and acceptable to Owner. The form of the bond shall provide that Owner shall have at least thirty (30) days prior notice of any lapse in bond coverage. The bond payment shall be applicable to all subcontractors or material suppliers (whether or not in privity with Contractor) who might attempt to assert a claim against Owner.
- 7.1.3 Owner may inform the surety as to the general progress and status of the work. A copy of all communications with the surety company shall be provided promptly to Contractor upon request.
- 7.1.4 In the event Contractor refuses, or is unable to make payments to laborers, subcontractors or material suppliers, or to complete the work, or to correct defective work, within the times provided by this contract, Owner may elect to call upon Contractor's surety to rectify Contractor's default. Contractor shall first be given seven (7) calendar days written notice (effective when mailed) of Owner's intentions to call upon the surety company and Owner shall specify to Contractor the basis for the proposed course of action. If Contractor fails to correct the default within the time provided, Owner shall promptly call upon the surety.
- 7.1.5 Prior to final payment or reduction in retainage, Contractor shall provide written consent of each affected surety releasing Owner from any further claims arising from payment to Contractor and obligating the surety company to rectify any default, nonpayment, defective work, error, omission or deficiency of Contractor.
- 7.1.6 Contractor and Owner expressly agree that Owner shall be entitled to retain from payments to Contractor amounts in excess of normal retainage if these additional amounts may be necessary to indemnify Contractor's surety for any payment or corrective work which the surety might be required to undertake. This additional retainage will be made only upon written directive by Contractor's surety specifying the reason for retaining extra amounts, the amounts to be retained and agreement of the surety to reimburse Owner for any interest which may be due Contractor under the provisions of the Alaska Statutes.

# 7.2 CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE

- 7.2.1 The services to be rendered under this contract are those of an independent Contractor.
- 7.2.2 Contractor and all subcontractors, if any, shall be responsible for the purchase and maintenance of all insurance required by law and at a minimum purchase the insurance coverage as specified in ARTICLE 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 below, and any other insurance coverage as may be specified in ARTICLE 7.2.11 SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS OF INSURANCE, if attached and forming a part of this contract. Such insurance shall be by a company/corporation currently rated "A-" or better by A.M. Best.
- 7.2.3 This insurance coverage required by ARTICLE 7.2.5 and 7.2.6, and ARTICLE 7.2.11 if attached, shall be in acceptable form, and for the amounts specified by the City of Kenai, or as required by law, whichever is greater.
- 7.2.4 The insurance policies shall remain in force for the life of the contract and shall be a part of the contract price.
- 7.2.5 Commercial general liability with minimum coverage of \$1,000,000 and automobile liability insurance with minimum coverage of \$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property damage per occurrence. This insurance shall be primary and exclusive of any other insurance carried by the City of Kenai. The commercial general liability insurance shall be without limitation on the time within which the resulting loss, damage, or injury is actually sustained.
- 7.2.6 Per Alaska State Statutes, Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance shall be provided for all employees who are performing work under this contract.

- 7.2.7 Certificate(s) of Insurance shall be provided by Contractor and all subcontractors, or their Insurance Companies and/or their Agents, naming the City of Kenai as an additional insured for the work specified in this contract with a waiver of subrogation for commercial general liability insurance and automobile liability insurance. The certificates of insurance must reference the specific contract by name. Workers compensation insurance must be endorsed for waiver of subrogation against the City. Certificates of Insurance, acceptable in form and content, will be delivered to Owner at the address designated for legal service in the agreement, at or prior to presentation of the contract for execution by owner.
- 7.2.8 There shall be no cancellation or material change of the insurance coverage, or intent not to renew the insurance coverages as specified in this contract, without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City of Kenai. Notice of cancellation, material change in coverage, or intent not to renew will be delivered to the address designated for legal notice in the agreement.
- 7.2.9 Upon renewal or change in policies during the contract, Certificates of Insurance shall be delivered to the address designated for legal notice in the agreement.
- 7.2.10 Owner shall have the option to purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect Owner against property losses or liability claims, which may arise from operations under the contract. Insurance providing coverage against fire and extended coverage perils, may, at Owner option, provide coverage to the full insurable value of the project and insure the interests of Contractor and all subcontractors as their interests may appear. Any recovery for loss insured pursuant to this General Condition is to be adjusted to Owner and made payable to Owner as trustee for the insured, as their interests may appear. This section does not modify the contractor or subcontractors' responsibility to provide insurance as required in ARTICLE 7.

7.2.11 May be added in supplementals as Supplementary General Conditions of Insurance.

# ARTICLE 8 MEASUREMENT, PAYMENT AND COMPLETION

#### 8.1 SCOPE OF PAYMENT

8.1.1 Unless altered by change order, Contractor shall be paid only that sum set forth in the agreement between Owner and Contractor as Contractor's compensation for performance of all work required by the contract documents.

# 8.2 LUMP SUM PAY ITEMS

- 8.2.1 Each bid item is characterized as either a lump sum item or a unit price item in the bid documents. Where the item is bid at a lump sum price, no additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for additional work required because Contractor failed to include items or quantities in Contractor's estimate or a subcontractor's estimate, or failed to utilize proper construction means, methods, procedures or sequence or by virtue of any decision of Contractor.
- 8.2.2 Contractor is required to provide and pay for all requirements necessary for the proper execution and completion of the contract unless specifically excluded by the contract documents. The costs are part of the contract price. The requirements include but are not limited to the requirements stated in ARTICLE 1.4.
- 8.2.3 All materials and equipment incorporated in the work shall be new except as otherwise provided in the contract documents. All materials and equipment shall meet or exceed the requirements of the plans and specifications and Contractor shall furnish, if requested, satisfactory evidence as to the source, kind and quality of any materials and equipment.

# 8.3 UNIT COST ITEMS

8.3.1 Quantities appearing in the bid schedule are approximate and are prepared for comparison of bids. Payment to Contractor will be for actual quantities of work performed and materials furnished in accordance with the contract documents. Scheduled quantities of work and materials may be increased, decreased or eliminated as provided herein.

# 8.4 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

- 8.4.1 Applications for payment shall be based on Contractor's submitted schedule of values, as approved by Owner per Section 4.2. Schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supported by such data as may be required by Owner to substantiate its accuracy prior to Contractor's first application for payment.
- 8.4.2 The schedule of values shall include quantities of work, unit prices and other items comprising the contract price. It shall subdivide the work into each component part in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction.
- 8.4.3 With each subsequent application for progress payment, Contractor shall provide a schedule of values to Owner showing all work which has been performed to date together with the value thereof, and the percentage of work completed.

#### 8.5 **PROGRESS PAYMENTS**

- 8.5.1 Progress Payments shall be made monthly, based upon the amount of apparently acceptable work performed at the site and apparently acceptable materials purchased for the project and properly stored at the site during the previous month. Disbursement of progress payments will not effect a transfer of the risk of loss from the Contractor to the Owner for invoiced equipment or material. The risk of loss of the work and all material and equipment not yet incorporated in the work is the liability of the Contractor until substantial or final completion, whichever is earlier.
- 8.5.2 The value of work performed and materials stored shall be set forth in Contractor's revised schedule of values. If requested by Owner, Contractor shall promptly provide Owner any additional information necessary to ascertain the value of the work performed or the cost of materials stored at the site during the previous month. Each updated Schedule of Values shall be in the form of a notarized affidavit. Proof of certified payroll shall be provided per ARTICLE 4.
- 8.5.3 By application for payment, Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that title to all work, materials, and equipment for which payment is requested will pass to Owner either by incorporation in the construction and after substantial completion or upon receipt of payment, whichever occurs later, that such title will be clear of all liens, claims, security interests, and other encumbrances, except for liens to be released later prior to final payment and specifically identified on the application for payment, and that all such work, materials, and equipment are of acceptable quality.
- 8.5.4 Each application for payment shall be made no later than the tenth day of each month for work performed during the preceding month. Progress Payment requests shall be submitted to Project Representative for analysis and recommendation to Owner.
- 8.5.5 Project Representative will review Contractor's application for payment within seven (7) working days after receipt and if Project Representative ascertains that the amounts set forth therein are properly due and owing to Contractor, then Project Representative shall issue a Certificate of Payment to Owner. If Project Representative determines that only a portion of the sum requested is then properly due and owing to Contractor, then Project Representative may issue a Certificate of Payment in a lesser amount or may reject the application altogether. Project Representative will notify in writing both Contractor and Owner of the reasons for reduction or rejection of any application for Progress Payment.
- 8.5.6 Project Representative's issuance of a Certificate of Payment constitutes a representation that the work has progressed to the point indicated and that to the best of Project Representative's professional knowledge and information, Contractor is entitled to payment in the amounts certified.

#### 8.6 RETAINAGE

8.6.1 After receipt from Project Representative of the Certificate for Payment, Owner shall make payment to Contractor within thirty (30) days. Owner shall have the option to retain up to 10% of the full amount of the Certificate for Payment plus lump sum amounts for material and equipment not properly stored, or subject to damage prior to use. Amounts retained by Owner may be held by Owner until project completion. If the project involves grant money or the City has entered into a written contract with the state to provide state funds, payment will be made in accordance with AS 36.90.200-270.

8.6.2 Owner may withhold additional sums of money from progress payments in an amount sufficient to safeguard and protect Owner against any apparently meritorious claims against Contractor by any party other than Owner, and for any work which Owner ascertains to be defective or not meeting the requirements of the contract documents.

# 8.7 CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

- 8.7.1 Project Representative may refuse to approve all or any part of any request for progress payment if, in Project Representative's opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representation to Owner set out in ARTICLE 8. Project Representative may also refuse to approve all or any part of any request for progress payment, if subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or tests nullify any payment previously approved.
- 8.7.2 Owner may withhold payment to the extent necessary to protect Owner from loss resulting from:
  - A. Defective or damaged work;
  - B. Claims or liens which have been filed or may be reasonably expected;
  - C. Contract price reduction by modifications or change orders;
  - D. Owner cost to correct or complete defective work;
  - E. Unsatisfactory prosecution of the work by Contractor, including but not limited to failure to furnish adequate submittals or to clean up the work or site;
  - F. Reasonable evidence that the work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the contract sum;
  - G. Failure of Contractor to make payment properly due to subcontractors, employees, suppliers or utilities;
  - H. Reasonable evidence to believe the work cannot be completed within the contract time.
  - I. Damage to Owner's property not replaced or repaired in timely manner.

When the grounds for withholding payment are removed, payment shall be made for amounts withheld.

8.7.3 Neither the issuance of a Certificate of Payment, nor the making of any progress payment, nor the partial or entire use of the project by Owner shall constitute an acceptance of any work not in accordance with the contract documents nor shall it constitute a waiver of any right accruing to Owner or of any duty of Contractor.

# 8.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- 8.8.1 Substantial Completion is defined as the state of construction at which the work is sufficiently complete and in accordance with the contract documents, so that Owner could occupy and utilize the work or a specific portion of it, for its intended use.
- 8.8.2 When Contractor considers the work substantially complete Contractor shall notify Project Representative in writing and request a Substantial Completion inspection. The request shall be made a minimum of three business days in advance. The notice shall include a comprehensive list of items to be completed, reasons they are not completed and a date of anticipated completion. The notice shall also include copies of all code compliance inspections, the Certificate of Occupancy, if applicable, and any other documents required by the contract.
- 8.8.3 Project Representative shall schedule the Substantial Completion inspection and notify Contractor. The inspection will be performed by Project Representative, Architect, Design Engineers, and Owner personnel in the presence of Contractor. Should this inspection find the work not substantially complete, Owner may terminate the inspection and promptly notify Contractor in writing of the conditions for reinspection. Any deficiencies identified by this inspection will be listed and promptly furnished to Contractor for remedial action.
- 8.8.4 If Contractor has requested that Project Representative and Owner make an inspection to ascertain Substantial Completion, and if the work is not then substantially complete, Contractor shall be liable for all costs Owner, Architect, and Project Representative have incurred in making the inspection.

- 8.8.5 If it is determined on the basis of inspection that the work is substantially complete, Project Representative will issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion. Included in the certificate shall be a list of items which must be completed or corrected before final payment and the time within which such items shall be complete and corrected. Failure to include an item on this list does not alter the responsibility of Contractor to complete all work in accordance with contract requirements.
- 8.8.6 Certificate of Substantial Completion shall state the date of Substantial Completion and the respective responsibilities of Owner and Contractor for the maintenance, insurance and security of the work. Certificate of Substantial Completion shall specifically authorize Owner to take possession of the premises and utilize them for their intended purpose. Owner's beneficial occupancy of the premises shall make reasonable allowance for the performance of the work which Contractor must complete prior to final completion.
- 8.8.7 If Contractor fails to complete or correct work required by the Certificate of Substantial Completion within the time allowed, then the Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be voided and the contract time expended by Contractor shall be counted, and the acceptability of the work shall be inspected as if a Certificate of Substantial Completion had not been issued.
- 8.8.8 Upon Substantial Completion of the work and upon application by Contractor and certification by Project Representative, Owner shall make payment, reflecting adjustment in retainage, if any, for such work as provided in the contract documents.

# 8.9 FINAL COMPLETION AND WARRANTY PERIOD

- 8.9.1 The terms Final Completion and Warranty Period refer to, respectively, the finalization of the construction phase and a one-year warranty period following the Substantial Completion. Final Completion shall be represented by a lump sum dollar amount identified on the schedule of values. Final Payment represents a sum of money to perform all tasks necessary from Substantial Completion to Final Completion, including completion of final punch list, completion of as-built data, turnover of all warranty information, notarized acknowledgments of payments, and relinquishment of claims against Owner.
- 8.9.2 When Contractor considers the work ready for Final Completion, Contractor shall forward to Project Representative an application for final payment including (1) an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the work have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) consent of surety, if any, to payment, (3) irrevocable, notarized proof of payment and relinquishment of claim against Owner, issued by every subcontractor (whether or not in privity with Contractor), material supplier and other party who might assert a claim against Owner, and (4) all other documentation required by the contract documents. Project Representative and Owner shall promptly inspect the work to see that it is fully performed and complete, that all portions of the work are acceptable and that the contract is fully performed aside from completion of the Warranty Period. After Project Representative shall prepare and recommend that Owner issue a Certificate of Final Completion and Final Payment.
- 8.9.3 Project Representative's approval of Final Payment constitutes an additional representation by Project Representative to Owner that to the best of Project Representative's knowledge and information, all conditions which Contractor must fulfill prior to being entitled to Final Payment have in fact been fulfilled in accordance with the contract documents.
- 8.9.4 If any party refuses to relinquish its claim, or if Owner considers that any item or portion of the work: (1) is of doubtful acceptability under the contract documents; or (2) may diminish the value of the work; or (3) may prove to be ultimately unreliable; or (4) may prove to be less functional than required by the intent of the contract, then Owner, in lieu of refusing Final Payment to Contractor, may allow Contractor to furnish a bond in a form and in an amount satisfactory to indemnify Owner against losses occasioned thereby. If any additional costs to settle the claim or to correct work of doubtful quality accrue to Owner in excess of the indemnity available to Owner, Contractor shall refund to Owner all differences and costs which Owner might be compelled to pay, including all litigation costs and reasonable attorney fees.
- 8.9.5 Acceptance of final payment by Contractor constitutes an explicit waiver of all claims which Contractor might assert against Owner except those previously made in writing and identified by Contractor as unsettled at the time of the Application for Final Payment.

- 8.9.6 Final Payment to Contractor shall constitute a waiver of all claims which Owner might assert except those arising from: (1) unsettled claims; (2) faulty or defective work (3) failure of the work to comply with the requirements of the contract documents; (4) warranties required by this contract or that by their terms do not expire upon completion of the contract.
- 8.9.7 If, after Substantial Completion, Warranty Completion is delayed through no fault of Contractor, or by the issuance of change orders affecting Final Completion, Owner may, upon recommendation of the Project Representative, extend the contract time by a reasonable period and accept certified applications for further Progress Payments.
- 8.9.8 Upon completion of all requirements identified in ARTICLE 8 as "Final" the funds representing Final Payment shall be released to Contractor along with the Certificate of Final Completion. Upon issuance of Certificate of Final Completion all contract sums shall be accounted for to Contractor and shall be paid to Contractor. However, any and all applicable bonds shall not be released until after the Warranty Period.

# 8.10 TIME AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- 8.10.1 The time permitted for construction of the work will run from issuance of Notice to Proceed through the dates for Substantial Completion as specified in Agreement between Owner and Contractor, unless a specific completion date is specified.
- 8.10.2 The term "day" as used in this contract shall mean "calendar day" unless specifically stated otherwise.
- 8.10.3 All warranty periods and obligations accruing to Contractor through completion of the work shall be considered to begin on the date of Substantial Completion, unless otherwise agreed to separately in writing by Owner and Contractor.
- 8.10.4 Contractor shall begin the work as soon as possible after the date identified in Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the work expeditiously and with adequate labor and materials.
- 8.10.5 Liquidated damages will be applied in the amount set out in the Agreement.
- 8.10.6 Claims for extension of time will be considered only if they affect "critical path" items specifically identified in the detailed progress schedule or in any applicable Supplementary Conditions. Claims for extension of the contract time must be made in writing to Owner not more than twenty (20) days after the reason for requested extension appears.

# ARTICLE 9 CHANGES IN THE WORK, CONTRACT PRICE, AND TIME

#### 9.1 CHANGE ORDERS

- 9.1.1 Without invalidating this contract, Owner may, at any time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the work. All such changes must be authorized by written change order. Upon receipt of a change order, Contractor shall proceed with the work in accordance with applicable requirements of the contract documents. If any change order entails an increase or decrease in the contract price or an extension or curtailment of the contract time, adjustment will be made as provided herein.
- 9.1.2 Extra work will be paid for either at a fixed price specified in the change order (using unit prices or a lump sum amount) or on a time and materials basis.
- 9.1.3 Project Representative may authorize minor changes, alterations or deviations in the work in accordance with ARTICLE 2. These changes shall be authorized by written Field Order to be included in a subsequent Change Order.
- 9.1.4 Any additional work performed by Contractor without a properly executed change order will not entitle Contractor to an increase in the contract amount or to an extension of the contract time, except in the case of emergency threatening life, safety or property.

## 9.2 ISSUANCE OF CHANGE ORDER

- 9.2.1 The contract sum constitutes the total compensation to Contractor for the work required by this contract. The contract price may be changed only by a properly executed change order. Any request for increase in the contract price shall be based upon written notice delivered to Project Representative within ten (10) days after the reason for the proposed increase appears. Change order proposals must be accompanied by all pertinent data and documentation, including a detailed estimate showing costs, quantities, unit prices and markups for overhead and profit.
- 9.2.2 Project Representative shall analyze Contractor's change order proposal and shall make a recommendation to Owner within a reasonable period of time. If Owner accepts the proposal, Project Representative shall prepare the change order for execution by Contractor and Owner.
- 9.2.3 The value of any work added or deleted by change order shall be determined by one of the following methods:
  - A. Application of unit prices set forth in the bid: unit prices shall include all direct and indirect costs of the work, including labor, equipment (whether owned or rented), materials, home office expense, all overhead and profit.
  - B. Application of mutually accepted unit prices for work not covered by bid unit prices: unit prices shall include all direct and indirect costs of the work, including labor, equipment (whether owned or rented), materials, home office expense, all overhead and profit.
  - C. Mutual acceptance of a lump sum: Contractor's lump sum proposal must include an itemized breakdown of all costs of Contractor, subcontractors and suppliers. Breakdowns shall show quantities and prices of labor, materials, equipment and other direct costs. To direct costs shall be added the allowable combined overhead and profit as provided in ARTICLE 9.4.
  - D. At Owner's option, Contractor may be directed to proceed with additional work on a "time and materials" basis which may also stipulate a maximum "not to exceed" amount. Contractor will be required to maintain and submit detailed records showing all quantities and prices of labor, materials, equipment and other direct costs. To direct costs shall be added the allowable combined overhead and profit as provided in ARTICLE 9.4.
- 9.2.4 When both additions and credits for related work or substitutions are involved in any one change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be based on the net change. All related items within a proposal shall be considered as a single item for purposes of computing overhead and profit.
- 9.2.5 When Contractor is directed to proceed on a time and materials basis, costs of the work shall be submitted daily for approval by Project Representative and may only include:
  - A. Actual payroll costs for employees, as substantiated by certified payroll, in the direct employ of Contractor for the times actually utilized in prosecution of the additional work, including allowance for benefits which Contractor customarily provides its employees;
  - B. The actual substantiated cost to Contractor for all material and equipment incorporated into the work, including transportation and storage expenses;
  - C. The actual substantiated amounts of payments by Contractor to subcontractors for work performed by the subcontractors;
  - D. Any costs of special consultants to the extent authorized by Owner:
  - E. Substantiated equipment rental costs at reasonable market rates;
  - F. Additional supervision and travel costs reasonably related to the work performed;
  - G. Increased bond premiums:
  - H. Additional license fees, permits, or applicable taxes;

I. Minor incidental expenses such as telegrams and long distance telephone charges.

To these direct costs shall be added the allowable combined overhead and profit as provided in ARTICLE 9.4.

- 9.2.6 Unless specifically agreed to by Owner in writing, the cost of additional work shall not include any portion of Contractor's general overhead, nor any sum attributable to Contractor's prosecution and supervision of the principal work at the site, nor any overtime expense, unless specifically agreed to by Owner in writing. Contractor shall not be compensated for any casualty or other losses or expenses attributable to negligence of Contractor or any person in its employ or any subcontractor or supplier.
- 9.2.7 Payment to Contractor shall be made only for the actual quantities of work performed and accepted or materials furnished, in conformance with the contract or applicable change order. When the accepted quantities of work or materials vary from the quantities stated in the bid schedule, Contractor shall accept as payment in full, payment at the original contract unit prices for the quantities of work and materials furnished, completed and accepted; except as provided in the contract documents.

#### 9.3 UNIT PRICES

- 9.3.1 When unit prices are used, and where the final quantity of a major contract item varies more than 25% above or below the bid quantity, either party to the contract may request an equitable adjustment in the contract unit price of that item. A major contract item is an item equal to 10% or more of the total contract.
- 9.3.2 When the final quantity of work is less than 75% of the bid quantity, the equitable adjustment shall be made for those units of work done and accepted, except that the total payment for the item shall not exceed 75% of the total amount bid for the item.
- 9.3.3 To determine unit prices for authorized changes or additions in the work that alter the quantity of work under a lump sum pay item, adjustment to the pay item will be determined by multiplying the added or deleted quantity by the quotient of the contract lump sum price and the estimated quantity shown on the original plans. Payment will be made under a new contract item established for that purpose. Adjustments will be made as a change order to the contract.
- 9.3.4 No allowance shall be made for any increased expenses, loss of expected reimbursement or loss of anticipated profits suffered or claimed, either directly from such alterations in quantities or indirectly from unbalanced allocations among the contract items by Contractor, or any other causes.

# 9.4 ALLOWABLE OVERHEAD AND PROFIT

- 9.4.1 When the value of change order work is determined by the lump sum method or by the time and materials method, the following definitions and percentages shall apply.
- 9.4.2 Direct costs are defined as the net cost to Contractor to accomplish a given change. Costs of bonds and insurance associated with the change shall be applied after addition of indirect costs.
- 9.4.3 Indirect costs are defined as general operational charges relating to the accomplishment of a given change, including but not limited to small tools, incidental job burdens and general office expense.
- 9.4.4 Overhead and Profit: Allowances for all indirect costs shall be identified as combined overhead and profit and shall not exceed the percentages in the following schedule:
  - A. Additive work:
    - (1) Prime Contractor:
      - (a) 15% of the direct costs of own work in excess of \$1,000.00; 20% when the total value of own work is equal to or less than \$1,000.00.
      - (b) 8% of the direct costs of work performed by subcontractors not including subcontractor's overhead and profit.
      - (c) 8% of the direct costs of equipment.
    - (2) Subcontractors: percentages represented in subsections (a) and (b) are a maximum percentage

allowed regardless of the tier or number of subcontractor(s) performing the work:

- (a) 15% total of the work performed by subcontractors in excess of \$1,000.00; 20% total of the work performed by subcontractor equal to or less than \$1,000.00.
- (b) 8% of the direct costs of equipment.
- (3) In no case shall overhead and profit exceed 23% of the direct costs of work or 16% of the direct costs of equipment when the cost of the work exceeds \$1,000.00. In no case shall overhead and profit exceed 28% of the direct costs of work or 16% of the direct costs of equipment when the cost of the work is equal to or less than \$1,000.00.
- B. Deductive work:
  - (1) Prime Contractor: 4% of the direct cost of deleted own work.

#### 9.5 CONCEALED CONDITIONS

- 9.5.1 This ARTICLE applies only when concealed conditions substantially at variance with the conditions set forth in the contract documents are encountered and these conditions were not foreseeable by Contractor or reasonably inferable from information provided by Architect or Owner in the bidding documents.
- 9.5.2 If it is determined the Contractor could not predict the concealed conditions as set forth under ARTICLE 9.5.1, Owner may issue a change order for the performance of additional work required with an equitable adjustment in the contract sum. Contractor shall not begin work upon any concealed condition until Owner has approved a written change order

#### ARTICLE 10 TESTING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

#### 10.1 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

- 10.1.1 Contractor shall be responsible for securing permits and approvals from entities having jurisdiction over the work. Contractor will provide any special testing or inspections required by the contract documents. Contractor shall notify Owner 48 hours prior to performing testing. Contractor shall not cover work that requires testing, inspection or approval until such testing, inspection, or approval has been completed. Owner reserves the right to approve the testing agency.
- 10.1.2 Neither observation by Owner nor inspections, tests, or approvals by Owner or Owner's testing agency shall relieve Contractor from Contractor's obligation to perform the work in accordance with the contract documents.

#### 10.2 UNCOVERING OF WORK

- 10.2.1 If any work is covered or buried contrary to contract requirements or Owner's written request, such work shall be uncovered at Owner's request for inspections, tests or approvals. Uncovering and recovering shall be at Contractor's expense, unless Contractor has given notice of intent to cover the work and Owner has not acted with reasonable promptness to provide any necessary tests, inspections or approvals.
- 10.2.2 If any work has been covered which Owner has not specifically requested to observe prior to covering, or if Owner considers it necessary or advisable that covered work be inspected or tested by others, then Contractor shall, at Owner's request, uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing, that portion of the work as Owner may require. Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, materials and equipment. If such work is found to be defective, Contractor shall bear all expenses, including compensation for any additional professional services and testing. If, however, the uncovered work is found not to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an equitable adjustment in the contract price or the contract time. Only Contractor's direct costs attributable to the uncovering of work and its recovering shall be allowed.

#### 10.3 DEFECTIVE WORK

- 10.3.1 All work not meeting the requirements of the contract documents shall be considered defective.
- 10.3.2 Contractor shall promptly correct or replace any defective work. Any and all costs associated with correction or replacement shall be borne by Contractor. Contractor shall also bear the expense of making good all

work of others destroyed or damaged or required to be redone because of the correction or replacement of defective work.

10.3.3 If, after seven (7) days written notice to Contractor, Contractor fails to correct deficiencies or to provide Owner with an approved schedule for correcting defective work, Owner may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make good deficiencies and deduct the cost thereof from the payment then or thereafter due Contractor. No extensions of time shall be allowed for correction of work that is defective.

# ARTICLE 11 WARRANTIES

- 11.1 Contractor unconditionally warrants for a period of one year from issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion the usability and quality of all work, labor and materials incorporated into the project, unless otherwise provided in the contract documents. After the approval of Final Payment and prior to the expiration of one year after the date of Final Completion, any work found to be defective shall be remedied promptly by Contractor within fourteen (14) days of written notice without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner's written instructions. Contractor shall either correct such defective work, or, if it has been rejected by Owner, remove it from the site and replace it with acceptable work. If Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner's instructions, Owner may have the defective work corrected or the rejected work removed and replaced, and all direct and indirect costs of such removal and replacement, including compensation for additional professional services, shall be deducted from Warranty Period Payment, unless the surety elects to remedy deficiency.
- 11.2 In addition to other warranties set forth in this contract and in accordance with requirements stated in the contract documents, Contractor shall obtain and transmit to Architect all warranties on material and equipment incorporated into the work and either provided by the supplier or otherwise required by the contract documents. Transmittal of warranties to Owner shall be a prerequisite of the Certificate of Final Completion.
- 11.3 All material and equipment installed by Contractor shall have a manufacturer's warranty for a period of one year, except as otherwise provided by the contract documents. The period of warranty shall begin on the date of Substantial Completion unless otherwise noted on the Certificate of Substantial Completion. This article does not limit any manufacturer's warranty which extends for a period of time longer than that specified as minimum in the contract documents.
- 11.4 If a warranty period in excess of one year on a particular item or part of the work is required by the contract documents, the longer warranty period shall govern warranty obligations of Contractor.
- 11.5 Owner may accept defective work or materials found during the warranty period instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement. If acceptance occurs prior to approval of final payment, a change order shall be issued to reduce the contract price. If acceptance occurs after approval of final payment, an appropriate amount shall be paid by Contractor to Owner.
- 11.6 The provisions of this ARTICLE shall not be construed as limiting the right of Owner to make a claim against Contractor for work not constructed in accordance with the contract documents. Where a defect attributable to Contractor's or subcontractor's materials or workmanship appears after expiration of the one-year warranty period, Owner shall notify Contractor of the appearance of damages due to defective work or materials and shall offer Contractor the right to replace or repair all defective work and other work using Contractor's forces. If Contractor fails to correct the work and any consequentially damaged work within a reasonable time, or if Contractor refuses to correct the work, Owner may correct the work utilizing Owner's own forces. Contractor shall pay Owner all costs attributable to correction of the defective work and any consequential damages occasioned by the defective work.
- 11.7 Should Owner and Contractor agree to delay completion of any items, the one-year warranty period for those items shall commence upon written acceptance of each item by Owner.

# ARTICLE 12 CLAIMS AND LITIGATION

12.1 This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska, and any lawsuit brought thereon shall be filed in the Third Judicial District at Kenai, Alaska.

- 12.2 No controversy or claim arising out of this contract shall be subject to binding arbitration unless both Owner and Contractor agree in writing to submit the question to arbitration at the time when the controversy arises.
- 12.3 All claims, disputes and other matters in question between Contractor and Owner relating to the execution or progress of the work shall be referred initially to Project Representative, who shall render a recommendation in writing to Owner within a reasonable time.
- 12.4 During pendency of any claim arising out of this contract, Contractor shall carry on the work and maintain the Progress Schedule approved by Owner unless otherwise agreed by Contractor and Owner in writing. Should Contractor cease work, Contractor shall be in breach of this contract and Owner shall have the right to terminate the contract and to prosecute the work to completion with Owner's own forces or with a replacement Contractor. Contractor shall be responsible for any increase in costs to Owner above the contract price.
- 12.5 Contractor may make claims for additional costs only if the additional cost involved has occurred because of:
  - A. A change order issued by Owner, where the additional sum due Contractor set forth in the change order is in dispute.
  - B. An order by Owner to stop the work where Contractor was not at fault.
  - C. Concealed conditions as set out in ARTICLE 9.
  - D. Failure of payment by Owner pursuant to ARTICLE 3.
  - E. Additional costs or delays caused by separate contractors' or Owner's forces in accordance with ARTICLE 6.
- 12.6 Contractor shall not make a claim for additional costs where the basis of the claim lies in an oversight or mistake made by Contractor during the bidding process or by reason of negligent acts or omissions of Contractor or any mistake in judgment or improper selection of construction means, methods, sequences and materials during the course of construction.
- 12.7 If Contractor is entitled to make claim for an increase in the contract sum, Contractor shall deliver to Owner written notice of Contractor's intention to assert each claim within twenty (20) days after occurrence of each event giving rise to the claim. Contractor must give this notice of claim and specify the full extent and nature of the claim(s) to Owner before proceeding to execute the work upon which a claim might be asserted. No claim for additional costs or compensation shall be valid unless the prior twenty (20) day notice has been given. Adherence to this provision shall be strict. Any adjustment in the contract sum resulting from settlement of claims shall be authorized by change order.

# ARTICLE 13 TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT OR SUSPENSION OF THE WORK

#### **13.1 TERMINATION BY OWNER**

- 13.1.1 Owner shall have the right to terminate the contract if Contractor should file for bankruptcy, reorganization, otherwise be declared insolvent, or if Contractor makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors. Exercise of these rights, where required by law, is contingent upon relief from the automatic stay provisions of the United States Bankruptcy Court or through other appropriate court order. This right of termination is in addition to the right of Owner to terminate for cause outlined below and other rights of termination as stated in the contract documents.
- 13.1.2 Termination for cause: If Contractor: (1) repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough proper skilled workmen; or (2) fails to pay promptly all subcontractors, suppliers, or other parties as set out in the contract documents; or (3) fails to adhere in all respects to the provisions of Title 8, Chapter 30, of the Alaska Administrative Code and Title 36 of the Alaska Statutes as applicable to this contract and all other pertinent statutes, ordinances or regulations or orders of any local, state, or federal authority concerning payment; or (4) allows insurance to lapse; or (5) if after seven (7) days written notice, without prejudice to any other remedy of Owner, Contractor fails to correct to Owner's satisfaction deficiencies in work that does not conform to the contract documents; or (6) allows a situation that creates a danger to person or property to arise. Where an emergency situation creating a danger to person or property arises, Owner may at its option terminate the contract and take possession of the site and any of Contractor's equipment and material necessary to complete an emergency response or hire a separate contractor to complete the

emergency response. Contractor shall be paid the contract rate for the material used and shall be paid for the use of Contractor's equipment at the price shown in the contract documents or at the rate for such equipment listed in <u>RENTAL RATE BLUE BOOK FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT</u>, published by Machinery Information Division of K-III Directory Corporation, 1735 Technology Drive, Suite 410, San Jose, California 95110. If the rate for such equipment is not so listed, reliable sources will be used to determine a reasonable rate.

- 13.1.3 In the event of termination for cause, Owner shall have the right of set-off, from any payment due Contractor, of all expenses, costs, and damages including but not limited to all professional and legal expenses and attorneys' fees and costs or other additional expenditures necessary to complete the projects that are occasioned by the termination. In the event such amounts exceed the amount of payment withheld, Contractor shall be liable to Owner for such amounts. No payment shall be made to Contractor prior to determination that a balance is due Contractor after the amount of set-off is determined.
- 13.1.4 Owner may terminate this contract at any time for the convenience of Owner for any reason deemed by Owner to be in the best interest of Owner.
- 13.1.5 If this contract is terminated for convenience, Contractor will be directed to make all necessary preparations for closing out the project and for safeguarding Owner's materials and the work already completed. Contractor will be paid for all conforming work done to date and for all materials delivered to the site and already paid for by Contractor, together with all reasonable costs directly attributed to termination, including fixed overhead. Contractor shall be responsible for minimizing the extent of such expenses and shall **not** be paid for expenses which could have been reasonably avoided. On the date that notice of termination or suspension for convenience is issued. Contractor shall immediately take all actions necessary to stop orders of material, rental of equipment or premises, employment of persons on the project, and shipment of materials not yet delivered to the site. The notice of termination or suspension for convenience shall specify a date by which all steps necessary for termination shall be completed and by which Contractor shall have removed any unused material and all Contractor's equipment and forces. Contractor shall leave the premises in a clean and safe condition on or prior to the date specified in the notice. Owner shall certify that all termination procedures have been completed and that the premises have been turned over to the possession of Owner. Within fifteen (15) days after that certification by Owner, Contractor shall render to Owner a bill for all expenses incurred in termination and for all work done subsequent to the last progress payment. Owner shall pay Contractor all sums properly due, together with any retainage not necessary to cover apparently nonconforming work or other changes, within fifteen (15) working days after the bill has been received by Owner, provided that Owner has received releases for all liens.
- 13.1.6 If Contractor is terminated for cause or default on this contract, the performance bond surety shall commence performance within fourteen (14) days of the termination or default. If the surety does not arrange for or commence performance by that date, Owner shall have the option to complete or arrange for performance and the surety shall not be relieved of any responsibility for payment of costs of performance.
- 13.1.7 Should Owner elect to terminate Contractor's services prior to final completion of the work, such termination shall not affect any rights Owner might assert against Contractor at time of termination or thereafter. Any retention or payment of monies by Owner to Contractor shall not release Contractor from that liability.

# 13.2 SUSPENSION OF THE WORK

13.2.1 Owner may, at any time and for any reason, suspend the work or any portion of it for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days, by written notice delivered to Contractor thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for suspension. The notice of suspension shall fix the date on which the work is to be resumed and Contractor shall resume the work on the date so fixed. Equitable adjustment in the contract price, the contract time, or both shall be made for cost or delay directly attributable to suspension of the work.

#### **13.3 TERMINATION BY CONTRACTOR**

13.3.1 If through no act or fault of Contractor, Owner orders a suspension of work for a period of more than ninety (90) days, Contractor may, upon thirty (30) days written notice to Owner, terminate this contract and recover from Owner payment for work accepted to date plus purported overhead and profit in the manner provided in ARTICLE 9.4. Contractor shall also have the right to terminate this contract if Owner fails within forty-

five (45) days to pay amounts properly due Contractor for satisfactorily accomplished work, so certified by Project Representative, as due and payable. The provisions of this section do not include amounts ordinarily retained from Contractor's Application for Payment or amounts retained because of unsatisfactory, defective, or incomplete work, or for any other reason provided in the contract documents.

# ARTICLE 14 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 14.1 Whenever any provision of the contract documents requires written notice, such notice shall be deemed to have been given and binding when given by certified mail to the respective party at the address provided in the Legal Notice provision of the agreement section of the contract documents.
- 14.2 Neither party may assign this contract without the written consent of the other party and Contractor may not delegate duties under this contract other than as provided in the contract documents without the prior written consent of Owner.
- 14.3 In the event a provision of the contract documents is found to be unenforceable or void for any reason, it shall be considered as severed from the contract documents, and the remaining portions of the contract documents shall stand as if that provision had never been included in the contract documents. In the event the unenforceable or void provision is legally essential to the continuing existence of the contract, the parties shall attempt to substitute a reasonable replacement provision.
- 14.4 <u>No general condition stated in these provisions or other provision in the contract documents</u> <u>lessens, alters, or makes inapplicable the requirement for indemnification stated in ARTICLE 4.13.</u> <u>In the event of conflict between any contract provisions, the requirements set out in ARTICLE 4.13</u> <u>control.</u>

# **END GENERAL CONDITIONS**



**CITY OF KENAI** 

# DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM

Kenai Municipal Airport

# 2019

Alaska Regional Fire Training Center Training Equipment Rehabilitation & Alaska Regional Fire Training Center Building Rehabilitation

**Contract Specifications** 

# CITY OF KENAI DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PROGRAM INDEX

DBE Contract Specifications	BB:1-8
DBE List of Submittals	BB:9
DBE – Subcontractable Items	BB: 10
DBE Utilization Declaration	. Attachment 1
Bidder's Registration Form	. Attachment 2
Potential Subcontractors Form	. Attachment 3
DBE Utilization Report	. Attachment 4
Letter of Intent	. Attachment 5
Summary of Good Faith Effort Documentation	. Attachment 6
Contact Report Form	. Attachment 7
Monthly Summary of DBE Participation	. Attachment 8
49 CFR Part 26 Participation by DBE in DOT Programs	. Attachment 9 (Pages 1-62)

# CITY OF KENAI DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PROGRAM

# **Contract Specifications**

# DESCRIPTION

# Policy

The City of Kenai has established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program in accordance with regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), **49 CFR Part 26**. The City of Kenai is committed to increasing the opportunity for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE's) to participate in the performance of contracts where participation is a requirement of the state and federal funding sources.

# CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATION

The Contractor agrees to ensure that DBE's as defined in **49 CFR 26**, have the increased opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with state or federal funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, all contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with **49 CFR Part 26**, to ensure that DBE's have the increased opportunity to compete for and perform contracts.

Each contract the City of Kenai signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime contractor signs with a subcontractor) must include the following clauses:

# Contract Assurance

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of **49** *CFR* **26** in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.

# Prompt Payment

The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 30 days from the receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from the City of Kenai. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the City of Kenai. This clause applies both to DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

# Compliance

All bidders who fail to meet the DBE goal and fail to demonstrate good faith efforts shall not be eligible to be awarded the contract. Contractors or subcontractors for this Federal Aviation Administration assisted contract are hereby notified that failure to carry out the DBE obligations shall constitute a breach of contract which may result in termination of the contract, or such other remedy found appropriate by the City.

The City of Kenai will bring to the attention of the Department of Transportation any false, fraudulent, or dishonest conduct in connection with the program, so that DOT can take the steps (e.g. referral to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to the DOT Inspector General, action under suspension and debarment or Program Fraud and Civil Penalties rules) provided in 26.109. The City will also consider similar action under our own legal authorities, including responsibility determinations in future contracts.

# GENERAL

# **Use of Certified Firms**

A DBE must be certified by the City of Kenai or the State Alaska Department of Transportation before credit may be allowed toward the DBE goal. Directories and updated information regarding certified firms may be obtained from the Airport Manager's Office, Kenai Municipal Airport, 305 N. Willow, Suite 200, Kenai, AK, 99611, (907-283-7951) or online through the State of Alaska at <u>http//www.dot.state.ak.us</u>.

A DBE must perform a commercially useful function, i.e., must be responsible for the execution of a distinct element of work and must carry out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing and supervising work.

A DBE joint venture partner must be responsible for a clearly defined portion of the work to be performed in addition to satisfying requirements for ownership and control. Credit is limited to the percent of the DBE's joint venture participation.

# **Good Faith Efforts**

The requirements of **49 CFR 26, Regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation,** apply to this contract.

It is the policy of the City of Kenai to practice nondiscrimination based on race, color, sex, or national origin in the award or performance of this contract. All

firms qualifying under this solicitation are encouraged to submit bids/proposals. Award of this contract will be conditioned upon satisfying the requirements of this bid specification. These requirements apply to all bidders/offerors, including those who qualify as a DBE. An overall DBE goal of **2 % percent** has been established. The bidder/offeror shall make good faith efforts, as defined in *Appendix A, 49 CFR Part 26* (Attachment 9), to meet the contract goal for DBE participation in the performance of this contract.

The bidder/offeror shall be required to submit the following information **prior to a commitment by the City of Kenai to award the contract** to the apparent successful competitor, as a condition of responsibility.

- 1. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the contract.
- 2. A description of the work that each DBE will perform.
- 3. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participation
- 4. The written and signed documentation (*DBE Utilization Report* Attachment 4) of commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet a contract goal;
- 5. Written and signed confirmation (*Letter of Intent* Attachment 5) from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the prime contractor's commitment; and
- 6. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts (Summary of Good Faith Effort Documentation Attachment 6 and Contact Report Form Attachment 7).

DBE participation in this contract may be in the form of a prime contract, subcontract, joint venture, or another arrangement that qualifies fewer than **49** *CFR Sections 26.55 or 26.53 (g)* both of which are included in Attachment 9.

# Demonstration of good faith efforts

The obligation of the bidder/offeror is to make good faith efforts. The bidder/offeror can demonstrate that it has done so by either meeting the contract goal or documenting good faith efforts. Examples of good faith efforts are found in *Appendix A to Part 26*.

The Project Director will be responsible for determining whether a bidder/offeror who has not met the contract goal has documented sufficient good faith effort to be regarded as responsible.

The City will, as a minimum, use the following criteria to judge if the bidder who has not met the contract goals demonstrated sufficient good faith efforts:

- Soliciting through all reasonable and available means (e.g. attendance at a pre-bid meeting, if any, advertising and/or written notices) the interest of all certified DBEs who have the capability to perform the work of the contract. The bidder must solicit this interest within sufficient time to allow the DBEs to respond to the solicitation;
- 2. Providing interested DBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract in a timely manner to assist them in responding to a solicitation;
- 3. Efforts made to select portions of the work proposed to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood of achieving the stated goal;
- 4. Efforts to negotiate with DBEs for specific sub bids including a minimum:
  - (a) The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBEs that were contacted
  - (b) A description of the information provided to DBEs regarding the plans and specifications for portions of the work to be performed; and
  - (c) A statement of why additional agreements with DBEs were not reached;
- 5. Concerning each DBE the bidder contacted but rejected as unqualified, the reasons for the bidder's conclusion.
- 6. Effort made to assist the DBEs contacted that needed assistance in obtaining bonding or insurance required by the bidder or the City of Kenai.

The *Summary of Good Faith Efforts* (Attachment 6) and the *Contact Report Form* (Attachment 7) may be used for documenting contacts and summarizing good faith efforts. We will ensure that all information is complete and accurate and adequately documents the bidder/offeror's good faith efforts before we commit to the performance of the contract by the bidder/offeror.

# PARTICIPATION GOAL

A Disadvantaged Business Enterprise goal has been approved for FY2019-FY21 at 2%. The City of Kenai will meet the maximum feasible portion of its overall goal with a race neutral program.

Measurement of attainment of these goals will be based on the actual amount of money received by the DBE for commercially useful work on this project.

# DETERMINATION OF COMPLIANCE

# Phase 1 – Bid and Award

All bidders/offerors shall submit the following completed forms with the bid:

- 1. *Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Declaration* (Attachment 1). Bids submitted without this form attached will be considered non-responsive.
- 2. *Bidder's Registration Form* (Attachment 2). Required of all prime bidders with the bid.
- 3. *List of Potential Subcontractors* (Attachment 3). Required of all prime bidders with the bid.

In addition to bid submission requirements, the successful bidder must demonstrate DBE responsibility **prior to award** of this contract by:

- 1. Submitting a copy of the *DBE Utilization Report* (Attachment 4) listing the certified DBE's to be used to meet the goals.
- 2. Submitting a *Letter of Intent* (Attachment 5) from each **DBE** subcontractor.
- 3. Submitting a *Bidder's Registration Form* (Attachment 2) for each subcontractor (DBE and non-DBE) working on the project.
- 4. If the form contains less DBE participation than is required to meet the goal, documentation of good faith efforts in the form of the *Summary of Good Faith Effort Documentation* (Attachment 6) must be submitted. A Contact Report Form (Attachment 7) may be used for documenting contacts and summarizing good faith efforts.

# If the contract goal is not met, failure to document sufficient good faith effort will result in bidder's disqualification for award.

# Administrative reconsideration

Within 15 days of being informed by City of Kenai that it is not responsible because it has not documented sufficient good faith efforts, a bidder/offeror may request administrative reconsideration. Bidder/offerors should make this request in writing to the following for the appointment or designation of a reconsideration official: City Manager 210 Fidalgo Avenue Kenai, AK, 996ll Tel: 283-8222

The reconsideration official will not have played any role in the original determination that the bidder/offeror did not document sufficient good faith efforts.

As part of this reconsideration, the bidder/offeror will have the opportunity to provide written documentation or argument concerning the issue of whether it met the goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do so. The bidder/offeror will have the opportunity to meet in person with our reconsideration official to discuss the issue of whether it met the goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do. We will send the bidder/offeror a written decision on reconsideration, explaining the basis for finding that the bidder did or did not meet the goal or make adequate good faith efforts to do so. The result of the reconsideration process is not administratively appealable to the Department of Transportation.

# Good Faith Efforts when a DBE is replaced on a contract

We will require a contractor to make good faith efforts to replace a DBE that is terminated or has otherwise failed to complete its work on a contract with another certified DBE, to the extent needed to meet the contract goal. We will require the prime contractor to notify the DBE Liaison Officer immediately in writing of the DBE's inability or unwillingness to perform and provide reasonable documentation.

In this situation, we will require the prime contractor to obtain our prior approval of the substitute DBE and to provide copies of new or amended subcontracts, or documentation of good faith efforts.

The City of Kenai will require a prime contractor obtain prior written consent before terminating for convenience a DBE subcontractor and then performing the work of the terminated subcontractor with its own forces or through an affiliate.

If unable to replace with a DBE, the contractor will give full documentation to the City of Kenai (as required above and prior to completing the original DBE area of work) as to efforts made to obtain replacement of DBE participation. After review by the City of Kenai the award may be continued or terminated at the option of the City.

# Phase II – Construction

# Prior to construction, the contractor shall submit, in writing, the designation of a DBE officer.

The work items and creditable dollar amounts shown for a DBE firm on the **DBE Utilization Report** (Attachment 4) must be included in any subcontract with that firm, or prior written approval for replacement of the DBE participation must have been granted, before the City can approve substitution of the subcontract.

If the prime contract was awarded on the basis of sufficient "good faith effort," any subcontract containing items for which good faith effort documentation was not provided prior to award will be subject to the following requirement:

# If the subcontract is with a non-DBE, the contractor must make at least one contact and submit documentation prior to subcontract approval.

Written proof of commitments (i.e, purchase orders or sales receipts) with DBE suppliers and manufacturers **must be submitted to the City of Kenai**.

# INFORMATION COLLECTION AND REPORTING

# **Bidders List**

The City of Kenai will create a bidders list, consisting of information about all DBE and non-DBE firms that bid or quote on FAA-assisted contracts. For every firm, the following information must be included:

- (1) Firm name;
- (2) Firm address;
- (3) Firm's status as a DBE or non-DBE;
- (4) The age of the firm; and
- (5) The annual gross receipts of the firm.

A *Bidder's Registration Form* (Attachment 2) will be included in each solicitation packet. All bidding **Prime Contractors, DBE and non-DBE,** must complete this form and **return it with the bid.** The successful **Prime Contractor** must submit **Bidder Registration Forms** for all subcontractors, DBE and non-DBE, who attempted to bid or quote on the contract **prior to bid award.** 

# Monitoring Payments to DBEs

We will require prime contractors to maintain records and documents of payments to DBEs for three years following the performance of the contract. The Prime Contractor will produce and make these records available for inspection if

asked by the City of Kenai or DOT. This reporting requirement also extends to any certified DBE subcontractor.

The prime contractor is required to submit a *Monthly Summary of DBE Participation* (Attachment 8) documenting the amount paid and total payment to date of actual payments to DBE firms for work committed to the prime contractor for the term of the contract. <u>This is required even if zero dollars (\$0) are paid that</u> <u>month.</u>

DBE participation will be counted towards the goal in accordance with **49 CFR 26**, **Section 26.55**.

We may perform interim audits of contract payments to DBEs. The audit will review payments to DBE subcontractors to ensure that the actual amount paid to DBE subcontractors equals or exceeds the dollar amounts stated in the **DBE Utilization Report**.

# City of Kenai DBE LIST OF SUBMITTALS

# DBE Certification with the State of Alaska

State of Alaska – DOT/PF Civil Rights Office P.O. Box 196900 Anchorage, AK 99519-6900 Tel: 907.269.0853

Certification may take up to 90 days.

# Advertisement for Bid

# **Bid Opening - Bidder's Submittals**

*Bidder's Registration Form*, Contractors & Subcontractors, Attachment 2 *Potential Subcontractors Form*, Attachment 3 *DBE Declaration*, Bidder, Attachment 1 (if applicable)

# **Prior to Bid Award**

*Bidder's Registration Form,* Subcontractors, Attachment 2 *DBE Utilization Report*, Bidder, Attachment 4 (if applicable) *Letter of Intent*, Prime Contractor or Subcontractors, Attachment 5 (if applicable) *Summary of Good Faith*, Bidder, Attachment 6 (if applicable) *Contact Report Form*, Bidder, Attachment 7 (if applicable)

# **Bid Award**

Council Resolution and Purchase Order Notice of Award

# Contract

Contract Forms (Due within 10 calendar days of Notice of Award) Sign Contract

# Notice to Proceed

# Construction

Designation of a DBE Officer, Contractor submits in writing (if applicable)

# **Monthly DBE Reports**

*Monthly Summary of DBE Participation*, Prime Contractor, Attachment 8 (if applicable)

City of Kenai 210 Fidalgo Avenue, Suite 200 Kenai, AK 99611

# **DBE Program - SUBCONTRACTABLE ITEMS**

# PROJECT NAME: \_\_\_\_\_

The following is a list of subcontractable items by category/subcategory that must be considered under the DBE Program, Good Faith Efforts Criteria. If the bidder cannot achieve the DBE Utilization Goal, then the bidder should also consider other items not listed that could be subcontracted to DBEs.

CATEGORY	DESCRIPTION OF WORK OR PORTION OF WORK
Roofing	
Floors	
Electrical/Mechanical Controls	

# ATTACHMENT 1 – BIDDER SUBMITS WITH BID PROPOSAL

# CITY OF KENAI DISADVANTAGED BUSINES ENTERPRISE (DBE) UTILIZATION DECLARATION

Project Name: \_\_\_\_\_

Project Number: \_\_\_\_\_

To be eligible for award of this contract, the bidder must execute and submit, as a part of his proposal, this declaration relating to Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE). This declaration shall be deemed a part of the contract. Therefore, failure to complete and submit this declaration or the inclusion of a false certification shall be considered as evidence that the proposal is non-responsive.

The undersigned bidder/offeror has satisfied the requirements of the bid specification in the following manner (please check the appropriate space):

- \_\_\_\_\_ The bidder/offeror is committed to a minimum of 2 percent DBE utilization on this contract.
- \_\_\_\_\_ The bidder/offeror (if unable to meet the DBE goal of 2 percent) is committed to a minimum of \_\_\_\_\_\_ percent DBE utilization on this contract and submits documentation demonstrating good faith efforts.

Name of bidder/offeror's firm

By: \_\_\_\_\_

Title:

ATTACHMENT 2 – ALL PRIME BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT WITH THE BID. ALL SUBCONTRACTORS MUST SUBMIT PRIOR TO BID AWARD. **DBE PROGRAM KENAI, ÁLÁSKA** 210 Fidalgo Avenue, Suite 200 305 N. Willow, Suite 200 Kenai, AK 99611 Kenai, AK 99611 **BIDDER'S REGISTRATION FORM** PROJECT NAME NUMBER In accordance with Section 26.11 of 49 CFR Part 26 all contractors and sub contractors bidding on prime contracts and bidding or quoting subcontracts on DOT-assisted contracts must complete this form to be registered with the City of Kenai. If you have any questions, please call (907) 283-7951. Name of Firm: \_\_\_\_\_ Street Address: \_\_\_\_\_ Mailing Address: \_\_\_\_\_ City: \_\_\_\_\_ State: \_\_\_\_\_ Zip Code: \_\_\_\_\_ Telephone Number: \_\_\_\_\_\_Fax Number: \_\_\_\_\_ E-mail Address: \_\_\_\_\_ Date Firm was established: \_\_\_\_\_ The firm listed above is a (check all that apply): Yes No Is this firm a prime contractor? Is this firm a subcontractor? Yes No Identify Specialty\_\_\_\_\_ Is this firm a service provider? Yes No Identify Service 🗌 Yes No Identify Material Is this firm a material supplier? No Identify Product \_\_\_\_\_ Is this firm a manufacturer? Yes Is this firm a certified DBE\*? 1 Yes No \*Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Is this firm a SBE? Yes No \*Small Business Enterprise (Complete page 2 of this form) Firm's gross annual receipts: \_\_\_\_\_<\$500,000 \_\_\_\_\_ \$500,000 - \$999,999 \_\_\_\_\_\_\$1,000,000 - \$4,999,999 \_\_\_\_\_ \$5,000,000 - \$9,999,999 \_\_\_\_\_\_\$10,000,000 - \$16,999,999 >\$17,000,000

ATTACHMENT 2 – ALL PRIME BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT WITH THE BID. ALL SUBCONTRACTORS MUST SUBMIT PRIOR TO BID AWARD.

# ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR SELF-CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM (SBE)

**Notice to Self-Certified SBE Firms:** All businesses are required to submit a Bidder's Registration form before a contract can be awarded.

In order to ve3rify your firm's compliance with business size standards under 49 CFR 26.67(2) (i) and 26.65(b), at award you will be required to submit the following documents:

- SBE Affidavit of Certification Eligibility
- Personal Financial Statement
- Past three (3) years of your corporations and/or individual tax returns
- If not a certified DBE, please provide documentation that you are self-certified as a small business (please contact Procurement Technical Assistance Center (PTAC) at 907-274-7232 if you require assistance on becoming a self-certified small business

At the time of award send required documentation to: City of Kenai – Public Works 210 Fidalgo Kenai, AK 99611

# Fostering Small Business Participation (SBE) (49 CFR 26.39):

To meet the requirements of 49 CFR 26.39, the City of Kenai will implement an element to structure contracting requirements in order to facilitate competition by small business concerns. The fostering small business participation component of the City of Kenai's DBE program is written to conform to the US DOT's requirements. This component is only applicable to federally funded projects and includes the following assurances:

- No geographic preferences will be implemented.
- There are no limits on the number of contracts awarded to firms participating in the program.
- Efforts will be made to avoid creating barriers to the use of new, emerging, and/or untried businesses.
- The SBE program is not prohibited by State law.

# A. SBE Directory Information

 Can you verify at time of award that your firm does not exceed the business size standards of \$22.41 million for the last three years of gross annual receipts per 49 CFR 26.65(b)?

()Yes ()No

\*If you marked "No" you do not qualify for the SBE program.

2. Can you verify at the time of award that your firm does not exceed the personal net worth standards of \$1.32 million per 49 CFR 26.67(2) (i)?

( ) Yes ( ) No

\*If you marked "No" you do not qualify for the SBE program.

(continued next page)

7/31/19

Page 2 of 3

ATTACHMENT 2 – ALL PRIME BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT WITH THE BID. ALL SUBCONTRACTORS MUST SUBMIT PRIOR TO BID AWARD.

3. Contact Information

Name of Firm	Contact Name		
Telephone Number	Fax number		
	Company website		

7/31/19

Page 3 of 3

# City of Kenai – DBE Program POTENTIAL SUBCONTRACTORS

PROJECT NAME			NUMBER			
Name of bidder/offeror's firm:						
Address:						
City:	State:	Zip:	Telephone:			

Section 26.11 of 49 CFR Part 26 requires the City of Kenai to create and maintain a bidders list containing information about DBE and non-DBE contractors and subcontractors who seek work on the City's federally-assisted contracts. The purpose of a bidders list is to provide the most accurate data possible for use in setting overall goals.

Please list below the name, address, and telephone number of probable or potential subcontractors your firm may use. This is not a binding list. Should your firm be the successful bidder, Bidder Registration Forms will be required from each subcontractor prior to award bid. Attach a separate sheet if necessary.

Name	Address	Telephone
Name	Address	Telephone

1

# City of Kenai – DBE Program DBE UTILIZATION REPORT

# PROJECT NAME \_\_\_\_\_

All bidders/offerors will be required to submit the following information to the City of Kenai, <u>prior to the award of the contract</u>.

# The undersigned bidder/offeror has satisfied the requirements of the bid specification in the following manner (please circle the choice):

- It <u>has / has not</u> (circle one) met the DBE Goal for the project. If it has not met the goal, the required documentation of sufficient good faith efforts <u>is / is not</u> (circle one) attached.
- 2. Below are the **certified** DBE's to be used in meeting the DBE goal:

FIRM NAME	BID ITEM, WORK, OR PRODUCT	SUBCONTRACT AMOUNT	*ROLE	\$\$ AMOUNT OF PARTICIPATION

\*Role = Prime Contractor (P), Joint Venture (JV), Subcontractor (Sub), Supplier (Spl) or Manufacturer (M)

Total Creditable DBE Utilization Amount \$\_\_\_\_\_

Basic Bid Amount \$\_\_\_\_\_

DBE Participation % of Basic Bid Amount \_\_\_\_\_%
DBE Project Goal \_\_\_\_\_%

If accepted for "good faith efforts" this amount becomes the required minimum level of DBE participation.

Company Name

Principal's Signature

Title

Company Address

Telephone Number

Date

ATTACHMENT 5	- DBE CONTRACTORS SU	JBMIT PRIOR TO B	ID AWARD (LE	TTER OF INTENT)

# City of Kenai – DBE Program

# PRIME CONTRACTOR'S WRITTEN DBE COMMITMENT

PROJECT NAME			NUMBER
All firms bidding on C firm to be subcontract			en commitment from each DBE n DBE firm.
Name of Prime Contr	actor's firm:		
Address:			
City:	State:	Zip:	Telephone:
Name of DBE firm:			
Address:			
City:	State:	Zip:	Telephone:
The bidder/offeror is	committed to utilizing	the above-name	d DBE firm for the work \$
Affirmation			
The above-named DB estimated dollar value		ill perform the p	ortion of the contract for the
By			Date
Signature & Lifle (L	JBE firm)		
If the bidder/offeror or representations in thi		-	-
(Each DBE subcontract	or must submit to the P	rime)	

7/31/19

# City Of Kenai – DBE Program

# SUMMARY OF GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTATION

PROJECT NAME \_\_\_\_\_\_ NUMBER \_\_\_\_\_\_

CONTRACTOR \_\_\_\_\_

List all items considered for DBE utilization.

a. MATERIAL OR SPECIFIC ITEM OF WORK (PAY ITEM)	b. ACCEPTABLE DBE QUOTE RECEIVED	c. # of DBEs CONTACTED IN DBE DIRECTORY	d. # of DBEs that RESPONDED	e. # OF DBEs QUOTES RECEIVED
Comments				

omments:

- 1. Complete a DBE Contract Report for each item for which a direct contact was made.
- 2. If acceptable DBE quote received, skip c, d, & e.
- 3. Submit a copy of letters mailed. (if same letter, one copy with list of addresses is acceptable)
- 4. Submit proof of advertisement. Advertisement is not acceptable as the only type of contact.

# City of Kenai -DBE Program CONTACT REPORT FORM

PROJECT NAME	NUMBER
Specific Work or Materials:	
DBE Firm Contacted:	
	<u>(</u> )
Name     Address       *INSTRUCTIONS FOR SECTIONS A - D ON NEXT PAGE	Telephone Number
A. INITIAL CONTACT:	
1. Date: Method:     Phone     Mail     Fax     Oth	oor
Name & Title of Person Contacted:	
3. DBE's Response:	
Date: Method:  Phone  Mail  Fax [	_ Other
Submitted an acceptable sub-bid. (If sub-bid accepted <b>Skip to</b>	Section D)
Not interested (indicate reason)	
Needs more information. Date Prime requested information:	
Will provide quote by:	
Sub-bid was unacceptable ( <i>complete Section C).</i>	
B. FOLLOW-UP:	
1. Date: Method: Dhone Mail Fax 0	Other
2. Name & Title of Person Contacted:	
3. DBE's Response:	
Date: Method: 🗌 Phone 🗌 Mail 🗌 Fax 🗌	Other
Submitted an acceptable sub-bid. (If sub-bid accepted skip to S	ection D)
Received unacceptable sub-bid. (Complete Section C).	
Other (explain):	
C. EXPLANATION OF FAILURE TO ACHIEVE AN ACCEPTABLE SUB-B	ID:
1. Were the following required efforts made?	
Yes No Identified the specific work, products, materia	ls in the quote(s)
Yes No Offered assistance in acquiring necessary bor	

(Continued)	
Yes No Provided all necessary information for the work items of	or materials
Was the DBE's quote non-competitive (i.e. more than 10% higher than the acc	cepted quote)?
Yes No	
	lain:
CERTIFICATION:	
I certify that the information provided above is accurate and that efforts t made in good faith.	o solicit sub-bids were
Signature of Company Representative Title	Date
Name & Title of City Reviewer	Date
Name & Title of City Reviewer	Date
	ctual contact was made or of constitute a contact. ntative with whom you

- 1. A **No** response to items la., b., or c. will result in rejection of this contact. Be specific on results of discussions.
- 2. A YES answer to item 2. is grounds for rejecting a DBE sub-bid.
- 3. A YES answer to item 3. is grounds for rejecting a DBE sub-bid, only if the inability to perform is in an area of work specifically identified as a sub-item under the applicable bid item.

#### D. CERTIFICATION

This certification of accuracy and good faith by the Contractor will be verified by contact with the listed firm. Falsification of information on the DBE Contact Report is grounds for debarment action under AS 36.30.640(4).

7/31/19

# City of Kenai - DBE Program SUMMARY OF DBE PARTICIPATION

(TO BE COMPLETED BY PRIME CONTRACTOR)

PROJECT NAME & NUMBER	Number	
For Payments Made in the Month of	Year	

**Prime Contractor** 

## **SUBCONTRACTORS**

Prime is a DBE?

Yes

No

(DBE) FIRM NAME	AGREED PRICE	AMOUNT PAID THIS PERIOD	AMOUNT PAID TO DATE	FINAL P	AYMENT NO

#### **MANUFACTURERS (100% DBE Credit)**

FIRM NAME	MATERIALS SUPPLIED	AMOUNT PAID THIS PERIOD	AMOUNT PAID TO DATE	FINAL PA	AYMENT NO

(Continued on next page)

## **BROKERS (5% DBE Credit for brokerage fees)**

FIRM NAME	PRODUCT SERVICE	AMOUNT PAID	AMOUNT PAID	FINAL P	
	BROKERED	THIS PERIOD	TO DATE	YES	NO

# **REGULAR DEALERS (60% DBE Credit)**

FIRM NAME	MATERIALS SUPPLIED	AMOUNT PAID	AMOUNT PAID	FINAL P	AYMENT
		THIS PERIOD	TO DATE	YES	NO

DBE participation will be counted towards goals in accordance with Section 26.55 of 49 CFR Part 23 & 26.

I certify that all information in this Summary of DBE Participation is true and complete.

Signature & Title of Company Representative

The above information has been verified by:		
Signature & Employee Title	Date	
Submit this form by the 15 <sup>th</sup> of the month following the reporting month:	Airport Administrative Office 305 N. Willow, Suite 200 Kenai, Alaska 99611 Fax: 907-283-3737	

7/31/19

Page 2 of 2

Date

# **Section 1.7 Federal Contract Provisions**

ntent	
A1	ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS
A2	AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENT
A3	BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS
A4	BUY AMERICAN PREFERENCE
A5	CIVIL RIGHTS - GENERAL
A6	CIVIL RIGHTS – TITLE VI ASSURANCE
A7	CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL9
A8	CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS9
A9	COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT
A10	DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS10
A11	DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION17
A12	DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE18
A13	DISTRACTED DRIVING19
A14	ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS
A15	DRUG FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
A16	EQUAL EMPLOYEMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) 20
A17	FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE)
A18	LOBBYING AND INFLUENCING FEDERAL EMPLOYEES
A19	PROHIBITION of SEGREGATED FACILITIES27
A20	OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970
A21	PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS28
A22	RIGHT TO INVENTIONS
A23	SEISMIC SAFETY
A24	TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS
A25	TERMINATION OF CONTRACT
A26	TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION
A27	VETERAN'S PREFERENCE

#### FEDERAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS – Instructions

The following federal contract provisions are part of the contract documents. These federal contract provisions shall be incorporated into all subcontracts by whole or by reference.

#### A1 ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

#### A1.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

The Contractor must maintain an acceptable cost accounting system. The Contractor agrees to provide the Owner, the Federal Aviation Administration and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to the specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after final payment is made and all pending matters are closed.

## A2 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENT

## A2.1 SOLICITATION CLAUSE

#### NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION to ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

1. The Offeror's or Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications" set forth herein.

2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, are as follows:

#### Timetables

Goals for minority participation for each trade: 15.1% (Alaska – Non-SMSA Counties)

Goals for female participation in each trade: 6.9%

These goals are applicable to all of the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is Federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and non-federally involved construction.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a)

and its efforts to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the **Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs** (OFCCP) within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address, and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed. https://www.dol.gov/ofccp/construction/contractaward/index.html

4. As used in this notice and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is Alaska, Kenai Peninsula Borough, Kenai.

# A3 BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS

#### A3.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### **BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS**

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the *Contractor* or its subcontractors may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

Owner will provide *Contractor* written notice that describes the nature of the breach and corrective actions the *Contractor* must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract. Owner reserves the right to withhold payments to Contractor until such time the Contractor corrects the breach or the Owner elects to terminate the contract. The Owner's notice will identify a specific date by which the *Contractor* must correct the breach. Owner may proceed with termination of the contract if the *Contractor* fails to correct the breach by the deadline indicated in the Owner's notice.

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.

#### A4 BUY AMERICAN PREFERENCE

#### A4.1 SOLICITATION CLAUSE

#### A4.1.1 Buy American Preference Statement

#### **BUY AMERICAN PREFERENCE**

The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 USC § 50101, which provides that Federal funds may not be obligated unless all steel and manufactured goods used in AIP funded projects are produced in the United States, unless the Federal Aviation Administration has issued a waiver for the product; the product is listed as an Excepted Article, Material Or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation subpart 25.108; or is included in the FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued list.

A bidder or offeror must complete and submit the Buy America certification included herein with their bid or offer. The Owner will reject as nonresponsive any bid or offer that does not include a completed Certificate of Buy American Compliance.

#### A4.1.2 Certificate of Buy American Compliance – Manufactured Product

#### **Certificate of Buy American Compliance for Manufactured Products**

As a matter of bid responsiveness, the bidder or offeror must complete, sign, date, and submit this certification statement with their proposal. The bidder or offeror must indicate how they intend to comply with 49 USC § 50101 by selecting one on the following certification statements. These statements are mutually exclusive. Bidder must select one or the other (not both) by inserting a checkmark ( $\checkmark$ ) or the letter "X".

Bidder or offeror hereby certifies that it will comply with 49 USC § 50101 by:

- a) Only installing steel and manufactured products produced in the United States;
- Installing manufactured products for which the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has issued a waiver as indicated by inclusion on the current FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued listing; or
- c) Installing products listed as an Excepted Article, Material or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 25.108.

By selecting this certification statement, the bidder or offeror agrees:

- 1. To provide to the Owner evidence that documents the source and origin of the steel and manufactured product.
- 2. To faithfully comply with providing U.S. domestic product.
- 3. To furnish U.S. domestic product for any waiver request that the FAA rejects
- 4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.

☐ The bidder or offeror hereby certifies it cannot comply with the 100 percent Buy American Preferences of 49 USC § 50101(a) but may qualify for either a Type 3 or Type 4 waiver under 49 USC § 50101(b). By selecting this certification statement, the apparent bidder or offeror with the apparent low bid agrees:

- 1. To the submit to the Owner within 15 calendar days of the bid opening, a formal waiver request and required documentation that supports the type of waiver being requested.
- 2. That failure to submit the required documentation within the specified timeframe is cause for a non-responsive determination may result in rejection of the proposal.
- 3. To faithfully comply with providing U.S. domestic products at or above the approved U.S. domestic content percentage as approved by the FAA.
- 4. To refrain from seeking a waiver request after establishment of the contract, unless extenuating circumstances emerge that the FAA determines justified.

#### **Required Documentation**

**Type 3 Waiver** – The cost of the item components and subcomponents produced in the United States is more that 60 percent of the cost of all components and subcomponents of the "item". The required documentation for a Type 3 waiver is:

- a) Listing of all product components and subcomponents that are not comprised of 100 percent U.S. domestic content (Excludes products listed on the FAA Nationwide Buy American Waivers Issued listing and products excluded by Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 25.108; products of unknown origin must be considered as non-domestic products in their entirety).
- b) Cost of non-domestic components and subcomponents, excluding labor costs associated with final assembly at place of manufacture.
- c) Percentage of non-domestic component and subcomponent cost as compared to total "item" component and subcomponent costs, excluding labor costs associated with final assembly at place of manufacture.

**Type 4 Waiver** – Total cost of project using U.S. domestic source product exceeds the total project cost using non-domestic product by 25 percent. The required documentation for a Type 4 of waiver is:

- a) Detailed cost information for total project using U.S. domestic product
- b) Detailed cost information for total project using non-domestic product

**False Statements**: Per 49 USC § 47126, this certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of the Federal Aviation Administration and the making of a false, fictitious or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18, United States Code.

Date

Signature

Company Name

Title

# A5 <u>CIVIL RIGHTS - GENERAL</u>

#### A5.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### A5.1.1 Clause for Contracts

#### **GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS**

The Contractor agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance.

This provision binds the Contractor and subcontractors from the bid solicitation period through the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

## A6 <u>CIVIL RIGHTS – TITLE VI ASSURANCE</u>

#### A6.1 CONTRACT CLAUSES

#### A6.1.1 Title VI Clauses for Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements

#### **Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements:**

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor"), agrees as follows:

- 1. **Compliance with Regulations:** The Contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.
- 2. **Nondiscrimination:** The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.
- 3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the

Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

- 4. **Information and Reports:** The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the Contractor will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.
- 5. **Sanctions for Noncompliance:** In the event of a Contractor's noncompliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
  - a. Withholding payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies; and/or
  - b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.
- 6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the Contractor may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor. In addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the States.

# A6.1.2 Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities

#### Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d *et seq.*, 78 stat. 252) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);
- 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);
- The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 USC § 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 *et seq*.), as amended (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;
- The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 *et seq*.) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);
- Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 USC §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by U.S. Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;
- The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;
- Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
- Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC 1681 et seq).

# A7 CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

#### A7.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### **CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL**

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 USC § 740-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 USC § 1251-1387). The Contractor agrees to report any violation to the Owner immediately upon discovery. The Owner assumes responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration.

Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds \$150,000.

## A8 <u>CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT</u> <u>REQUIREMENTS</u>

#### A8.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS

1. Overtime Requirements.

No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages.

In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause.

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages.

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime

contractor, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this clause.

4. Subcontractors.

The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this clause.

# A9 <u>COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT</u>

## A9.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT

Contractor must comply with the requirements of the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874 and 40 USC 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR part 3. Contractor and subcontractors are prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed on the project to give up any part of the compensation to which the employee is entitled. The Contractor and each Subcontractor must submit to the Owner, a weekly statement on the wages paid to each employee performing on covered work during the prior week. Owner must report any violations of the Act to the Federal Aviation Administration.

# A10 DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS

# A10.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### **DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS**

1. Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalent thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid

to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: *Provided* that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification and wage rates conformed under (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can easily be seen by the workers.

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination;

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(B) If the Contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the Contractor, the laborers, or mechanics to be employed in the classification, or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the Contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the Contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program: *Provided* that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the Contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the Contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

#### 2. Withholding.

The Federal Aviation Administration or the sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the Contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Federal Aviation Administration may, after written notice to the Contractor, Sponsor, Applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the Contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker; his or her correct classification; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours worked; deductions made; and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the Contractor shall maintain records that show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been

communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and that show the costs anticipated or the actual costs incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)(A) The Contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the Contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g. the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker and shall provide them upon request to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the Contractor will submit them to the applicant, sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration, the Contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner).

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the Contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) The payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR § 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR § 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is correct and complete;

(2) Each laborer and mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations 29 CFR Part 3;

(3) Each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (3)(ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the Contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.

(iii) The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the sponsor, the Federal Aviation Administration, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the Contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the Contractor, Sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor. Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the Contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that

determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination that provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) Equal Employment Opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

6. Subcontracts.

The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Aviation Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5.

7. Contract Termination: Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in paragraph 1 through 10 of this section may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of Eligibility.

(i) By entering into this contract, the Contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the Contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 USC 1001.

#### A11 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

## A11.1 SOLICITATION CLAUSE

#### A11.1.1 Bidder or Offeror Certification

#### **CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING DEBARMENT**

By submitting a bid/proposal under this solicitation, the bidder or offeror certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred or suspended by any Federal department or agency from participation in this transaction.

#### A11.1.2 Lower Tier Contract Certification

#### CERTIFICATION OF LOWER TIER CONTRACTORS REGARDING DEBARMENT

The successful bidder, by administering each lower tier subcontract that exceeds \$25,000 as a "covered transaction", must verify each lower tier participant of a "covered transaction" under the project is not presently debarred or otherwise disqualified from participation in this federally assisted project. The successful bidder will accomplish this by:

- 1. Checking the System for Award Management at website: http://www.sam.gov.
- 2. Collecting a certification statement similar to the Certification of Offerer /Bidder Regarding Debarment, above.
- 3. Inserting a clause or condition in the covered transaction with the lower tier contract.

If the Federal Aviation Administration later determines that a lower tier participant failed to disclose to a higher tier participant that it was excluded or disqualified at the time it entered the covered transaction, the FAA may pursue any available remedies, including suspension and debarment of the non-compliant participant.

# A12 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

## A12.1 REQUIRED PROVISIONS

# A12.1.1 Solicitation Language (Solicitations that include a Project Goal)

Information Submitted as a matter of bidder responsiveness:

The Owner's award of this contract is conditioned upon Bidder or Offeror satisfying the good faith effort requirements of 49 CFR §26.53.

As a condition of bid responsiveness, the Bidder or Offeror must submit the following information with its proposal on the forms provided herein:

- 1) The names and addresses of Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) firms that will participate in the contract;
- 2) A description of the work that each DBE firm will perform;
- 3) The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm listed under (1)
- Written statement from Bidder or Offeror that attests their commitment to use the DBE firm(s) listed under (1) to meet the Owner's project goal; and
- 5) If Bidder or Offeror cannot meet the advertised project DBE goal, evidence of good faith efforts undertaken by the Bidder or Offeror as described in appendix A to 49 CFR part 26.

#### Information submitted as a matter of bidder responsibility:

The Owner's award of this contract is conditioned upon Bidder or Offeror satisfying the good faith effort requirements of 49 CFR §26.53.

The successful Bidder or Offeror must provide written confirmation of participation from each of the DBE firms the Bidder or Offeror lists in its commitment within five days after bid opening.

- 1) The names and addresses of Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) firms that will participate in the contract;
- 2) A description of the work that each DBE firm will perform;
- 3) The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm listed under (1)
- 4) Written statement from Bidder or Offeror that attests their commitment to use the DBE firm(s) listed under (1) to meet the Owner's project goal; and
- If Bidder or Offeror cannot meet the advertised project DBE goal, evidence of good faith efforts undertaken by the Bidder or Offeror as described in appendix A to 49 CFR part 26.

# A12.1.2 Solicitation Language (Race/Gender Neutral Means)

The requirements of 49 CFR part 26 apply to this contract. It is the policy of the Owner to practice nondiscrimination based on race, color, sex, or national origin in the award or performance of this contract. The Owner encourages participation by all firms qualifying under this solicitation regardless of business size or ownership.

#### A12.1.3 Prime Contracts (Projects Covered by a DBE Program)

#### **DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES**

#### Contract Assurance (§ 26.13) -

The Contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of Department of Transportation-assisted contracts. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the Owner deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

- 1) Withholding monthly progress payments;
- 2) Assessing sanctions;
- 3) Liquidated damages; and/or
- 4) Disqualifying the Contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.

**Prompt Payment (§26.29)** – The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 30 days from the receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from the Owner. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Owner. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

# A13 DISTRACTED DRIVING

#### A13.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### **TEXTING WHEN DRIVING**

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving", (10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10, "Text Messaging While Driving", (12/30/2009), the Federal Aviation Administration encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing work related to a grant or subgrant.

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the Contractor to promote policies and initiatives for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work activities associated with the project. The Contractor must include the substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding \$3,500 that involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of work activities associated with the project.

#### A14 ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

#### A14.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

Contractor and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 USC 6201*et seq*).

## A15 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

## A15.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

None.

# A16 EQUAL EMPLOYEMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO)

# A16.1 MANDATORY CONTRACT CLAUSE

# A16.1.1 EEO Contract Clause

#### EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identify, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff, or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

(3) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

(4) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(5) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(6) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: *Provided, however*, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

# A16.1.2 EEO Specification

## STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS

1. As used in these specifications:

- a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted;
- b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP), U.S. Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;
- c. "Employer identification number" means the Federal social security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941;
- d. "Minority" includes:

(1) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);

(2) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origin regardless of race);

(3) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and

(4) American Indian or Alaskan native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).

2. Whenever the Contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.

3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR part 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors shall be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other contractors or subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.

4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7a through 7p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered construction contractors performing construction work in a geographical area where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.

6. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees shall be employed by the Contractor during the training period and the Contractor shall have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees shall be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.

7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other onsite supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.

c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source, or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or female sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7b above.

f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting

its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.

g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination, or other employment decisions, including specific review of these items, with onsite supervisory personnel such superintendents, general foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.

h. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other contractors and subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.

i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female, and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students; and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations, such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.

j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer, and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a contractor's workforce.

k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR part 60-3.

I. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel, for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.

m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments, and other personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.

n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of

solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor's adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations, which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through 7p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor union, contractor community, or other similar groups of which the Contractor is a member and participant may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through 7p of these specifications provided that the Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's noncompliance.

9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, if the particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally), the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized.

10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

11. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.

12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination, and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.

13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR part 60-4.8.

14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating

to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government, and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee, the name, address, telephone number, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g. those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

# A17 <u>FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FEDERAL MINIMUM</u> <u>WAGE)</u>

# A17.1 SOLICITATION CLAUSE

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the provisions of 29 CFR part 201, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), with the same force and effect as if given in full text. The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, recordkeeping, and child labor standards for full and part-time workers.

The *Contractor* has full responsibility to monitor compliance to the referenced statute or regulation. The *Contractor* must address any claims or disputes that arise from this requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Wage and Hour Division.

# A18 LOBBYING AND INFLUENCING FEDERAL EMPLOYEES

# A18.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### **CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING**

The Bidder or Offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

# A19 PROHIBITION of SEGREGATED FACILITIES

# A19.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

# **PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES**

(a) The Contractor agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this clause is a violation of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause in this contract.

(b) "Segregated facilities," as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin because of written or oral policies or employee custom. The term does not include separate or single-user rest rooms or necessary dressing or sleeping areas provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

(c) The Contractor shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is subject to the Equal Employment Opportunity clause of this contract.

# A20 OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970

#### A20.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text. The employer must provide a work environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the employee. The employer retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor's compliance with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR Part 1910). The employer must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

# A21 PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

## A21.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

Contractor and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247. In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable, the Contractor and subcontractors are to use products containing the highest percentage of recovered materials for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 40 CFR Part 247 whenever:

- 1) The contract requires procurement of \$10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; or
- 2) The contractor has procured \$10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding during the previous fiscal year.

The list of EPA-designated items is available at www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guidelines-construction-products.

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery of EPA-designated products if the contractor can demonstrate the item is:

- a) Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;
- b) Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or
- c) Is only available at an unreasonable price.

#### A22 RIGHT TO INVENTIONS

#### A22.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### **RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS**

DOES NOT APPLY.

## A23 SEISMIC SAFETY

## A23.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### A23.1.1 Construction Contracts

#### SEISMIC SAFETY

The Contractor agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract, including work performed by subcontractors, conforms to a building code standard that provides a level of seismic safety substantially equivalent to standards established by the National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP). Local building codes that model their code after the current version of the International Building Code (IBC) meet the NEHRP equivalency level for seismic safety.

# A24 TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS

#### A24.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

#### CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS

The applicant must complete the following two certification statements. The applicant must indicate its current status as it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting a checkmark ( $\checkmark$ ) in the space following the applicable response. The applicant agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification in all lower tier subcontracts.

#### Certifications

- 1) The applicant represents that it is ( ) is not ( ) a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability.
- 2) The applicant represents that it is ( ) is not ( ) is not a corporation that was convicted of a criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

If an applicant responds in the affirmative to either of the above representations, the applicant is ineligible to receive an award unless the sponsor has received notification from the agency suspension and debarment official (SDO) that the SDO has considered suspension or debarment and determined that further action is not required to protect the Government's interests. The applicant therefore must provide information to the owner about its tax liability or conviction to the Owner, who will then notify the FAA Airports District Office, which will then notify the agency's SDO to facilitate completion of the required considerations before award decisions are made.

#### **Term Definitions**

**Felony conviction:** Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twenty four (24) months of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law and includes conviction of an offense defined in a section of the U.S. code that specifically classifies the offense as a felony and conviction of an offense that is classified as a felony under 18 U.S.C. § 3559.

**Tax Delinquency**: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability.

# A25 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

# A25.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

# A25.1.1 Termination for Convenience

#### **TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE CONSTRUCTION**

The Owner may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written notice to the Contractor. Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner. Upon receipt of a written notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the Owner, the Contractor shall immediately proceed with the following obligations regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:

- 1. Contractor must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice.
- 2. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated under the notice.
- 3. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice.
- 4. Deliver to the Owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially completed work, supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the work, and as directed in the written notice.
- 5. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice.
- 6. Take action as directed by the Owner to protect and preserve property and work related to this contract that Owner will take possession.

Owner agrees to pay Contractor for:

- 1) completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the effective date of termination;
- documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing work and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents in connection with uncompleted work;
- 3) reasonable and substantiated claims, costs, and damages incurred in settlement of terminated contracts with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and
- 4) reasonable and substantiated expenses to the Contractor directly attributable to Owner's termination action.

Owner will not pay Contractor for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from the Owner's termination action.

The rights and remedies this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract.

## A25.1.2 Termination for Default

#### TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT CONSTRUCTION

Section 80-09 of General Conditions establishes conditions, rights, and remedies associated with Owner termination of this contract due to default of the Contractor.

# A26 TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION

#### A26.1 SOLICITATION CLAUSE

#### TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION

By submission of an offer, the Offeror certifies that with respect to this solicitation and any resultant contract, the Offeror –

- is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the United States Trade Representative (USTR);
- has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person that is a citizen or national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the USTR; and
- 3) has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal project that is produced in a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the USTR.

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America and the making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18 USC Section 1001.

The Offeror/Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Offeror/Contractor learns that its certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. The Contractor must require subcontractors provide immediate written notice to the Contractor if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with 49 CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to an Offeror or subcontractor:

- who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the USTR or
- 2) whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on such USTR list or
- who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreign country on such USTR list.

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

The Offeror agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification without modification in all lower tier subcontracts. The Contractor may rely on the certification of a prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm from a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by USTR, unless the Offeror has knowledge that the certification is erroneous.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making an award. If it is later determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) may direct through the Owner cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the Owner or the FAA.

## A27 VETERAN'S PREFERENCE

## A27.1 CONTRACT CLAUSE

## **VETERAN'S PREFERENCE**

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the Contractor and all sub-tier contractors must give preference to covered veterans as defined within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112. Covered veterans include Vietnamera veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business concerns (as defined by 15 USC 632) owned and controlled by disabled

veterans. This preference only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

END OF DOCUMENT

#### STATE OF ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES



# FEDERAL EEO BID CONDITIONS

### STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL NON-EXEMPT FEDERAL AND FEDERALLY-ASSISTED CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS TO BE AWARDED IN THE STATE OF ALASKA

### Authority and Guidelines.

The Alaska Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (Department), as a State Transportation Agency (STA), has authority under 23 U.S.C. 140 and its implementing regulations to conduct a compliance program addressing Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) and Affirmative Action (AA) in employment on non-exempt federal and federally-assisted construction contracts that are awarded in the State of Alaska. The STA's authority to administer a contract compliance with Nondiscrimination, EEO and AA programs are authorized under 23 U.S.C., 49 U.S.C., Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, MAP-21 and implementing regulations. The provisions of 23 CFR 200 and 49 CFR 21 provide authority to determine, and where necessary obtain compliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI. Under the provisions of Title VI 23 USC and related regulations, including 49 CFR 21 and 26, and 23 CFR Part 200, 230 and 633, it is the STA's responsibility to ensure compliance with and to enforce on all projects of Federal-aid contractors and subcontractors, whether a particular contract or work-site involves Federal-aid funds or not.

These citations confirm the requirement for contractors to provide, and States to obtain information that ensure non-discrimination in employment on all of Federal and federally-assisted projects, and through these provisions, provide for EEO for minorities and women in all terms and conditions of their employment at all of their facilities and on all projects.

- 1. <u>Definitions</u>. As used in these specifications:
  - a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted;
  - b. **"Employer identification number"** means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
  - c. "**Minority**" includes:
    - (1) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
    - (2) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race);
    - (3) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and
    - (4) American Indian or Alaska Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- 2. Whenever the Contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.

- 3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the DOL in the covered area, either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades that have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make good faith effort to achieve an equal representation of minority and female employment under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or subcontractors in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or subcontractor's failure to make good faith efforts to achieve the Plan.
- 4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 5(a) through 5(p) of these specifications.
- 5. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
  - a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligations to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
  - b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.
  - c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-thestreet applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefor, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
  - d. Provide immediate written notification to the Civil Rights Office's Contract Compliance Officer when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
  - e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 5(b) above.
  - f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.

- g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with on-site supervisory personnel such as Superintendent, general foreman, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and dispositions of the subject matter.
- h. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's workforce.
- k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- 1. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated except that separate or single-used toilet, necessary changing facilities and necessary sleeping facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontractors from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulations of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- 6. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations 5(a) through 5(p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the Contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any or more of its obligations under 5(a) through 5(p) of these specifications provided that the Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female work force participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its

individual EEO obligations, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance.

- 7. The Contractor is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner.
- 8. The Contractor shall not use the equal employment or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 9. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from government contracts.
- 10. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in item 5(a-p) above, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunities.
- 11. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic apprentice, trainees, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that the existing records satisfy this requirement, Contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.
- 12. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws that establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Programs).
- 13. The Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications" set forth herein.
- 14. EEO/AA obligations are applicable to all of the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is federal or federally-assisted) performed in the covered area. The hours on minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of equalizing minority and female employment percentages shall be a violation of the contract. Compliance with equal minority and female employment utilization will be measured against the total work hours performed.
- 15. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Department, for all subcontracts documents as follows: the name, address and telephone number of subcontractors and their employer identification number; the estimated dollar amount of the subcontracts; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontracts; and the geographical area in which the contract is to be performed.

This written notification shall be required for all construction subcontracts in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this project's solicitation.

16. As used in the Bid Notice, and in the contract resulting from this project's solicitation, the "covered area" is the State of Alaska.

#### STATE OF ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES



## REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS for FEDERAL-AID (FTA) CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

		Page
I.	General	1
II. III.	Fly America Requirements	1
III.	Buy America Requirements	2
	Charter Bus and School Bus Requirements	2
	Cargo Preference Requirements	2
	Seismic Safety Requirements	2
	Energy Conservation Requirements	2 2 2 3
	Clean Water Requirements	3
IX.	Bus Testing	3
	Pre-Award and Post Delivery	
	Audit Requirements	3
XI.	Lobbying	4
XII.	Access to Records and Reports	4
	Federal Changes	5
	Bonding Requirements	5
	Clean Air	7
XVI.	Recycled Products	7
	.Davis-Bacon and Copeland	
	Anti-Kickback Acts	8
XVII	I. Contract Work Hours and Safety	
	Standards Act	12
XIX.	Reserved	12
	No Government Obligation to Third Parties	12
XXI.	Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent	
	Statements and Related Acts	12
XXII	. Termination	13
XXII	I. Government-wide Debarment and	
	Suspension (Nonprocurement)	15
XXI	V. Privacy Act	16
	7. Civil Rights Requirements	16
	I. Breaches and Dispute Resolution	16
XXV	II. Patent and Rights in Data	17
	III. Transit Employee Protective	
	Agreements	19
XXI	X. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE)	19
	. Reserved.	19
XXX	I. Incorporation of Federal Transit	
	Administration (FTA)Terms	19
XXX	II. Drug and Alcohol Testing	20
	III.Appendix	21

#### I. GENERAL

1. These contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the contract.

2. Except as otherwise provided for in each section, the contractor shall insert in each subcontract all of the stipulations contained in these Required

Contract Provisions and further require their inclusion in any lower tier subcontract or purchase order that may in turn be made. The Required Contract Provisions shall not be incorporated by reference in any case. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with these Required Contract Provisions.

3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions shall be sufficient grounds for termination of the contract.

4. In this contract, *Grantor and FTA* means Federal Transit Administration; *Alaska DOT&PF and agency* means the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities; *AMHS* means Alaska Marine Highway System.

#### **II. FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS**

The Fly America requirements apply to the transportation of persons or property, by air, between a place in the U.S. and a place outside the U.S., or between places outside the U.S., when the FTA will participate in the costs of such air transportation.

The Fly America requirements flow down from the Alaska DOT&PF to first tier contractors, who are responsible for ensuring that lower tier contractors and subcontractors are in compliance.

The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" act) in accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that the Alaska DOT&PF receipt of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. carriers for U.S. Government-financed Flag air international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. The Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by U.S. flag air carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

#### III. BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS

The Buy America requirements apply to the following types of contracts: Construction Contracts and Acquisition of Goods or Rolling Stock (valued at more than \$100,000).

The Buy America requirements flow down from the Alaska DOT&PF to first tier contractors, who are responsible for ensuring that lower tier contractors and subcontractors are in compliance. The \$100,000 threshold applies only to the grantee contract, subcontracts under that amount are subject to Buy America.

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 C.F.R. Part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. 661.7, and include final assembly in the United States for 15 passenger vans and 15 passenger wagons produced by Chrysler Corporation, and microcomputer equipment and software. Separate requirements for rolling stock are set our at 49 C.F.R. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. 661.11. Rolling stock must be assembled in the United States and have a 60 percent domestic content.

A bidder or offeror must submit to the Alaska DOT&PF the appropriate Buy America certification with all bids or offers on FTA-funded contracts, except those subject to a general waiver. Bids or offers that are not accompanied by a completed Buy America certification must be rejected as nonresponsive. This requirement does not apply to lower tier subcontractors.

#### IV. CHARTER BUS AND SCHOOL BUS REQUIREMENTS

The Charter Bus and School Bus requirements apply to the following type of contract: Operational Service Contracts.

The Charter Bus requirements flow down from the Alaska DOT&PF to first tier service contractors.

Charter Service Operations – The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323 (d) and 49 CFR Part 604, which provides the Alaska DOT&PF of FTA assistance are prohibited from providing charter service using federally funded equipment or facilities if there is at least one private charter operator willing and able to provide the service, except under one of the exceptions at 49 CFR 604.9. Any charter service provided under one of the exceptions must be "incidental," i.e., it must not interfere with or detract from the provision of mass transportation.

The School Bus Requirements flow down from the Alaska DOT&PF to first tier service contractors.

School Bus Operations – Pursuant to 69 U.S.C. 5323(f) and 49 CFR Part 605, the Alaska DOT&PF in receipt of FTA assistance may not engage in school bus operations exclusively for the transportation of students and school personnel in competition with private school bus operators unless qualified under specified exemptions. When operating exclusive school bus service under an allowable exemption, the Alaska DOT&PF may not use federally funded equipment, vehicles, or facilities.

#### V. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS

The Cargo Preference requirements apply to all contracts involving equipment, materials, or commodities which may be transported by ocean vessels.

The Cargo Preference requirements apply to all subcontracts when the subcontract may be involved with the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

Cargo Preference – Use of United States-Flag Vessels – The Contractor agrees:

a. to use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to the underlying contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels;

b. to furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of leading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated "on board" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and the Alaska DOT&PF (through the contractor in the case of a subcontractors bill-of-lading.)

c. to include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

#### VI. SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from the Alaska DOT&PF to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including work performed by all subcontractors.

Seismic Safety – The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and

constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

#### VII. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

The Energy Conservation requirements are applicable to all contracts.

The Energy Conservation requirements extend to all third party contractors and their contracts at every tier and subrecipients and their subagreements at every tier.

Energy Conservation – The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.

#### VIII. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS

The Clean Water requirements apply to each contract and subcontract which exceeds \$100,000.

The Clean Water requirements flow down to FTA recipients and subrecipients at every tier.

Clean Water:

- 1. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et <u>seq</u>. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Alaska DOT&PF and understands and agrees that the Alaska DOT&PF will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.
- 2. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

#### IX. BUS TESTING

The Bus Testing requirements pertain only to the acquisition of Rolling Stock/Turnkey.

The Bus Testing requirements should not flow down, except to the turnkey contractor as stated in the Master Agreement. Bus Testing – The Contractor (Manufacturer) agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. A 5323(c) and FTA's implementing regulation at 49 CFR Part 665 and shall perform the following:

- A manufacturer of a new bus model or a bus produced with a major change in components or configuration shall provide a copy of the final test report to the Alaska DOT&PF at a point in the procurement process specified by the Alaska DOT&PF which will be prior to the Alaska DOT&PF's final acceptance of the first vehicle.
- 2) A manufacturer who releases a report under paragraph 1 above shall provide notice to the operator of the testing facility that the report is available to the public.
- 3) If the manufacturer represents that the vehicle was previously tested, the vehicle being sold should have the identical configuration and major components as the vehicle in the test report, which must be provided to the Alaska DOT&PF prior to Alaska DOT&PF's final acceptance of the first vehicle. If the configuration or components are not identical, the manufacturer shall provide a description of the change and the manufacturer's basis for concluding that it is not a major change requiring additional testing.
- 4) If the manufacturer represents that the vehicle is "grandfathered" (has been used in mass transit service in the United States before October 1, 1988, and is currently being produced without a major change in configuration or components), the manufacturer shall provide the name and address of the recipient of such a vehicle and the details of that vehicle's configuration and major components.

#### X. PRE-AWARD AND POST DELIVERY AUDITS REQUIREMENTS

These requirements apply only to the acquisition of Rolling Stock/Turnkey.

These requirements should not flow down, except to the turnkey contractor as stated in the Master Agreement.

The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(1) and FTA's implementing regulation at 49 CFR Part 663 and to submit the following certifications:

 Buy America Requirements: The Contractor shall complete and submit a declaration certifying either compliance or noncompliance with Buy America. If the Bidder/Offeror certifies compliance with Buy America, it shall submit documentation which lists

 component and subcomponent parts of the rolling stock to be purchased identified by manufacturer of the parts, their country of origin and costs; and 2) the location of the final assembly point for the rolling

 stock, including a description of the activities that will take place at the final assembly point and the cost of final assembly.

- (2) Solicitation Specification Requirements: The Contractor shall submit evidence that it will be capable of meeting the bid specifications.
- (3) Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS): The Contractor shall submit 1) manufacturer's FMVSS self-certification sticker information that the vehicle complies with relevant FMVSS or 2) manufacturer's certified statement that the contracted buses will not be subject to FMVSS regulations.

### XI. LOBBYING

The Lobbying requirements apply to Construction/Architectural and Engineering/Acquisition of Rolling Stock/Professional Service Contract/Operational Service Contract/Turnkey contracts.

The Lobbying requirements mandate the maximum flow down, pursuant to Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 USC 1352(b)(5) and 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, Section 7.

Lobbying Certification and Disclosure of Lobbying Activities for third party contractors are mandated by 31 USC 1352(b)(5), as amended by Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, and DOT implementing regulation, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," at 49 CFR § 20.110(d).

Language in Lobbying Certification is mandated by 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, Section 7, which provides that contractors file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A.

Modifications have been made to the Lobbying Certification pursuant to Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995.

Use of "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" Standard Form-LLL set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 20, as amended by "Government wide Guidance For New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96) is mandated by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 USC 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 USC § 1601, et seq.] Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contact, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Alaska DOT&PF.

#### XII. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

Reference Chart "Requirements for Access to Records and Reports by Type of Contracts" in the appendix.

FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

Access to Records – The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract:

- 1. Where the Purchaser is not the Alaska DOT&PF but a local government and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 18.36(i), the Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, paper and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 CFR 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 USC 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 USC 5307, 5309 or 5311.
- 2. Where the Purchaser is the Alaska DOT&PF and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 CFR 633.17, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives, including any PMO Contractor, access to the Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309, or 5311. By definition, a major capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$100,000.
- 3. Where the Purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit organization and is the FTA Recipient or a

subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 19.48, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives with access to any books, documents, papers and record of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.

- 4. Where any Purchaser which is the Alaska DOT&PF or a subgrantee of the Alaska DOT&PF in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to the Purchaser, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- 5. The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- 6. The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which caseContractor agrees to maintain same until the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11).
- 7. FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

#### XIII. FEDERAL CHANGES

The Federal Changes requirement applies to all contracts.

The Federal Changes requirement flows down appropriately to each applicable changed requirement.

**Federal Changes -** Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

#### XIV. BONDING REQUIREMENTS

For those construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts exceeding \$100,000, FTA may accept the bonding policy and requirements of the Alaska DOT&PF, provided that they meet the minimum requirements for construction contracts as follows:

a. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five (5) percent of the bid price. The "bid guarantees" shall consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certifies check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance of his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.

b. A performance bond on the part to the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "performance bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract.

c. A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "payment bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment, as required by law, of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract. Payment bond amounts required from Contractors are as follows:

(1) 50% of the contract price if the contract price is not more than \$1 million;

(2) 40% of the contract price if the contract price is more than \$1 million but not more than \$5 million; or

(3) \$2.5 million if the contract price is more than \$5 million.

d. A cash deposit, certified check or other negotiable instrument may be accepted by a grantee in lieu of performance and payment bonds, provided the grantee has established a procedure to assure that the interest of FTA is adequately protected. An irrevocable letter of credit would also satisfy the requirement for a bond.

Bonding requirements flow down to the first tier contractors.

#### **Bid Bond Requirements (Construction)**

(a) Bid Security

A Bid Bond must be issued by a fully qualified surety company acceptable to Alaska DOT&PF and listed as a company currently authorized under 31 CFR, Part 223 as possessing a Certificate of Authority as described thereunder.

(b) Rights Reserved

In submitting this Bid, it is understood and agreed by bidder that the right is reserved by Alaska DOT&PF to reject any and all bids, or part of any bid, and it is agreed that the Bid may not be withdrawn for a period of [ninety (90)] days subsequent to the opening of bids, without the written consent of Alaska DOT&PF.

It is also understood and agreed that if the undersigned bidder should withdraw any part or all of his bid within [ninety (90)] days after the bid opening without the written consent of Alaska DOT&PF, shall refuse or be unable to enter into this Contract, as provided above, or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and acceptable Performance Bonds and Labor and Material Payments Bonds, as provided above, or refuse or be unable to furnish adequate and acceptable insurance, as provided above, he shall forfeit his bid security to the extent of Alaska DOT&PF's damages occasioned by such withdrawal, or refusal, or inability to enter into an agreement, or provide adequate security therefor.

It is further understood and agreed that to the extent the defaulting bidder's Bid Bond, Certified Check, Cashier's Check, Treasurer's Check, and/or Official Bank Check (excluding any income generated thereby which has been retained by Alaska DOT&PF as provided in [Item x "Bid Security" of the Instructions to Bidders]) shall prove inadequate to fully recompense Alaska DOT&PF for the damages occasioned by default, then the undersigned bidder agrees to indemnify Alaska DOT&PF and pay over to Alaska DOT&PF the difference between the bid security and Alaska DOT&PF's total damages, so as to make Alaska DOT&PF whole.

The undersigned understands that any material alteration of any of the above or any of the material contained on this form, other than that requested, will render the bid unresponsive.

# **Performance and Payment Bonding Requirements** (Construction)

The Contractor shall be required to obtain performance and payment bonds as follows:

(a) Performance bonds

1. The penal amount of performance bonds shall be 100 percent of the original contract price, unless the Alaska DOT&PF determines that a lesser amount would be adequate for the protection of the Alaska DOT&PF.

2. The Alaska DOT&PF may require additional performance bond protection when a contract price is increased. The increase in protection shall generally equal 100 percent of the increase in contract price. The Alaska DOT&PF may secure additional protection by directing the Contractor to increase the penal amount of the existing bond or to obtain an additional bond.

(b) Payment bonds

1. The penal amount of the payment bonds shall equal:

(i) Fifty percent of the contract price if the contract price is not more than \$1 million.

(ii) Forty percent of the contract price if the contract price is more than \$1 million but not more than \$5 million; or

(iii) Two and one half million if the contract price is more than \$5 million.

2. If the original contract price is \$5 million or less, the Alaska DOT&PF may require additional protection as required by subparagraph 1 if the contract price is increased.

# **Performance and Payment Bonding Requirements (Non-Construction)**

The Contractor may be required to obtain performance and payment bonds when necessary to protect the Alaska DOT&PF's interest.

(a) The following situations may warrant a performance bond:

1. Alaska DOT&PF property or funds are to be provided to the contractor for use in performing the contract or as partial compensation (as in retention of salvaged material).

2. A contractor sells assets to or merges with another concern, and the Alaska DOT&PF, after recognizing the latter concern as the successor in interest, desires assurance that it is financially capable.

3. Substantial progress payments are made before delivery of end items starts.

4. Contracts are for dismantling, demolition, or removal of improvements.

(b) When it is determined that a performance bond is required, the Contractor shall be required to obtain performance bonds as follows:

1. The penal amount of performance bonds shall be 100 percent of the original contract price, unless the Alaska DOT&PF determines that a lesser amount would be adequate for the protection of the Alaska DOT&PF.

2. The Alaska DOT&PF may require additional performance bond protection when a contract price is increased. The increase in protection shall generally equal 100 percent of the increase in contract price. The Alaska DOT&PF may secure additional protection by directing the Contractor to increase the penal amount of the existing bond or to obtain an additional bond. (c) A payment bond is required only when a performance bond is required, and if the use of payment bond is in the Alaska DOT&PF's interest.

(d) When it is determined that a payment bond is required, the Contractor shall be required to obtain payment bonds as follows:

1. The penal amount of payment bonds shall equal:

(i) Fifty percent of the contract price if the contract price is not more than \$1 million;

(ii) Forty percent of the contract price if the contract price is more than \$1 million but not more than \$5 million; or

(iii) Two and one half million if the contract price is increased.

#### **Advance Payment Bonding Requirements**

The Contractor may be required to obtain an advance payment bond if the contract contains an advance payment provision and a performance bond is not furnished. The Alaska DOT&PF shall determine the amount of the advance payment bond necessary to protect the Alaska DOT&PF.

# Patent Infringement Bonding Requirements (Patent Indemnity)

The Contractor may be required to obtain a patent indemnity bond if a performance bond is not furnished and the financial responsibility of the Contractor is unknown or doubtful. The Alaska DOT&PF shall determine the amount of the patent indemnity to protect the Alaska DOT&PF.

#### Warranty of the Work and Maintenance Bonds

1. The Contractor warrants to Alaska DOT&PF, the Architect and/or Engineer that all materials and equipment furnished under this Contract will be of highest quality and new unless otherwise specified by Alaska DOT&PF, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. All work not so conforming to these standards shall be considered defective. If required by the Engineer, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.

2. The Work furnished must be of first quality and the workmanship must be the best obtainable in the various trades. The Work must be of safe, substantial and durable construction in all respects. The Contractor hereby guarantees the Work against defective materials or faulty workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year after Final Payment by Alaska DOT&PF and shall replace or repair any defective materials or equipment or faulty workmanship during the period of the

guarantee at no cost to Alaska DOT&PF. As additional security for these guarantees, the Contractor shall, prior to the release of Final Payment, furnish separate Maintenance (or Guarantee) Bonds in form acceptable to Alaska DOT&PF written by the same corporate surety that provides the Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond for this Contract. These bonds shall secure the Contractor's obligation to replace or repair defective materials and faulty workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year after Final Payment and shall be written in an amount equal to ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) of the CONTRACT SUM, as adjusted (if at all).

#### XV. CLEAN AIR

The Clean Air requirements apply to all contracts exceeding \$100,000, including indefinite quantities where the amount is expected to exceed \$100,000 in any year.

The Clean Air requirements flow down to all subcontracts which exceed \$100,000.

**Clean Air** - (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 <u>et seq</u>. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.

(2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

#### XVI. RECYCLED PRODUCTS

The Recycled Products requirements apply to all contracts for items designated by the EPA, when the purchaser or contractor procures \$10,000 or more of one of these items during the fiscal year, or has procured \$10,000 or more of such items in the previous fiscal year, using Federal funds. New requirements for "recovered materials" will become effective May 1, 1996. These new regulations apply to all procurement actions involving items designated by the EPA, where the procuring agency purchases \$10,000 or more of one of these items in a fiscal year, or when the cost of such items purchased during the previous fiscal year was \$10,000.

These requirements flow down to all contractor and subcontractor tiers.

**Recovered Materials -** The contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. 6962), including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Executive Order 12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items designated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.

#### XVII. DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, *et seq.* and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i)(5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (*see* 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

#### Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

(1) Minimum wages - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and

(4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.

(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first

day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

(v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division. Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time necessary. is

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(2) Withholding – The Alaska DOT&PF shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Alaska DOT&PF may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

(3) Payrolls and basic records - (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been

communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Alaska DOT&PF. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the Alaska DOT&PF for transmission to the FTA or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the Alaska DOT&PF.

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less

than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, Alaska DOT&PF, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

(4) Apprentices and trainees - (i) Apprentices - Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's

hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed acceptable until an program is approved.

(ii) Trainees - Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable

predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> - The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.

(5) **Compliance with Copeland Act requirements** - The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

(6) **Subcontracts** - The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

(7) **Contract termination: debarment** - A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

(8) **Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements** - All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

(9) Disputes concerning labor standards - Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the Alaska DOT&PF, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

(10) **Certification of eligibility** - (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

#### XVIII. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

The Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act is codified at 40 USC 3701, *et seq.* The Act applies to grantee contracts and subcontracts "financed at least in part by loans or grants from ... the Federal Government." 40 USC 3701(b)(1)(B)(iii) and (b)(2), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i)(6). Although the original Act required its application in any construction contract over \$2,000 or non-construction contract to which the Act applied over \$2,500 (and language to that effect is still found in 49 CFR 18.36(i)(6)), the Act no longer applies to any "contract in an amount that is not greater than \$100,000." 40 USC 3701(b)(3) (A)(iii).

The Act applies to construction contracts and, in very limited circumstances, non-construction projects that employ "laborers or mechanics on a public work." These non-construction applications do not generally apply to transit procurements because transit procurements (to include rail cars and buses) are deemed "commercial items." 40 USC 3707, 41 USC 403 (12). A grantee that contemplates entering into a contract to procure a developmental or unique item should consult counsel to determine if the Act applies to that procurement and that additional language required by 29 CFR 5.5(c) must be added to the basic clause below.

#### **Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards**

(1) **Overtime requirements** - No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages - In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages - The Alaska DOT&PF shall upon its own

action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.

(4) **Subcontracts** - The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section.

#### XIX. RESERVED

#### XX. NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

Applicable to all contracts.

Not required by statute or regulation for either primary contractors or subcontractors, this concept should flow down to all levels to clarify, to all parties to the contract, that the Federal Government does not have contractual liability to third parties, absent specific written consent.

#### No Obligation by the Federal Government.

(1) The Purchaser and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Alaska DOT&PF, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.

(2) The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

#### XXI. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS

These requirements are applicable to all contracts.

These requirements flow down to contractors and subcontractors who make, present, or submit covered claims and statements.

# **Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.**

(1) The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

(2) The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

(3) The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

#### XXII. TERMINATION

All contracts (with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education,) in excess of \$10,000 shall contain suitable provisions for termination by the Alaska DOT&PF including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (For contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education the threshold is \$100,000.) In addition, such contracts shall describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for default as well as conditions where the contract may be terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the contractor. The termination requirements flow down to all contracts in excess of \$10,000, with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher learning.

**a. Termination for Convenience (General Provision)** The Alaska DOT&PF may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Government's best interest. The Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to Alaska DOT&PF to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to the Alaska DOT&PF, the Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the Alaska DOT&PF directs.

**b.** Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision) If the Contractor does not deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or, if the contract is for services, the Contractor fails to perform in the manner called for in the contract, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the Alaska DOT&PF may terminate this contract for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination on the contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in the contract.

If it is later determined by the Alaska DOT&PF that the Contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the Alaska DOT&PF, after setting up a new delivery of performance schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for convenience.

**c. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)** The Alaska DOT&PF in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor [an appropriately short period of time] in which to cure the defect. In such case, the notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions.

If Contractor fails to remedy to Alaska DOT&PF's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within [ten (10) days] after receipt by Contractor of written notice from Alaska DOT&PF setting forth the nature of said breach or default, Alaska DOT&PF shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Alaska DOT&PF from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

**d.** Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that Alaska DOT&PF elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this

Contract, such waiver by Alaska DOT&PF shall not limit Alaska DOT&PF's remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.

e. Termination for Convenience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts) The Alaska DOT&PF, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Government's interest. If this contract is terminated, the Alaska DOT&PF shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.

**f.** Termination for Default (Supplies and Service) If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Alaska DOT&PF may terminate this contract for default. The Alaska DOT&PF shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Alaska DOT&PF.

**g.** Termination for Default (Transportation Services) If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Alaska DOT&PF may terminate this contract for default. The Alaska DOT&PF shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract.

If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of Alaska DOT&PF goods, the Contractor shall, upon direction of the Alaska DOT&PF, protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to the Alaska DOT&PF or its agent. The Contractor and Alaska DOT&PF shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Alaska DOT&PF.

h. Termination for Default (Construction) If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified in this contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the Alaska DOT&PF may terminate this contract for default. The Alaska DOT&PF shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. In this event, the Alaska DOT&PF may take over the work and complete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Alaska DOT&PF resulting from the Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Alaska DOT&PF in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if-

1. the delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the Alaska DOT&PF, acts of another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the Alaska DOT&PF, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes; and

2. the contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies the Alaska DOT&PF in writing of the causes of delay. If in the judgment of the Alaska DOT&PF, the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of the Alaska DOT&PF shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.

If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Alaska DOT&PF.

**i.** Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect and Engineering) The Alaska DOT&PF may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Alaska DOT&PF's convenience or because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations. The Alaska DOT&PF shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the Contracting Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Alaska DOT&PF, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services.

If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Alaska DOT&PF may complete the work by contract or otherwise and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the Alaska DOT&PF.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Alaska DOT&PF.

j. Termination for Convenience of Default (Cost-**Type Contracts**) The Alaska DOT&PF may terminate this contract, or any portion of it, by serving a notice or termination on the Contractor. The notice shall state whether the termination is for convenience of the Alaska DOT&PF or for the default of the Contractor. If the termination is for default, the notice shall state the manner in which the contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property in its possession paid for from funds received from the Alaska DOT&PF, or property supplied to the Contractor by the Alaska DOT&PF. If the termination is for default, the Alaska DOT&PF may fix the fee, if the contract provides for a fee, to be paid the contractor in proportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to the Alaska DOT&PF and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Alaska DOT&PF, the Contractor shall be paid its contract close-out costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination.

If, after serving a notice of termination for default, the Alaska DOT&PF determines that the Contractor has an excusable reason for not performing, such as strike, fire, flood, events which are not the fault of and are beyond the control of the contractor, the Alaska DOT&PF, after setting up a new work schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for convenience.

#### XXIII. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)

In conjunction with the Office of Management and Budget and other affected Federal agencies, DOT published an update to 49 CFR Part 29 on November 26, 2003. This government-wide regulation implements Executive Order 12549, *Debarment and Suspension*, Executive Order 12689, *Debarment and Suspension*, and 31 U.S.C. 6101 note (Section 2455, Public Law 103-355, 108 Stat. 3327).

The provisions of Part 29 apply to all grantee contracts and subcontracts at any level expected to equal or exceed \$25,000 as well as any contract or subcontract (at any level) for Federally required auditing services. 49 CFR 29.220(b). This represents a change from prior practice in that the dollar threshold for application of these rules has been lowered from \$100,000 to \$25,000. These are contracts and subcontracts referred to in the regulation as "covered transactions."

Grantees, contractors, and subcontractors (at any level) that enter into covered transactions are required to verify that the entity (as well as its principals and affiliates) they propose to contract or subcontract with is not excluded or disqualified. They do this by (a) Checking the Excluded Parties List System, (b) Collecting a certification from that person, or (c) Adding a clause or condition to the contract or subcontract. This represents a change from prior practice in that certification is still acceptable but is no longer required. 49 CFR 29.300.

Grantees, contractors, and subcontractors who enter into covered transactions also must require the entities they contract with to comply with 49 CFR 29, subpart C and include this requirement in their own subsequent covered transactions (i.e., the requirement flows down to subcontracts at all levels).

#### Suspension and Debarment

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.

The contractor is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the Alaska DOT&PF. If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to the Alaska DOT&PF, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

### XXIV. PRIVACY ACT

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts.

The Federal Privacy Act requirements flow down to each third party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

**Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements** - The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974,

5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract.

(2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

#### XXV. CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS

The Civil Rights Requirements apply to all contracts.

The Civil Rights requirements flow down to all third party contractors and their contracts at every tier.

**Civil Rights -** The following requirements apply to the underlying contract:

(1) **Nondiscrimination** - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue. (2) **Equal Employment Opportunity** - The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the underlying contract:

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

(b) **Age** - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

(c) **Disabilities** - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

(3) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties.

#### XXVI. BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

All contracts in excess of \$100,000 shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. This may include provisions for bonding, penalties for late or inadequate performance, retained earnings, liquidated damages or other appropriate measures.

The Breaches and Dispute Resolutions requirements flow down to all tiers.

**Disputes** - Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative of Alaska DOT&PF's [Contracting Officer]. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within [ten (10)] days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the [Contracting Officer]. In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the [Contracting Officer] shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide by the decision.

**Performance During Dispute** - Unless otherwise directed by Alaska DOT&PF, Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

**Claims for Damages** - Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefor shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage.

**Remedies** - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between the Alaska DOT&PF and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State in which the Alaska DOT&PF is located.

**Rights and Remedies** - The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the Alaska DOT&PF, (Architect) or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

#### XXVII. PATENT AND RIGHTS IN DATA

Patent and rights in data requirements for federally assisted projects ONLY apply to research projects in which FTA finances the purpose of the grant is to finance the development of a product or information. These patent and data rights requirements do not apply to capital projects or operating projects, even though a small portion of the sales price may cover the cost of product development or writing the user's manual.

The patent and Rights in Data requirements apply to all contractors and their contracts at every tier.

The FTA patent clause is substantially similar to the text of 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, Section 5, but the rights in data clause reflects FTA objectives. For patent rights, FTA is governed by Federal law and regulation. For data rights, the text on copyrights is insufficient to meet FTA's purposes for awarding research grants. This clause, with larger rights as a standard, is proposed with the understanding that this standard could be modified to FTA's needs.

CONTRACTS INVOLVING EXPERIMENTAL, DEVELOPMENTAL, OR RESEARCH WORK.

A. **Rights in Data** - This following requirements apply to each contract involving experimental, developmental or research work:

(1) The term "subject data" used in this clause means recorded information, whether or not copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under the contract. The term includes graphic or pictorial delineation in media such as drawings or photographs; text in specifications or related performance or design-type documents; machine forms such as punched cards, magnetic tape, or computer memory printouts; and information retained in computer memory. Examples include, but are not limited to: computer software, engineering drawings and associated lists, specifications, standards, process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information. The term "subject data" does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and similar information incidental to contract administration.

(2) The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of the contract to which this Attachment has been added:

(a) Except for its own internal use, the Alaska DOT&PF or Contractor may not publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Alaska DOT&PF or Contractor authorize others to do so, without the written consent of the Federal Government, until such time as the Federal Government may have either released or approved the release of such data to the public; this restriction on publication, however, does not apply to any contract with an academic institution.

(b) In accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 18.34 and 49 C.F.R. § 19.36, the Federal Government reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for "Federal Government purposes," any subject data or copyright described in subsections (2)(b)1 and (2)(b)2 of this clause

below. As used in the previous sentence, "for Federal Government purposes," means use only for the direct purposes of the Federal Government. Without the copyright owner's consent, the Federal Government may not extend its Federal license to any other party.

1. Any subject data developed under that contract, whether or not a copyright has been obtained; and

2. Any rights of copyright purchased by the Alaska DOT&PF or Contractor using Federal assistance in whole or in part provided by FTA.

(c) When FTA awards Federal assistance for experimental, developmental, or research work, it is FTA's general intention to increase transportation knowledge available to the public, rather than to restrict the benefits resulting from the work to participants in that work. Therefore, unless FTA determines otherwise, the Alaska DOT&PF and the Contractor performing experimental, developmental, or research work required by the underlying contract to which this Attachment is added agrees to permit FTA to make available to the public, either FTA's license in the copyright to any subject data developed in the course of that contract, or a copy of the subject data first produced under the contract for which a copyright has not been obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or research work, which is the subject of the underlying contract, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under that contract shall become subject data as defined in subsection (a) of this clause and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct. This subsection (c), however, does not apply to adaptations of automatic data processing equipment or programs for the Alaska DOT&PF or Contractor's use whose costs are financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA for transportation capital projects.

(d) Unless prohibited by state law, upon request by the Federal Government, the Purchaser and the Contractor agree to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government, its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Alaska DOT&PF or Contractor of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under that contract. Neither the Alaska DOT&PF nor the Contractor shall be required to indemnify the Federal Government for any such liability arising out of the wrongful act of any employee, official, or agents of the Federal Government.

(e) Nothing contained in this clause on rights in data shall imply a license to the Federal Government under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the Federal Government under any patent.

(f) Data developed by the Alaska DOT&PF or Contractor and financed entirely without using Federal assistance provided by the Federal Government that has been incorporated into work required by the underlying contract to which this Attachment has been added is exempt from the requirements of subsections (b), (c), and (d) of this clause, provided that the Alaska DOT&PF or Contractor identifies that data in writing at the time of delivery of the contract work.

(g) Unless FTA determines otherwise, the Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

(3) Unless the Federal Government later makes a contrary determination in writing, irrespective of the Contractor's status (<u>i.e.</u>, a large business, small business, state government or state instrumentality, local government, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, individual, etc.), the Alaska DOT&PF and the Contractor agree to take the necessary actions to provide, through FTA, those rights in that invention due the Federal Government as described in

U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," 37 C.F.R. Part 401.

(4) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

B. **Patent Rights** - The following requirements apply to each contract involving experimental, developmental, or research work:

(1) <u>General</u> - If any invention, improvement, or discovery is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under the contract to which this Attachment has been added, and that invention, improvement, or discovery is patentable under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign country, the Alaska DOT&PF and Contractor agree to take actions necessary to provide immediate notice and a detailed report to the party at a higher tier until FTA is ultimately notified.

(2) Unless the Federal Government later makes a contrary determination in writing, irrespective of the Contractor's status (a large business, small business, state government or state instrumentality, local government, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, individual), the Alaska DOT&PF and the Contractor agree to take the necessary actions to provide, through FTA, those rights in that invention due the Federal Government as described in U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small

Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," 37 C.F.R. Part 401.

(3) The Contractor also agrees to include the requirements of this clause in each subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

#### XXVIII. TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE AGREEMENTS

The Transit Employee Protective Provisions apply to each contract for transit operations performed by employees of a Contractor recognized by FTA to be a transit operator. (Because transit operations involve many activities apart from directly driving or operating transit vehicles, FTA determines which activities constitute transit "operations" for purposes of this clause.)

These provisions are applicable to all contracts and subcontracts at every tier.

**Transit Employee Protective Provisions.** (1) The Contractor agrees to the comply with applicable transit employee protective requirements as follows:

(a) General Transit Employee Protective Requirements - To the extent that FTA determines that transit operations are involved, the Contractor agrees to carry out the transit operations work on the underlying contract in compliance with terms and conditions determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to be fair and equitable to protect the interests of employees employed under this contract and to meet the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. A 5333(b), and U.S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto. These terms and conditions are identified in the letter of certification from the U.S. DOL to FTA applicable to the FTA Alaska DOT&PF's project from which Federal assistance is provided to support work on the underlying contract. The Contractor agrees to carry out that work in compliance with the conditions stated in that U.S. DOL letter. The requirements of this subsection (1), however, do not apply to any contract financed with Federal assistance provided by FTA either for projects for elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2), or for projects for nonurbanized areas authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311. Alternate provisions for those projects are set forth in subsections (b) and (c) of this clause.

(b) **Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2) for Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities** - If the contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined or determines in the future that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for the Alaska DOT&PF and the public body subrecipient for which work is performed on the underlying contract, the Contractor agrees to carry out the Project in compliance with the terms and conditions determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), U.S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto. These terms and conditions are identified in the U.S. DOL's letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with the state. The Contractor agrees to perform transit operations in connection with the underlying contract in compliance with the conditions stated in that U.S. DOL letter.

(c) **Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311 in Nonurbanized Areas** - If the contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311, the Contractor agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated May 31, 1979, and the procedures implemented by U.S. DOL or any revision thereto.

(2) The Contractor also agrees to include any applicable requirements in each subcontract involving transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

#### XXIX. DISADVANTIAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

The newest version on the Department of Transportation's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program became effective July 16, 2003. The rule provides guidance to grantees on the use of overall and contract goals, requirement to include DBE provisions in subcontracts, evaluating DBE participation where specific contract goals have been set, reporting requirements, and replacement of DBE subcontractors. Additionally, the DBE program dictates payment terms and conditions (including limitations on retainage) applicable to all subcontractors regardless of whether they are DBE firms or not.

See the Special Provision Section 120 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program for the requirements of the Alaska DOT&PF for DBE.

#### XXX. RESERVED

#### XXXI. INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS

The incorporation of FTA terms applies to all contracts.

The incorporation of FTA terms has unlimited flow down.

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1E, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any Alaska DOT&PF requests which would cause Alaska DOT&PF to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

#### XXXII. DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING

The Drug and Alcohol testing provisions apply to Operational Service Contracts.

Anyone who performs a safety-sensitive function for the Alaska DOT&PF or subrecipient is required to comply with 49 CFR 653 and 654, with certain exceptions for contracts involving maintenance services. Maintenance contractors for non-urbanized area formula program grantees are not subject to the rules. Also, the rules do not apply to maintenance subcontractors.

#### Drug and Alcohol Testing

The contractor agrees to establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies with 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654, produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with Parts 653 and 654, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of Transportation or its operating administrations, the State Oversight Agency of Alaska, or the Alaska DOT&PF, to inspect the facilities and records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing program as required under 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654 and review the testing process. The contractor agrees further to certify annually its compliance with Parts 653 and 654 before April 15 and to submit the Management Information System (MIS) reports before before March 15 to the Contracting Officer. To certify compliance the contractor shall use the "Substance Abuse Certifications" in the "Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants and Cooperative Agreements," which is published annually in the Federal Register.

## XXXII. APPENDIX

Contract Characteristic s	Operationa 1 Service Contract	Turnkey	Construction	Architectural Engineering	Acquisition of Rolling Stock	Professional Services
I <u>State Grantees</u> a. Contracts below SAT (\$100,000) b. Contracts above \$100,000/Capit al Projects	None None unless <sup>1</sup> non- competitiv e award	Those imposed on state pass thru to Contractor	None Yes, if non- competitive award or if funded thru <sup>2</sup> 5307/5309/5 311	None None unless non- competitive award	None None unless non- competitive award	None unless non- competitive award
II <u>Non State</u> <u>Grantees</u> a. Contracts below SAT (\$100,000) b. Contracts above \$100,000/Capit al Projects	Yes <sup>3</sup> Yes <sup>3</sup>	Those imposed on non-state Grantee pass thru to Contractor	Yes Yes	Yes Yes	Yes Yes	Yes Yes

## Requirements for Access to Records and Reports by Types of Contract

Sources of Authority: <sup>1</sup> 49 USC 5325 (a) <sup>2</sup> 49 CFR 633.17 <sup>3</sup> 18 CFR 18.36 (i)

# SUBCONTRACTORS LIST

PROJECT: PROJECT		
PRIME CONTRACTOR	र	
Name:		
Address:		
Phone:	Contractor's License:	Business License:
information has been fi	lled out and copies of Contra	ork or be on the job site until the following ctors' and Business Licenses have been ied of any changes in this list.
SUBCONTRACTORS		
Name:		Amount of Contract:
Address:		
Phone:	Contractor's License:	Business License:
	***************	*****
Name:		Amount of Contract:
Address:		
Phone:	Contractor's License:	Business License:
	*****	*****
Name:		Amount of Contract:
Address:		
Phone:	Contractor's License:	Business License:
	******	*****
Name:		Amount of Contract:
Address:		
Phone:	Contractor's License:	Business License:

This page intentionally left blank

	SAMPLE
Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Developmen P.O. Box 110806, Juneau, Alaska 99811-0806	ıt
ALASKA BUSINESS LICENSE	
The licensee named below holds Alaska Business License Number Covering the period of: through	
Line of Business:	
COMPANY NAME ADDRESS	
Owner:	
NAME OF OWNER	
This lighted shall not be taken as permission to de business in the state without beying complied with	h
This license shall not be taken as permission to do business in the state without having complied with The other requirements of the laws of the State of Alaska or of the United States.	n
Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Econor Commissioner	
This license must be posted in a conspicuous place at the business location. It is not transferable or assig	
	SAMPLE
No Effective: Expires:	
Division of Occupational Licensing	
Certifies that	
COMPANY NAME	
Is a Registered	
Specialty Commissioner:	

This page intentionally left blank

ACORD

 $\mathbf{I}$ 

1

1

||

Π

L

# **CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE**

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMAT BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INS REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, A	IVEL SURA ND T	Y OF NCE HE C	DOES ERTIFI	ATIVELY AMEND, EXT NOT CONSTITUTE A CATE HOLDER.	END OR ALT	ER THE CO	OVERAGE AFFORDED BY TH THE ISSUING INSURER(S), A	E POLICIE UTHORIZEI	
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder the terms and conditions of the policy certificate holder in lieu of such endor	, cert	tain p	olicies	AL INSURED, the policy may require an endors	r(les) must b ement. A sta	e endorsed. itement on th	If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED his certificate does not confer	), subject to rights to th	
RODUCER									
				PHON	E	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	FAX (A/C, No):	·····	
			E-MAI	lo. Ext):		LIAIC, NOI:			
				ADDR			······································	T	
					INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC				
				INSUF	INSURER A 🔉				
SURED				INSUF	INSURER B :				
				INSUF	ERC:				
				INSUF	ERD:				
				INSUF	ERE!			1	
				INSUF	and the desident such the second				
OVERAGES CER	TIEIC	CATE	NUM	the second se	LKT .		REVISION NUMBER:		
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES		Contraction of the local division of the loc		and the second se	N ISSUED TO	THE INSUR		ICY PERIOR	
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RE CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	PERT	AIN,	THE IN	SURANCE AFFORDED BY	THE POLICIE REDUCED BY	S DESCRIBE	D HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL		
R TYPE OF INSURANCE	INSR	SUBR WVD	1	POLICY NUMBER	(MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMITS		
GENERAL LIADILITY	-						EACH OCCURRENCE \$	1,000,0	
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY							DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) \$	100,0	
CLAIMS MADE TOUCOUR	X	X	)				MED EXP (Any one person) \$	5,0	
						6 1 1 1 1	PERSONAL & ADV INJURY \$	1,000,0	
							GENERAL AGGREGATE \$	2,000,0	
							PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$	2,000,	
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:						Automa Pa	S	2,000,	
X POLICY LECT LOC	-					-	COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT		
17							(Ea accident) \$	1,000,	
ANY AUTO	-				1		BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$		
AUTOS	X	X	)		1		BODILY INJURY (Per accident) \$		
HIRED AUTOS					1		PROPERTY DAMAGE \$		
			100				Underinsured motorist \$	1,000,0	
X UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR							EACH OCCURRENCE \$		
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE						1.1.1.1	AGGREGATE \$	4,000,0	
OED X RETENTION \$ 10,000							s		
WORKERS COMPENSATION							X WC STATU- TORY LIMITS OTH- ER	matthease of the	
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY							E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$	1,000,0	
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?	N/A								
(Mandatory in NH)	1	x					E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$	1,000,0	
DÉSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below	- (	A					E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$	1,000,0	
						L		l Anno anno anno anno anno anno anno anno	
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICI	LES (A	Ittach A	LCORD 1	01, Additional Remarks Schedu	e, if more space i	s required)			
PROJECT NAME			_						
Certificate Holder is an	Add	itic	nal	Insured on Genera	l Liabili	ty & Auto	mobile policies, but	only wi	
spect to work done by or on									
lder is granted Waiver of S									
licies as respects the refe									
RTIFICATE HOLDER				CAN	CELLATION				
and the second se									
City of Kenai				THE	EXPIRATION	DATE THE	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCEL REOF, NOTICE WILL BE DE Y PROVISIONS.		
Public Works					PIZED DEPOCOD	NTATIVE	Annual of the state of the stat		
210 Fidalgo Ave Kenai, AK 99611				AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE					
			_				an and the second se		
CORD 25 (2010/05)							ORD CORPORATION. All rig		

This page intentionally left blank

## PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that

(Name of Contractor)
(Address of Contractor)
, hereinafter called Principal, and Corporation, Partnership, or Individual)
(Name of Surety)
(Address of Surety)
ereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto
(Name of Owner)
(Address of Owner)
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars ) in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly these presents.
HE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a certain contract with

the Owner, dated the \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 201\_, a copy of which is hereto attached and made a part hereof for the construction of:

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall well, truly and faithfully perform its duties, all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original term thereof, and any extensions thereof which may be granted by the Owner, with or without notice to the Surety, and if he shall satisfy all claims and demands incurred under such contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless the Owner from all costs and damages which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay owner all outlay and expense which the owner may incur in making good any default, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any ways affects its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall abridge the right of

any beneficiary hereunder, who claims may be unsatisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF	-, this inst	rument is executed in three (3) counterparts,	each one of which shall be deemed
an original, this the	_ day of	, 201	

	(Principal)	(SEAL)
	(Principal Secretary)	
ATTEST:	BY	
(Witness as to Principal)	(Address)	
(Address)		
	(Surety)	(SEAL)
ATTEST:	BY (Attorney-in-Fact	;)
(Witness as to Surety)	(Address)	
(Address)		

NOTE: If Contractor is Partnership, all partners should execute bond.

**IMPORTANT:** Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State where the project is located.

# **PAYMENT BOND**

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that

(Name of Contractor)	
(Address of Contractor)	
a, hereinafter called Principal, and (Corporation, Partnership, or Individual)	
(Name of Surety)	
(Address of Surety) hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto	
(Name of Owner)	
(Address of Owner)	
hereinafter called Owner, in the penal sum of Do (\$) in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, to be these presents.	
THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a certain contrac the Owner, dated the day of, 201_, a copy of which is hereto attached and made a	

hereof for the construction of:

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution of the work provided for in such contract, and any authorized extension or modification thereof, including all amounts due for materials lubricants, oil, gasoline, coal and coke, repairs on machinery, equipment and tools, consumed or used in connection with the construction of said work, and all insurance premiums on said work, and for all labor, performed in such work whether by subcontractor or other-wise, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any ways affects its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, who claims may be unsatisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in three (3) counterparts, each one of which shall be deemed an original, this the \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 201\_.

	(Principal)	(SEAL)
	(Principal Secretary)	
ATTEST:	BY	
(Witness as to Principal)	(Address)	
(Address)		
	(Surety)	(SEAL)
ATTEST:	BY(Attorney-in-Fac	t)
(Witness as to Surety)	(Address)	
(Address)		

NOTE: If Contractor is Partnership, all partners should execute bond.

**IMPORTANT:** Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State where the project is located.

# <u>CONTRACTOR'S RELEASE AND AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENTS</u> OF DEBTS AND CLAIMS ("Release")

# PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NAME

The undersigned, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. That pursuant to this contract for project \_\_\_\_\_\_between the undersigned and the City of Kenai dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_the undersigned hereby certifies that, except as listed below, he has paid in full or has otherwise satisfied all obligations for materials and equipment furnished for all work, labor, and services performed and for all known indebtedness and claims for which the Contractor or the City of Kenai is or may become liable in connection with performance under this contract. The Contractor warrants that he has made diligent search and inquiry to determine the existence of any such claim, debt, or liability and that all such obligations, whether liquidated, unliquidated, or disputed, have been satisfied.

2. The Contractor further certifies he did not extend any loan, gratuity, or gift of money of any form whatsoever to any employee or agent of the City, that he did not rent or purchase any equipment or materials from any employee of the City, nor to the best of his knowledge, from any agent of any employee of the City, and that he has not made any promise to an employee or agent of the City to do or undertake any such action after completion of the subject contract.

3. Pursuant to the above-described contract and in consideration of the final payment in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_\_, the undersigned Contractor hereby releases and discharges the City of Kenai, its officers, agents and employees of and from any and all further claim, debt, charge, demand, liability, or other obligation whatsoever under or arising from said contract, whether known or unknown and whether or not ascertainable at the time of the execution of this instrument. This release is complete, final, binding and irrevocable.

4. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold the City, its elected and appointed officers, agents and employees, harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits, or liability of any nature, kind or character including costs, expenses, and attorneys fees resulting from Contractor or Contractor's officers, agents, employees, partners, attorneys, suppliers, and subcontractors' performance or failure to perform this Agreement in any way whatsoever. This defense and indemnification responsibility includes claims alleging acts or omissions by the City or its agents which are said to have contributed to the losses, failure, violations, or damage. However, Contractor shall not be responsible for any damages or claim arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its agents, or employees. Contractor and subcontractors shall also not be required to defend or indemnify the City for damage or loss that has been found to be attributed to an independent contractor directly responsible to the City under separate written contract.

If any portion of this Release is voided by law or court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Release shall remain in full force and effect.

# <u>CONTRACTOR'S RELEASE AND AFFIDAVIT OF PAYMENTS</u> OF DEBTS AND CLAIMS ("Release")

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Release has been ex	ecuted this_day of,201
	(Contractor's signature)
	Title
ACKNOWLEDGEMEI	NT
STATE OF ALASKA ) ) ss THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )	
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this day of undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State personally appeared	of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn,

having produced satisfactory evidence of identification, and having acknowledged the voluntary and authorized execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein mentioned, executed the above and foregoing instrument.

Notary Public for Alaska

My Commission Expires: \_\_\_\_\_

(NOTE: In case of a corporation, the attached Certificate of Authority must be completed by a corporate officer other than the one who signs above.)



"Village with a Past, City with a Future"

210 Fidalgo Avenue, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794 Telephone: 907-283-7535 / Fax: 907-283-3014 www.kenai.city

# CONSENT OF SURETY COMPANY TO FINAL PAYMENT

PROJ	JECT:		
CON	TRACT DATE:		
CON	TRACTOR:		
TO:	CITY OF KENAI, OW	NER	

10: CITY OF KENAI, OWNER 210 Fidalgo Avenue Kenai, AK 99611 Attn: Public Works Department

In accordance with the provisions of the above-referenced Contract between Owner, City of Kenai, and Contractor, Surety (insert name and address of Surety),

does hereby consent to and approve of the final payment to Contractor in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_, and in the case of Surety, it is further agrees as follows:

1. In giving this Consent, Surety has made its own investigation to determine whether said payment should be made to Contractor and Surety has not relied on any representation by the City of Kenai or its employees or agents which has induced it to consent to such payment.

2. Surety agrees that this payment shall not relieve Surety of any of its obligations to the City of Kenai as set forth in its Labor and Material Payment and Performance Bonds

and Surety waives any and all claims against City of Kenai for wrongful release of funds to Contractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Surety Company has set its hand this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_.

(Surety)

(Signature of authorized representative)

(Printed name and title)

# ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF \_\_\_\_\_ )
) ss.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on the \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, Title: \_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_, Curety), being personally known to me or having produced satisfactory evidence of identification, appeared before me and acknowledged the voluntary and authorized execution of the foregoing instrument.

)

Notary Public for \_\_\_\_\_\_ My Commission Expires: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_

# **NOTE TO SURETY:** ATTACH PROOF OF POWER OF ATTORNEY OR OTHER DOCUMENTATION DEMOSTRATING SIGNATORY MAY BIND SURETY

# SECTION 01 00 00

# TABLE OF CONTENTS – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

# **DIVISION 01 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS**

- 01 01 00 SUMMARY OF WORK
- 01 02 70 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT
- 01 04 50 CUTTING AND PATCHING
- 01 05 20 GRADES, LINES AND LEVELS
- 01 06 00 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
- 01 09 00 REFERENCE STANDARDS
- 01 20 00 PROJECT MEETINGS
- 01 25 00 DEFINITIONS AND EXPLANATIONS
- 01 31 00 SCHEDULING
- 01 34 00 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES
- 01 37 00 SCHEDULE OF VALUES
- 01 40 00 QUALITY CONTROL
- 01 50 00 TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS
- 01 56 90 CONSTRUCTION CLEANING
- 01 60 00 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT
- 01 61 00 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING
- 01 62 00 STORAGE AND PROTECTION
- 01 63 00 PRODUCT OPTIONS AND SUBSTITUTIONS
- 01 67 00 SYSTEM DEMONSTRATION
- 01 70 00 CONTRACT CLOSE-OUT PROCEDURES
- 01 71 00 FINAL CLEANING
- 01 72 00 RECORD DOCUMENTS
- 01 73 00 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA
- 01 74 00 WARRANTIES AND BONDS
- 01 75 00 SPARE PARTS AND MAINTENANCE MATERIALS
- 01 89 50 EROSION, SEDIMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL

# **DIVISION 02 - EXISTING CONDITIONS**

NOT APPLICABLE

# DIVISION 03 – CONCRETE

NOT APPLICABLE

# **DIVISION 04 – MASONRY**

NOT APPLICABLE

# **DIVISION 05 – METALS**

NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 06 - WOOD, PLASTICS, AND COMPOSITES NOT APPLICABLE

# **DIVISION 07 - THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION**

07 55 00	EPDM ROOFING
07 62 00	FLASHING AND TRIM
07 90 00	JOINT SEALANTS

# **DIVISION 08 – OPENINGS**

NOT APPLICABLE

#### **DIVISION 09 - FINISHES**

09 65 10 RESILIENT BASE 09 68 00 CARPETING

#### **DIVISION 10 - SPECIALTIES**

10 92 50 MISCELLANEOUS SPECIALTIES

# **DIVISION 11 - EQUIPMENT**

NOT APPLICABLE

#### DIVISION 12 – FURNISHINGS NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 13 - SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 14 - CONVEYING EQUIPMENT

NOT APPLICABLE

# **DIVISION 15 – 20**

NOT APPLICABLE

# DIVISION 21 - FIRE SUPPRESSION

NOT APPLICABLE

# **DIVISION 22 - PLUMBING**

- 22 00 00BASIC PLUMBING REQUIREMENTS22 14 00STORM DRAINAGE PIPING22 14 00DUMENUG FINTUEFO
- 22 40 00 PLUMBING FIXTURES

# DIVISION 23 - HEATING, VENTILATING, AND AIR CONDITIONING (HVAC)

- 23 00 00 BASIC HVAC REQUIREMENTS
- 23 01 30 HVAC DUCT CLEANING
- 23 05 29 HANGERS AND SUPPORTS
- 23 05 53 MECHANICAL IDENTIFICATION
- 23 05 93 TESTING, ADJUSTING & BALANCING
- 23 07 00 MECHANICAL INSULATION
- 23 09 00 INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROL ELEMENTS
- 23 09 23 CONTROLS AND SEQUENCE OF OPERATIONS
- 23 11 23 NATURAL GAS PIPING
- 23 21 13 HYDRONIC PIPING
- 23 21 16 PIPING SPECIALTIES
- 23 21 23 PUMPS
- 23 31 00 DUCTS
- 23 34 00 FANS

23 52 35 HEATING BOILERS AND ACCESSORIES

23 57 00 HEAT EXCHANGERS

23 64 23 AIR COOLED SCREW WATER CHILLERS

#### **DIVISION 24 - 25**

NOT APPLICABLE

#### **DIVISION 26 - ELECTRICAL**

26 27 26WIRING DEVICES26 51 00INTERIOR LIGHTING26 56 00EXTERIOR LIGHTING

DIVISION 27 – COMMUNICATIONS NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 28 - ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 29 - 30 NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 31 – EARTHWORK NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 32 - EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 33 – UTILITIES NOT APPLICABLE

DIVISION 35 – 49 NOT APPLICABLE

# END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### SECTION 01 01 00 -

SUMMARY OF WORK

# PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

# A. Work Included:

- Work required under this contract is described in the subsequent sections and is more particularly delineated in the Drawings, and includes the providing of all labor, equipment, tools, and materials required for the REHABILATION OF THE TRAINING BUILDING FOR THE CITY OF KENAI as described in this and subsequent sections and in other Contract Documents.
- 2. The Contract Documents do not purport to describe in detail, absolute and complete construction information. In some instances, drawings will be diagrammatic and not necessarily to exact scale or portray exact conditions at any particular location or situation.
- 3. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to determine conditions and requirements at each particular situation and provide all items necessary for the completion of the Work, according to the parameters established by the Contract Documents.
- B. Language:

The language employed in these specifications is addressed <u>directly</u> to the Contractor. Imperative or indicative language is generally employed throughout and requirements so expressed are the mandatory responsibility of the Contractor even though the work specified actually may be accomplished by specialty subcontractors hired, retained, or otherwise engaged by the Contractor. <u>References to third parties</u> in this regard <u>shall not</u> be interpreted in any way as to relieve the Contractor of any of his responsibilities under the Contract.

# 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications of workers: For all the operations under this Contract:
  - 1. Employ a thoroughly qualified and experienced superintendent who shall be completely familiar with the requirements of the Contract Documents, who shall direct all work, and who shall be present at the job site at all reasonable times while work is in progress.
  - 2. Employ only qualified journeymen mechanics, tradesmen, or installers who are thoroughly skilled and experienced in their respective trades or specialties.
  - 3. Apprentices and helpers, when employed, shall be under the supervision of qualified journeymen mechanics or tradesmen at all times.
- B. Referenced Standards:

Standards referenced in this and succeeding sections of the specifications shall become a part of the Contract Documents to the extent of their applicability to the particular item, process, method or operation involved.

# 1.03 CONTRACTOR'S DUTIES

- A. Except as otherwise specifically required, provide and pay for labor, materials, tools, machinery, equipment, and all transportation.
- B. Comply with codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and other legal requirements of public authorities which bear on performance of the work.
- C. In the event of any observed variation between the Contract Documents and legal requirements, or any discrepancy or ambiguity in or among any of the requirements of the Contract Documents or any referenced standards, promptly notify the Owner's Representative in writing in which eventuality, appropriate changes and modifications to the Contract Documents will be initiated by the Owner and furnished to the Contractor. Contractor shall assume responsibility for work performed without proper notice to Owner, when such work was known by Contractor to be contrary to such requirements. Do not proceed in questioned areas until resolution or clarification has been obtained.

#### 1.04 PREMISES

A. Contractor's Access:

The Owner will make available at the indicated locations, exterior space, as reasonable, for the storage and staging of the Contractor's materials and equipment, subject to the following controls.

- 1. Use of such areas shall be covered by the insurance required by the General Conditions (Provisions).
- 2. Storage shall be maintained in a neat and orderly condition at all times conforming to all fire and safety regulations.
- 3. Fire lanes and required exit pathways shall be kept free and unobstructed at all times.
- 4. Do not unreasonably encumber site with materials and equipment.
- 5. Do not impose loads which might impair the structural integrity of any work already in place.
- 6. Use of the space shall be coordinated with and subject to the requirements of the Owner.
- 7. Upon completion of the contract, restore all areas to original conditions which prevailed prior to onset of the work, or as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.
- B. Environmental Requirements:
  - 1. Restrict all operations to the areas assigned for storage, staging, and other necessary operations, and do not permit the disturbance of any areas not assigned for approved operations shown as limits of construction under this Contract.

#### PAGE 3 OF 4

- 2. The areas indicated on the drawings where existing natural vegetation remains is to be protected by the Contractor. The Contractor shall cordon-off these areas. They are not to be used by the Contractor for storage of materials, access of any other purpose. Damage to the natural ground cover in these areas will be restored to the satisfaction of the Architect.
- 3. Employ all means necessary to avoid the accumulation of debris and construction residue, avoiding the spread of dust and noxious odors.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

# 2.01 STORAGE AND PROTECTION

Do not deliver any of the materials or equipment for this Contract to the job site until adequate facilities are available for their proper storage and protection. Comply with the detailed requirements in subsequent sections for the storage and protection of the particular products of those sections.

Take all measures necessary to protect the installed work and materials of all trades at all times before, during, and after installation.

# 2.02 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

A. Design:

Design is based upon the method system, or product described, and the Drawings reflect the desired location and configuration. In some instances, the recommended installation details of the named manufacturer, comparable methods systems or products of alternate manufacturers will be considered (unless otherwise noted as "No Substitution") upon submittal per Sections 01 34 00 of these specifications.

B. Materials:

All materials proposed for incorporation into this project shall be new and as specified or as shown in the Drawings, or if not specifically called out, shall be of first quality of their respective kinds, as selected by the Contractor, subject to the approval of the Owner's Representative.

C. Minimum Quality:

In every instance the quality level shown or specified is intended as the minimum acceptable for the work to be performed or provided.

D. Conflicting or Overlapping Requirements:

In the event of conflict in or among any of the requirements of this specification or any referenced standards, or where two or more referenced standards or sets of requirements are specified, and establishes differing minimums of levels of quality, the most stringent requirement shall prevail and shall be so enforced, unless specific language in the text (not in the referenced standards) clearly indicates that the less stringent requirement is intended to prevail.

E. Submittals:

#### PAGE 4 OF 4

Make all submittals of materials and equipment proposed for incorporation into the Work in accordance with Section 01 34 00 and the specific requirements of other individual sections of these specifications.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 JOB CONDITIONS

A. Inspection:

Do not commence any phase of the Work until all previous work has been examined and it has been determined that subsequent operations may be executed in a timely and orderly manner and in complete accordance with the original design, the approved submittals, and all applicable codes and regulations.

B. Installer's Certification:

Where directed in subsequent sections, obtain written certification from subcontractors or installers that substrates affecting their operations have been examined and found satisfactory for further work. Submittal of such certification, countersigned by the Contractor, shall be a condition for acceptance of that particular installation or phase of work.

C. Discrepancies:

In the event of discrepancy, ambiguity, conflict, interference, or any other unanticipated condition or situation which might impede timely execution of the Work, immediately notify the Owner's Representative and do not proceed in questioned areas until resolution or clarification has been obtained.

D. Repairs and Replacements:

In the event of damage to any part of any installed material, equipment, assembly, or system, make all repairs or replacements necessary to restore the original undamaged condition. Do not allow damaged material to be incorporated into the Work. Repairs and replacements shall be subject to the approval of the Owner's Representative and shall be accomplished at no additional expense to the Owner.

#### 3.02 INSTALLATION

Install all work in complete accordance with the original design, the approved submittals, and all applicable codes and regulations. Perform all work under the direction of qualified supervisors, foremen, or leadmen, and do not permit any phase of the work to be commenced by subcontractors or subcontractors without qualified supervisors present to direct their operations.

#### 3.03 GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES

In addition to the requirements in the General Provisions, the Contractor shall extend to the Owner such other bond, warranty, or manufacturer's guarantee offered by any vendor, manufacturer, or other supplier on any material, goods, equipment, or workmanship included in the Work.

# END OF SECTION 01 01 00

# PAGE 1 OF 2

#### SECTION 01 02 70 -

# APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Work Included:

1. Application for Payment Procedures: Submit Application for Payment to the Owner's Representative in accordance with the schedule established by the General Conditions of the Contract and Agreement Between Owner and Contractor.

- B. Related Documents and Sections Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. Agreement Between Owner and Contractor.
  - 2. General Conditions, "Measurement, Payment and Completion."
  - 3. Section 01 37 00 Schedule of Values
  - 4. Section 01 70 00 Contract Close-out Procedures

# 1.02 FORMAT AND DATA REQUIRED

- A. Submit applications using AIA Document G702 or in a form acceptable to the Owner.
- B. Provide itemized data on continuation sheet using AIA Document G703 or in a form acceptable to the Owner using the Schedule of Values accepted by the Owner's Representative.

# 1.03 PREPARATION OF APPLICATION FOR EACH PROGRESS PAYMENT

- A. Application Form:
  - 1. Fill in required information, including that for change orders executed prior to date of submittal of application.
  - 2. Fill in summary of dollar values to agree with respective totals indicated on continuation sheets.
- B. Continuation Sheets:
  - 1. Fill in total list of scheduled component items of work with item number and scheduled dollar value for each item.
  - 2. Fill in dollar value in each column for each scheduled line when work has been performed or products stored.
    - a. Round off values to nearest dollar, or as specified for Schedule of Values.
  - 3. List each change order executed prior to date of submission at the end of the continuation sheets.
    - a. List by change order number and description, as for an original component item of work.

# 1.04 SUBSTANTIATING DATA FOR PROGRESS PAYMENTS

A. Contractor shall submit suitable information, with a cover letter identifying:
1. Project Name

## PAGE 2 OF 2

- 2. Application number and date
- 3. Detailed list of enclosures
- 4. For stored products:
  - a. Submit separate recap for all stored materials included in Application for Payment.
  - b. All stored materials listed in recap shall be substantiated by invoices for the material and copies of the invoices shall be attached to the recap. If any stored materials are being claimed which are not stored in the construction site, itemized listing shall show location where materials are stored and such location shall be available for inspection of the materials. Contractor shall show proof of adequate insurance for material stored off-site. The Contractor shall request approval of any location for stored material, other than the construction site, prior to submittal of Application for Payment.
  - c. Stored material prices shall include cost of material, related freight costs, and applicable taxes; all of which must be substantiated by invoice.
- 5. Provide completed forms for Payment Request and Proof of Payment for subcontractors and suppliers.
- B. Submit one copy of data and cover letter with each copy of application.
- C. A copy of each of the subcontractor and supplier request form and a stored materials form.

#### 1.05 PREPARATION OF APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT

- A. Fill in application form as specified for progress payments.
- B. Use continuation sheet for presenting the final statement of accounting as specified in Section 01 70 00 Contract Close-out Procedures.
- 1.06 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURE
  - A. Submit Applications for Payment to Project Representative at the times stipulated in the General Condition.
  - B. Number: Three copies of each application.
  - C. When Owner's Representative finds application properly completed and correct, the Certificate for Payment will be transmitted to the Owner with copy of the transmittal letter.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 02 70

# PAGE 1 OF 3

# SECTION 01 04 50 -

# CUTTING AND PATCHING

# PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Cutting, fitting and patching required to complete the work and to:
    - a. Accommodate coordination of the Work.
    - b. Provide for installation of other work.
    - c. Remove and replace defective work.
    - d. Remove and replace work not conforming to requirements of Contract Documents.
    - e. Uncover other work for access or inspection.
    - f. Obtain samples for testing or similar purposes.
    - g. Provide routine penetrations of non-structural surfaces for installation of piping and electrical conduit.
    - h. Uncover portions of the work to provide for installation of ill-timed work.
  - 2. Cutting and patching also includes, but is not limited to, cutting and patching of nominally completed and previously existing work, and is defined to exclude integral cutting and patching during manufacturing, fabricating, erecting, and installation process for individual units of work.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Refer to other section of specifications for specific cutting and patching requirements and limitations applicable to individual units of work.

# 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit written request to Owner's Representative well in advance of executing cutting or alteration which affects:
  - 1. Work of Owner or separate contractor.
  - 2. Structural value or integrity of element of Project.
  - 3. Integrity of effectiveness of weather exposed or moisture resistant elements or systems.
  - 4. Efficiency, operating life, maintenance or safety of operating elements.
  - 5. Visual qualities of sight exposed elements.
- B. Request shall include:
  - 1. Project identification.
  - 2. Description of affected work.
  - 3. Necessity for cutting.
  - 4. Effect on other work, or structural integrity of project.
  - 5. Description of proposed work. Designate:
    - a. Scope of cutting and patching
    - b. Contractor and trades to execute work

# PAGE 2 OF 3

- c. Products proposed for use
- d. Extent of refinishing
- 6. Alternatives to cutting and patching
- 7. Designation of party responsible for cost of cutting and patching.
- C. Should conditions of work or schedule indicate change of materials or methods, submit written recommendation to Owner's Representative including:
  - 1. Conditions indicating change.
  - 2. Recommendations for alternative materials or methods.
  - 3. Submittals as required for substitutions.
  - 4. Time involved and impact to other on-going activities.
  - 5. Cost involved.
  - 6. Time work will be accomplished to provide for Owner's Representative's observations.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)

- PART 3 EXECUTION
- 3.01 JOB CONDITIONS
  - A. Clean adjacent structures and improvements of dust, dirt, and debris caused by cutting and patching operations, to such acceptable or approved condition. Return adjacent areas to condition existing prior to start of work.
- 3.02 VISUAL REQUIREMENTS
  - A. Do not cut and patch work exposed on exterior of building in manner resulting in reduction of visual qualities or resulting in evidence of cut and patch work. Remove and replace cut and patched work judged by Owner's Representative to be visually unacceptable.
  - B. Work includes, but is not limited to, items of woodwork, paneling, drywall, wall finishing, finished flooring, and ceilings.

# 3.03 MATERIALS

- A. For replacement of work removed, comply with Specifications for type of work to be done, unless otherwise noted.
- B. Provide materials for cutting and patching which will result in equal to or better work being cut and patched in terms of performance characteristics and visual effect where applicable.

# 3.04 INSPECTION

- A. Inspect existing conditions of work including elements subject to movement or damage during cutting and patching.
- B. After uncovering work, inspect conditions affecting installation of new products.

# 3.05 PREPARATION PRIOR TO CUTTING

A. Provide shoring, bracing, and support as required to maintain structural integrity of Project.

## PAGE 3 OF 3

- B. Provide protection for other work during cutting and patching to prevent damage. Provide protection from adverse weather conditions for that part of the project that may be exposed during cutting and patching operations.
- C. Avoid interference with use of adjoining areas or interruption of free passage to adjoining areas.

#### 3.06 PERFORMANCE

- A. Before the start of cutting work, meet at the work site with all parties involved in cutting and patching, including (if necessary) mechanical and electrical trades. Review areas of potential interference and conflict between the various trades. Coordinate layout of the work and resolve potential conflicts before proceeding with the work.
- B. Execute fitting and adjustment of products to provide finished installation to comply with specified products, functions, tolerances and finishes.
- C. Execute cutting and demolition by methods which will prevent damage to other work and provide proper surfaces to receive installation of repairs and new work.
- D. Restore work which has been cut or removed. Install new products to provide completed work in accord with requirements of Contract Documents.
- E. Do not cut and patch structural work in manner resulting in reduction of:
  - 1. Load carrying capacity.
  - 2. Load/deflection ratio.
- F. Refinish entire surface as necessary to provide even finish.
  - 1. Refinish continuous surfaces to nearest intersection.
  - 2. Refinish entire unit of an assembly.
- G. Cut the work using methods that are least likely to damage work to be retained or adjoining work. Where possible review proposed procedures with original installer; comply with original installer's recommendations.
- H. Patch with seams which are durable and as invisible as possible. Comply with specified tolerances for the work. Where feasible, inspect and test patched areas to demonstrate integrity of work.
- I. Restore exposed finishes of patched area and where necessary extend finish restoration into retained adjoining work in a manner which will eliminate evidence of patching and refinishing.

END OF SECTION 01 04 50

#### SECTION 01 05 20 -

# GRADES, LINES AND LEVELS

#### PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Property lines, bench marks, existing and proposed grades, and improvements are indicated on Drawings.
- B. Lay out Work and provide lines and measurements for the Work.
  - 1. Verify adjustments required due to existing improvements, adjoining property rights, good appearance, and proper drainage.
- C. Take necessary measurements as far in advance of required installation as practical. Verify measurements given on Drawings.
  - 1. Report promptly variations and discrepancies to Owner's Representative.
  - 2. Verify incomplete or non-closing dimensions with Owner's Representative.
- D. Dimensions on Drawings take precedence over scaled dimension. Where dimensions are not given, scaled dimensions to nearest point of reference may be used subject to verification of Owner's Representative.

# 1.02 SURVEYS, LINES AND LEVELS

- A. Provide services of a registered civil engineer or registered land surveyor with a minimum of 5 years' experience in Alaska, acceptable to Owner's Representative and licensed in the State of Alaska, to lay out work.
  - 1. Establish interior and exterior construction and control lines.
  - 2. Set grades using:
    - a. Grade stakes
    - b. Slope stakes
    - c. Finish grade stakes
- B. Provide all layout and construction lines and grade staking required for type of work being performed according to normal engineering procedures.
- C. Maintain construction lines and grade staking in condition to assure accurate and proper control of work and to verify final grades and construction lines.
  - 1. Establish and safeguard additional bench marks in at least two widely separated places.
  - 2. Establish axis lines showing exact floor elevations and other lines, dimensions and reference points as required for information and guidance of all trades.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

A. Take settlement readings of work, unless waived by owner.

- 1. At predetermined number of points selected by Owner's Representative.
- 2. Weekly until work is completed or until such time as directed.
- B. Record all survey data and make available to Owner's Representative.
- C. Submit certificate signed by registered engineer or surveyor certifying elevations and improvements are in conformance with requirements of Contract Documents.
  - 1. Describe in detail and indicate on Project Record Documents all variation from Contract Documents.
  - 2. Include field survey notes starting date, name of surveyor or foremen, and adequate description of temporary bench marks when used.
    - a) Orient sketches with north arrow and show relationship and ties to stationing control.
    - b) Reduce notes to show actual elevations at design datum.
  - 3. Base horizontal control, for Project Record Documents information, on stationing system shown. Use design datum for all elevations.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (Not Used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (Not Used)

# END OF SECTION 01 05 20

PAGE 1 OF 1

# SECTION 01 06 00 - REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

# PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 BUILDING CODES

- A. Construction which is not governed by a local building code or the Contract Documents will be governed by the more stringent provisions of the latest published, Statute adopted edition, of the following applicable codes:
  - 2012 International Building Code 2014 National Electrical Code 2012 International Plumbing Code 2012 International Mechanical Code 2012 International Fire Code 2012 International Energy Conservation Code 2012 International Fuel Gas Code Chapters 6 & 7 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities NFPA 13, 70, 72, 101, 110, 415 and 780
- B. Construction Type: VB
- C. Occupancy Type: A-3, B

# 1.02 APPLICABLE STANDARDS

- A. Where indicated, comply with requirements and recommendations of referenced standards and other publications, except to extent more detailed or more stringent provisions are required by applicable codes and governing regulations.
- B. Where two or more standards or recommendations of trade associations apply to same quality control requirement for work, comply with most stringent. Refer uncertain instances to Owner's Representative.
- 1.03 FEES AND PERMITS
  - A. Comply with requirements of Contract General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 06 00

# PAGE 1 OF 5

SECTION 01 09 00 -

REFERENCE STANDARDS

# PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Quality assurance
- B. Schedule of references

#### 1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

A. General Conditions

#### 1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. For products or workmanship specified by association, trade, or Federal Standards, comply with requirements of the standard, except when more rigid requirements are specified or are required by applicable codes.
- B. The date of the standard is that in effect as of the Bid date, except when a specific date is specified.
- C. Obtain copies of standards when required by Contract Documents.
- D. Maintain copy at jobsite during submittals, planning, and progress of the specific work, until Substantial Completion.
- E. Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Owner's Representative before proceeding.
- F. The contractual relationship of the parties to the Contract shall not be altered from the Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise in any reference document.

# 1.04 SCHEDULE OF REFERENCES

AA	Aluminum Association 818 Connecticut Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20006
AABC	Associated Air Balance Council 1000 Vermont Avenue, NW Washington, DC 20005
AASHTO	American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 444 North Capitol Street, NW Washington, DC 20001
ACI	American Concrete Institute Box 19150

PAGE 2 OF 5

ADC	Reford Station Detroit, MI 48219 Air Diffusion Council 230 North Michigan Avenue Chicago, IL 60601
AGC	Associated General Contractors of America 1957 E Street, N.W. Washington, DC 20006
AI	Asphalt Institute Asphalt Institute Building College Park, MD_20740
AIA	American Institute of Architects 1735 New York Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20006
AISC	American Institute of Steel Construction 400 North Michigan Avenue Eighth Floor Chicago, IL 60611
AISI	American Iron and Steel Institute 1101 17 Street, N.W Washington, DC 20036
AITC	American Institute of Timber Construction 333 W. Hampden Avenue Englewood, CO 80110
AMCO	Air Movement and Control Association 30 West University Drive Arlington Heights, IL 60004
ANSI	American National Standards Institute 11 W. 42st New York, NY  10036
APA	American Plywood Association Box 11700 Tacoma, WA 98411
ARI	Air-Conditioning and Refrigeration Institute 1501 Wilson Boulevard Arlington, VA 22209
ASHRAE	American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air Conditioning Engineers 1791 Tullie Circle, N.E. Atlanta, GA 30329
ASME	American Society of Mechanical Engineers 345 East 47th Street

# PAGE 3 OF 5

ASTM	New York, NY 10017 American Society for Testing and Materials 1916 Race Street Philadelphia, PA 19103
AWI	Architectural Woodwork Institute 2310 South Walter Reed Drive Arlington, VA 22206
AWPA	American Wood-Preservers' Association 7735 Old Georgetown Road Bethesda, MD 20014
AWS	American Welding Society 550 LeJune Road, NW Miami, FL 33135
AWWA	American Water Works Association 6666 West Quincy Avenue Denver, CO 80235
CRSI	Concrete Reinforcing Steel Institute 933 Plum Grove Road Schaumburg, IL 60195
DHI	Door and Hardware Institute 7711 Old Springhouse Road McLean, VA 22102
FGMA	Flat Glass Marketing Association 3310 Harrison White Lakes Professional Building Topeka, KS 66611
FM	Factory Mutual System 1151 Boston-Providence Turnpike PO Box 688 Norwood, MA 02062
FS	Federal Specification General Services Administration Specifications and Consumer Information Distribution Section Washington Navy Yard, Bldg. 197 Washington, DC 20407
GA	Gypsum Association 810 First St. N.E. Suite 510 Washington D.C. 20002
IAS	International Accreditation Service 3060 Saturn Street, Suite 100 Brea, California 92821

# PAGE 4 OF 5

ICBO	International Conference of Building Officials 5360 S. Workman Mill Road Whittier, CA 90601
IEEE	Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers 345 East 47th Street New York, NY 10017
IMIAC	International Masonry Industry All-Weather Council International Masonry Institute 815 15 th Street, NW Washington, DC 20005
MBMA	Metal Building Manufacturers Association 1300 Sumner Avenue Cleveland, Ohio 44115
MIL	Military Specification Navel Publications and Forms Center 5801 Tabor Avenue Philadelphia, PA 19120
NAAMM	National Association of Architectural Metal Manufacturers 221 North LaSalle Street Chicago, IL 60601
NCMA	National Concrete Masonry Association 2302 Horse Pen Road Herndon, VA 22071
NEBB	National Environmental Balancing Bureau 8224 Old Courthouse Road Vienna, VA 22180
NEMA	National Electrical Manufacturers' Association 2101 L Street, NW Washington, DC 20037
NFPA	National Fire Protection Association 1 Battery March Park Quincy, MA 02269
NFPA	National Forest Products Association 1250 Connecticut Ave, N.W. #200 Washington, DC 20036
PCA	Portland Cement Association 5420 Old Orchard Road Skokie, IL 60077

# PAGE 5 OF 5

PS	Product Standard US Department of Commerce Washington, DC 20203
SDI	Steel Deck Institute PO Box 9506 Canton, OH 44711
SDI	Steel Door Institute 712 Lakewood Center North 14600 Detroit Avenue Cleveland, OH 44107
SIGMA	Sealed Insulating Glass Manufacturers Association 111 East Wacker Driver Chicago, IL 60601
SMACNA	Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors' National Assoc. 8224 Old Court House Road Vienna, VA 22180
SSPC	Steel Structures Painting Council 4400 Fifth Avenue Pittsburgh, PA 15213
TCA	Tile Council of America, Inc. Box 326 Princeton, NJ 08540
UL	Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc. 333 Pfingston Road Northbrook, IL 60062
WCLB	West Coast Lumber Inspection Bureau 6980 SW Varns Road Box 23145 Portland, OR 97223
WWPA	Western Wood Products Association 1500 Yeon Building Portland, OR 97204

# PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

END OF SECTION 01 09 00

# SECTION 01 20 00 -

**PROJECT MEETINGS** 

PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Owner's Representative shall conduct Preconstruction Conference and close out review meetings. Contractor is to assure orderly review during progress of work and to assure systematic discussion of problems and will conduct all project meetings throughout the construction period. These will include:
  - 1. Weekly progress review meeting which will include Owner's Representative, and Superintendent, and any necessary Subcontractors.
  - 2. First of Month meetings which will include Architect, responsible sub-consultants for respective agenda items Superintendent, and Owner's Representative. At this meeting the request for payment shall be submitted for approval. Also, at this meeting the Contractor shall show current as-built drawings for approval prior to the pay period payment.
- B. Owner's Representative, Architect and consultants, project inspectors, and testing personnel will attend as needed.
- C. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 01 31 10 Scheduling
  - 2. Section 01 34 00 Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples
  - 3. Section 01 70 00 Contract Close-out Procedures
  - 4. Individual Specification Sections
- D. Contractor's discussions with subcontractors and materials suppliers are Contractor's responsibility and normally are not part of project meetings content.

# 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. For those persons designated by the Contractor to attend and participate in project meetings, provide required authority to commit Contractor to solutions agreed upon in project meetings.

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Agenda Items: To the maximum extent practicable, advise Owner's Representative at least 24 hours in advance of project meetings regarding items to be on agenda.
- B. Contractor shall compile minutes of each project meeting, furnishing copies to Owner's Representative and Architect within seven days of each meeting.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)

# PAGE 2 OF 3

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 MEETING SCHEDULE

- A. Except as noted below for Preconstruction meeting, project meetings will be held weekly.
- B. Coordinate as necessary to establish mutually acceptable schedule for meetings.

#### 3.02 MEETING LOCATION

- A. Owner's Representative will establish meeting location.
- 3.03 PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING
  - A. Preconstruction Meeting will be scheduled to be held within 15 working days after Owner's Representative has issued the Notice to Proceed.
    - 1. In addition to Contractor, representatives of sitework, mechanical, electrical and other major subcontractors shall attend.
    - 2. Contractor shall notify other interested parties and request their attendance.
    - 3. Preconstruction meeting will be held in the Owner's Representative's office.
  - B. Minimum agenda: Data shall be distributed and discussed on at least the following items:
    - 1. Organizational arrangement of Contractor's forces and personnel, those of subcontractors, materials suppliers, Architect and consultants.
    - 2. Channels and procedures for communication.
    - 3. Construction Schedule, including sequence of critical work. Review materials that might require long lead times, etc.
    - 4. Contract Documents, including distribution of required copies of original documents and revisions.
    - 5. Processing of shop drawings and other data submitted to Owner's Representative for review.
    - 6. Processing of Bulletins, field decisions, and change orders.
    - 7. Rules and regulations governing performance of Work.
    - 8. Procedures for safety and first aid, security, quality control, housekeeping, and related matters.
    - 9. Processing of payment requests.
    - 10. Preliminary discussions of future close-out procedures.

#### 3.04 PROJECT MEETINGS

- A. Attendance:
  - 1. As much as possible, assign the same person or persons to represent the Contractor at project meetings throughout progress of Work.
  - 2. Subcontractor, materials suppliers, and others may be invited to attend those project meetings in which their aspect of the Work is involved.
- B. Minimum Agenda:
  - 1. Review minutes of previous meetings.
  - 2. Review of Work progress.
  - 3. Field observation, problems and decisions.
  - 4. Identification of problems which impede planned progress.
  - 5. Review of submittals schedule and status of submittals.
  - 6. Review of off-site fabrication and delivery schedules.
  - 7. Maintenance of progress schedule.
  - 8. Corrective measures to regain projected schedules.
  - 9. Planned progress during succeeding work period.
  - 10. Coordination of projected progress.
  - 11. Maintenance of quality and work standards.
  - 12. Effect of proposed changes on progress schedule and coordination.
  - 13. Other business relating to Work.

#### 3.05 CONTRACTOR'S MEETINGS

- A. Conduct meetings with his own forces, subcontractors and suppliers as is required in individual specifications sections.
- B. Notify Owner's Representative in writing of any impending meetings for which the Owner's Representative's input is needed.
- C. Provide written notice a minimum of two weeks prior to meeting date and include meeting topic, agenda, location, time and list of expected attendees.
- D. Take meeting minutes and provide copies to Owner's Representative within 3 calendar days after meeting.

#### 3.06 CLOSE-OUT MEETINGS

- A. Review Section 01 70 00 regarding Contract Close-out Procedures. Approximately two months prior to Substantial Completion, weekly Project Meetings will include discussion of close-out activities.
- B. Contractor is responsible to invite subcontractors as necessary to review related close-out work.

# END OF SECTION 01 20 00

## PAGE 1 OF 5

#### SECTION 01 25 00 -

#### DEFINITIONS AND EXPLANATIONS

#### PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

#### A. Explanation:

This section of the General Requirements defines certain terms used in the specifications and explains the language, format, and certain conventions used in the Project Manual and associated Contract Documents.

#### B. Related Documents:

Other contract documents directly related to and in some way modified or governed by the General Requirements Division include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

- 1. General Provisions
- 2. Supplementary Conditions
- 3. Technical Specifications Sections

#### C. Limitations of Scope:

The definitions and explanations of this section are not necessarily either complete or exclusive, but are general for the Work to the extent such definitions or explanations are not stated more explicitly in other parts of the Contract Documents.

# 1.02 DEFINITIONS

A. General:

A substantial amount of the specification language constitutes specific definitions for terms found in the other Contract Documents, including the Drawings which must be recognized as diagrammatic and quantitative in nature and not completely descriptive of the requirements indicated. Certain terms used repetitiously in the Contract Documents are defined generally as follows:

1. Contract Documents:

The Contract Documents consist of the Owner-Contractor Agreement, the Conditions (Provisions) of the Contract (General, Supplementary, & other Conditions), the Drawings, the Specifications and all Addenda issued prior to and all Modifications issued after execution of the Contract.

2. Project Manual:

The Project Manual is a bound volume or volumes, containing the Bidding Requirements and the Contract Documents, (except Drawings, Addenda, and Change Orders).

#### PAGE 2 OF 5

# 3. General Requirement:

The Provisions or Requirements of Division 1 sections and the General Requirements apply to the entire Work of the Contract, and where so indicated, to other elements of Work which are included in the project.

4. Work (capitalized, noun):

The Work comprises the completed construction required by the Contract Documents and includes all labor necessary to produce such construction, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in such construction.

5. work (uncapitalized, verb or noun):

Refers to effort or accomplishment.

6. Indicated:

A cross reference to details, notes, or schedules on the drawings, other paragraphs or schedules in the specifications, and similar means of recording requirements in the Contract Documents. Where terms such as "shown", "noted", "scheduled", or "specified" are used in lieu of "indicated", it is for the purpose of helping the reader locate the reference, and no limitation of location is intended except as specifically noted.

7. Directed, Requested, Authorized, Selected, Approved:

Unless otherwise explained, shall imply: "Directed by the Owner's Representative....Authorized by the Owner's Representative", etc. However, no such implied meaning shall be interpreted as to extend the responsibility of the Owner's Representative into the field of responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract.

8. Refer:

Used to indicate that the subject is defined or specified in further detail at another location in the Contract Documents, or elsewhere as indicated. It shall not be interpreted to require the Contractor to procure, subcontract, or purchase the subject work in any specific manner.

9. Approve:

Where used in conjunction with the response of the Owner's Representative (Contracting Agency) to submittals, requests, applications, inquiries, reports, and claims by the contractor, the meaning shall be held to the limitations of the responsibilities and duties of the Owner's Representative. In no case shall it be interpreted as a release of the Contractor from responsibility to fulfill the requirements of the Contract Documents.

10. Project Site, Jobsite:

The location of and the space available and assigned to the Contractor for the performance of the Work. The extent of the Project Site is shown in the Drawings and may or may not correspond with the legal description of the land upon which the project is to be built.

#### PAGE 3 OF 5

#### 11. Shall/Must/Will:

"Shall" is used generally to indicate a direct indicative requirement. Where encountered, "must" shall be interpreted to mean the same as "shall" and neither is to be interpreted to require more or less stringent compliance than the other.

"Will", where encountered in relation to acts or responsibilities of the Contractor, shall be accorded the same meaning as "shall".

12. Furnish:

Used to mean the procurement, delivery to the project site, unloaded, and ready for unpacking, assembly, erection, or installation, as applicable in each instance.

13. Install:

Used to describe operations at the project site including unpacking, assembly, erection, installation, anchoring, applying, working to dimension, finishing, curing, protecting, cleaning, and similar operations, as applicable in each instance.

14. Provide:

Means Furnish and Install, complete and ready for the intended use, as applicable in each instance.

15. Installer:

The entity (person or firm) engaged by the Contractor, his subcontractor, or subsubcontractor for the performance of a particular unit of work at the project site, including installation, erection, application and similar required operations. It is a general requirement and understanding that such entities (installers) shall be expert in the operations they are engaged to perform.

16. Shop Drawings:

All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules, and other data which are prepared by the Contractor, his subcontractors, suppliers, or the manufacturers of the products, which illustrate how specific products, assemblies, or systems are fabricated or installed into the Work.

17. Architect, Architect/Engineer:

Generally used interchangeably to denote the professional consultant retained by the Owner to design the project and prepare the Contract Documents; but also for consultation during administration of the Contract, interpretation of Contract Documents, review and evaluation of materials and methods, and general observation of the progress of the Work. The Architect shall provide construction administration and will be the primary contact for the contractor.

#### PAGE 4 OF 5

#### 18. Owner's Representative:

The designated representative of the Owner during the construction period to administer the Contract, interpret Contract Documents, review and evaluate materials and methods, and observe and evaluate the progress of the Work. The Owner's Representative has final approval on construction administration decisions.

# 1.03 EXPLANATION

A. General:

This series of explanations is provided to assist the user of these specifications and associated Contract Documents to more readily understand the format, language, implied requirements and similar conventions of the content. None of these explanations shall be interpreted to modify the substance of the specified requirements.

B. Specification Production:

Portions of these specifications have been produced by editing master specifications and may contain minor inconsistencies. Such deviations are a normal result of this production technique, and no other meaning shall be implied or permitted.

C. Format:

The format of principal portions of these specifications can be generally described as follows, although other portions may not fully comply and no particular significance shall be attached to such compliance or non-compliance:

- 1. For convenience, the basic unit of specification text is a "Section", each unit of which is named and numbered. Sections are organized into related families of sections termed "Divisions", which are recognized as the present industry consensus on uniform organization and sequencing of construction specifications.
- 2. The section title is not intended to limit the meaning or content of the section, nor to be fully descriptive of the requirements specified therein, nor to be an integral part of the text. The Section identification is contained in the footer at the bottom of the page.
- D. Page Numbering:
  - 1. Pages are numbered independently and sequentially within each section. A new sequence of numbers begins with the beginning of each new Section and is located in the right-hand side of the footer on each page.
- E. The Three Part Section:

Generally, each section of the specification has been subdivided into three (3) "parts" for uniformity and convenience. They are:

PART 1 GENERAL PART 2 PRODUCTS PART 3 EXECUTION

#### PAGE 5 OF 5

In the event additional parts are required for tables, schedules, etc. they will be added in the form of:

# PART 4 APPENDIX

These parts do not limit the meaning of, and are not an integral part of, the text which specifies requirements. In some instances one or the other of these parts may not be used in which case it will be so noted as "not used."

F. Language:

Direct imperative language is used generally throughout the specifications, and requirements so expressed are the responsibility of the Contractor, even though the work specified actually may be accomplished by specialty subcontractors hired, retained, or otherwise engaged by the Contractor. Any references to third parties in this regard, <u>shall not</u> be interpreted in any way as to relieve the Contractor of any of his responsibilities under the contractor.

G. Specification Types:

The techniques or types of specification used to record the requirements varies throughout the text, and may include types commonly recognized as "prescriptive," "generic descriptive," "compliance with standards (reference)," "performance," "open," "open multi-product," "closed single product," "proprietary," or a combination of these.

# H. Trades, Names:

The use of trade titles such as "carpentry," and degrees of expertise such as "journeyman (men)," implies neither that the work is required to be performed by that specific trade, nor that the level of expertise indicated is recognized as peculiar to membership or nonmembership in any trade or industry association or organization, nor that the specified requirements apply exclusively to work by tradesmen of that corresponding generic name.

- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 25 00

# PAGE 1 OF 3

#### SECTION 01 31 10 -

SCHEDULING

#### PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. To assure adequate planning and execution of the Work so that the Work is completed prior to the completion date stipulated in the Contract, and to assist the Owner's Representative in appraising the reasonableness of the proposed schedule and in evaluating progress of the Work, prepare a project schedule using the Critical Path Method.
- B. Requirements for progress schedule: General Conditions.
- C. Construction period: Form of Agreement
- D. Definitions:
  - 1. "Day", as used throughout the Contract unless otherwise stated, means "calendar day".

## 1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. References
- B. Quality Assurance
- C. Format
- D. Schedules
- E. Submittals
- F. Review and evaluation
- G. Updating Schedules
- H. Distribution

# 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. General Conditions
- B. Supplementary Conditions
- C. Section 01 02 70 Application for Payment Procedures
- D. Section 01 20 00 Project Meetings
- E. Section 01 34 00 Shop Drawings, Project Data, and Samples
- F. Section 01 37 00 Schedule of Values

# 1.04 REFERENCES

- A. "The Use of CPM in Construction A Manual for General Contractors and the Construction Industry", The Associated General Contractors of America (AGC), Washington, D.C., 1976 edition.
- B. "CPM in Construction Management Project Management with CPM", James O'Brien, McGraw-Hill Book Company, New York, NY 1984, third edition.

#### 1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. A statement of CPM capability shall be submitted in writing prior to the award of the contract and will verify that either the contractor's organization has "in-house capability" qualified to use the Microsoft Project or that the contractor employs a consultant (firm) which is so qualified.

#### 1.06 FORMAT

- A. Listing: Reading from left to right, in ascending order for each activity. Identify each activity with the applicable Specification section number.
- B. Diagram Sheet Size: Adequate for clear reading.
- C. Scale and Spacing: To allow for notations and revisions.

#### 1.07 SCHEDULES

- A. Prepare the Critical Path Schedule, under concepts and methods outlined in the references list in Article 1.04 above. Show information in such detail that duration times of activities will range normally from one to 15 calendar days.
- B. Illustrate complete sequence of construction by activity, identifying work of separate areas. Provide dates for submittals, including those for Owner furnished items, and return of submittals; dates for procurement and delivery of products; and dates for installation of provision for testing. Provide legend for symbols and abbreviations used.

# C. Actual start date

- 1. Actual finish date
- 2. Latest start date
- 3. Latest finish date
- 4. Total and free float
- 5. Monetary value of activity, keyed to Schedule of Values
- 6. Percentage of activity completed
- 7. Responsibility
- D. Analysis Program Microsoft Project: Capable of compiling monetary value of completed and partially completed activities, of accepting revised completion dates, and recomputation of all dates and float.
- F. Coordinate contents with Schedule of Values in Section 01 37 00.

#### 1.08 SUBMITTALS

- A. Within 10 days after date established in Notice to Proceed, submit proposed preliminary critical path schedule defining planned operations for the first 60 days of Work, with a general outline for remainder of Work.
- B. Submittal of preliminary schedule shall occur prior to review and payment of any pay requests.
- C. Participate in review of preliminary and complete schedule jointly with Owner's Representative.

# PAGE 3 OF 3

- D. Within 20 days after joint review of proposed preliminary schedule, submit draft of proposed complete project schedule for review. Include written certification that major Subcontractors have reviewed and accepted proposed schedule.
- E. Within 10 days after joint review, submit complete critical path schedule to final acceptance of work.
- F. Submit updated schedules with each Application for Payment.
- G. Submit 1 Compact Disc with file saved as MS Project format. Include updates on CD also.

# 1.09 REVIEW AND EVALUATION

- A. Participate in joint review and evaluation of schedule with Owner's Representative at each submittal.
- B. Evaluate project status to determine work behind schedule and work ahead of schedule.
- C. After review, revise as necessary as result of review, and resubmit within 10 days.

#### 1.10 UPDATING SCHEDULES

- A. Maintain schedules to record actual start and finish dates of completed activities.
- B. Indicate progress of each activity to date of revision, with projected completion date of each activity. Update diagrams to graphically depict current status of Work.
- C. Identify activities modified since previous submittal, major changes in Work, and other identifiable changes.
- D. Indicate changes required to maintain Date of Substantial Completion.
- E. Submit sorts required to support recommended changes.
- F. Provide narrative report to define problem area, anticipated delays, and impact on Schedule. Report corrective action taken, or proposed, and its effect.

#### 1.11 DISTRIBUTION

- A. Following joint review, distribute copies of updated schedules to Contractor's project site file, to Subcontractors, suppliers, Architect, and Owner's Representative.
- B. Instruct recipients to promptly report, in writing, problems anticipated by projections shown on Schedules.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS ( not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION ( not used)

#### END OF SECTION 01 31 10

## 01 31 10 - 3 of 3

#### SECTION 01 34 00 -SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

## PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- Α. Work Included:
  - 1. Procedures for submittals.
- Β. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. General Conditions:
  - 2. Schedulina:
  - 3. Quality Control:
  - Section 01 40 00 4. Product Options and Substitutions: Section 01 63 00
  - 5. Project Record Documents:
  - 6. Operation and Maintenance Data: Section 01 73 00

#### 1.02 SHOP DRAWINGS

Present in a clear and thorough manner. Title each drawing with Project name and number; Α. identify each element of drawings by reference to sheet number and detail, schedule, or room number of Contract Documents.

Section 01 31 10

Section 01 72 00

- Β. Identify field dimensions; show relation to adjacent or critical features or Work or products.
- C. Sheet Size:
  - 1. Minimum: 8 1/2 x 11 in.
  - 2. Maximum: 30 x 42 in.
  - 3. In between: Modules of approximately 8 1/2 x 11 in.
- Scale and measurements: Make shop drawing accurately to a scale large enough to show D. pertinent parts of item and method of connection to Work.
- E. Shop drawings include fabrication, erection and setting drawings, schedule drawings, manufacturer's scale drawings, wiring and control diagrams, cuts or entire catalogs, pamphlets, descriptive literature, performance and test data.
- F. Check drawings and schedules, coordinate them with work of trades involved before submission and indicate their approval.
- G. Identify details by reference to sheet and detail, schedule or room numbers shown on Drawings.

#### 1.03 PRODUCT DATA

- Submit product data when required by individual Specification Section. Α.
  - 1. Products which are specified in individual Specification Sections or on Drawings by manufacturer's name and complete product number do not require submittal or product data.

PAGE 2 OF 4

- 2. Supply products specified. Indicate on Submittal Schedule manufacturer's name and complete product number of product to be supplied, and reference Specification Section and Article number and Drawings and detail number.
- B. Submit only pages which are pertinent; mark each copy of standard printed data to identify pertinent products, referenced to Specification Section and Article number. Show reference standards, performance characteristics, and capacities; wiring and piping diagrams and controls; component parts; finishes; dimensions; and required clearances.
- C. Modify manufacturers' standard schematic drawings and diagrams to supplement standard information and to provide information specifically applicable to the Work. Delete information not applicable.

## 1.04 SAMPLES

A. Submit full range of manufacturer's standard finishes except when more restrictive requirements are specified, indicating; colors, textures, patterns, for selection. No color selection shall be made until all items needing color selection have been submitted.

Whenever color is specified "as selected", submit actual material color samples for Architect's selection.

- B. Submit samples to illustrate functional characteristics of products, including parts and attachments.
- C. Label each sample with identification required for transmittal letter.
- D. Provide field samples of finishes at Project, at location acceptable to Owner's Representative, as required by individual Specifications section. Install each sample complete and finished. Acceptable finishes in place may be retained in completed work.
- 1.05 MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS
  - A. Manufacturer's instructions for storage, preparation, assembly, installation, start-up, adjusting, balancing, and finishing.
- 1.06 CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE
  - A. Execute certificates of compliance for specified materials in three copies. Sign certificates by an authorized official of manufacturing company, and list name and address of Contractor, Project name and location, and quantity and date of shipment. List name and address of testing laboratory and date of tests on copies of lab test reports submitted with certificates.

# 1.07 CONTRACTOR REVIEW

- A. Review submittals prior to transmittal; determine and verify field measurements, field construction criteria, manufacturer's catalog numbers, and conformance of submittal with requirement of Contract Documents.
- B. Coordinate submittals with requirements of Work and of Contract Documents.
- C. Apply Contractor's review stamp, signed or initialed certifying to review, verification of products, field dimensions and field construction criteria, and coordination of information with

PAGE 3 OF 4

requirements of Work and Contract Documents, for each sheet of shop drawings, manufacturer's installation instructions and product data, and label each sample to certify compliance with requirements of Contract Documents. Notify in writing at time of submittal, of any deviations from requirements of Contract Documents, with brief explanation describing deviation.

- D. Do not fabricate products or begin work which requires submittals until return of submittal with acceptance.
- E. It is the Contractor's responsibility to coordinate and verify field conditions, with approved shop drawings, prior to construction, in areas requiring shop drawings.

# 1.08 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Submittal Schedule: Within thirty days from receipt of Notice to Proceed, submit two copies of schedule of submittals requiring review to Owner's Representative.
  - 1. Include such items as shop drawings, product data, certificates of compliance, and material samples.
  - 2. Indicate type of item, requirement reference, and submittal dates.
  - 3. Allow 10 calendar days for Owner's Representative's review.
  - 4. Submittals not required will not be reviewed by Architect.
- B. Transmit submittals in accordance with approved progress schedule and in such sequence to avoid delay in the Work or work of other contracts.
  - 1. Transmit far enough in advance of scheduled dates for installation to provide time required for reviews, for securing necessary approvals, for possible revisions and resubmittals, and for placing orders and securing delivery.
  - 2. For shop drawing submittal, schedule shall provide for maximum of 10 shop drawings per calendar week to be submitted for review for each of the mechanical, electrical, structural and architectural disciplines.
- C. Submittals shall be delivered to Owner's Representative's Office.
- D. Transmit submittals in groups containing all information required for complete review.
   1. Partial, incomplete submittals will be rejected.
- E. Provide 8 x 4 in. blank space on each submittal for Contractor's and Owner's Representative's stamp.
- F. Coordinate submittals into logical grouping to facilitate interrelation of the several items:
  - 1. Finishes which involve selection of colors, textures, or patterns.
  - 2. Associated items which require correlation for efficient function or for installation.
- G. PDF files of shop drawings are acceptable.
- H. Submit number of copies of product data and manufacturer's instructions Contractor requires, plus four copies which will be retained by Owner's Representative (two copies) and his consultants (two copies).
- I. Submit number of samples specified in individual Specifications Sections.

## PAGE 4 OF 4

- J. Submit under accepted form of transmittal letter. Identify Project by title and number. Identify Work and product by Specifications section and Article number.
- K. Maintain submittal log showing status of submittals, make available for Owner's Representative's review upon request.

## 1.09 RESUBMITTALS

A. Make resubmittals under procedures specified for initial submittals; identify changes made since previous submittal.

## 1.10 DISTRIBUTION

- A. Pick up reviewed copies of submittals at Owner's Representative's office when notified.
- B. Duplicate and distribute reproductions of shop drawings, copies of product data, and samples, which bear stamp of approval, to job site file, Record Documents file, Owner's Representative (2 copies), subcontractors, suppliers, and other entities requiring information.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 34 00

# SECTION 01 37 00 -

# SCHEDULE OF VALUES

PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Breakdown of Contract Sum showing values allocated to each of various parts of Work, as specified here and in other provisions of the Contract Documents.
  - 2. Schedule of values shall be compatible with "continuation sheet" accompanying applications for payment.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. General Conditions:
  - 2. Supplementary Conditions
  - 3. Sections in Division 1 of this Specification.

# 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Use required means to assure arithmetical accuracy of sums described.
- B. When required by Owner's Representative, provide copies of subcontractors or other acceptable data substantiating sums described.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit to Owner's Representative a Schedule of Values for Contractor's Work and subcontracted work in each applicable Section of Specifications, Division 2 through 33 inclusive, within ten days after Notice to Proceed.
- B. Upon Owner's Representative's request, support values with data substantiating correctness.
- C. Schedule of Values, unless objected to by Owner's Representative, shall be used only as basis for Contractor's Applications for Payment.
- D. Meet with Owner's Representative's and determine additional information, if any, required to be submitted.
- E. Secure the Owner Representative's approval of the schedule of values prior to submitting first application for payment.

## 1.04 FORM AND CONTENT OF SCHEDULE OF VALUES

- A. Type schedule on 8 1/2 x 11 in. white paper, Contractor's standard forms and automated printout will be considered for acceptance by Owner's Representative upon Contractor's request. Include emailing to Owner and Architect file saved to MS Excel format. Identify schedule with:
  - 1. Project title and location.
  - 2. Name and Address of Contractor.

- 3. Date of Submission
- B. List installed value of component parts of Work in sufficient detail to serve as basis for computing values for progress payments during construction.
- C. Follow Table of Contents as format for listing component item:
  - 1. Identify each line item with number and title of respective Section of Specifications.
- D. Under each major item list sub-values of major products or operations.
  - 1. Each line item shall include directly proportional amount of Contractor's overhead and profit.
  - 2. For items on which progress payments will be requested for stored materials, breakdown values into:
    - a. Cost of materials, delivered and unloaded, with taxes paid.
    - b. Total installed value.
- E. Sum of values listed in schedule shall equal total Contract Sum.

# 1.05 SUB-SCHEDULE OF UNIT MATERIAL VALUES

- A. Submit sub-schedule of unit costs and quantities for products on which progress payments will be requested for stored products.
- B. Form of submittal shall parallel Schedule of Values, with each item identified same as line item in Schedule of Values.
- C. Unit quantity for bulk materials shall include allowance for normal waste.
- D. Break unit values for material down into:
  - 1. Cost of material, delivered and unloaded at Site, with taxes paid.
  - 2. Installation costs, including Contractor's overhead and profit.
- E. Installed unit value multiplied by quantity listed shall equal cost of item in Schedule of Values.
- F. Materials incorrectly stored at the jobsite are subject to damage and may not be included in progress payments as determined by the Owner's Representative.
- G. The contract sum identified on the schedule of values as "Final" shall be based on the contract award and in an amount as found in the general conditions.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

#### END OF SECTION 01 37 00

# 01 37 00 - 2 of 2

## SECTION 01 40 00 -

QUALITY CONTROL

PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. All material and workmanship shall be subject to inspection, examination, and test by the Owner's Representative at any and all times during manufacture and/or construction and at any and all places where such manufacture and/or construction are carried on. The Owner's Representative shall have the right to reject defective material and workmanship or require its correction. Rejected workmanship shall be satisfactorily corrected and rejected material shall be satisfactorily replaced with proper material without charge therefor, and the Contractor shall promptly segregate and remove rejected material from the premises. If the Contractor fails to proceed at once with replacement of rejected material and/or correction of defective workmanship, the Owner's Representative may, by contract or otherwise, replace such material and/or correct such workmanship and charge the cost thereof to the Contractor, or may terminate the right of the Contractor to proceed as provided in the General Conditions.
- B. The Contractor shall call for, coordinate and support inspections and tests required by the Contract Documents. The Owner shall pay all costs for special inspections and tests, required by the Contract Documents with the Contractor paying for coordination of said tests. The presence of, or absence from, the Contract work site of any Owner's Representative shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities for providing of inspection or testing requirements of the Contract.
- C. Should it be considered necessary or advisable by the Owner's Representative, at any time before final acceptance of the entire work, to make an examination of work already completed by removing or tearing out, the Contractor shall promptly on request furnish all necessary facilities, labor, and materials. If such work is found to be defective or nonconforming in any material respect, due to the fault of the Contractor or his Subcontractors, the Contractor shall defray all the expenses of such examinations and of satisfactory reconstruction. However, if such work is found to meet the requirements of the Contract, the actual direct cost of labor and material necessarily involved in the examination and replacement plus ten percent (10%) shall be allowed the Contractor and, in addition, if completion of the work has been delayed thereby, he shall be granted a suitable extension of time based on the additional work involved.
- D. Inspection of material and finished articles at the place of production, manufacture, or shipment shall be final except as regards latent defects, departures from specific requirements of the Contract, damage or loss in transit, and fraud or such gross mistakes as amount to fraud. Subject to the requirements contained in the preceding sentence, the inspection of materials and workmanship for final acceptance as a whole or in part shall be made at the site. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall in any way restrict the Contracting Agency's rights under any warranty or guarantee.

# PAGE 2 OF 2

E. Manufactured articles, materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, cleaned, and conditioned as per manufacturer's printed directions, unless specified to contrary. The Contractor shall provide at least one set of all manufacturers' installation directions, on the jobsite at all times for inspection information.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

END OF SECTION 01 40 00

SECTION 01 50 00 -

# TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS

PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

## A. Work Included:

- 1. Temporary utilities such as heat, water, electricity, and land line telephone.
- 2. Computer with high speed internet access and fax machine.
- 3. Field offices for the Contractor's personnel, Field offices and utilities for Owner's field office.
- 4. Sanitary facilities.
- 5. Enclosures such as tarpaulins, barricades, and canopies.
- 6. Temporary security fencing.
- 7. Project Sign.
- 8. Site and interior lighting.
- 9. Interior ventilation.
- 10. Dust control.
- 11. Traffic control.
- 12. Security protection provisions.
- 13. Access barriers.
- 14. Removal of temporary facilities and controls.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. General Conditions
  - 2. Supplementary Conditions
  - 3. Summary of Work
  - 4. Construction Cleaning
  - 5. Storage and Protection
  - 6. Contract Close-out Procedures
  - 7. Final Cleaning
  - 8. Cast-In-Place Concrete

Section 01 56 90 Section 01 62 00 Section 01 70 00 Section 01 71 00 Section 03 30 00

Section 01 01 00

# 1.02 REQUIREMENTS NOT INCLUDED

- A. Except that equipment furnished by subcontractors shall comply with requirements of pertinent safety regulations, such equipment normally furnished by the individual trades in execution of their own portions of the work are not part of this Section.
- B. Permanent installation and hookup of various utility lines are described in other Sections.
  - 1. Contractor shall coordinate with Electric Utility for temporary power.
  - 2. Telephone: Contractor to provide phone for construction.
- C. Nothing in this Section is intended to limit types and amounts of temporary work required, and no omission from this Section will be recognized as indication by Owner's Representative such temporary activity or facility is not required for successful completion of Work and compliance with requirements of Contract Documents.

# 1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. In addition to compliance with governing regulations and rules, and recommendations of utility companies, comply with specific requirements indicated in these specifications and with applicable local codes and industry standards for construction work.
- B. Comply with provision of Section 01 61 00 Transportation and Handling.
- C. Temporary connections shall be made in an approved manner meeting all applicable codes. Caution shall be taken so systems are not overloaded. Contractor shall take special precautions to keep his temporary connections and lines from being damaged. Temporary connections shall be disconnected and removed prior to completion of Project and returned to original conditions.

## 1.04 JOB CONDITIONS

- A. General:
  - 1. Establish and initiate use of each temporary facility at time first reasonably required for proper performance of Work.
  - 2. Terminate use and remove facilities at earliest reasonable time, when no longer needed or when permanent facilities have, with authorized use, replaced need.
- B. Conditions of Use:
  - 1. Install, operate, maintain, and protect temporary facilities in safe, non-hazardous, sanitary, manner and location, protective of persons and property, and free of deleterious effects.
- C. Pay costs for such general services and temporary facilities, except as otherwise specified, until final acceptance with Work unless Owner's Representative makes arrangements for use of complete portions of Work after Substantial Completion in accordance with provisions of General Conditions.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

# 2.01 ELECTRICITY AND LIGHTING

- A. The Contractor shall provide the following:
  - 1. Connect to temporary service and provide all equipment necessary for temporary power and lighting. Verify electrical service is of adequate capacity for all construction tools and equipment without overloading facilities.
  - 2. Provide power distribution as required throughout for construction operations of all trades. Locate power distribution boxes at convenient locations in building. Provide distribution boxes for each voltage supply complete with circuit breakers, disconnect switches, and other electrical devices required to protect power distribution system.
  - 3. Provide a temporary lighting system required to satisfy minimum requirements of work, inspection, safety and security. Supply not less than 2 watts per square foot of floor area for illumination in areas of building where work is being performed, unless higher illumination requirements are specified elsewhere.

## PAGE 3 OF 7

- 4. Temporary interior and exterior lighting during construction is to be maintained by Contractor so that work can be properly and safely performed. Special attention shall be given so that stairs, ladders, openings, barricades and other similar items and spaces are adequately lighted.
- 5. Conform to applicable provision of governing codes. Maintain temporary wiring in safe manner, utilized to not constitute hazard to persons or property.
- 6. Permanent electrical power, when in operating condition, may be used for temporary power for construction purposes, provided Contractor assumes full responsibility for entire power system.
- 7. At completion of construction work remove temporary wiring, lighting and other temporary electrical equipment devices.
- 8. Contractor shall be responsible for all power and gas utility costs during construction until substantial completion is approved.

# 2.02 HEATING AND VENTILATION

- A. Contractor shall provide, at his own expense, sufficient temporary heat for proper installation of work; and to protect all work and materials; and shall keep humidity down to extent required to prevent corrosion, dampness and mildew potentially damaging to materials and finishes. Fuel, equipment, and method of temporary heat shall be reviewed by Owner's Representative for appropriateness. Do not overheat spaces and materials. All such heating, ventilation and services shall be provided and maintained until final acceptance of all work. In addition, provide heat and ventilation prior and during Work operations as specified in Specifications.
- B. Connect temporary heating and ventilating equipment to electric facilities; contractor to pay cost for energy used.
- C. Provide ventilation of enclosed areas to cure materials, to disperse humidity, and to prevent accumulations of dust, fumes, vapors, or gases.
- D. Prior to operation of permanent facilities for temporary purposes, verify installation is approved for operation, and filters are in place. Provide and pay for operation, maintenance and utilities. Use of permanent heating plant shall not relieve Contractor of guarantee responsibilities.
- E. If permanent heating system is used for temporary heat, or ducts used for ventilation, completely clean ducts of dust and dirt and replace disposable type filers on as-needed basis, and install new permanent type filters prior to occupancy by Owner.

## 2.03 WATER

- A. Contractor shall furnish and install necessary temporary piping to carry on work and upon completion of Work shall remove all temporary piping.
- B. Contractor shall obtain necessary permits.
- C. Furnish drinking water with suitable containers and cups for use of employees. Conveniently locate drinking water dispensers in areas where Work is in progress.
- D. Contractor shall pay for all water brought to the site for construction work or obtained through utility.

## PAGE 4 OF 7

## 2.04 SANITARY FACILITIES

- A. Provide and maintain adequate temporary toilet and hand washing facilities, approved by regulating authorities, throughout construction for all personnel connected with Work.
- B. Locate where directed when work is started and maintain in sanitary condition at all times supplied with adequate amounts of tissue, subject to inspection and approval of Owner's Representative.
- C. Provide separate facilities for male and female personnel when both sexes are working at Project.
- D. As soon as conditions allow, temporary toilets may, upon approval of Owner's Representative, be located outside near building entries.
- E. Remove temporary facilities when directed and disinfect premises.

## 2.05 STORAGE AND SHOP

- A. Contractor shall provide temporary storage and shop rooms and /or enclosures that may be required at site for safe and proper storage of tools, materials, etc. Locate such facilities only in locations approved by Owner's Representative and so as not to interfere in any way with proper installation and completion of other work.
- B. During progress of Work, materials shall be neatly stacked at such points as Owner's Representative may direct and shall be properly cared for and protected from weather and theft.
- C. Contractor shall store construction material and equipment within boundaries of designated areas. Storage of gasoline or similar fuels shall conform to NFPA regulations and local fire marshal regulations and shall be confined within definite boundaries apart from buildings as approved by authorities having jurisdiction.

# 2.06 FIELD OFFICES

A. Provide a field office adequate in size and accommodation for Contractor's offices, office supplies and storage, and combined use by Owner's Representative, until Substantial Completion of the Project.

## 2.07 TELEPHONE SERVICE

- A. Provide and maintain direct line telephone service at Site to each of Contractor's field offices.
- B. Pay all costs for installation, maintenance, normal monthly charges and all Contractor's long distance charges.
- C. Remove temporary telephone service at completion of work.
- D. Provide functioning facsimile machine, copier, and network connection for contractor's email in office for duration of project.

# 2.08 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION

- A. Provide 8 w x 4 h ft. project sign of exterior grade plywood and wood frame construction, painted, 6" min. letters to Architect's design and colors.
- B. List title of project, names of Owner, Architect, and Contractor.
- C. Erect on site at location established by Owner's Representative.
- D. No other signs are allowed without Owner's Representative's permission except those required by law.

#### 2.09 UTILITY MARKERS

- A. Provide markers above all new and disturbed existing below grade buried utility lines in accordance with this Article. Identify location of markers and include marker information on Record Documents, specified in Section 01 72 00.
- B. Provide stake at each extremity end of utility with 14 gauge trace wire along side of each utility line. Securely attach trace wire to stake at each end.
- C. Set markers at all locations where the following conditions exist:
  - 1. Above utility lines at exterior walls of building and at entries and exits of lines from above grade installations.
  - 2. At ends and changes of direction of lines.
  - 3. Debatable locations shall be directed by the Owner's Representative.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

# 3.01 MAINTENANCE

- A. Maintain temporary facilities and controls as long as needed for safe and proper completion of Work.
- B. Remove such temporary facilities and controls as rapidly as progress of Work will permit, or as directed by Owner's Representative.

# 3.02 USE OF TEMPORARY FACILITIES

A. Temporary facilities shall be made available for use by workmen and subcontractors employed on Project and Owner's Representative, subject to reasonable direction by Contractor as to their proper and most efficient utilization.

# 3.03 CONSTRUCTION AIDS

- A. Provide and operate drainage and pumping equipment; maintain excavations and Site free of standing water.
- B. Provide and maintain properly calibrated moisture meter of type acceptable to Owner's Representative.

## PAGE 6 OF 7

1. Verify moisture content of concrete and concrete masonry units, wood and wood products, gypsum wallboard and other materials to assure that substrate products are dry and cured to subsequent finish manufacturer's recommendations prior to installation of finish materials.

# 3.04 ENCLOSURES

## A. Security:

- 1. At earliest possible date, secure building against unauthorized entrance at times personnel are not working.
- 2. Provide temporary, insulation, weather-tight closures of openings in exterior surfaces to provide acceptable work conditions and protection for material; to allow for temporary heating and prevent entry of unauthorized persons. Provide doors with self-closing hardware and locks.
- B. Access Provisions:
  - 1. Provide ramps, stairs, ladders, and similar temporary access elements as reasonably required to perform Work and facilitate inspection during installation.
  - 2. Comply with reasonable requests of governing authorities performing inspections.
  - 3. When permanent stairs are available for access, during construction, cover finished surfaces and maintain free from damage and deterioration through substantial completion.

# 3.05 PROTECTION OF INSTALLED WORK

- A. Provide temporary protection for installed products in accordance with requirements specified in Section 01 62 00 and as follows. Control traffic in immediate area of installed products to minimize damage.
- B. Provide protective coverings at walls, projections, jambs, sills, and soffits of openings. Protect finished floors and stairs from traffic, movement of heavy objects, and storage.
- C. Prohibit traffic and storage on waterproofed and roofed surfaces, on lawn, on concrete paving, and landscaped areas.
- D. Prohibit and take necessary precautions to prevent oil, gas and other liquids from vehicles and equipment from discharging onto concrete and asphalt concrete pavement.

#### 3.06 POLLUTION CONTROL

- A. Use water sprinkling and other suitable methods to limit dust and dirt rising and scattering in air to lowest practicable level.
  - 1. Do not use water if use may create hazardous or objectionable conditions such as ice, flooding and pollution.
  - 2. Comply with governing regulations pertaining to environmental protection.

## 3.07 TRAFFIC

A. Conduct operations and removal of debris to ensure minimum interference with adjacent occupied facilities.

B. Do not close or obstruct completed areas without permission from Owner's Representative. Provide alternate and safe routes around closed or obstructed traffic ways if required.

# 3.08 SECURITY AND PROTECTION PROVISIONS

- A. Provide temporary security and protection including, but not limited to; fire protection, barricades, warning signs/lights, personnel security program (theft prevention), environmental protection, and similar provision intended to minimize property losses, personal injuries, and claims for damages at Site.
- B. Unauthorized Entry:
  - 1. Maintain provision for closing and locking building during non-working hours.

# 3.09 REMOVAL

- A. Completely remove temporary materials and equipment when use is no longer required.
- B. Remove temporary underground installations to depth of 2 ft. below finish Site grade.
- C. Clean and repair damage caused by temporary installations or use of temporary facilities. Restore any installed facilities used for temporary services to specified, or original condition.
- 3.10 CLEANING
  - A. Comply with requirement specified in Section 01 56 90.
  - B. Maintain the public road and access to the Site in a clean condition. Remove the mud, dirt, rocks, etc. from the tires of vehicles before they exit the Site.

# END OF SECTION 01 50 00

SECTION 01 56 90 -

# CONSTRUCTION CLEANING

PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Cleaning and disposal of waste materials, debris, and rubbish during construction.

## B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:

- 1. General Conditions:
- 2. Final Cleaning

Section 01 71 00

Division 1

3. Individual Specification Sections: Specific cleaning for Product or Work.

# PART 2PRODUCTS

- 2.01 EQUIPMENT
  - A. Provide covered containers for deposit of waste materials, debris, and rubbish.

## PART 3EXECUTION

#### 3.01 CLEANING

- A. Maintain areas under Contractor's control free of waste materials, debris, and rubbish. Maintain site in a clean and orderly condition. Remove scrap materials, rubbish and trash daily from in and about building. Do not permit scrap materials, rubbish and trash to be scattered on adjacent areas.
- B. Maintain the public road and access to the site in a clean condition. Remove the mud, dirt, rocks, etc. from the tires of vehicles before they exit the Site.
- C. Remove debris and rubbish from pipe chases, plenums, attics, crawl spaces, and other closed or remote spaces, prior to closing the space.
- D. Periodically clean interior areas to provide suitable conditions for work.
- E. Broom clean interior areas prior to start of surface finishing and continue cleaning on an asneeded basis.
- F. Control cleaning operations so that dust and other particles will not adhere to wet or newlycoated surfaces.
- 3.02 DISPOSAL
  - A. Remove waste material, debris, and rubbish from site periodically and dispose of off-site.

# END OF SECTION 01 56 90

SECTION 01 60 00 -

# MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Products
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. Instructions to Bidders:
  - 2. General Conditions:
  - 3. Quality Control: Section 01 40 00

## 1.02 PRODUCTS

A. Products: Means new materials, machinery, components, equipment, fixtures, and systems forming the Work. Does not include machinery and equipment used for preparation, fabrication, conveying and erection of the Work.

Division 1

- B. Provide interchangeable components of the same manufacture, for similar components.
- C. No product or material shall be used as a building material in this project which contains any asbestos.

PART 2PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 60 00

# SECTION 01 61 00 – TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING

## PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Protection of products schedule for use in Work.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. General Conditions
  - 2. Additional procedures as specified in other sections of these Specifications.

## 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Include procedures required to assure full protection of work and materials.

## 1.03 MANUFACTURERS' RECOMMENDATIONS

- A. Except as otherwise approved by the Owner's Representative, determine and comply with manufacturers' recommendations on product handling, storage, and protection.
- 1.04 PACKAGING, TRANSPORTATION
  - A. Require supplier to package products in boxes or crates for protection during shipment, handling, and storage. Protect sensitive products against exposure to elements and moisture, including ocean barging.
  - B. Protect sensitive equipment and finishes against impact, abrasion, and other damage. Temperature sensitive products, such as paint, shall be protected from freezing during shipment.
  - C. Arrange deliveries of products in accordance with construction progress schedules. Allow time for inspection prior to installation.
  - D. Coordinate deliveries to avoid conflict with work; conditions at site; limitations on storage space; availability of personnel and handling equipment; and Owner's use of premises.
  - E. Deliver products to job site in their manufacturer's original container, with labels intact and legible.
    - 1. Maintain packaged materials with seals unbroken and labels intact until time of use.
    - 2. Promptly remove damaged material and unsuitable items from job site, and promptly replace with material meeting specified requirements, at no additional cost to Owner.
  - F. Owner's Representative may reject as non-complying such material and products that do not bear identification satisfactory to the Owner's Representative as to manufacturer, grade, quality, and other pertinent information.

- G. Clearly mark partial deliveries of component parts of equipment. Identify equipment and contents to permit easy accumulation of parts and facilitate assembly.
- H. Immediately on delivery inspect shipment to ensure:
  - 1. Product complies with requirement of Contract Documents and reviewed submittals.
  - 2. Quantities are correct.
  - 3. Accessories and installation are correct.
  - 4. Containers and packages are intact and labels are legible.
  - 5. Products are protected and undamaged.

### 1.05 PRODUCTS

- A. Provide equipment and personnel to handle products, including those provided by Owner, by methods to prevent soiling and damage.
- B. Provide additional protection during handling to prevent marring and otherwise damaging products, packaging, and surrounding surfaces.
- C. Handle product by methods to avoid bending or overstressing. Lift large and heavy components only at designed lift points.

# 1.06 PROTECTION

- A. Protect finished surfaces, including jambs and soffits of openings used as passageways, through which equipment and materials are handled.
- B. Provide protection for finished floor surfaces in traffic areas prior to allowing equipment or materials to be moved over such surfaces.
- C. Maintain finished surfaces clean, unmarred and suitably protected until accepted by Owner's Representative.

# 1.07 REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

- A. In event of damage, promptly make replacement and repairs to approval of and at no additional cost to Owner.
- B. Additional time required to secure replacements and to make repairs will not be considered by Owner to justify an extension in Contract Time.

PART 2PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 61 00

## SECTION 01 62 00 -

## STORAGE AND PROTECTION

# PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Storage and protection of products scheduled for use in Work.

# 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Include within Contractor's quality assurance program such procedures as are required to assure full protection of Work and materials.

## 1.03 MANUFACTURERS' RECOMMENDATIONS

A. Except as otherwise approved by the Owner's Representative, determine and comply with manufacturers' recommendations on product handling, storage, and protection.

# 1.04 STORAGE - GENERAL

- A. Store products, immediately on delivery, in accordance with manufacturer's instruction, with seals and labels intact. Protect until installed.
- B. Arrange storage in manner to provide access for maintenance of stored items and for inspection.

## 1.05 ENCLOSED STORAGE

- A. Store products, subject to damage by elements, in substantial, weather-tight enclosures.
- B. Maintain temperature and humidity within ranges stated in manufacturer's instruction and/or individual technical specifications section.
- C. Provide humidity control and ventilation for sensitive products as required by manufacturer's instructions and as necessary to protect product.
- D. Store unpacked and loose products on shelves, in bins, or in neat groups of like items.

## 1.06 EXTERIOR STORAGE

- A. Provide substantial platforms, blocking, or skids to support fabricated products above ground; slope to provide drainage. Protect products from soiling and staining.
- B. For products subject to discoloration or deterioration from exposure to elements, cover with impervious sheet material. Provide ventilation to avoid condensation.
- C. Store loose granular materials in clean solid surfaces such as pavement, or on rigid sheet materials, to prevent mixing with foreign matter.

# PAGE 2 OF 2

- D. Provide surface drainage to prevent erosion and ponding of water.
- E. Prevent mixing of refuse, chemically injurious materials, and liquids.
- 1.07 MAINTENANCE OF STORAGE
  - A. Periodically inspect stored products on a schedule basis.
  - B. Verify storage facilities comply with manufacturer's product storage requirements.
  - C. Verify manufacturer required environmental conditions are maintained continually.
- 1.08 MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT STORAGE
  - A. For mechanical and electrical equipment in long-term storage, provide manufacturer's service instructions to accompany each item, with notice of enclosed instructions shown on exterior of package.
  - B. Service equipment on regularly scheduled basis, maintaining log of services; submit as record document.

PART 2PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 62 00

Section 01 01 00

Section 01 09 00

Section 01 34 00

Section 01 72 00

Section 01 73 00

# SECTION 01 63 00 – PRODUCT OPTIONS AND SUBSTITUTIONS

## PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Contractor's options in selection of products.
  - 2. Products List
  - 3. Requests for Substitution Form.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. Instructions to Bidders
  - 2. Substitution Request Form
  - 3. General Conditions
  - 4. Summary of Work:
  - 5. Reference Standards:
  - 6. Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples:
  - 7. Project Record Documents:
  - 8. Operation and Maintenance Data:

# 1.02 OPTIONS

- A. Products Specified by Reference Standard or by Description Only: Any product meeting those standards.
- B. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturers with a Provision for Substitutions: <u>Submit a request for substitution a minimum of 7 days prior to Bid for any manufacturer not</u> <u>specifically named.</u> Following Proposal opening, only products of named manufacturers <u>meeting specifications or approved substitutions shall be allowed.</u>
- C. Products Specified by Naming Only One or More Manufacturers with "No Substitution" statement: Products of named manufacturers meeting specifications; no substitution allowed.

# 1.03 PRODUCTS LIST

- A. Within 15 days after date of Notice to Proceed, transmit three copies of list of major products which are proposed for installation, including name of manufacturer.
- B. Tabulate products by Specifications Section number, title and Article number.
- C. For Products specified only by reference standards, give manufacturer, trade name, model or catalog designation, and reference standards.
- D. Owner's Representative will reply in writing within 10 days stating whether there is reasonable objection to listed items. Failure to object to listed items shall not constitute waiver of requirements of Contract Documents.

## PAGE 2 OF 4

## 1.04 LIMITATIONS ON SUBSTITUTIONS

- A. Instructions to Bidder govern terms for submitting request for substitutions under requirements specified in this Section.
- B. Requests for substitutions after Contract Award may be considered only in proven cases of product unavailability through no fault of Contractor.
- C. Substitutions will not be considered when acceptance will require substantial revision of Bidding or Contract Documents.
- D. Do not order or install substitute products without written acceptance.
- E. Two requests for substitution for each product will be considered. When substitution is not accepted, provide specified product.
- F. Owner's Representative and Architect will determine acceptability of substitutions.

# 1.05 REQUESTS FOR SUBSTITUTIONS

- A. Submit substitution requests using a Substitution Request Form. Substitution requests will not be reviewed without an accompanying fully executed Substitution Request Form.
- B. Submit separate request for each substitution. Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of proposed substitution with requirements of Contract Documents.

Submit samples, shop drawings from prior jobs, product date, manufacturer's installation instructions, and certified test results attesting to proposed product equivalence.

- C. Identify product by Specification Section and Article numbers. Provide manufacturer's name and address, trade name of product, and model or catalog number. List fabricators and suppliers as appropriate.
- D. Attach product data as specified in Section 01 34 00.
- E. List similar project using product, dates of installation, and names with numbers of Owner and Architect.
- F. Give itemized quality and performance comparison between proposed substitution with specified product, listing variations, and reference to Specification Section and Article numbers. Base comparison on tests and criteria specified, and with specified manufacturer's performance criteria when tests and criteria are not otherwise specified.
- G. List availability of maintenance services and replacement materials.
- H. State effect of substitution on construction schedule, and changes required in other work or products.
- I. Forms that are incomplete or incorrectly filled out will be rejected.

# 1.06 BIDDER REPRESENTATION

- A. Request for substitution constitutes representation that Bidder:
  - 1. Has investigated proposed product and has determined that it meets or exceed the quality level of specified product.
  - 2. Will provide same warranty for substitution as for specified product.
  - 3. Will coordinate installation and make changes to other Work which may be required for work to be complete with no additional costs to Owner.
  - 4. Waives claims for additional costs or time extension which may subsequently become apparent.
  - 5. Will reimburse Owner for review or redesign service associated with re-approval by authorities.

# 1.07 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

- A. Submit five copies of the Request for Substitution Form with attachments. Limit each request to one proposed substitution.
- B. Owner's Representative and Architect will review Contractor's request for substitutions with reasonable promptness.
- C. During bidding period, Owner will record acceptable substitutions in Addenda.
- D. For accepted products, submit shop drawings, product data, and samples under provisions of Section 01 34 00.

PART 2PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3EXECUTION (not used)

PAGE 4 OF 4

# SUBSTITUTION REQUEST FORM

TO: CITY OF KENAI ATTN: SCOTT CURTIN 210 FIDALGO AVE. KENAI, AK 99611 (907) 283-8240

PROJECT: TRAINING BUILDING REHABILITATION PROJECT

SPECIFIED ITEM:

Section

Paragraph Description

The undersigned requests consideration of the following:

## PROPOSED SUBSTITUTION:

Attached data includes product description, specifications, drawings, photographs, performance and test date adequate for evaluation of the request; applicable portions of the data area clearly identified.

Attached data also includes description of changes to Contract Documents which proposed substitution will require for its proper installation.

The undersigned states that the following paragraphs, unless modified on attachments, are correct:

- 1. The proposed substitution does not affect dimensions shown on Drawings.
- 2. The undersigned will pay for changes to the building design, including engineering design, detailing and construction costs caused by the requested substitution.
- 3. The proposed substitution will have no adverse effect on other trades, the construction schedule, or specified warranty requirements.
- 4. Maintenance and service parts will be locally available for the proposed substitution.

The undersigned further states that the function, appearance and quality of the Proposed Substitution are equivalent or superior to the Specified Item.

Submitted by:		
Signature	For use by Design Consultant:	
Firm	Accepted Accepted as noted	
Address	Not Accepted By:	
Date	Date:	
Telephone	Remarks:	

# END OF SECTION 01 63 00

## SECTION 01 67 00 -

# SYSTEM DEMONSTRATION

## PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

## A. Work Included:

- 1. Procedures for demonstration of equipment operation and instruction of Owner's personnel.
- 2. Contractor shall be responsible for instruction and training of operating personnel in operation and maintenance of mechanical, electrical, and other systems in building.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. Summary of Work:
  - 2. Operation and Maintenance Data:
  - 3. Divisions 10, 21, 22, 23, 26, 27 and 28
  - 4. Other Individual Sections: Specific requirements for demonstrating systems and equipment.

Section 01 01 00

Section 01 73 00

# 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. When specified in individual sections, require manufacturer to provide authorized representative to demonstrate operation of equipment and systems, instruct Owner personnel, and provide written report stating demonstrations and instructions have been completed.
- B. Owner's Representative will provide list of personnel to receive instructions and will coordinate their attendance at agreed upon times.

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit preliminary schedule for Owner's Representative's approval, listing times and dates for demonstration of each item of equipment and each system three weeks prior to proposed dates.
- B. Contractor shall submit his training materials and agenda to the Owner's Representative at least 15 days prior to start of formal maintenance training classes. Mutually agreeable dates for receiving training shall be arranged with Owner's Representative. Building system shall be complete when training is given.
- C. Submit reports within one week after completion of demonstrations, that demonstrations and instructions have been satisfactorily completed. Give time and date of each demonstration, hours devoted to demonstration, and list of persons present.

## PART 2PRODUCTS (Not Used)

#### PART 3EXECUTION

- 3.01 PREPARATION
  - A. Verify equipment has been inspected and put into operation in accordance with applicable specification Section; testing, adjusting, and balancing has been performed in accordance with applicable specification Section, and equipment and systems are fully operational.

B. Have copies of completed operation and maintenance manuals at hand for use in demonstrations and instructions.

# 3.02 TYPE OF TRAINING

- A. Instruction shall be on the job.
- B. Services of competent contractors or manufacturer engineers and qualified maintenance personnel shall be provided to adequately train designated Owner's employees in operation and maintenance of all mechanical and electrical systems.
- C. Operating and maintenance manuals prepared by Contractor, manufacturers literature of actual equipment installed and copies of approved posted operating instructions shall be used as a basis for training.

## 3.03 DEMONSTRATION AND INSTRUCTIONS

- A. Demonstrate operation and maintenance of equipment and systems to Owner's personnel two weeks prior to date of final inspection. For equipment requiring seasonal operation, perform instructions for operation and maintenance.
- B. Use operation and maintenance manuals as basis of instruction. Review contents of manual with personnel in detail to explain all aspects of operation and maintenance.
- C. Demonstrate start-up, operation, control, adjustment, trouble-shooting, servicing, maintenance, and shutdown of each item of equipment at scheduled times, at equipment location.
- D. Prepare and insert additional data in operations and maintenance manuals when need for additional data becomes apparent during instructions.

# 3.04 TIME ALLOCATED FOR INSTRUCTIONS

- A. Training period: Training shall occur within one week after substantial completion. Not less than four hours for each category of major equipment and system except as specifically listed below:
  - 1. HVAC System: Including air handlers, duct work, dampers and related equipment with respective operating controls. 8 hours.
  - 2. Overall Control System: Coordinate respective HVAC and other system controls, show how controls function together and provide integrated overall system control. 8 hours.
  - 3. Electrical System: All building services, lighting, communications, public address system, access control, energy management systems, and all other electrical systems. 8 hours.
  - 4. Piping and Plumbing Systems: Storm and sanitary drainage systems, and hot and cold water supply systems. 4 hours.
  - 5. Fire protection equipment, intercom system, and other equipment not specifically stated above. 4 hours/each.

# PAGE 3 OF 3

# B. Proof of training must be certified in writing by Owner's personnel.

END OF SECTION 01 67 00

# SECTION 01 70 00 – CONTRACT CLOSE-OUT PROCEDURES

## PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Administrative provisions for Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:

1. Ge	eneral Conditions:	
2. Su	Immary of Work:	Section 01 01 00
3. Ap	plications for Payment	Section 01 02 70
4. Te	mporary Facilities and Temporary Controls	Section 01 50 00
5. Fir	nal Cleaning	Section 01 71 00
6. Pr	oject Record Documents	Section 01 72 00
7. Op	perations and Maintenance Data	Section 01 73 00
8. Wa	arranties and Bonds	Section 01 74 00
9. Sp	are Parts and Maintenance Materials	Section 01 75 00
10. Do	oor Hardware	Section 08 70 00
11. Me	echanical Sections	
12. Ele	ectrical Sections	

# 1.02 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. Advise Owner's Representative of pending insurance change-over requirements.
- B. When Contractor considers Work or designated portion of Work is substantially complete, submit written notice with list of items to be completed or corrected.
  - 1. Submit formal written request for Substantial Completion Inspection.
  - 2. Contractor shall submit Certificate of Occupancy issued by local Building Official with the request for Substantial Completion Inspection.
- C. Should Owner Representative's inspection find Work is not substantially complete, he will promptly terminate the inspection, and notify Contractor in writing, listing observed deficiencies.
- D. Contractor shall remedy deficiencies and send a second written notice of substantial completion.
- E. When Owner's Representative finds Work is substantially complete he will prepare a Certificate of Substantial completion in accordance with provisions of General Conditions.

## 1.03 FINAL COMPLETION

- A. When Contractor considers Work is complete, submit written certification:
  - 1. Contract Documents have been reviewed.
  - 2. Work has been inspected for compliance with Contract Documents.
  - 3. Work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents, and deficiencies listed with Certificate of Substantial Completion have been corrected.

# PAGE 2 OF 3

- 4. Equipment and systems have been tested, adjusted, and balanced, and are fully operational.
- 5. Operation of systems has been demonstrated to Owner's Personnel.
- 6. Work is complete and ready for final inspection.
- B. Should Owner's Representative inspection find Work incomplete, he will promptly notify Contractor in writing listing observed deficiencies.
- C. Contractor shall remedy deficiencies and send a second certification of final completion.
- D. When Owner's Representative finds work is complete, he will consider close-out submittals.

# 1.04 REINSPECTION FEES

A. Should status of completion of Work require re-inspection by Owner's Representative due to failure of Work to comply with Contractor's claims on initial inspection, Owner will deduct the amount of his expense, including but not necessarily limited to Owner's Representative compensation for re-inspection services from final payment to Contractor.

# 1.05 CLOSE-OUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Evidence of Compliance with Requirements of Governing Authorities:
  - 1. Certificate of Occupancy
  - 2. Certificates of Inspection required for mechanical and electrical systems.
- B. Project Record Documents: Under provision of Section 01 72 00.
- C. Operation and Maintenance Data: Under provisions of Section 01 73 00.
- D. Warranties and Bonds: Under provisions of Section 01 74 00.
- E. Spare Parts and Maintenance Materials: Under provisions of Section 01 75 00.
- F. Keys and Keying Schedule: Under provisions of Section 08 70 00.
- G. Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens: In accordance with Conditions of the Contract.
- H. Consent of Surety to Final Payment.
- I. Certificates of Insurance for Products and Completed Operations: In accordance with Supplementary Conditions.

# 1.06 STATEMENT OF ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

- A. Submit final statement reflecting adjustments to Contract Sum indicating:
  - 1. Original Contract Sum
  - 2. Previous Change Orders
  - 3. Changes Under Allowances
  - 4. Changes Under Unit Prices
  - 5. Deductions for Uncorrected Work
  - 6. Deductions for Liquidated Damages
  - 7. Deductions for Re-inspection Fees

PAGE 3 OF 3

- 8. Other Adjustments to Contract Sum
- 9. Total Contract Sum as adjusted.
- 10. Previous Payments
- 11. Sum Remaining Due
- B. Owner's Representative will issue a final Change Order reflecting approved adjustments to Contract Sum not previously made by change orders.
- 1.07 APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT
  - A. Submit application for final payment in accordance with provisions of Conditions of the Contract.
- PART 2PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 70 00

# SECTION 01 71 00 - FINAL CLEANING

#### PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Final Cleaning of Project.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. General Conditions
  - 2. Construction Cleaning:
  - 3. Contract Close-out Procedures:
  - 4. Individual Specifications Section:

Section 01 56 90 Section 01 70 00 Specific cleaning of product or work.

- 1.02 CLEANING
  - A. Execute cleaning prior to inspection for Substantial Completion of the Work.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

- 2.01 CLEANING MATERIALS
  - A. Use materials which will not create hazards to health or property, and which will not damage surfaces.
  - B. Use only materials and methods recommended by manufacturer of material being cleaned.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 CLEANING

- A. In addition to removal of debris and cleaning specified in other section, clean interior and exterior exposed-to-view surfaces.
- B. Remove temporary protection and labels not required to remain.
- C. Clean finishes free of dust, stains, films, and other foreign substances.
- D. Clean transparent and glossy materials to a polished condition; remove foreign substances. Polish reflective surfaces to a clear shine.
- E. Vacuum clean carpeted and similar soft surfaces.
- F. Clean, damp mop, wax, and polish resilient and hard-surface floors as specified.
- G. Clean surfaces of equipment and remove excess lubrication.

- H. Clean plumbing fixtures, food service equipment, and toilet accessories to a sanitary condition.
- I. Clean permanent filters of ventilation equipment and replace disposable filters when units have been operated during construction; in addition, clean ducts, blowers and coils when units have been operated without filters during construction.
- J. Clean light fixtures and lamps.
- K. Maintain cleaning until Substantial Completion.
- L. Remove waste, foreign matter, and debris from roofs, gutters, area ways, and drainage systems.
- M. Remove waste, debris, and surplus materials from site. Clean grounds; remove stains, spills, and foreign substances from paved areas and sweep clean. Rake clean other exterior surfaces.
- N. Owner will provide final cleaning of interiors after Substantial Completion, except that items not adequately cleaned prior to Substantial Completion shall be recleaned prior to final inspection. Provide access and coordinate with Owner's personnel at a time agreeable to both parties.
- O. Prior to Substantial Completion, clean all parking lots, aprons and driveways on site to a new state.

# END OF SECTION 01 71 00

## SECTION 01 72 00 -

**RECORD DOCUMENTS** 

## PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Maintenance of Record Document and samples.
  - 2. Submittal of Record Documents and samples.

## B. Related Work Descried Elsewhere:

1. Grades, Lines and Levels:

•••		
2.	Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples	Section 01 34 00
3.	Contract Close-out Procedures	Section 01 70 00
4.	Operation and Maintenance Data	Section 01 73 00
5.	Individual Specifications Sections:	

- 6. Manufacturer's certificates and certificates of inspection.
- C. The Contractor shall maintain on the jobsite one complete set of drawings and specifications on which all items located at jobsite and all changes of material, equipment, or dimensions shall be recorded and kept current on a daily basis and shall be made available to the Owner's Representative at all times. This shall include all work of the Contractor and Subcontractors. Each progress pay request will not be processed until Owner's Representative determines that the Contractor has kept the "As-Built" drawings and specifications as specified.

Section 01 05 20

## 1.02 MAINTENANCE OF DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES

- A. In addition to requirements in General Conditions, maintain at the site for Owner's Representative one record copy of:
  - 1. Contract Drawings
  - 2. Specifications
  - 3. Addenda
  - 4. Change Orders and other modifications to the Contract
  - 5. Reviewed shop drawings, product data, and samples
  - 6. Field test records
  - 7. Inspection certificates
  - 8. Manufacturer's certificates
- B. Store Record Documents and samples in Field Office apart from documents used for construction. Provide files, racks, and secure storage for Record Documents and samples.
  - 1. Delegate the responsibility for maintenance of Record Documents to one person on the Contractor's staff.
- C. Label and file Record Documents and samples in accordance with Section number listing in Table of Contents of this Project Manual. Label each document "PROJECT RECORD" in neat, printed letters.

## PAGE 2 OF 3

- D. Maintain Record Document in a clean, dry and legible condition. Do not use Record Documents for construction purposes.
- E. In the event of loss of recorded data, use means necessary to again secure the data to the Owner's Representatives approval.
- F. Keep Record Documents and samples available for inspection by Owner's Representative.

# 1.04 RECORDING

- A. Record information on a set of blue line opaque drawings, and in a copy of a Project Manual, provided by Owner's Representative.
- B. Provide felt tip marking pens, maintaining separate colors for each major system, for recording information.
- C. Record information concurrently with construction progress. Do not conceal any work until required information is recorded.
  - 1. Make entries within 24 hours after receipt of information that the change has occurred.
- D. Contract Drawings and Shop Drawing: Legibly mark each item to record actual construction, including:
  - 1. Measured depths of elements of foundation in relation to finish first floor datum.
  - 2. Measured horizontal and vertical locations of underground utilities and appurtenances, referenced to permanent surfaces improvements.
    - a. Locate with actual dimensions to building walls and corners, buried and concealed wiring and piping.
    - b. Show end of run, changes in direction, valves and splice boxes.
    - c. Record average depth relating to building datum.
  - 3. Measured locations of internal utilities and appurtenances concealed in construction, referenced to visible and accessible features of construction. Show on Record Drawings, the centerline of each run.
    - a. Clearly identify the item by accurate note such as "cast iron drain"," galv. water," etc.
    - b. Show, by symbol or note, the vertical location of the item ("under slab," "in ceiling plenum," "exposed," etc.).
    - c. Make all identification sufficiently descriptive that it may be related reliably to the Specifications.
  - 4. Field changes of dimension and detail.
  - 5. Changes made by Modifications.
  - 6. Details not on original Contract Drawings.
  - 7. References to related shop drawings and Modifications.
- E. Specifications: Legibly mark each item to record actual construction, including:
  - 1. Manufacturer, trade name, and catalog number of each product actually installed, particularly optional items and substitute items.
  - 2. Changes made by Addenda and Modifications.

# PAGE 3 OF 3

F. Other Documents: Maintain manufacturer's certifications and inspection certifications required by individual Specifications sections.

# 1.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. At Contract close-out, deliver Record Documents and samples under provisions of Section 01 70 00.
- B. Transmit with cover letter in duplicate, listing:
  - 1. Date
  - 2. Project Title and Number
  - 3. Contractor's name, address and telephone number
  - 4. Number and title of each Record Document.
  - 5. Signature of Contractor or authorized representative.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 72 00

## SECTION 01 73 00 – OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA

#### PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

#### A. Work Included:

- 1. Format and content of manuals.
- 2. Instruction of Owner's personnel.
- 3. Schedule of submittals.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:

1.	Shop Drawings, Product Data, an	d Samples Section 01 34 00	
2.	Quality Control:	Section 01 40 00	
3.	Systems Demonstration:	Section 01 67 00	
4.	Project Record Documents:	Section 01 72 00	
5.	Warranties and Bonds:	Section 01 74 00	
6	Individual Specifications Section:	Specific requirements for operation and mainten	າລາ

6. Individual Specifications Section: Specific requirements for operation and maintenance data.

## 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Prepare instructions and data by personnel experienced in maintenance and operation of described products.

#### 1.03 FORMAT

- A. Prepare data in the form of an instructional manual.
- B. Binders: Commercial quality, 8 1/2 x 11 in. three-ring binders with hardback, cleanable, plastic covers; two in. maximum ring size. When multiple binders are used, correlate data into related consistent groupings.
- C. Cover: Identify each binder with typed or printed title OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS; list title of Project, identify subject matter of contents.
- D. Arrange content under direction of Owner's Maintenance Department. Coordinate with Owner's personnel one week prior to assembly of manuals.
- E. Provide tabbed fly leaf for each separate product and system, with typed description of product and major component parts of equipment.
- F. Text: manufacturer's printed data, or typewritten data on 24-pound paper.
- G. Drawings: Provide with reinforced punched binders tab. Bind in with text; fold larger drawings to size of text pages.

## 1.04 CONTENTS, EACH VOLUME

- A. Table of Contents: Provide title of Project, names, addresses, and telephone number of Owner's Representative, subconsultants, and Contractor with name of responsible parties, schedule of products and systems, indexed to content of the volume.
- B. For Each Product or System: List names, addresses and telephone numbers of Subcontractors and suppliers, including local source of supplies and replacement parts.
- C. Product Data: Mark (by highlighting, etc. each sheet to clearly identify specific products and component model numbers of equipment and materials used, and data applicable to installation. Delete inapplicable information.
  - 1. Furnish a separate complete set of approved product data, in file folders for each Section, with specification item number recorded on folder. Assemble in cardboard "bankers box", in section number sequence. Turn over to the City of Kenai.
- D. Drawings: Supplement product date to illustrate relations of component parts of equipment and systems, to show control and flow diagrams. Do not use Project Record Documents as maintenance drawings.
  - 1. Furnish a complete set of shop drawings, as installed, and turn over to the City of Kenai. Fold and place in folders as above for product data, with Drawing and Specification item number recorded on folder. Assemble in same cardboard "banker's box" as above, in Section number sequence.
- E. Type Text: As required to supplement product data. Provide logical sequence of instructions for each procedure, incorporating manufacturer's instructions specified in Section 01 40 00.
- F. Warranties and Bonds: As specified in Section 01 74 00.
- 1.05 MANUAL FOR MATERIALS AND FINISHES
  - A. Building Products, Applied Materials, and Finishes: Include product data, with catalog number, size, composition, and color and texture designations. Provide information for reordering custom manufactured products.
    - 1. Furnish a complete list (room by room) of all paint used. List is to include: paint Manufacturer, Manufacturer's color codes used (by area), and the name, address and phone number of supplier.
    - 2. Furnish a complete list (room by room) of all floorcovering products used. List is to include: type of floorcovering, manufacturer, manufacturer's color codes used (by area), and the name, address and phone number of Installer.
    - 3. Furnish a complete list of all roofing materials used.
  - B. Instructions for Care and Maintenance: Include manufacturer's recommendations for cleaning agents and methods, precautions against detrimental agents and methods, and recommended schedule for cleaning and maintenance.

- C. Moisture Protection and Weather Exposed Products: Include product data listing applicable reference standards, chemical composition, and details of installation. Provide recommendations for inspections, maintenance, and repair.
- D. Additional Requirements: As specified in individual product specification Section.
- E. Provide a listing in Index for design data, with tabbed fly sheet and space for insertion of data.
- 1.06 MANUAL FOR EQUIPMENT AND SYSTEMS
  - A. Each Item of Equipment and Each System: Include description of unit or system, and component parts. Identify function, normal operating characteristics, and limiting conditions. Include performance curves, with engineering data and tests, and complete nomenclature and commercial number of replaceable parts.
  - B. Panelboard Circuit Directories: Provide electrical service characteristics, controls and communications.
  - C. Include color coded wiring diagrams as installed.
  - D. Operating Procedures: Include start-up, break-in, and routine normal operating instructions and sequences. Include regulation, control, stopping, shut-down, and emergency instructions. Include summer, winter, and any special operating instructions.
  - E. Maintenance Requirements: Include routine procedures and guide for trouble-shooting; disassembly, repair, and reassembly instructions; and alignment, adjusting, balancing, and checking instructions.
  - F. Provide servicing and lubrication schedule, and list of lubricants required.
  - G. Include manufacturer's printed operation and maintenance instructions.
  - H. Include sequence of operation by controls manufacturer.
  - I. Provide original manufacturer's parts list, illustrations, assembly drawings, and diagrams required for maintenance.
  - J. Provide control diagrams by controls manufacturer as installed.
  - K. Provide contractor's coordination drawings, with color coded piping diagrams as installed.
  - L. Provide charts of valve tag numbers, with location and function of each valve, keyed to flow and control diagrams.
  - M. Include test and balancing reports.
  - N. Additional Requirements: As specified in individual product specification Sections.
  - O. Provide a listing in Index for design data, with tabbed fly sheet and space for insertion of data.

PAGE 4 OF 5

#### 1.07 INSTRUCTION OF OWNER PERSONNEL

- A. Before final inspection, instruct Owner's designated personnel in operation, adjustment, and maintenance of products, equipment, and systems, at agreed upon times.
- B. For equipment requiring seasonal operation, perform instructions for other seasons within six months.
- C. Use operation and maintenance manuals as basis for instruction. Review contents of manual with personnel in detail to explain all aspects of operation and maintenance.
- D. Prepare and insert additional data in Operation and Maintenance Manual when need for such data becomes apparent during instruction.

#### 1.08 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit two copies of preliminary draft or proposed formats and outlines of contents before start of Work. Owner's Representative will review draft and return one copy with comments.
- B. For equipment, or component parts of equipment put into service during construction and operated by Owner, submit documents within ten days after acceptance.
- C. Submit one copy of completed volumes in final form 15 days prior to final inspection. Copy will be returned after final inspection, and after review by Owner's Maintenance Department and with Owner's Representative comments. Revise content of documents as required prior to final submittal.
- D. Submit six copies of revised volumes of data in final form within ten days after final inspection.
- E. A separate chapter will be prepared and submitted for each of the following types of equipment or systems included in the project:
  - 1. Heating, ventilating, and air conditioning system.
  - 2. Control Systems.
  - 3. Plumbing.
  - 4. Electrical Systems.
  - 5. Emergency Systems.
  - 6. Communication Systems.
  - 7. Energy Management Systems.
  - 8. Miscellaneous Building Equipment.
  - 9. Other equipment or systems as specified in individual specification Sections.

PAGE 5 OF 5

PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)

PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 73 00

#### SECTION 01 74 00 -

WARRANTIES AND BONDS

PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Preparation and submittal
  - 2. Time and schedules of submittals
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. Instructions to Bidders:
  - 2. General Conditions:
  - 3. Contract Close-out Procedures
    - Operation and Maintenance Data

Section 01 70 00 Section 01 73 00

5. Individual Specification Sections: Warranties required for specific products or Work.

## 1.02 FORM OF SUBMITTALS

4.

- A. Bind in commercial quality, 8-1/2 x 11 in. three ring side binders with hardback, cleanable, plastic covers.
- B. Label cover of each binder with typed or printed title WARRANTIES AND BONDS, with title of Project; name, address and telephone number of Contractor and equipment supplier; and name of responsible principal.
- C. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in the sequence of index to Project Manual, with each item identified with its Section, and name of product or work item. Provide complete information for each of:
  - 1. Product or work item
  - 2. Supplier with name of principal, address and telephone number
  - 3. Date of beginning of warranty or bond
  - 4. Duration of warranty or bond
  - 5. Provide information for Owner's personnel:
    - a. Proper procedure in case of failure.
    - b. Instances which might affect validity of warranty or bond.
  - 6. Contractor, name of responsible principal, address and telephone number.
- D. Separate each warranty or bond with index tab sheets keyed to the Table of Contents listing. Provide full information, using separate typed sheets as necessary. List Subcontractor, supplier, and manufacturer, with name, address and telephone number of responsible principal.

### PAGE 2 OF 2

## 1.03 PREPARATION OF SUBMITTALS

- A. Obtain warranties and bonds, executed in duplicate by responsible Subcontractors, suppliers, and manufacturers, within ten days after completion of the applicable item or work. Except for items put into use with Owner's Representative's permission, leave date of beginning of time of warranty until the Date of Substantial Complete is determined.
- B. Verify that documents are in proper form, contain full information, and are notarized.
- C. Co-execute submittals when required.
- D. Retain warranties and bonds until time specified for submittal.

### 1.04 TIME OF SUBMITTALS

- A. For equipment or component parts of equipment put into service during construction with Owner's Representative's permission, submit documents within ten days after acceptance.
- B. Make other submittals within ten days after Date of Substantial Completion, prior to final Application for Payment.
- C. For items of Work when acceptance is delayed beyond Date of Substantial Completion, submit within ten days after acceptance, listing the date of acceptance as the beginning of the warranty period.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

## END OF SECTION 01 74 00

## SECTION 01 75 00 – SPARE PARTS AND MAINTENANCE MATERIALS

#### PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Work Included:
  - 1. Products required.
    - 2. Storage and delivery of products.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
  - 1. Storage and Protection
  - 2. Contract Close-out Procedures
  - 3. Operation and Maintenance Data
  - 4. Individual Specification Sections: maintenance data.
- Section 01 62 00 Section 01 70 00 Section 01 73 00 Specific requirements for operation and

# 1.02 PRODUCTS REQUIRED

- A. Provide quantities of products, spare parts, maintenance tools, and maintenance materials specified in individual sections to be provided to Owner, in addition to that required for completion of Work.
- B. Products: Identical to those installed in the work. Include quantities in original purchase from supplier or manufacturer to avoid variations in manufacture.
- 1.03 STORAGE, MAINTENANCE
  - A. Store products with products to be installed in the Work, under provisions of Section 01 62 00.
  - B. After delivery of products to site, maintain spare products in same space and condition as products to be installed in the Work.
  - C. Maintain spare products in original containers with labels intact and legible, until delivery to Owner.

#### 1.04 DELIVERY

- A. Coordinate with Owner's Representative: Deliver and unload spare products to Owner at Project site and obtain receipt prior to final payment. After delivery, Owner will handle and store products.
- B. For portions of Project accepted and occupied by Owner prior to Substantial Completion, deliver a proportional part of spare products to Owner; obtain receipt.
- C. Provide spare parts information for each different item of equipment furnished including:
  - 1. A complete list of parts and supplies and the name and address of a supplier.

## PAGE 2 OF 2

- 2. A list of parts and supplies that are either normally furnished at no extra cost with the purchase of the equipment or specified to be furnished as part of the contract.
- 3. A list of additional items recommended by the manufacturer to ensure efficient operation for 180 days.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (not used)

# END OF SECTION 01 75 00

## SECTION 01 89 50 – EROSION, SEDIMENT AND POLLUTION CONTROL

#### PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. This work consists of planning, providing, inspecting and maintaining control of erosion, sedimentation, water pollution, air pollution and hazardous materials contamination.

### 1.02 DEFINITIONS

BMP (Best Management Practices). A wide range of project management practices, schedules, activities, or prohibition of practices, that when used alone or in combination, prevent or reduce erosion, sedimentation, and/or pollution of air and adjacent water bodies and wetlands. BMPs include temporary or permanent structural and non-structural devices and practices. Common BMPs are described in DOT&PF's Alaska Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan Guide.

Final Stabilization. A point in time when all ground-disturbing activities are complete and permanent erosion and sediment controls are established and functional. The stabilized site is protected from erosive forces of raindrop impact and water flow. Typically, all unpaved areas except graveled shoulders, crushed aggregate base course, or other areas not covered by permanent structures are protected by either a uniform blanket of perennial vegetation (at least 70 percent cover density) or equivalent permanent stabilization measures such as riprap, gabions, or geotextiles.

HMCP (Hazardous Material Control Plan). The Contractor's detailed plan for prevention of pollution that stems from the use, containment, cleanup, and disposal of hazardous material, including petroleum products generated by construction activities and equipment.

NOI. Notice of Intent to commence ground-disturbing activities under the NPDES General Permit. Use EPA Form 3510-9.

NOT. Notice of Termination of coverage under the NPDES General Permit. Use EPA Form 3510-13.

NPDES General Permit. The Storm Water General Permit for Large and Small Construction Activities, issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). It requires an approved SWPPP and NOIs listed as active status by the EPA prior to ground-disturbing activities for the project.

SWPPP (Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan). The Contractor's plan for erosion and sediment control and storm water management under the NPDES General Permit. The SWPPP is developed by the Contractor and describes site-specific controls and management of issues identified for the project.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

For all projects that disturb one acre or more of ground submit three copies each of your SWPPP and HMCP to the Engineer for approval. Sign all submittals. Deliver these documents to the Engineer no less than five calendar days prior to the preconstruction conference.

#### PAGE 2 OF 5

The Engineer will review the SWPPP and HMCP submittals within 14 calendar days. Submittals will be returned to you as either requiring modification, or as approved by the Engineer. The approved SWPPP must contain a certification, and be signed by you according to the Standard Permit Conditions of the NPDES General Permit, Part 8, Appendix G. You must receive an approved SWPPP before you submit your NOI.

For projects that disturb five acres or more of ground, submit a copy of your approved and signed SWPPP, with the required permit fee to the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) Storm Water Coordinator. Transmit proof of this submission to the Engineer.

Submit your signed NOI to EPA (electronic submission may be available). Submit copies of your signed NOI to the Engineer and to ADEC. Transmit proof of your ADEC submission to the Engineer. The City will transmit the City's NOI to the EPA. Allow adequate time for state and federal processing, prior to commencing ground-disturbing activities.

The active status NOIs, approved SWPPP and approved HMCP become the basis of the work required for the project's erosion, sediment, and pollution control.

When the Project is stabilized, as determined by the Engineer, submit your signed NOT to EPA with a copy to the Engineer. The City will transmit the City's NOT to the EPA.

#### 1.04 STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) REQUIREMENTS

For projects that disturb 1 acre or more of ground, you must prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan. Develop the SWPPP based on your scheduling, equipment, and use of alternative BMPs. The plan must consider first preventing erosion, then minimizing erosion, and finally trapping sediment before it enters waterways.

The plan must address your site-specific controls and management plan for the construction site as well as for all material sites, waste disposal sites, haul roads, and other affected areas, public or private. The plan must also incorporate all the requirements of the project permits.

Specify the line of authority and designate your field representative for implementing SWPPP compliance. Designate one representative for each subcontractor who perform earth disturbing activities or who install and maintain erosion and sediment control measures.

#### 1.05 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL CONTROL PLAN (HCMP) REQUIREMENTS

Prepare a HMCP for the handling, storage, cleanup, and disposal of petroleum products and other hazardous substances. (See 40 CFR 117 and 302 for listing of hazardous materials.)

List and give the location of all hazardous materials, including office materials, to be used and/or stored on site, and their estimated quantities. Detail your plan for storing these materials as well as disposing of waste petroleum products and other hazardous materials generated by the project.

Identify the locations where storage, fueling and maintenance activities will take place, describe the maintenance activities, and list all controls to prevent the accidental spillage of oil, petroleum products and other hazardous materials.

Detail your procedures for containment and cleanup of hazardous substances, including a list of the types and quantities of equipment and materials available on site to be used.

#### PAGE 3 OF 5

Detail your plan for the prevention, containment, cleanup, and disposal of soil and water contaminated by accidental spills. Detail your plan for dealing with unexpected contaminated soil and water encountered during construction.

Specify the line of authority and designate your field representative for spill response and one representative for each subcontractor.

- PART 2 PRODUCTS (not used)
- PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

Do not begin ground-disturbing work until after the EPA has acknowledged receipt of your NOI and the City's NOI and has listed them as active status. The EPA will post the status of the NOIs on the EPA website.

Post at the construction site:

- a. NPDES Permit number, if available, and a copy of the NOI,
- b. Name and phone number of your local contact person, and
- c. Location of a SWPPP available for viewing by the public.

Comply with all requirements of the approved HMCP and all state and federal regulations that pertain to the handling, storage, cleanup, and disposal of petroleum products or other hazardous substances. Contain, clean up, and dispose of all discharges of petroleum products and/or other materials hazardous to the land, air, water, and organic life forms. Perform all fueling operations in a safe and environmentally responsible manner. Comply with 18 AAC 75 and AS 46, Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Control. Report oil spills as required by federal, state and local law.

Comply with all requirements of the NPDES General Permit, implement all temporary and permanent erosion and sediment control measures identified in the SWPPP, and ensure that the SWPPP remains current.

Maintain all temporary and permanent erosion and sediment control measures in effective operating condition.

Perform inspections and prepare inspection reports in compliance with the project SWPPP and the NPDES General Permit.

Joint Inspections. Prior to start of construction, conduct a joint on-site inspection with the Engineer and the Contractor's field representative to discuss the implementation of the SWPPP.

Conduct the following additional joint on-site inspections with the Engineer:

- (1) During construction, inspect the following at least once every seven calendar days and within 24 hours of the end of a storm exceeding 0.5 inch in 24 hrs. (as recorded at or near the project site):
  - (a) Disturbed areas that have not been finally stabilized.

- (b) Areas used for storage of erodible materials that are exposed to precipitation.
- (c) Sediment and erosion control measures.
- (d) Locations where vehicles enter or exit the site.
- (2) Prior to winter shutdown, to ensure that the site has been adequately stabilized.
- (3) At project completion, to ensure final stabilization of the project.

Winter Inspections. During winter shutdown, conduct inspections at least once every month and within 24 hours of a storm resulting in rainfall of 0.5 inch or greater. Monthly inspection requirements may be waived by the Engineer until one month before thawing conditions are expected to result in a discharge, if all of the following requirements are met:

- (1) Below-freezing conditions are anticipated to continue for more than one month.
- (2) Land disturbance activities have been suspended.
- (3) The beginning and ending dates of the waiver period are documented in the SWPPP.

Inspection Reports. Prepare and submit, within three calendar days of each inspection, a report on DOT&PF Form 25D-100, with the following information:

- (1) A summary of the scope of the inspection.
- (2) Name(s) of personnel making the inspection.
- (3) The date of the inspection.
- (4) Observations relating to the implementation of the SWPPP.
- (5) Any actions taken as the result of the inspection.
- (6) Incidents of non-compliance.

Where a report does not identify any incidents of non-compliance, certify that the facility is in compliance with the SWPPP and NPDES General Permit. You and the Engineer will sign the report according to Standard Permit Conditions of the NPDES General Permit, Part 8, Appendix G. All certifications shall be included as an appendix to the SWPPP.

Retain copies of the SWPPP, and all other records required by the NPDES General Permit, for at least three years from the date of final stabilization.

If unanticipated or emergency conditions threaten water quality, take immediate suitable action to preclude erosion and pollution.

Submit amendments to the SWPPP to correct problems identified as a result of any:

- a. Storm or other circumstance that threatens water quality, and
- b. Inspection that identifies existing or potential problems.

Submit SWPPP amendments to the Engineer within seven calendar days following the storm event or inspection. Detail additional emergency measures required and taken to include additional or modified measures. If modifications to existing measures are necessary, complete implementation within seven days.

Stabilize all areas disturbed after the seeding deadline within seven calendar days of the temporary or permanent cessation of ground-disturbing activities.

Submit a signed NOT to EPA and the Engineer:

### PAGE 5 OF 5

- a. When the project site (including all material sources, disposal sites, etc.) has been finally stabilized and all storm water discharges from construction activities authorized by this permit have ceased, or
- b. When the construction activity operator (as defined in the NPDES General Permit) has changed.

If you fail to coordinate temporary or permanent stabilization measures with the earthwork operations in a manner to effectively control erosion and prevent water pollution, the Engineer may suspend your earthwork operations and withhold monies due on current estimates for such earthwork items until all aspects of the work are coordinated in a satisfactory manner.

If you fail to:

- a. Pursue work required by the approved SWPPP,
- b. Respond to inspection recommendations and/or deficiencies in the SWPPP, or
- c. Implement erosion and sedimentation controls identified by the Engineer,

the Engineer may, after giving you written notice, proceed to perform such work and deduct the cost thereof, including project engineering costs, from your progress payments.

## END OF SECTION 01 89 50

## SECTION 07 55 00

EPDM ROOFING

## PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. The project consists of installing Fully Adhered Roofing System as outlined below:

Apply the Fully Adhered EPDM Roofing System in conjunction with Rigid Insulation over the new metal and existing metal roof deck.

#### 1.02 EXTENT OF WORK

- A. Provide all labor, material, tools, equipment, and supervision necessary to complete the installation of a Sure-Tough .060 inch thick reinforced EPDM membrane Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System including flashings and insulation as specified herein and as indicated on the drawings in accordance with the manufacturer's most current specifications and details.
- B. The roofing contractor shall be fully knowledgeable of all requirements of the contract documents and shall make themselves aware of all job site conditions that will affect their work.
- C. The roofing contractor shall confirm all given information and advise the building owner, prior to bid, of any conflicts that will affect their cost proposal.
- D. Any contractor who intends to submit a bid using a roofing system other than the approved manufacturer must submit for pre-qualification in writing fourteen (14) days prior to the bid date. Any contractor who fails to submit all information as requested will be subject to rejection. Bids stating "as per plans and specs" will be unacceptable.

## 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Prior to starting work, the roofing contractor must submit the following:
  - 1. Shop drawings showing layout, details of construction and identification of materials.
  - 2. Sample of the manufacturer's Membrane System Warranty.
  - 3. Submit a letter of certification from the manufacturer which certifies the roofing contractor is authorized to install the manufacturer's roofing system and lists foremen who have received training from the manufacturer along with the dates training was received.
  - 4. Certification from the membrane manufacturer indicating the fasteners are capable of providing a static backout resistance of 10 inch pounds minimum is required.
  - 5. Certification of the manufacturer's warranty reserve.
- B. Upon completion of the installed work, submit copies of the manufacturer's final inspection to the specifier prior to the issuance of the manufacturer's warranty.

### 1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Deliver materials to the job site in the manufacturer's original, unopened containers or wrappings with

#### PAGE 2 OF 9

the manufacturer's name, brand name and installation instructions intact and legible. Deliver in sufficient quantity to permit work to continue without interruption.

- B. Comply with the manufacturer's written instructions for proper material storage.
  - 1. Store materials, except membrane, between 60F and 80F in dry areas protected from water and direct sunlight. If exposed to lower temperature, restore to 60F minimum temperature before using.
  - 2. Store materials containing solvents in dry, well ventilated spaces with proper fire and safety precautions. Keep lids on tight. Use before expiration of their shelf life.
- C. Insulation must be on pallets, off the ground and tightly covered with waterproof materials.
- D. Any materials which are found to be damaged shall be removed and replaced at the applicator's expense.

# 1.05 WORK SEQUENCE

- A. Schedule and execute work to prevent leaks and excessive traffic on completed roof sections. Care should be exercised to provide protection for the interior of the building and to ensure water does not flow beneath any completed sections of the membrane system.
- B. Do not disrupt activities in occupied spaces.

## 1.06 USE OF THE PREMISES

- A. Before beginning work, the roofing contractor must secure approval from the building owner's representative for the following:
  - 1. Areas permitted for personnel parking.
  - 2. Access to the site.
  - 3. Areas permitted for storage of materials and debris.
  - 4. Areas permitted for the location of cranes, hoists and chutes for loading and unloading materials to and from the roof.
- B. Interior stairs or elevators may not be used for removing debris or delivering materials, except as authorized by the building superintendent.

## 1.07 EXISTING CONDITIONS

A. If discrepancies are discovered between the existing conditions and those noted on the drawings, immediately notify the owner's representative by phone and solicit the manufacturer's approval prior to commencing with the work. Necessary steps shall be taken to make the building watertight until the discrepancies are resolved.

## 1.08 JOB SITE PROTECTION

A. The roofing contractor shall adequately protect building, paved areas, service drives, lawn, shrubs, trees, etc. from damage while performing the required work. Provide canvas, boards and sheet metal

PAGE 3 OF 9

(properly secured) as necessary for protection and remove protection material at completion. The contractor shall repair or be responsible for costs to repair all property damaged during the roofing application.

- B. During the roofing contractor's performance of the work, the building owner will continue to occupy the existing building. The contractor shall take precautions to prevent the spread of dust and debris, particularly where such material may sift into the building. The roofing contractor shall provide labor and materials to construct, maintain and remove necessary temporary enclosures to prevent dust or debris in the construction area(s) from entering the remainder of the building.
- C. Do not overload any portion of the building, either by use of or placement of equipment, storage of debris, or storage of materials.
- D. Protect against fire and flame spread. Maintain proper and adequate fire extinguishers.
- E. Take precautions to prevent drains from clogging during the roofing application. Remove debris at the completion of each day's work and clean drains, if required. At completion, test drains to ensure the system is free running and drains are watertight. Remove strainers and plug drains in areas where work is in progress. Install flags or other telltales on plugs. Remove plugs each night and screen drain.
- F. Store moisture susceptible materials above ground and protect with waterproof coverings.
- G. Remove all traces of piled bulk materials and return the job site to its original condition upon completion of the work.

## 1.09 SAFETY

A. The roofing contractor shall be responsible for all means and methods as they relate to safety and shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal requirements that are safety related. Safety shall be the responsibility of the roofing contractor. All related personnel shall be instructed daily to be mindful of the full time requirement to maintain a safe environment for the facility's occupants including staff, visitors, customers and the occurrence of the general public on or near the site.

## 1.10 WORKMANSHIP

- A. Applicators installing new roof, flashing and related work shall be factory trained and approved by the manufacturer they are representing.
- B. All work shall be of highest quality and in strict accordance with the manufacturer's published specifications and to the building owner's satisfaction.
- C. There shall be a supervisor on the job site at all times while work is in progress.

## 1.11 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. The manufacturer must have a minimum of 20 years experience in the manufacturing of vulcanized thermal set sheeting.
- B. Unless otherwise noted in this specification, the roofing contractor must strictly comply with the manufacturer's current specifications and details.

#### PAGE 4 OF 9

- C. The roofing system must be installed by an applicator authorized and trained by the manufacturer in compliance with shop drawings as approved by the manufacturer. The roofing applicator shall be thoroughly experienced and upon request be able to provide evidence of having at least five (5) years successful experience installing single-ply EPDM roofing systems and having installed at least one (1) roofing application or several similar systems of equal or greater size within one year.
- E. Provide adequate number of experienced workmen regularly engaged in this type of work who are skilled in the application techniques of the materials specified. Provide at least one thoroughly trained and experienced superintendent on the job at all times roofing work is in progress.
- F. There shall be no deviations made from this specification or the approved shop drawings without the prior written approval of the specifier. Any deviation from the manufacturer's installation procedures must be supported by a written certification on the manufacturer's letterhead and presented for the specifier's consideration.
- G. Upon completion of the installation, the applicator shall arrange for an inspection to be made by a nonsales technical representative of the membrane manufacturer in order to determine whether or not corrective work will be required before the warranty will be issued. Notify the building owner seventytwo (72) hours prior to the manufacturer's final inspection.

## 1.12 JOB CONDITIONS, CAUTIONS AND WARNINGS

Refer to Manufacturers Fully Adhered Roofing System specification, - Application, for General Job Site Considerations.

- A. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) must be on location at all times during the transportation, storage and application of materials.
- B. When positioning membrane sheets, exercise care to locate all field splices away from low spots and out of drain sumps. All field splices should be shingled to prevent bucking of water.
- C. When loading materials onto the roof, the Authorized Roofing Applicator must comply with the requirements of the building owner to prevent overloading and possible disturbance to the building structure.
- D. Proceed with roofing work only when weather conditions are in compliance with the manufacturer's recommended limitations, and when conditions will permit the work to proceed in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements and recommendations.
- E. Proceed with work so new roofing materials are not subject to construction traffic. When necessary, new roof sections shall be protected and inspected upon completion for possible damage.
- F. Provide protection, such as 3/4 inch thick plywood, for all roof areas exposed to traffic during construction. Plywood must be smooth and free of fasteners and splinters.
- G. The surface on which the insulation or roofing membrane is to be applied shall be clean, smooth, dry, and free of projections or contaminants that would prevent proper application of or be incompatible with the new installation, such as fins, sharp edges, foreign materials, oil and grease.
- H. New roofing shall be complete and weathertight at the end of the work day.
- I. Contaminants such as grease, fats and oils shall not be allowed to come in direct contact with the roofing membrane.

#### PAGE 5 OF 9

#### 1.13 WARRANTY

- A. Provide manufacturer's 20 year Membrane System Warranty covering both labor and material with no dollar limitation. The maximum wind speed coverage shall be peak gusts of 120 mph measured at 10 meters above ground level.
- В. Pro-rated System Warranties shall not be accepted.
- C. Evidence of the manufacturer's warranty reserve shall be included as part of the project submittals for the specifier's approval.

## PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 **GENERAL**

- A. The basis of design for all components of the specified roofing system shall be products of Carlisle SynTec Incorporated or accepted by the Architect as compatible. i.
  - Firestone Building Products.
- Β. Unless otherwise approved by the specifier and accepted by the membrane manufacturer, all products (including insulation, fasteners, fastening plates and edgings) must be manufactured and supplied by the roofing system manufacturer and covered by the warranty.
- C. Submit written request for approval of substituation per section 016000.

#### 2.02 MEMBRANE

Furnish Sure-Seal .060 inch thick reinforced EPDM (Ethylene, Propylene, Diene Terpolymer) conforming to the minimum physical properties of ASTM D4637. The membrane shall be manufactured in a single panel with no factory splices to reduce splice intersections.

#### 2.03 **ROOF INSULATION**

- A. General: Provide preformed roof insulation boards that comply with requirements and referenced standards, selected from manufacturer's standard sizes totallying the R-Value indicated on drawings.
- Molded-Polystyrene Board (EPS) Insulation: ASTM C 578 Type II, 1.35-lb/cu. ft. minimum density. The Β. R-Value for calculation purposes for Type II EPS insulation is to be R-4.55 per inch thickness, measured at 40 degrees F.
  - 1. Available Manufacturers:
    - a. Insulfoam, Inc.
    - b. Approved equal.
  - 2. Thickness: As indicated
  - 3. Maximum dimension: 4 feet by 4 feet

### PAGE 6 OF 9

- C. Polyisocyanurate Board Insulation: ASTM C 1289, Type II, felt facer on both major surfaces. The R-value for calculation purposes for Polyisocyanurate insulation is to be R-5.0 per inch thickness.
  - 1. Available Manufacturers:
    - a. Atlas Roofing Corporation.
    - b. Celotex Corporation.
    - c. Firestone Building Products Company.
    - d. Hunter Panel, Inc.
    - e. Johns Manville International, Inc.
    - f. RMAX
    - g. Approved equal.
  - 2. Thickness: As indicated
  - 3. Maximum dimension 4 feet by 4 feet
- D. Cellulosic-Fiber Board Insulation: ASTM C 208, Type II, Grade 1, fibrous-felted wood fiber or other cellulosic-fiber and water-resistant binders, asphalt impregnated on all six surfaces, chemically treated to resist deterioration.
  - 1. Available Manufacturers:
    - a. CMI-Temple Inland.
    - b. Firestone Building Products Company.
    - c. Georgia-Pacific Corporation.
    - d. Structoduck.
    - e. Approved equal.
- E. Tapered Insulation: Provide factory-tapered insulation boards fabricated to form a minimum finished slope of 1/8-inch per 12 inches (1:48), unless otherwise indicated.
  - 1. Minimum thickness: 1/2-inch
- F. Provide preformed saddles, crickets, tapered edge strips, and other insulation shapes where indicated for sloping to drain. Fabricates to slopes as indicated.

#### 2.04 INSULATION ACCESSORIES

A. General: Roof insulation accessories recommended by insulation manufacturer for intended use and compatible with membrane roofing.

B. Insulation Cant Strips: ASTM C 728, perlite insulation board; OR –ASTM C 208 Type II, Grade 1, cellulosic-fiber insulation board.

## 2.05 ADHESIVES AND CLEANERS

All products shall be furnished by Carlisle and specifically formulated for the intended purpose.

- A. Bonding Adhesive: Sure-Seal 90-8-30A
- B. Splicing Cement: Sure-Seal EP-95 Splicing Cement
- C. Splice Tape and Primer: Sure-Seal SecurTAPE and HP-250 Primer
- D. Cleaning Solvent: Sure-Seal Splice Cleaner or Weathered Membrane Cleaner
- E. Internal seam sealant: Sure-Seal In-Seam Sealant
- F. External seam sealant: Sure-Seal Lap Sealant
- G. Sealer: Sure-Seal Pourable Sealer

#### 2.06 RELATED MATERIALS

A. Povide all Carlisle approved related flashings, adhesives and to provide a watertight assemble qualifying for the above stated warranty reqirements.

- 2.07 METAL EDGING AND MEMBRANE TERMINATIONS
  - A. Provide all metal edging and terminations as defined in drawings. Color as selected by Architect.
- 2.08 OTHER MATERIALS
  - A. Provide 5/8" "Dens-Deck" over all metal decks.
  - B. Provide manufacturer's recommended and approved vapor barrier for the warrantied EPDM Roofing System.
  - C. Provide 1/2" "Dens-Deck" recovery board over all insulation.
  - E. Provide spray applied galvanizing to underside of all fasteners penetrating metal decking.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

- 3.01 GENERAL
  - A. Comply with the manufacturer's published instructions for the installation of the membrane roofing system including proper substrate preparation, jobsite considerations and weather restrictions.
  - B. Position sheets to accommodate contours of the roof deck and shingle splices to avoid bucking water.
- 3.02 INSULATION PLACEMENT

PAGE 8 OF 9

- A. Install insulation or membrane underlayment over the substrate with boards butted tightly together with no joints or gaps greater than 1/4 inch. Stagger joints both horizontally and vertically if multiple layers are provided.
- B. Secure insulation to the substrate with the required adhesive in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.

## 3.03 MEMBRANE PLACEMENT AND ATTACHMENT

- A. Unroll and position membrane without stretching. Allow the membrane to relax for approximately 1/2 hour prior to application. Provide and secure both perimeter and field membrane sheets in accordance with the manufacturer's most current specifications and details.
- B. Secure the membrane with Carlisle approved adhesion system.
- D. Install adjoining membrane sheets in the same manner in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.

#### 3.04 MEMBRANE SPLICING (Adhesive Splice)

- A. Membrane splices must be a minimum of 6 inches wide where mechanical attachment is required along the length of the membrane. Membrane splices at the end roll sections (the width of the membrane) must be a minimum of 3 inches wide.
- B. When using PRE-KLEENED Reinforced EPDM Membrane, cleaning the splice area is not required unless contaminated with field dirt, adhesive or other residue. To remove accumulated dirt, footprints, etc., scrub the membrane sheets with Splice Cleaner or HP-250 Primer.
- C. Apply Splicing Cement and In-Seam Sealant in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications and roll the top sheet onto the mating surface.
- D. Roll the splice with a 2 inch wide steel roller and wait at least 2 hours before applying Lap Sealant to the splice edge following the manufacturer's requirements.
- E. Field splices without In-Seam Sealant must be overlaid with uncured flashing.

## 3.05 MEMBRANE SPLICING (Tape Splice)

- A. Tape splices where fastening plates are located (along the length of the membrane) must utilize 6 inch wide Splice Tape. Tape splices at end roll sections (along the width of the membrane without fastening plates) shall utilize 3 inch wide Splice Tape.
- B. Overlap adjacent sheets and mark a line 1/2 inch out from the top sheet.
- C. Apply Sure-Seal HP-250 Primer to splice area.
- D. Position Splice Tape onto bottom membrane sheet with the edge of the release film along the marked line.
- E. Remove the release film and press the top sheet onto the tape using hand pressure. Roll the splice

PAGE 9 OF 9

with a 2 inch wide steel roller.

- F. Install a 6 inch wide section of Pressure-Sensitive Flashing or Elastoform Flashing over all field splice intersections and seal edges of flashing with Lap Sealant.
- G. The use of Lap Sealant with tape splices is optional except at tape overlaps and cut edges of reinforced membrane where Lap Sealant is required.

#### 3.06 FLASHING

- A. Wall and curb flashing shall be cured EPDM membrane. Continue the deck membrane as wall flashing where practicable.
- B. Follow manufacturer's typical flashing procedures for all wall, curb, and penetration flashing including metal edging/coping and roof drain applications.

#### 3.07 WALKWAYS

- A. Install walkways at all traffic concentration points (such as roof hatches, access doors, rooftop ladders, etc.) and all locations as identified on the specifier's drawing.
- B. Adhere walkways to the EPDM membrane in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.

#### 3.08 DAILY SEAL

- A. On phased roofing, when the completion of flashings and terminations is not achieved by the end of the work day, a daily seal must be performed to temporarily close the membrane to prevent water infiltration.
- B. Use Sure-Seal Pourable Sealer or other acceptable membrane seal in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements.

## 3.09 CLEAN UP

- A. Perform daily clean-up to collect all wrappings, empty containers, paper, and other debris from the project site. Upon completion, all debris must be disposed of in a legally acceptable manner.
- B. Prior to the manufacturer's inspection for warranty, the applicator must perform a pre-inspection to review all work and to verify all flashing has been completed as well as the application of all caulking.

## END OF SECTION 07 55 00

SECTION 07 62 00 -

# FLASHING AND TRIM

PART 1 GENERAL

- 1.01 DESCRIPTION
  - A. Work Included:
    - 1. Roof copings, reglets and counterflashings.
    - 2. Exterior door drip flashings.
    - 3. Miscellaneous flashings.
  - B. Related Work Specified Elsewhere:
    - 1. Concrete Masonry Units
    - 2. Joint Sealers
    - 3. Steel Doors and Frames
    - 4. Painting
  - C. References:

1. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM):

- a. A525-86 Steel Sheet, Zinc Coated, Galvanized by the Hot Dip Process.
- b. B32-87 Solder Metal
- c. D226-87 Asphalt Saturated Organic Felt Used in Roofing and Waterproofing.
- d. D1187-82 Asphalt Based Emulsions for Use as Protective Coatings for Metal.
- 2. Federal Specifications (FS): O-F-506 Flux, Soldering, Paste and Liquid.

3. Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors National Association (SMACNA): SMACNA Architectural Sheet Metal Manual.

Section 042300

Section 079000

Section 081110 Section 099000

# 1.02 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

A. Work of this Section is to physically protect composition or flexible roof flashing and building components from damage that would permit water leakage to building interior.

## 1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Applicator: Company specializing in sheet metal flashing work with 3 years minimum experience.

# 1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit shop drawings, product data, installation instructions, color sample, and samples under provisions of Section 013400.
- B. Describe material profile, jointing pattern, jointing details, fastening methods, and installation details.

C. Provide 12 in. length of full sized sample of metal flashings illustrating typical external corner, internal corner, junction to vertical dissimilar surface, material and finish.

# 1.05 STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Store products under provisions of Section 016200.
- B. Stack preformed and prefinished material to prevent twisting, bending, or abrasion, and to provide ventilation.
- C. Prevent contact with materials during storage which may cause discoloration, staining or damage.

## 1.06 PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT

- A. Provide two year guaranty under provisions of Section 017500, substantially in the following form:
  - 1. Inspect and make emergency repairs to defects and leaks in building flashings within 24 hours of notice by Owner. As soon as weather permits, make permanent repairs and restore effected area to standards of contract requirements. Work shall be done without additional cost to Owner, unless leaks were caused by abuse or unusual natural phenomena as lightning strikes or hurricane.
- B. Provide 20 year manufacturer's finish warranty for prefinished items under provision of Section 017500.

## PART 2 PRODUCTS

## 2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Galvanized Sheet Stock: ASTM A446, Grade C minimum; coating designation G90 in conformance with A525, or 1.9 mil Zincalume coating composed of 45 percent zinc and 55 percent aluminum alloy by weight, per ASTM A792.
- B. Counterflashings:
  - 1. Manufactured: Provide counterflashings similar and equal to Springlok Flashing System as manufactured by Fry Reglet Corp. Flashing shall be made of 26 ga. galvanized steel. Prefinish where exposed to view form exterior grade and elsewhere as indicated. Flashing shall have a 3 in. factory formed end lap. Provide with prefabricated flashing corners and accessories.
  - 2. Fabricated: Provide counterflashings of galvanized steel as indicated, thickness shown. Pre-finish where exposed to view from exterior grade and elsewhere as indicated. Fabricate as specified below, to shapes shown and as required to maintain building watertight and weatherproof.

C. Copings: Provide copings of preformed, galvanized sheet stock as indicated, thickness shown. Fabricate as specified below, to shapes shown and as required to maintain building watertight and weatherproof.

# 2.02 ACCESSORIES

- A. Fastener: Galvanized steel with soft neoprene washers at exposed fasteners. Finish exposed fasteners same as flashing metal.
- B. Underlayment: ASTM D266; No. 15 asphalt saturated roofing felt.
- C. Metal Primer: FS TT-P-641.
- D. Protective Backing Paint: Bituminous, conforming to ASTM D1187, Type A.
- E. Sealant: Refer to Section 07900.
- F. Solder: ASTM B32; 50/50 type.
- G. Flux: FS O-F-506.

## 2.03 FABRICATION

- A. Form section true to shape, accurate in size, square, and free from distortion or deflects.
- B. Form pieces in longest practicable lengths. Minimum bend radius 2.5 times the thickness of the metal, unless more stringent requirements are specified by coating manufacturer. Form bends at room temperature.
- C. Hem exposed edges on underside 1/2 in.; miter and rivet lap seam corners. Provide sealant in laps as specified in Section 07900.
- D. Form material with cover plate seams.
- E. Where indicated, and at all corner installations, solder and seal metal joints. After soldering, remove flux. Wipe and wash solder joints clean.
- F. Fabricate vertical faces with bottom edge formed outward 1/4 in. and hemmed to form drip.
- G. Provide 24 gauge coping with 22 gauge continuous concealed cleats on exterior face and exposed screw fasteners on interior face, as shown.

## 2.04 FINISH

- A. Shop prepare and prime exposed ferrous metal surfaces, including galvanized.
- B. Backpaint concealed ferrous metal surfaces with protective backing paint to a minimum dry film thickness of 15 mil.
- C. Exposed flashings at sloped glazing to match sloped glazing framing color.

- D. Exposed flashings at louvers to match louver color.
- E. Prefinishing of Sheet Stock:
  - Exterior surfaces of prefinished flashings shall have a shop applied baked-on epoxy primer (.2 mil) and a baked-on PVF 2 (Polyvinylidene Flouride) finish coat (.8 mil) equal to Glidden "Nubelar", DeSoto "Fluropon", Whittaker "Fluoroceram" and PPG "Duranar"; full 70% Kynar 500, totaling a nominal 1.0 mil dry film thickness.
  - 2. Interior finish consists of .15 mil epoxy primer and .35 mil off-white backer, except match exterior surface finish where exposed.
- G. Touch Up Finishes: Touch up finish or refinish hardware items and small scratches and abrasions on prefinished metal with an air dry fluorocarbon refinishing system or touch up system, similar and equal to ADS Kynar.
- H. Back paint concealed metal surfaces and dissimilar metal contact surfaces with protective backing paint to a minimum dry film thickness of 15 mil.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

- 3.01 INSPECTION
  - A. Beginning of installation means installer accepts existing substrates.
- 3.02 PREPARATION
  - A. Field measure site conditions prior to fabricating work.
- 3.03 INSTALLATION
  - A. Install surface mounted reglets and accessories true to lines and levels, at wall/roof connections above top of base flashings.
    - 1. Seal top of reglet as specified in Section 07900 and in accordance with reglet manufacturer's recommendations.
    - 2. Place beads of sealant under holes. Prefinish reinforcing bars to match flashing. Anchor bars to substrate through flashing with round head bolts with neoprene washers into sleeve anchors, of metal compatible with flashing and with heads prefinished color to match flashing.
  - B. Secure flashings in place using concealed fasteners unless exposed specifically shown. Fastener size and type suitable for conditions of use. Provide sizes and spacings shown, and where not shown, provide in accordance with applicable requirements of SMACNA manual and FM 1-49 for Wind Zone 2 whichever is the more stringent for the application.
  - C. Provide butt joints between coping lengths with minimum 22 ga. cover plates and seal between cover plates and coping with two beads of polyisobutylene sealant each side (four rows of sealant total for each covered joint). Allow for expected expansion and contraction between coping lengths.

PAGE 5 OF 5

- D. Fit flashings tight in place. Make corners square, surfaces true and straight in planes, and lines accurate to profiles.
- E. Seal metal joints watertight. Apply sealant between metal flashings as specified in Section 07900.
- F. Conform to drawing details included in SMACNA manual where referenced or where applicable to conditions and not in conflict with Contract Documents.

END OF SECTION 07 62 00

SECTION 07 90 00 -

JOINT SEALANTS

- PART 1 GENERAL
- 1.01 DESCRIPTION
  - A. Work Included:
    - 1. Clean and prepare sealant substrate surfaces.
    - 2. Sealant and backing.
  - B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
    - 1. Cast-In-Place Concrete
    - 2. Concrete Masonry Unit
    - 3. Vapor Retarders
    - 4. Flashing and Metal Trim
    - 5. Steel Doors and Frames
    - 6. Aluminum Windows
    - 7. Glazing
    - 8. Gypsum Wallboard
    - 9. Acoustical Ceilings
  - C. References:
    - 1. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM):

a. C790-84 Recommended Practices for Use of Latex Sealing Compounds.

b. C804-83 Recommended Practices for Use of Solvent Release Type Sealants.

Section 033000

Section 042300

Section 071900

Section 076200

Section 081110

Section 085200

Section 088000

Section 092500

Section 095110

c. D1056-85 Flexible Cellular Materials - Sponge or Expanded Rubber.

d. D1565-81 (1986) Flexible Cellular Materials - Vinyl Chloride polymers and Copolymers (Open Cell Foam).

e. E119-83 Fire Tests of Building Construction Materials.

2. Federal Specifications (FS):

a. TT-S-001543 Sealing Compound, Silicone Rubber Base.

b. TT-S-001657 Sealing Compound, Single Component, Butyl Rubber Based, Solvent Release Type.

c. TT-S-00227 Sealing Compound: Elastromeric Type , Multi-Component.

d. TT-S-00230 Sealing Compound: Elastromeric Type, Single-Component.

# 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit product data and samples under provision of Section 013400.
- B. Submit product data and samples of each sealant type and sealant colors.

## PAGE 2 OF 5

C. Submit manufacturer's surface preparation and installation instructions under provisions of Section 013400.

## 1.03 EXTRA STOCK

- A. Furnish tube or equivalent of each type of sealant used on this project under provisions of Section 017500.
- B. Turn over to Owner's Representative at Substantial Completion and receive a receipt therefore.

## PART 2 PRODUCTS

- 2.01 SEALANT MATERIALS
  - A. Silicone Sealant: Silicone base, single component, moisture curing, non-sagging, non-staining, non-bleeding; color as selected; conforming to the requirements of FS TT-S-001543A, Class A. Dow Corning 795 Sealant, GE Gesil N 2600, or Tremco Spectrum 2.
    - 1. Dynamic Movement Capability <u>+</u> 50 percent.
    - 2. Service Temperature Range -35 to +140 degrees F.
    - 3. Shore A Hardness Range 15 to 35.
  - B. Polyurethane Sealant: Moisture curing, non-staining, non-bleeding, capable of continuous water immersion, non-sagging type; conforming to the requirements of FS TT-S-00230C, Type 11, Class A. Sonneborn Sonolastic NP II, Tremco Dymeric. Color as selected.
    - 1. Dynamic Movement Capability <u>+</u> 25 percent.
    - 2. Service Temperature Range -60 to +180 degrees F.
    - 3. Shore A Hardness 20 to 35.
  - C. Butyl Sealant: Butyl rubber base, single component, conforming to requirements of FS TT-S-001657, Type 1; Shore A hardness of maximum 30; non-staining; non-bleeding; non-sagging; color as selected. Tremco Butyl Sealant, Pecora BC-158, or Sonneboren Butakauk.
  - D. Acrylic Sealant: Acrylic base, single component, solvent curing, capable of being continuously immersed in water, withstand movement of up to 7.5 percent of joint width and paintable. Tremco Acrylic Latex Caulk or Sonneborn Sonolac.
  - E. Accoustical Sealant: Conforming to ASTM C-919, Smoke & Sound Sealant. Tremco Tremflex 834.
  - F. Sealant Tape: AAMA 804.1, Butyl-polyisobutylene preformed sealant, service temperature range -40 to 200 degrees F; color as selected; Tremco 440 tape, PTI 606, or acceptable substitute. Provide pre-shimmed where required.
  - G. Penetration Sealant: Conform to requirements of ASTM E119 or ASTM E 814; provide materials UL Listed with assembly and for equal rating. Seal walls and floors at pipe, conduit and cable penetrations. Where required for rating, provide with mineral wool of ceramic fiber forming material listed. Dow Corning 2000 Fire Stop Sealant, GS Pensil 851, or equal.
  - H. Sanitary Sealant: Dow Corning 786 mildew resistant silicone sealant of GE SCS 1702 Sanitary Sealant. Seal joints around plumbing fixtures.

#### PAGE 3 OF 5

- I. Rated Joint Sealant: Conform to requirements of ASTM E119 or UL 263; provide material UL listed with assembly and for equal rating. Seal walls at control joints in 2 hour CMU or concrete walls. Where required for rating, provide with mineral wool or ceramic fiber forming material listed. Dow Corning 795, Tremco Dymeric, or equal.
- J. Traffic Sealant: Two component, self-leveling type; conforming to the requirements of FS TT-S-00227E, Type I, Class A and ASTM C920 Type S, Grade P, Class 25, Use T; Sonneborn Sonolastic Paving Joint Sealant, Tremco THC-900, "Chem-Calk 550" by Bostik, or equal. Color as selected.
- K. Substitutions: Refer to Section 016300 for substitution procedures.

## 2.02 ACCESSORIES

- A. Primer: Non-staining type, recommended by sealant manufacturer to suit application.
- B. Joint Cleaner: Non-corrosive and non-staining type, recommended by sealant manufacturer; compatible with joint forming materials.
- C. Joint Filler (Backer Rod): Round, open cell polyurethane foam rod; oversized 30 to 50 percent larger than joint width; compatible with joint sealer.
- D. Bond Breaker: Pressure sensitive tape recommended by sealant manufacturer to suit application.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 JOB CONDITIONS

- A. Verify joint openings are ready to receive work and field measurements are as shown on Drawings and recommended by manufacturer.
- B. Beginning of installation means installer accepts existing substrate.

#### 3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Clean, prepare, and size joints in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. Remove loose materials and foreign matter which might impair adhesion of sealant.
- B. Verify that joint shaping materials and release tapes are compatible with sealant.
- C. Examine joint dimensions and size materials to achieve required width/depth rations.
- D. Use joint filler to achieve required joint width/depth rations. Provide neck dimension no greater than 1/3 joint width. Verify that joint backing and release tapes are compatible with sealant. Do not puncture backer rod.
- E. Use bone breaker where joint backing is not used.
- F. Perform preparation in accordance with ASTM C804 for solvent release and C790 for latex base sealants as applicable.
- G. Protect elements surrounding the work of this Section from damage or disfiguration.

## 3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Perform work in accordance with ASTM C804 for solvent release and C790 for latex base sealants as applicable.
- B. Install sealant per manufacturer's instructions.
- C. Apply sealant within recommended temperature ranges. Consult manufacturer when sealant cannot be applied within recommended temperature ranges.
- D. Tool joints concave.
- E. Joint: Free of air pockets, foreign embedded matter, ridges, and sags.

#### 3.04 CLEANING AND REPAIRING

- A. Clean work under provisions of Section 017100.
- B. Clean adjacent soiled surfaces.
- C. Repair or replace defaced or disfigured finishes caused by work of this Section.

## 3.05 PROTECTION OF FINISHED WORK

- A. Protect finished installation under provisions of Section 015000.
- B. Protect sealants until cured.

## 3.06 SCHEDULE

Location:

A. Concrete Masonry Exterior Control Joints Exterior Penetrations Interior Control Joints

B. Vapor Retarder (Reference Section 07190)

Floor/Roof Penetrations

C. Flashing and Metal Trim (Ref. Section 07620)

Metal/Metal (concealed) Metal/Metal (exposed) Metal/CMU

D. Windows (Ref. Sections 08520)

Cap Glazing Bead Heel Glazing Bead

Type:

Polyurethane Polyurethane Rated Joint Sealant

Acrylic Acrylic

Sealant Tape Silicone Polyurethane

Silicone Weather Seal Silicone Structural Sealant

#### ALASKA REGIONAL FIRE TRAINING CENTER TRAINING BUILDING REHABILITATION KENAI, ALASKA

# PAGE 5 OF 5

Metal/Metal Flashing lap Joints (concealed)
Exterior Perimeter/Metal (exposed)
Exterior Perimeter/CUM (exposed)
Sill/Flashing (concealed)
Wood/Wood (exposed)
Structural Glazing
Interior Perimeter/Metal (exposed)

E. Door and Relite Frames

Interior Door and Relite Frames/Walls Exterior Door and Relite Frames/CMU Interior Door and Relite Glazing Exterior Door and Relite Glazing Threshold

F. Tile

Η.

Fixtures, Fittings and Equipment/Substrate Accessories and Partitions/Substrate Control/Expansion Joints Top of Base at Kitchen

G. Penetrations

Cable, Pipe, & Utility/Rated Floor/Wall Voids Between Rated Wall/Roof Sheathing In Acoustical Walls and Ceilings P. Lam/Gypsum Board

- I. Horizontal Interior Traffic Joints
- J. Provide sealants for other joints between material, assemblies, and components not scheduled above as specified in individual Sections. Where not indicated above or called out in individual Sections, provide acceptable sealant best suited to application.

END OF SECTION 07 90 00

Tape Sealant Polyurethane Polyurethane Butyl Polyurethane Silicone Acrylic

Acrylic Polyurethane Tape Sealant (pre-shimmed) Tape Sealant (pre-shimmed) Butyl

Sanitary Sealant Sanitary Sealant Polyurethane Sanitary Sealant

Penetration Sealant Penetration Sealant Acrylic Acrylic

Traffic Sealant

SECTION 09 65 10 -

**RESILIENT BASE** 

- PART 1 GENERAL
- 1.01 DESCRIPTION
  - A. Work Included:
    - 1. Preparation of substrate surfaces
    - 2. Application of rubber base.
    - 3. Cleaning of all surfaces and areas of work.
  - B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
    - 1. Cast-In-Place Concrete
    - 2. Finish Carpentry
    - 3. Resilient Flooring
    - 4. Carpeting
  - C. References:
    - 1. FF SS-W-40, Wall Base: Rubber and Vinyl Plastic
- 1.02 SUBMITTALS
  - A. Submit samples and product data under provisions of Section 013400.
  - B. Include duplicate 2 in. long samples of base selected.
- 1.03 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS
  - A. Maintain minimum 70 °F air temperature at installation area for three days prior to, during, and for 48 hours after installation.

Section 033000

Section 062000

Section 096500

Section 096800

- B. Store flooring materials in area of application. Allow three days for material to reach equal temperature as area.
- 1.04 EXTRA STOCK
  - A. Provide not less than 5% for fewer than 100 sq. ft. and 3% for over 100 sq. ft. for each type, color, pattern and size installed.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS
- 2.01 MANUFACTURERS
  - A. General: Following products are for general reference only and are subject to compliance with specified requirements.

BASE:

1. Roppe Product: Rubber Cove Base

# PAGE 2 OF 2

## 2.02 BASE MATERIALS

- A. Provide 4" at locations shown on the drawings.
- B. Rubber Base: Conforming to FS SS-W-40,

## 2.03 ADHESIVES

A. Primers and Adhesives: Waterproof; of types recommended by manufacturer for specified material.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

# 3.01 PREPARATION

A. Remove substrate ridges and bumps. Fill low spots, cracks, joints, holes and other defects with filler.

# 3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Fit joints tight and vertical. Maintain minimum measurement of 18 in. between joints.
- B. Miter internal corners. Use premolded sections for exposed ends and external corners, except wrap base around corners of bullnosed CMU.
- C. Install base on solid backing. Adhere tightly to wall and floor surfaces.
- D. Scribe and fit to door frames and other obstructions.
- E. Install straight and level to variation of plus or minus 1/8 in. over 10 ft.
- F. Install coved base in carpeted areas.

#### 3.03 CLEANING

- A. Remove excess adhesive from base, and wall surfaces without damage.
- B. Clean base surfaces in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

## END OF SECTION 09 65 10

SECTION 09 68 00 -

CARPETING

- PART 1 GENERAL
- 1.01 DESCRIPTION
  - A. Work Included:
    - 1. Preparation of surfaces to receive carpeting.
    - 2. Glue-down carpeting on floor surfaces where indicated, complete with required accessories.

Section 096500

Section 096510

Section 093110

- 3. Install edge strips where carpeting terminates at other floor finishes.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:

- 2. Resilient Flooring
- 3. Resilient Base
- 4. Tile Floor Finish

References:

- 1. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM):
  - a. D1335-67 (1972) Tuft Bind of Pile Floor Coverings.
  - b. E84-84 Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials.
  - c. Carpet and Rug Institute (CRI)
  - d. National Bureau of Standards (NBS) : Flooring Radiant Panel NBSIR-75-950

## 1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Installer Qualifications: Minimum 3 years experience in installation of carpeting on projects similar in size and scope and approved in writing by accepted carpet manufacturer.

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

C.

- A. Submit samples, product date, manufacturer's installation instructions, and shop drawings under provisions of Section 013400.
  - 1. Samples: Submit not less than two sq.ft. of specified carpet in color, yarn and pattern selected and 3 in. length each type edge strip.
  - 2. Shop Drawings: Layout drawings showing seam locations and edge strips.

## 1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Deliver and handle materials under provision of Section 016100.
  - 1. Deliver materials in manufacturer's original, unopened protective packaging with manufacturer's labels, mill register number of each roll and product identification intact and legible.

# PAGE 2 OF 6

- 2. Deliver adhesives and primers in unopened containers.
- 3. Deliver materials to site only when acceptable storage facilities for proper storage are available.
- B. Store and protect materials under provisions of Section 016200.
  - 1. Store adhesives at working temperatures per label instruction. Do not begin installation until a sufficient quantity of materials to complete all spaces is received.
  - 2. At earliest opportunity, open packaging and visually inspect sufficient carpet material to detect obvious deviations from required material including:
    - a. face yarn color
    - b. pattern
    - c. type of construction
    - d. backing type
    - e. pile height
    - f. gauge or pitch
    - g. stitches per inch
  - 3. Replace packaging and report deviations to Owner's Representative at time of detection.

# 1.05 MAINTENANCE DATA

- A. Submit maintenance manual under provisions of Section 017300.
- B. Maintenance Manual: Printed maintenance manual written by carpet manufacturer's technical service department. Submit two hard covered copies to Owner's Representative.
- C. Furnish as-built shop drawings indicating direction of lay and locations of all seams (especially cross seams).

## 1.06 EXTRA MATERIALS

- A. Furnish extra stock under provision of Section 017500.
- B. Maintenance materials: Furnish for replacement and maintenance five percent overrun of carpet used on Project and sufficient specified adhesive to apply overrun of carpet.
  - 1. Overrun on full width, uncut rolls.
  - 2. Upon delivery of carpet, furnish verification of total yardage delivered by mill showing exact amount of overrun.
  - 3. In addition, carpet remnants larger than one foot square shall be bundled (carpet remnants larger than four foot square shall be rolled), tied, marked for size and delivered in accordance with Owner Representative's directions.

## 1.07 WARRANTY

- A. Furnish manufacturer's written 5 year warranty under provisions of Section 017400.
- B. Furnish services required to correct material or installation defects at no additional cost to Owner for a period of five years after date of final acceptance.
- C. Guarantee carpeting for five years against wear.

## 1.08 JOB CONDITIONS

- A. Environmental Requirements:
  - 1. Maintain minimum temperature of 70 °F to 85 °F and humidity of 20 percent to 40 percent three days before, during, and four days after installation of carpet.

a. Following this period maintain minimum room temperature at not less that 55 °F and humidity conditions similar to those normally expected to exist when occupied by Owner.

b. Sequencing: Do not install carpet until work of acoustical ceilings, resilient flooring and fixed casework is complete.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

## 2.01 CARPETING MATERIALS

- A. Manufacturer: Patcraft
- B. Style: Clean Lines Modular, 10284
- C. Coordinate Color with Owner & Architect.
- D. Carpet Tile Details: Clean Lines Modular
  - 1. Construction: Multi-level pattern loop
  - 2. Fiber: Eco Solution Q SD Nylon
  - 3. Dye method: 100% solution dyed
  - 4. Backing: EcoWorx Tile
  - 5. Tufted Weight: 19.0 oz
  - 6. Guage: 1/12
  - 7. Stitches per inch: 11.0
  - 8. Average Density: 7,125
  - 9. Product Size: 24" x 24"

# 2.02 ADDITIONAL MATERIALS

- A. Gripper Tape: As recommended by manufacturer and approved by Owner's Representative, to allow flush, tight joining of rolls and pieces.
- B. Edge & Divider Strips: Vinyl, of shapes and sizes indicated, and as appropriate to condition of use where not otherwise indicated. Include accessories as detailed and required.
  - 1. At Concrete: Mercer Plastics Co. Imperial Carpet Reducer, Stock No. 900, or equal.
  - 2. At Vinyl Composition Tile and Sheet Vinyl: Mercer Plastics Co. Model 150; Johnsonite Model CE-XX-B x CDB-XX-B; Roppe #153 X 155, or equal.
  - 3. At Ceramic Tile: Mercer Plastics Co. Snap Down Std. Edge Unit, Stock No. 333, or equal.
  - 4. At changes in direction of carpet and other locations: As shown, or as otherwise appropriate to condition of use.
- C. Sub-Floor Filler: White premix latex, mix with water to produce cementitious paste.
- D. Primers and Adhesives: Carpet and seam adhesives; of types recommended by carpet manufacturer for specific materials and substrates that is V.O.C. free.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 PREPARATION

- A. Carefully check all field conditions, measurements, and dimensions of areas to receive carpet to assure proper fit.
- B. Clean floors of dust, dirt, solvents, oil, grease, paint, plaster, and other substances detrimental to proper performance of adhesive and carpet. Allow floors to thoroughly dry.
- C. Ensure floors are level, with maximum surface variation of 1/4 in. in 10 ft. noncumulative.
- D. Ensure concrete floors are free from scaling and irregularities and exhibit neutrality relative to acidity and alkalinity.
- E. Use an approved cementitious filler to patch cracks, small holes, and for leveling.
- F. Do not proceed with installation until unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.
- G. Prohibit traffic until filler has cured.
- H. Vacuum floor surface.
- I. Coordinate with installation of resilient base specified under Section 096510.

# 3.02 CARPET LAYOUT

- A. Layout in accordance with reviewed layout drawings and as supplemented below.
- B. Layout rolls of carpet. Verify carpet edge match before cutting to ensure minimal color variation. Minimize number of carpet seams.
- C. Do not locate seams at high traffic pivot points, and perpendicular to doors.
  - 1. Locate seams at doorways parallel to and centered directly under doors in closed position.
  - 2. Neatly cut and securely fit cutouts at interruptions.
- D. All carpet shall be laid out with the seams in the same north-south direction.

#### 3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Install in accordance with finish plan.
- B. Apply primer in recommended manner in quantity recommended by manufacturer, and as required by adhesive manufacturer to ensure proper adhesion.
- C. Spread adhesive in quantity recommended by manufacturer after primer application where required by adhesive manufacturer to ensure proper adhesion over full area of installation. Apply only enough adhesive to permit proper adhesion of carpet before initial set. Roll lightly to eliminate air pockets and ensure uniform bond.
- D. Double cut carpet as required for intended butt seam and pattern match. For length seams, cut carpet seams between two rows of yarn for full length of seam, making sure not to jump over either side yarn. Make cuts straight, true to lines and unfrayed.
- E. Fit seams straight, not crowded or peaked, free of gaps. Treat seams with seam adhesive.
- F. Install edge strips at intersections of differing flooring materials, where carpet changes directions and at exposed edges where carpeting terminates, full length pieces only. Butt ends tight to vertical surfaces. Where splicing cannot be avoided, butt ends tight and flush. Miter corners where required and fit joints tightly. Provide edge moldings at junctions with other interruptions and where shown.
- G. Scribe carpeting to walls, columns, cabinets, floor outlets and other appurtenances to produce tight joints. Fit tight to vertical surfaces without gaps where no base is scheduled.
- H. Do not place heavy objects such as furniture on carpeted surfaces for minimum of 24 hours or until adhesive is set.
- I. Entire carpet installation is to be laid tight and flat to substrate, well adhered, and present a uniform pleasing appearance. Ensure monolithic color, pattern, and texture match within any one area.

# PAGE 6 OF 6

# 3.04 PROTECTION

A. Prohibit traffic from carpeting for 24 hours after installation, and do not place heavy objects such as furniture on carpet surfaces until at least seven days after installation.

# 3.05 CLEANING

- A. Immediately remove with solvent all adhesive spots and smears from carpet and adjacent exposed surfaces as they occur. Remove excess adhesive from floor, wall and base surfaces without damage.
- B. Remove from site all rubbish, wrapping paper, salvages and debris.
- C. Thoroughly vacuum clean carpet. Protect from soiling and construction damage until accepted by Owner under provisions of Sections 016200 and 017100. Package and deliver remnants as specified above.

END OF SECTION 09 68 00

# PAGE 1 OF 2

SECTION 10 92 50 -

MISCELLANEOUS SPECIALTIES

- PART 1 GENERAL
- 1.01 DESCRIPTION
  - A. Work Included:
    - 1. Items scheduled under PART 2 Products.

# 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit product data, samples, shop drawings and manufacturer's installation instructions under provisions of Section 013400.
- B. Provide above submittals on each item scheduled under Products.
- C. Indicate framing system, sizes and spacing of hangers, braces, and components, loads, bearing and anchor details of ceiling hooks. Submit design calculations signed by professional engineer experienced in structural framing design of metal components.
- 1.03 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING
  - A. Deliver products of this Section in individual packages, under provision of Section 016100.
  - B. Protect products of this Section from damage or disfiguration, under provisions of Section 016200.
  - C. Mask off products of this Section to protect from over spray or finishing of adjacent surfaces.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS
- 2.01 MANUFACTURERS
  - A. Listed under each scheduled item.
- 2.02 MATERIALS
  - A. ITEM 101 SCBA CYLINDER FILLING STATION

1. GENERAL. This item shall consist of providing the equipment as specified including all costs associated with delivery, installation and training.

2. PREPARATION AND SHIPMENT. The equipment shall be packed in such a manner as to insure safe delivery to the Emergency Services Training Center, Kenai, Alaska.

3. WARRANTY. The contractor must supply a warranty statement that will include the following as a minimum:

- a. Manufacturer's obligations
- b. Duration of warranty period

## PAGE 2 OF 2

c. Warranty procedure

# d. Disclaimers

A parts and service warranty shall be supplied by the contractor, commencing upon acceptance of the equipment by the purchaser, for components with specific warranty periods called for in this specification. For the remaining equipment, a minimum one - year parts and service warranty shall be supplied by the contractor, commencing upon acceptance of the equipment by the purchaser. These warranties shall guarantee the equipment as to the specified capacities and performance, and to be free from all defects in design, materials, and workmanship. All labor, transportation cost, and defective parts shall be replaced free of cost to the purchaser during the warranty periods.

The warranty provided for the bottle filling station expansion will be only for the additional parts and equipment provided for that item.

4 SERVICE. The Contractor shall be able to provide service during and after the warranty, within 24 hours to the site in Kenai, Alaska.

5 INSPECTION AND TESTING. The functioning of the systems, controls, and instruments shall be demonstrated upon delivery and after installation.

- PART 3 EXECUTION
- 3.01 INSTALLATION
  - A. Install miscellaneous specialty items plumb and level, conforming with manufacturer's installation requirements, in accordance with reviewed shop drawings.
- 3.02 PROTECTION
  - A. Protect installed items in accordance with Section 015000.

END OF SECTION 10 92 50

SECTION 22 00 00

# BASIC PLUMBING REQUIREMENTS

## PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes basic plumbing requirements, basic plumbing methods, restricted materials, and plumbing systems testing.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Division 01: All sections of Division 1 as they pertain to general contract requirements.

## 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 –product data.
- B. Submittal Requirements: In addition to submittal procedures as outlined under Division 1, mechanical submittals shall be submitted as follows:
  - 1. Plumbing submittals shall be submitted complete and all at one time. Partial submittals will not be considered and will be returned without review. In some cases, the Owner's Representative may review partial submittals where early ordering of some equipment is essential to the project. Review of such partial submittals is at the discretion of the Owner's Representative. Any project delay due to the Contractor's failure to make complete submittals shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Submittals shall be compiled in a notebook. The data shall be arranged and indexed by specification sections.
  - 2. Catalog sheets shall be complete and the item or model proposed for use by the Contractor shall be clearly marked and identified as to which item in the specifications or on the drawings is being submitted.

## 1.03 SUBSTITUTIONS

- A. Division 01 Product Options and Substitutions.
- B. Substitution Requirements: In addition to substitution requirements as outlined under Division 1, mechanical material and equipment substitutions shall meet the following minimum requirements:
  - 1. Size: Proposed substitutions shall be of equivalent size and fit within available space with adequate service access as recommended by the equipment manufacturer.
  - 2. Quality: Proposed substitutions shall be of equal or greater quality to specified equipment.
  - 3. Accessories and Options: Proposed substitutions shall be provided with appropriate accessories and options as required for a complete and operational system.

4. System Modifications: The Contractor shall be responsible for modifications to plumbing systems and finishes as required for implementing proposed substitute products.

## 1.04 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

- A. Conform to applicable local codes and amendments including but not limited to the following.
  - 1. Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC) 2012 Edition
  - 2. Local amendments to adopted Codes.

# 1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Materials shall be delivered, stored, and handled at the project site to prevent damage and facilitate inspection.

## 1.06 RESTRICTED MATERIALS

- A. Materials containing asbestos in any form are not allowed. Where materials or equipment provided by the Contractor are found to contain asbestos, such items shall be removed and replaced with non-asbestos items at no additional cost to the Owner.
- B. Materials containing lead are not allowed. Where materials or equipment provided by the Contractor are found to contain lead, such items shall be removed and replaced with lead free materials at no additional cost to the Owner.

## 1.07 BASIC PLUMBING METHODS

- A. Installation Instructions: Comply with manufacturer's published instructions for delivery, storage, protection, installation, and materials.
- B. Drawings and Specifications:
  - 1. The Drawings indicate the general arrangement of systems and are to be followed insofar as possible. If substantial deviations from the layout are necessitated by field conditions, detailed layouts of the proposed departures shall be submitted in writing to the Owner's Representative, for approval before proceeding with the work.
  - 2. This Contractor shall make all measurements in the field and shall be responsible for correct fitting. Contractor shall coordinate this work with all other trades in such a manner as to cause a minimum of conflict or delay.
  - 3. Where any work is placed as to cause or contribute to a conflict it shall be readjusted at the expense of the Contractor. The Owner's Representative's decision shall be final regarding the arrangement of ducts, piping, etc, where conflict arises.
  - 4. Where offsets in systems are required to complete the installation, or for the proper operation of the system, these shall be deemed to be included in the Contract.
  - 5. Significant deviations from drawings must be approved by the Owner's Representative.

- C. Location of Plumbing Systems:
  - 1. Plumbing layouts indicated on drawings are diagrammatical. Exact locations of pipes, and equipment may vary because of conflicts with work of other trades.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Materials and equipment shall be new, unused, and delivered to site in manufacturer's original packaging.
- B. Equipment shall be regularly cataloged items of the manufacturer and shall be supplied as a complete unit in accordance with the manufacturer's standard specifications. Optional items shall be provided as required for proper installation unless noted otherwise.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verification of Conditions: Verify that field measurements, surfaces, substrates and conditions are as required, and ready to receive Work.
- B. Report in writing to Owner's Representative prevailing conditions that will adversely affect satisfactory execution of the Work of this Section. Do not proceed with Work until unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.
- C. By beginning Work, Contractor accepts conditions and assumes responsibility for correcting unsuitable conditions encountered at no additional cost to the Owner.

#### 3.02 INSTALLATION – GENERAL

A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

# 3.03 TESTING

- A. Testing Requirements: The Contractor shall test systems as specified herein and as required by local code, and local authority having jurisdiction. The Contractor shall be responsible for all materials, equipment, and costs associated with testing. The Contractor shall notify the Owner's Representative with respect to testing schedules in a timely manner such that personnel may be on site to witness testing if so desired by the Owner's Representative. Scheduling of testing with the local authority having jurisdiction shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit testing reports to the Owner's Representative.
- B. Roof and Overflow Drains Water Test: Cap all openings, fill pipe to the highest opening, and observe for no drop-in water level for 1 hour. Repair all leaks. If freezing could occur in pipes to be tested, provide air test by forcing air into the system to 5 PSI. The pressure must remain for 1 hour without dropping. The gauge must be 0-15 PSI maximum, for high resolution.

## END OF SECTION

## SECTION 22 14 00

# STORM DRAINAGE PIPING

## PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section includes pipe and pipe fittings for storm water piping systems.

#### 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASTM A74 Cast Iron Soil Pipe and Fittings.
- B. ASTM C564 Rubber Gaskets for Cast Iron Soil Pipe and Fittings.
- C. CISPI 301 (Cast Iron Soil Pipe Institute) Cast Iron Soil Pipe and Fittings for Hubless Cast Iron Sanitary Systems.
- D. ASTM F708 Design and Installation of Rigid Pipe Hangers.
- E. ASME A112.21.2 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Roof Drains.
- F. AWWA C110 (American Water Works Association) Ductile Iron and Gray Iron Fittings 3 in. through 48 in., for Water and Other Liquids.
- G. AWWA C151 (American Water Works Association) Ductile-Iron Pipe, Centrifugally Cast in Metal Molds or Sand-Lined Molds, for Water or Other Liquids.
- H. MSS SP58 (Manufacturers Standardization Society of the Valve and Fittings Industry) Pipe Hangers and Supports Materials, Design and Manufacturer.
- I. MSS SP89 (Manufacturers Standardization Society of the Valve and Fittings Industry) Pipe Hangers and Supports Fabrication and Installation Practices.

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 1 Administrative Requirements.
- B. Product Data: Submit Provide data on pipe materials, fittings, and accessories.
- C. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Submit installation instructions for all material and equipment.
- D. Manufacturer's Certificate: Certify that products meet or exceed specified requirements.

#### 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract Close-Out Procedures.
- B. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of equipment and clean-outs.

C. Operation and Maintenance Data: Submit spare parts lists, exploded assembly views for all pumps and equipment.

#### 1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Division 01 Administrative Requirements; Product storage and handling requirements.
- B. Protect piping systems from entry of foreign materials by temporary covers, completing sections of the work, and isolating parts of completed system.

#### 1.06 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Division 01 Administrative Requirements.
- B. Do not install underground piping when bedding is wet or frozen.

#### 1.07 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

#### 1.08 WARRANTY

A. Division 1 – Closeout Submittals.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 STORM WATER PIPING, ABOVE GRADE

- A. Cast Iron Pipe: CISPI 301, hubless, service weight.
  - 1. Fittings: Cast iron.
  - 2. Joints: Neoprene gaskets and stainless-steel clamp-and-shield assemblies.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Division 01 Administrative Requirements: Coordination and project conditions.
- B. Verify that excavations are to required grade, dry, and not over-excavated.

# 3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Ream pipe and tube ends. Remove burrs.
- B. Remove scale and dirt, on inside and outside, before assembly.

#### 22 14 00-2

C. Prepare piping connections to equipment with flanges or unions.

#### 3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Install piping to allow for expansion and contraction without stressing pipe, joints, or connected equipment.
- B. Provide clearance in hangers and from structure and other equipment for installation of insulation and access to valves and fittings.
- C. Pipe Hangers and Supports:
  - 1. Install in accordance with ASTM B31.9.
  - 2. Support horizontal piping.
  - 3. Install hangers to provide minimum 1/2 inch space between finished covering and adjacent work.
  - 4. Place hangers within 12 inches of each horizontal elbow.
  - 5. Use hangers with 1-1/2 inch minimum vertical adjustment. Design hangers for pipe movement without disengagement of supported pipe.
  - 6. Support cast iron drainage piping at every joint.

# END OF SECTION

#### PAGE 1 OF 3

#### SECTION 22 40 00

# PLUMBING FIXTURES

## PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

# A. Section Includes:

- 1. Roof drains.
- 2. Roof overflow drains.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 22 14 00 Storm Drain Piping

## 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. American Society of Mechanical Engineers:
  - 1. ASME A112.21.2M Roof Drains.

## 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Submittal Procedures: Submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Submit catalog illustrations of fixtures, sizes, rough-in dimensions, utility sizes, trim, and finishes.

## 1.04 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.

## 1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Division 01 Product Requirements: Product storage and handling requirements.
- B. Accept fixtures on Site in factory packaging. Inspect for damage.
- C. Protect installed fixtures from damage by securing areas and by leaving factory packaging in place to protect fixtures and prevent use.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

# 2.01 ROOF DRAIN AND OVERFLOW DRAINS (RD-1 AND OD-1)

- A. Manufacturers
  - 1. J.R. Smith.
  - 2. Zurn.
  - 3. Josam.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Roof Drain.
  - 1. Assembly: ASME A112.21.2M.
  - 2. Body: Cast iron with sump.
  - 3. Strainer: Removable cast iron dome.
  - 4. Accessories: Coordinate with roofing type.
  - 5. Membrane flange and membrane clamp with integral gravel stop.
    - a) Adjustable under deck clamp.
    - b) Roof sump receiver.
    - c) Waterproofing flange.
    - d) Controlled flow weir.
    - e) Leveling frame.
    - f) Adjustable extension sleeve for roof insulation.
- C. Overflow Drain.
  - 1. Assembly: ASME A112.21.2M.
  - 2. Body: Cast iron with sump and 2" high exterior water dam.
  - 3. Strainer: Removable cast iron dome.
  - 4. Accessories: Coordinate with roofing type.
  - 5. Membrane flange and membrane clamp with integral gravel stop.
    - a) Adjustable under deck clamp.
    - b) Roof sump receiver.
    - c) Waterproofing flange.

#### PAGE 3 OF 3

- d) Controlled flow weir.
- e) Leveling frame.
- f) Adjustable extension sleeve for roof insulation.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

- 3.01 EXAMINATION
  - A. Division 1 Administrative Requirements: Coordination and project conditions.
  - B. Verify roof is prepared and ready for installation of fixtures.

# 3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Install components level and plumb.
- B. Install and secure fixtures in place per manufacturer's instructions.

# END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 00 00

BASIC HVAC REQUIREMENTS

## PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section includes basic mechanical requirements, basic mechanical methods, restricted materials, motors for mechanical equipment, vibration isolation, seismic restraint, painting of mechanical systems, and mechanical systems testing.

#### 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 1 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Submittal Requirements: In addition to submittal procedures as outlined under Division 1, mechanical submittals shall be submitted as follows:
  - 1. Mechanical submittals shall be submitted complete and all at one time. Partial submittals will not be considered and will be returned without review. In some cases, the Owner's Representative may review partial submittals where early ordering of some equipment is essential to the project. Review of such partial submittals is at the discretion of the Owner's Representative. Any project delay due to the Contractor's failure to make complete submittals shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Submittals shall be compiled in a notebook. The data shall be arranged and indexed by specification sections.
  - 2. Catalog sheets shall be complete, and the item or model proposed for use by the Contractor shall be clearly marked and identified as to which item in the specifications or on the drawings is being submitted.

## 1.03 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 1 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Contract Closeout Requirements: In addition to contract closeout requirements as outlined under Division 1, mechanical contract closeout requirements shall include the following:
  - 1. Record Documents:
    - a) Record Drawings.
    - b) Operation & Maintenance Manuals.
  - 2. Testing Reports.
  - 3. Equipment Startup Reports.
  - 4. Balancing Reports.
  - 5. Systems Demonstrations.
  - 6. Operation & Maintenance Instruction.

# 1.04 RECORD DOCUMENTS

- A. Record Drawings: In addition to record drawing requirements as outlined under Division 1, mechanical record drawings shall include the following:
  - 1. Any and all changes made in the field with respect to original design drawings.
  - 2. Actual valve locations and valve tag identification.
- B. Shop Drawings: Control system shop drawings shall be provided to the Owner. Record shop drawings shall be produced utilizing AutoCAD 2019 or more current release and provided on PDF digital format on a USB 3.0 or higher thumb drive.
- C. Operation & Maintenance Manuals: In addition to Operation & Maintenance Manual requirements as outlined under Division 1, mechanical O&M manuals shall include the following:
  - 1. Product data for each piece of equipment including local supplier and local manufacturer's representative including address, phone number, and fax number
  - 2. Manufacturers operation & maintenance instructions for each piece of equipment.
  - 3. Identification numbers for all parts and nearest source for obtaining parts.
  - 4. Verbal description of each system.
  - 5. Summary of maintenance instructions to Owner.
  - 6. Periodic maintenance form.
  - 7. Testing reports.
  - 8. Equipment startup reports.
  - 9. Final balance report.
  - 10. Reduced scale record drawings.
  - 11. Reduced scale shop drawings.

# 1.05 OPERATION & MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTION

- A. Notification: The Contractor shall notify the Owner's Representative in a timely manner to schedule O&M instruction such that facility personnel may be present for such instruction.
- B. Instruction: The Contractor shall provide detailed instruction on the operation and maintenance requirements for all mechanical systems. Instruction shall include class time with maintenance personnel and thorough on-site observations and review of each mechanical system and applicable equipment.

## 1.06 SUBSTITUTIONS

A. Division 1 – Product Options and Substitutions.

- B. Substitution Requirements: In addition to substitution requirements as outlined under Division 1, mechanical material and equipment substitutions shall meet the following minimum requirements:
  - 1. Size: Proposed substitutions shall be of equivalent size and fit within available space with adequate service access as recommended by the equipment manufacturer.
  - 2. Performance: Proposed substitutions shall have equal or superior performance to specified equipment.
  - 3. Quality: Proposed substitutions shall be of equal or greater quality to specified equipment.
  - 4. Weight: Proposed substitutions shall be of equal weight to specified equipment or Contractor shall be responsible for modifications to structure as required for increased weight.
  - 5. Accessories and Options: Proposed substitutions shall be provided with appropriate accessories and options as required for a complete and operational system.
  - 6. System Modifications: The Contractor shall be responsible for modifications to mechanical systems, electrical systems, and building structure and finishes as required for implementing proposed substitute products.

## 1.07 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

- A. Conform to applicable local codes and amendments including but not limited to the following.
  - 1. International Building Code (IBC) 2012 Edition
  - 2. International Mechanical Code (IMC) 2012 Edition
  - 3. International Fire Code (IFC) 2012 Edition
  - 4. National Electric Code 2017 Edition
- B. Products Requiring Electrical Connection: Listed and classified by Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc., as suitable for the purpose specified and indicated.

#### 1.08 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Materials shall be delivered, stored, and handled at the project site to prevent damage and facilitate inspection.
- B. Protect motors stored on site from weather and moisture by maintaining factory covers and suitable weather-proof covering.

#### 1.09 RESTRICTED MATERIALS

A. Materials containing asbestos in any form are not allowed. Where materials or equipment provided by the Contractor are found to contain asbestos, such items shall be removed and replaced with non-asbestos items at no additional cost to the Owner.

B. Materials containing lead are not allowed. Where materials or equipment provided by the Contractor are found to contain lead, such items shall be removed and replaced with lead free materials at no additional cost to the Owner.

# 1.10 BASIC MECHANICAL METHODS

- A. Installation Instructions: Comply with manufacturer's published instructions for delivery, storage, protection, installation, and materials.
- B. Operation of Equipment during Construction: When equipment is operable, and it is to the advantage of the Contractor to operate the equipment during construction, such equipment may be operated provided that the operation is properly supervised, and the Contractor retains full responsibility for the equipment operated. Regardless of whether or not the equipment has or has not been operated, the Contractor shall properly clean the equipment, install new filter media, make all required adjustments, and complete all punch list items before final acceptance by the Owner's Representative.
- C. Service Access: Install equipment and materials to provide required access for servicing and maintenance. Coordinate the final location of concealed equipment and devices requiring access with final location of required access panels and doors. Allow ample space for removal of all parts that require replacement or servicing.
- D. Access Doors: Where mechanical equipment requiring access (including valves) is located above GWB ceilings, within wall assemblies, or other non-readily accessible locations; access doors shall be provided. Access doors within areas of public occupancy shall be lockable type.
- E. Mounting Heights: Where mounting heights are not detailed or dimensioned, install mechanical services and overhead equipment to provide the maximum headroom possible.
- F. Exposed Systems: Items exposed (in areas without ceilings) shall be installed in a neat, orderly manner. Elements shall be perpendicular and parallel to building lines. Items exposed in normally occupied areas (not including mechanical rooms) shall be finished in accordance with specifications. In those conditions where ductwork is exposed in finished areas, careful craftsmanship and only the highest standards of installation will be acceptable. All routing of exposed ducts, pipes, conduits, shall be approved in advance by the Owner's Representative prior to installation.
- G. Drawings and Specifications:
  - 1. The Drawings indicate the general arrangement of systems and are to be followed insofar as possible. If substantial deviations from the layout are necessitated by field conditions, detailed layouts of the proposed departures shall be submitted in writing to the Owner's Representative, for approval before proceeding with the work.
  - 2. This Contractor shall make all measurements in the field and shall be responsible for correct fitting. Contractor shall coordinate this work with all other trades in such a manner as to cause a minimum of conflict or delay.
  - 3. Where any work is placed as to cause or contribute to a conflict it shall be readjusted at the expense of the Contractor. The Owner's Representative's decision shall be final regarding the arrangement of ducts, piping, etc, where conflict arises.
  - 4. Where offsets in systems are required to complete the installation, or for the proper operation of the system, these shall be deemed to be included in the Contract.

- 5. Significant deviations from drawings must be approved by the Owner's Representative.
- H. Location of Mechanical Systems:
  - 1. Mechanical layouts indicated on drawings are diagrammatical. Exact locations of ducts, pipes, and equipment may vary because of conflicts with work of other trades.
  - 2. Locate equipment requiring periodic servicing so that it is readily accessible. Do not back up service sides to walls, nor place it too close to other equipment to make service impractical.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

## 2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Materials and equipment shall be new, unused, and delivered to site in manufacturer's original packaging.
- B. Equipment shall be regularly cataloged items of the manufacturer and shall be supplied as a complete unit in accordance with the manufacturer's standard specifications. Optional items shall be provided as required for proper installation unless noted otherwise. Manufacturer's identification shall be maintained for all equipment.

#### 2.02 MOTORS

- A. Motors: Motors for mechanical equipment shall be furnished by the equipment manufacturer, for the specific application and duty applied, and as required to deliver rated horsepower without exceeding temperature ratings when operated on power systems with a combined variation in voltage and frequency not more than plus or minus 10% of rated voltage. Motors for pumps and fans shall be selected for non-overloading.
- B. Electrical Characteristics: The Contractor shall verify from the drawings and specifications available electrical power characteristics and furnish equipment that will perform satisfactorily under the conditions as shown and specified.
- C. Service Factor: Motors shall be sized for 1.15 service factor and not to exceed 40 degrees C. temperature rise above ambient.
- D. Motors on belt driven equipment shall have slide rails with adjusting screws for belt tension adjustment. Motors exposed to the weather shall be weather-protected.
- E. Fractional horsepower motors shall have self-resetting thermal overload switches.
- F. Motor sound power levels shall not be greater than recommended in NEMA MG 1-12.49.
- G. Provide motors with drive shafts long enough to extend completely through belt sheaves when sheaves are properly aligned or balanced.

# 2.03 VIBRATION ISOLATION

- A. General: Rotating equipment shall be provided with vibration isolation except for small in-line circulating pumps. Where mechanical equipment is provided with internal vibration isolation, external vibration isolation is not required unless specifically indicated on drawings.
- B. Internal Vibration Isolation: Internal vibration isolation equipment shall be sized by the equipment manufacturer to provide appropriate isolation with respect to equipment rotating characteristics. Earthquake snubbers shall be provided where required.
- C. External Vibration Isolation: External vibration isolation shall be provided where indicated on drawings. Vibration isolation equipment shall be sized by the manufacturer-based equipment rotating characteristics to provide appropriate isolation. Earthquake snubbers shall be provided where required.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verification of Conditions: Verify that field measurements, surfaces, substrates and conditions are as required, and ready to receive Work.
- B. Report in writing to Owner's Representative prevailing conditions that will adversely affect satisfactory execution of the Work of this Section. Do not proceed with Work until unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.
- C. By beginning Work, Contractor accepts conditions and assumes responsibility for correcting unsuitable conditions encountered at no additional cost to the Owner.

#### 3.02 INSTALLATION – GENERAL

A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

#### 3.03 INSTALLATION – MOTORS

- A. Install securely on firm foundation. Mount ball bearing motors with shaft in any position.
- B. Check line voltage and phase and ensure agreement with nameplate.
- C. Make electrical connections and test motor for proper rotation/ phasing under Division 26.
- D. Adjust motors together with driven equipment to insure equipment is dynamically and statically balanced. Correct any excessive vibration or noise from the equipment.

#### 3.04 SEISMIC RESTRAINT OF MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT

A. Seismically restrain equipment in accordance with the International Building Code. Seismic restraint assemblies shall be premanufactured, or field fabricated, secured to building structural components.

# 3.05 SEISMIC RESTRAINT OF PIPING AND DUCTWORK SYSTEMS

- A. Seismically restrain all piping and ductwork systems in accordance with the SMACNA Seismic Restraint Manual Guidelines for Mechanical Systems.
- B. Seismic restraint shall be in accordance with Seismic Hazard Level (SHL) A of the SMACNA Seismic Restraint Manual.
- C. General Requirements for Piping:
  - 1. Bracing details, schedules, and notes of SMACNA manual apply to all types of pipe, conduit and all types of joints. Exception: Piping suspended by individual hangers 12 inches or less in length, as measured from the top of the pipe to the bottom of the support where the hanger is attached, need not be braced.
  - 2. Brace all fuel oil piping, gas piping and compressed air piping that is 1-inch nominal diameter or larger.
  - 3. Brace all piping located in boiler room, mechanical equipment rooms, and refrigeration mechanical rooms that is 1-1/4 inches nominal diameter and larger.
  - 4. Brace all pipes 2-1/2 inch minimal diameter and larger.
  - 5. Transverse bracing shall be at 40 feet maximum except where a lesser spacing is indicated in the tables for bracing of pipes.
  - 6. Longitudinal bracing shall be at 80 feet maximum except where a lesser spacing is indicated in the tables of SMACNA manual. In pipes where thermal expansion is a consideration, an anchor point may be used as the specified longitudinal brace provided that it has a capacity equal to or greater than a longitudinal brace. The longitudinal braces and connections must be capable of resisting the additional force induced by expansion and contraction.
  - 7. For all gas piping, the bracing details, schedules and notes of SMACNA manual may be used, except that transverse bracing shall be at 20 feet maximum, and longitudinal bracing shall be 40 feet maximum
  - 8. Transverse bracing for one pipe section may also act as longitudinal bracing for a pipe section of the same size connected perpendicular to it if the bracing is installed within 24 inches of the elbow or tee.
  - 9. Seismic braces for pipes on trapeze hangers may be used.
  - 10. Provide flexibility in joints where pipes pass through building seismic joints or expansion joints where rigidly supported pipes connect to equipment with vibration isolators. For threaded piping, the flexibility may be provided by the installation of swing joints. For piping with manufactured ball joints, select the length of piping offset using seismic drift in place of the expansion given in the joint manufacturer's selection table. Seismic drift = 0.015 feet per foot of height above the base where seismic separation occurs.
  - 11. Branch lines may not be used to brace main lines.
  - 12. A rigid piping system shall not be braced to dissimilar parts of the building or to two dissimilar building systems that may respond differently during an earthquake.

- 13. Cast iron pipe of all types, glass pipe, and any other pipe joined with a shield and clamp assembly, where the top of the pipe is 12 inches or more from the supporting structure, shall be braced on each side of a change in direction of 90° or more. Riser joints shall be braced or stabilized between floors.
- 14. Vertical risers shall be laterally supported with a riser clamp at each floor. For buildings greater than six stories high, all risers shall be engineered individually.
- 15. Restrain risers in hubless piping systems where the riser joints are unsupported between floors.

# 3.06 TESTING

A. Testing Requirements: The Contractor shall test systems as specified herein and as required by local code, and local authority having jurisdiction. The Contractor shall be responsible for all materials, equipment, and costs associated with testing. The Contractor shall notify the Owner's Representative with respect to testing schedules in a timely manner such that personnel may be on site to witness testing if so desired by the Owner's Representative. Scheduling of testing with the local authority having jurisdiction shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit testing reports to the Owner's Representative.

# 3.07 SYSTEMS ADJUSTMENT

A. Systems shall be adjusted as necessary to ensure proper function of all controls, proper air distribution and elimination of drafts, noise and vibration. All systems shall be fully adjusted and in operating condition at substantial completion.

# 3.08 SYSTEMS DEMONSTRATION

- A. Notification: The Contractor shall notify and schedule demonstration of systems with the Owner's Representative such that appropriate personnel may be on site for demonstrations.
- B. Demonstration Personnel: The Contractor shall provide qualified personnel and materials on site as required to demonstrate systems.
- C. Demonstration: The Contractor shall demonstrate operation of all mechanical systems to the satisfaction of the Owner's Representative.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 01 30

# HVAC AIR DUCT CLEANING

# PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 HEALTH AND SAFETY

- A. Safety Standards: Cleaning contractors shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local requirements for protecting the safety of the contractors' employees, building occupants, and the environment. All applicable standards of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) shall be followed when working in accordance with this specification.
- B. Occupant Safety: No processes or materials shall be employed in such a manner that they will introduce additional hazards into occupied spaces.
- C. Disposal of Debris: All Debris removed from the HVAC System shall be disposed of in accordance with applicable federal, state and local requirements.

# 1.02 QUALIFICATIONS OF THE HVAC SYSTEM CLEANING CONTRACTOR

- A. Membership: The HVAC system cleaning contractor shall be a certified member of the National Air Duct Cleaners Association (NADCA), or shall maintain membership in a nationally recognized non-profit industry organization dedicated to the cleaning of HVAC systems.
- B. Certification: The HVAC system cleaning contractor shall have a minimum of one (1) Air System Cleaning Specialist (ASCS) certified by NADCA on a full time basis, or shall have staff certified by a nationally recognized certification program and organization dedicated to the cleaning of HVAC systems.
- C. Supervisor Qualifications: A person certified as an ASCS by NADCA, or maintaining an equivalent certification by a nationally recognized program and organization, shall be responsible for the total work herein specified.
- D. Experience: The HVAC system cleaning contractor shall submit records of experience in the field of HVAC system cleaning as requested by the Owner. Bids shall only be considered from firms which are regularly engaged in HVAC system maintenance with an emphasis on HVAC system cleaning and decontamination.
- E. Equipment, Materials and Labor: The HVAC system cleaning contractor shall possess and furnish all necessary equipment, materials and labor to adequately perform the specified services.
  - 1. The contractor shall assure that its employees have received safety equipment training, medical surveillance programs, individual health protection measures, and manufacturer's product and material safety data sheets (MSDS) as required for the work by the U. S. Occupational Safety and Health Administration, and as described by this specification.
  - 2. The contractor shall maintain a copy of all current MSDS documentation and safety certifications at the site at all times, as well as comply with all other site documentation requirements of applicable OSHA programs and this specification.

3. Contractor shall submit to the Owner all Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for all chemical products proposed to be used in the cleaning process.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. Scope: This section defines the minimum requirements necessary to render HVAC components clean.
- B. The Contractor shall be responsible for the removal of visible surface contaminants and deposits from within the HVAC system in strict accordance with these specifications.
- C. The HVAC system includes any interior surface of the facility's air distribution system for conditioned spaces and/or occupied zones. This includes the entire heating, air-conditioning and ventilation system from the points where the air enters the system to the points where the air is discharged from the system. The return air grilles, return air ducts (except ceiling plenums and mechanical room) to the air handling unit (AHU), the interior surfaces of the AHU, mixing box, coil compartment, condensate drain pans, humidifiers and dehumidifiers, supply air ducts, supply air diffusers/grilles, fans, fan housing, fan blades, air wash systems, spray eliminators, turning vanes, filters, filter housings, reheat coils, and supply diffusers are all considered part of the HVAC system.

#### 2.02 THE FOLLOWING SHALL CLEAN

- A. The full length of all supply air ducts.
- B. The full length of all return air ducts.
- C. The full length of all outside air ducts.
- D. The full length of all exhaust air ducts.
- E. All supply and return air registers and diffusers.
- F. All air handlers including coils, blowers, filter racks, drain pans, and the entire interior of the air handler.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

## 3.01 GENERAL HVAC SYSTEM CLEANING REQUIREMENTS

- A. Containment: Debris removed during cleaning shall be collected and precautions must be taken to ensure that debris is not otherwise dispersed outside the HVAC system during the cleaning process.
- B. Particulate Collection: Where the Particulate Collection Equipment is exhausting inside the building, HEPA filtration with 99.97% collection efficiency for 0.3-micron size (or greater) particles shall be used. When the Particulate Collection Equipment is exhausting outside the

building, Mechanical Cleaning operations shall be undertaken only with Particulate Collection Equipment in place, including adequate filtration to contain Debris removed from the HVAC system. When the Particulate Collection Equipment is exhausting outside the building, precautions shall be taken to locate the equipment down wind and away from all air intakes and other points of entry into the building.

- C. Controlling Odors: All reasonable measures shall be taken to control offensive odors and/or mist vapors during the cleaning process.
- D. Component Cleaning: Cleaning methods shall be employed such that all HVAC system components must be Visibly Clean. Upon completion, all components must be returned to those settings recorded just prior to cleaning operations.
- E. Air-Volume Control Devices: Dampers and any air-directional mechanical devices inside the HVAC system must have their position marked prior to cleaning and, upon completion, must be restored to their marked position.
- F. Service Openings: The contractor shall utilize service openings, as required for proper cleaning, at various points of the HVAC system for physical and mechanical entry, and inspection.
  - 1. Contractor shall utilize the existing service openings already installed in the HVAC system where possible.
  - 2. Other openings shall be created where needed and they must be created so they can be sealed in accordance with industry codes and standards.
  - 3. Closures must not significantly hinder, restrict, or alter the air-flow within the system.
  - 4. Closures must be properly insulated to prevent heat loss/gain or condensation on surfaces within the system.
  - 5. Openings must not compromise the structural integrity of the system.
  - 6. Construction techniques used in the creation of openings should conform to requirements of applicable building and fire codes, and applicable NFPA, AMACNA and NADCA Standards.
  - 7. Cutting service openings into flexible duct is not permitted. Flexible duct shall be disconnected at the ends as needed for proper cleaning and inspection.
  - 8. Rigid fiber glass duct board duct systems shall be resealed in accordance with NAIMA recommended practices. Only closure techniques which comply with UL Standard 181 or UL Standard 181a are suitable for fiber glass duct system closures.
  - 9. All service openings capable of being re-opened for future inspection or remediation shall be clearly marked and shall have their location reported to the Owner in project report documents.
- G. Ceiling sections (tile): The contractor may remove and reinstall ceiling sections to gain access to HVAC systems during the cleaning process.
- H. Air distribution devices (registers, grilles & diffusers): The contractor shall clean all air distribution devices.

- I. Air handling units, terminal units (VAV, Dual duct boxes, etc.), blowers and fans: The contractor shall insure that supply and return fans and blowers are thoroughly cleaned. Areas to be cleaned include blowers, fan housings, plenums (except ceiling supply and return plenums), scrolls, blades, or vanes, shafts, baffles, dampers and drive assemblies. All visible surface contamination deposits shall be removed. Contractor shall:
  - 1. Clean all air handling unit (AHU) internal surfaces, components and condensate collectors and drains.
  - 2. Assure that a suitable operative drainage system is in place prior to beginning wash down procedures.
  - 3. Clean all coils and related components, including evaporator fins.
- J. Duct Systems: Contractor Shall:
  - 1. Create service openings in the system as necessary in order to accommodate cleaning of otherwise inaccessible areas.
  - 2. Mechanically clean all duct systems to remove all visible contaminants, such that the systems are capable of passing Cleaning Verification Testing.

# 3.02 MECHANICAL CLEANING METHODOLOGY

- A. Source Removal Cleaning Methods: The HVAC system shall be cleaned using Source Removal mechanical cleaning methods designed to extract contaminants from within the HVAC system and safely remove contaminants from the facility. It is the contractor's responsibility to select Source Removal methods which will render the HVAC system Visibly Clean and capable of passing cleaning verification methods. No cleaning method, or combination of methods, shall be used which could potentially damage components of the HVAC system or negatively alter the integrity of the system.
  - 1. All methods used shall incorporate the use of vacuum collection devices that are operated continuously during cleaning. A vacuum device shall be connected to the downstream end of the section being cleaned through a predetermined opening. The vacuum collection device must be of sufficient power to render all areas being cleaned under negative pressure, such that containment of debris and the protection of the indoor environment are assured.
  - 2. All vacuum devices exhausting air inside the building shall be equipped with HEPA filters (minimum efficiency), including hand-held vacuums and wet-vacuums.
  - 3. All vacuum devices exhausting air outside the facility shall be equipped with Particulate Collection including adequate filtration to contain Debris removed from the HVAC system. Such devices shall exhaust in a manner that will not allow contaminants to reenter the facility. Release of debris outdoors must not violate any outdoor environmental standard, codes or regulations.
  - 4. All methods require mechanical agitation devices to dislodge debris adhered to interior HVAC system surfaces, such that debris may be safely conveyed to vacuum collection devices. Acceptable methods will include those which will not potentially damage the integrity of the ductwork, nor damage porous surface materials such as liners inside the ductwork or system components.

- B. Methods of Cleaning Fibrous Glass Insulated Components:
  - 1. Fibrous glass thermal or acoustical insulation elements present in any equipment or ductwork shall be thoroughly cleaned with HEPA vacuuming equipment, while the HVAC system is under constant negative pressure, and not permitted to get wet in accordance with applicable NADCA and NAIMA standards and recommendations.
  - 2. Cleaning methods used shall not cause damage to fibrous glass components and will render the system capable of passing Cleaning Verification Tests.
- C. Damaged Fibrous Glass Material:
  - 1. If there is any evidence of damage, deterioration, delaminating, friable material, mold or fungus growth, or moisture such that fibrous glass materials cannot be restored by cleaning or resurfacing with an acceptable insulation repair coating, they shall be identified for replacement.
  - 2. When requested or specified, Contractor must be capable of remediating exposed damaged insulation in air handlers and/or ductwork requiring replacement.
  - 3. Replacement Material: In the event fiber glass materials must be replaced, all materials shall conform to applicable industry codes and standards, including those of UL and SMACNA.
  - 4. Replacement of damaged insulation is NOT covered by this specification.
- D. Cleaning of coils
  - 1. Any cleaning method may be used which will render the coil visible clean. The drain for the condensate drain pan shall be operational. Cleaning methods shall not cause any appreciable damage to, displacement of, inhibit heat transfer, or erosion of the coil surface or fins, and shall conform to coil manufacturer recommendations when available. Coils shall be thoroughly rinsed with clean water to remove any latent residues.
- E. Biocidal Agents and Coatings
  - 1. Biocidal agents shall only be applied if active fungal growth is reasonably suspected, or where unacceptable levels of fungal contamination have been verified through testing.
  - 2. Application of any biocide agent used to control the growth of fungal or bacteriological contaminants shall be performed after the removal of surface deposits and debris.
  - 3. Only biocide agents registered by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) shall be used.
  - 4. Biocidal agents shall be applied in strict accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
  - 5. Biocidal coating products for both porous and non-porous surfaces shall be EPA registered water-soluble solutions with supporting efficacy data and MSDS records.
  - 6. Biocidal coatings shall be applied according to manufacturer's instructions. Coatings shall be sprayed directly onto interior ductwork surfaces, rather than "fogged" downstream onto surfaces. A continuous film must be achieved on the surface to be treated by the coating application. Application of any Biocidal coatings shall be in strict

accordance with manufacturer's minimum surface application rate standards for effectiveness.

- F. Inspection of Work Performed.
  - 1. Contractor is to leave open all cleaning access points until they have been inspected by Owner's representative. The contractor can call for an inspection at any time.
  - 2. Only after each opening has been inspected can the contractor seal up the cleaning access points.
  - 3. The interior of the supply, return and outside air ducts must be visibly clean and pass inspection in order to satisfactorily complete the contract.
  - 4. All air handlers need to be inspected before the access panels and doors are closed. All components of the air handlers must pass inspection in order to satisfactorily complete the project.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 05 29

# HANGERS AND SUPPORTS

# PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes piping and equipment supports, hangers, anchors, bases sleeves and the sealing of work to adjacent construction.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 07 00 Mechanical Insulation: Interface between insulation and support systems.
  - 2. Section 23 21 13 Hydronic Piping: Support of hydronic piping systems.
  - 3. Section 23 11 23 –Gas Piping: Support of fuel piping systems.

## 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASME B31.1 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Power Piping
- B. ASME B31.9 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Building Services Piping
- C. ASTM F708 Design and Installation of Rigid Pipe Hangers.
- D. MSS SP58 (Manufacturers Standardization Society of the Valve and Fittings Industry) Pipe Hangers and Supports Materials, Design and Manufacturer.
- E. MSS SP69 (Manufacturers Standardization Society of the Valve and Fittings Industry) Pipe Hangers and Supports Selection and Application.
- F. MSS SP89 (Manufacturers Standardization Society of the Valve and Fittings Industry) Pipe Hangers and Supports Fabrication and Installation Practices.

## 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Product Data: Submit manufacturers catalog data including load capacity.

# 1.04 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.

# 1.05 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

## 2.01 PIPE HANGERS AND SUPPORTS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Grinnell.
  - 2. Michigan Hanger Co.
  - 3. Unistrut.
  - 4. Approved Equal.

#### B. Hydronic Piping:

- 1. Conform to MSS SP58.
- 2. Hangers for Pipe Sizes <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> to 1-1/2 inch: Malleable iron or Carbon steel, adjustable swivel, split ring.
- 3. Hangers for Cold Pipe Sizes 2 inches and Over: Carbon steel, adjustable, clevis.
- 4. Hangers for Hot Pipe Sizes 2 to 4 inches: Carbon steel, adjustable, clevis.
- 5. Multiple or Trapeze Hangers: Steel channels with welded spacers and hanger rods.
- 6. Wall Support for Pipe Sizes to 3 inches: Cast iron hooks.
- 7. Vertical Support: Steel riser clamp.
- 8. Floor Support for Cold Pipe: Cast iron adjustable pipe saddle, lock nut, nipple, floor flange, and concrete pier or steel support.
- 9. Copper Pipe Support: Copper-plated, carbon steel ring.

#### 2.02 ACCESSORIES

A. Hanger Rods: Mild steel threaded both ends, threaded on one end, or continuous threaded.

## 2.03 INSERTS

A. Inserts: Malleable iron case of galvanized steel shell and expander plug for threaded connection with lateral adjustment, top slot for reinforcing rods, lugs for attaching to forms; size inserts to suit threaded hanger rods.

#### PAGE 3 OF 5

# 2.04 FLASHING

- A. Metal Flashing: 26 gauge thick galvanized steel.
- B. Metal Counterflashing: 22 gauge thick galvanized steel.
- C. Flexible Flashing: 47 mil thick sheet butyl; compatible with roofing.
- D. Caps: Steel, 22 gauge minimum; 16 gauge at fire resistant elements.

#### 2.05 SLEEVES

- A. Sleeves for Pipes Through Non-fire Rated Floors: 18 gauge thick galvanized steel.
- B. Sleeves for Pipes Through Non-fire Rated Beams, Walls, Footings, and Potentially Wet Floors: Steel pipe or 18 gauge thick galvanized steel.
- C. Sleeves for Pipes Through Fire Rated and Fire Resistive Floors and Walls, and Fire Proofing: Prefabricated fire rated sleeves including seals, UL listed, refer to Section 07840.
- D. Fire-stopping Insulation: Glass fiber type, non-combustible; refer to Division 7.
- E. Sealant: Acrylic; refer to Division 7.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

### 3.01 INSTALLATION - GENERAL

A. Install materials in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

#### 3.02 PIPE HANGERS AND SUPPORTS

- A. Install pipe hangers and supports in accordance with MSS SP89.
- B. Support pipe hangers from building structural components.
- C. Support horizontal piping as scheduled.
- D. Install hangers to provide minimum <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> inch space between finished covering and adjacent work.
- E. Place hangers within 12 inches of each horizontal elbow.
- F. Use hangers with 1-1/2" minimum vertical adjustment.
- G. Support horizontal cast iron pipe adjacent to each hub, with 5 feet maximum spacing between hangers.
- H. Support vertical piping at every floor. Support vertical cast iron pipe at each floor at hub.
- I. Where several pipes can be installed in parallel and at same elevation, provide multiple or trapeze hangers.

- J. Support riser piping independently of connected horizontal piping.
- K. Provide copper plated hangers and supports for non-insulated copper piping.
- L. Design hangers for pipe movement without disengagement of supported pipe.
- M. Prime coat exposed steel hangers and supports. Hangers and supports located in pipe shafts, and suspended ceiling spaces are not considered exposed.

#### 3.03 EQUIPMENT BASES AND SUPPORTS

- A. Provide housekeeping pads of concrete, minimum 4 inches thick and extending 4 inches beyond supported equipment. Refer to Division 3.
- B. Provide templates, anchor bolts, and accessories for mounting and anchoring equipment.
- C. Construct supports of steel members or steel pipe and fittings. Brace and fasten with flanges bolted to structure.
- D. Provide rigid anchors for pipes after vibration isolation components are installed.

#### 3.04 FLASHING

A. Provide acoustical lead flashing around ducts and pipes penetrating equipment rooms for sound control.

## 3.05 SLEEVES

- A. Set sleeves in position in forms. Provide reinforcing around sleeves.
- B. Size sleeves large enough to allow for movement due to expansion and contraction. Provide for continuous insulation wrapping.
- C. Extend sleeves through floors one inch above finished floor level. Caulk sleeves.
- D. Where piping or ductwork penetrates floor, ceiling, or wall, close off space between pipe or duct and adjacent work with fire stopping insulation and caulk. Provide close fitting metal collar or escutcheon covers at both sides of penetration.
- E. Install chrome plated steel escutcheons at finished surfaces.

## 3.06 EXPANSION LOOPS AND ANCHORS

- A. Provide expansion loops as indicated on drawings.
- B. Rigidly anchor pipe to building structure where necessary. Provide pipe guides so movement is directed along axis of pipe only. Erect piping such that strain and weight is not on cast connections or apparatus.
- C. Provide support and equipment required for controlling expansion and contraction of piping. Provide loops, pipe offsets, and swing joints, or expansion joints where indicated.

# PAGE 5 OF 5

# 3.07 SCHEDULES

PIPE SIZE Inches	MAX. HANGER SPACING Feet	DIAMETER Inches
½ to 1-1/4	6.5	3/8
1-1/2 to 2	10	3/8
2-1/2 to 3	10	5/8
4 to 6	10	5/8

END OF SECTION

#### SECTION 23 05 53

# MECHANICAL IDENTIFICATION

#### PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section includes nameplates, stencils and pipe markers.

#### 1.02 REFERENCES

A. ASME A13.1 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) - Scheme for the Identification of Piping Systems.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Administrative Requirements: Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturers catalog literature for each product required.
- C. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Indicate installation instructions, special procedures, and installation.

## 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract Close-Out Procedures.
- B. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of tagged valves; include valve tag numbers.

# 1.05 QUALIFICATIONS

A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.

#### 1.06 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Craftmark Identification Systems.
  - 2. Safety Sign Co.

- 3. Seton Identification Products.
- 4. Approved Equal.

#### 2.02 NAMEPLATES

A. Product Description: Laminated three-layer plastic with engraved black letters on light contrasting background color.

## 2.03 STENCILS

- A. Stencils: With clean cut symbols and letters of following size:
  - 1. Piping: 3/4 inches high letters.
- B. Stencil Paint: A s specified in Division 9, semi-gloss enamel, colors and lettering size conforming to ASME A13.1.

#### 2.04 PIPE MARKERS

- A. Color and Lettering: Conform to ASME A13.1.
- B. Plastic Pipe Markers: Factory fabricated, flexible, semi-rigid plastic, preformed to fit around pipe or pipe covering. Larger sizes may have maximum sheet size with spring fastener.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 PREPARATION

- A. Degrease and clean surfaces to receive adhesive for identification materials.
- B. Prepare surfaces in accordance with Division 9 for stencil painting.

### 3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Apply stencil painting in accordance with Division 9.
- B. Install identifying devices after completion of coverings and painting.
- C. Install plastic nameplates with corrosive-resistant mechanical fasteners, or adhesive.
- D. Install tags using corrosion resistant chain. Number tags consecutively by location.
- E. Identify air handling units, pumps and tanks with plastic nameplates. Small devices, such as inline pumps, may be identified with tags.
- F. Identify control panels and major control components outside panels with plastic nameplates.
- G. Tag automatic controls, instruments, and relays. Key to control schematic.

- H. Identify piping located in the boiler room and fan rooms/areas with plastic pipe markers. Identify service, flow direction, and pressure. Install in clear view and align with axis of piping. Locate identification not to exceed 20 feet on straight runs including risers and drops, adjacent to each valve and tee, at side of penetration of structure or enclosure, and at each obstruction.
- I. Identify piping, concealed or exposed, with plastic pipe markers or stenciled painting. Identify service, flow direction, and pressure. Install in clear view and align with axis of piping. Locate identification not to exceed 20 feet on straight runs including risers and drops, adjacent to each valve and tee, at each side of penetration of structure or enclosure, and at each obstruction.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 05 93

# TESTING, ADJUSTING AND BALANCING

## PART 1 GENERAL

### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes testing, adjusting, and balancing of air systems, testing, adjusting, and balancing of hydronic systems, and measurement of final operating condition of HVAC systems.
- B. The entire building is to be balanced, including existing equipment, devices and terminal units not specifically addressed with remodel design. Refer to original design drawings for location and number of existing equipment, devices and terminal units.

### 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASHRAE 111 (American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers) - Practices for Measurement, Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing of Building Heating, Ventilation, Air-conditioning, and Refrigeration Systems.
- B. AABC (Associated Air Balance Council) National Standards for Total System Balance.
- C. NEBB (National Environmental Balancing Bureau) Procedural Standards for Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing of Environmental Systems.

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Test Reports: Indicate data on AABC, NEBB, or Contractors standard forms.
- C. Field Reports: Indicate deficiencies in systems that would prevent proper testing, adjusting and balancing of systems and equipment to achieve specified performance.
- D. Submit draft copies of report for review prior to final acceptance of Project. Provide final copies for Architect/Engineer and for inclusion in operating and maintenance manuals.
- E. Provide reports in PDF format and in hard cover, letter size, 3-ring binder manuals, complete with index page and indexing tabs, with cover identification at front and side.

## 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of balancing valves and rough setting.

## 1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Perform Work in accordance with AABC National Standards for Field Measurement and Instrumentation, Total System Balance or NEBB Procedural Standards for Testing, Balancing and Adjusting of Environmental Systems.

#### 1.06 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Agency: Company specializing in the testing, adjusting, and balancing of systems specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience certified by AABC or NEBB.
- B. Perform Work under supervision of an AABC Certified Test and Balance Engineer, NEBB Certified Testing, Balancing and Adjusting Supervisor or registered professional engineer experienced in performance of this Work and licensed in the State of Alaska.

#### 1.07 SEQUENCING

A. Sequence balancing between completion of systems tested and Date of Substantial Completion.

### PART 2 PRODUCTS

Not used.

### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that systems are complete and operable before commencing work. Ensure the following conditions:
  - 1. Systems are started and operating in a safe and normal condition.
  - 2. Temperature control systems are installed complete and operable.
  - 3. Proper thermal overload protection is in place for electrical equipment.
  - 4. Final filters are clean and in place. If required, install temporary media in addition to final filters.
  - 5. Duct systems are clean of debris.
  - 6. Fans are rotating correctly.
  - 7. Fire and volume dampers are in place and open.
  - 8. Air coil fins are cleaned and combed.
  - 9. Access doors are closed, and duct end caps are in place.
  - 10. Air outlets are installed and connected.

#### 23 05 93-2

PAGE 3 OF 10

- 11. Duct system leakage is minimized.
- 12. Hydronic systems are flushed, filled, and vented.
- 13. Pumps are rotating correctly.
- 14. Proper strainer baskets are clean and in place or in normal position.
- 15. Service and balance valves are open.
- B. Submit field reports. Report defects and deficiencies noted during performance of services, which prevent system balance.

#### 3.02 PREPARATION

A. Provide instruments required for testing, adjusting, and balancing operations. Make instruments available to Architect/Engineer to facilitate spot checks during testing.

#### 3.03 INSTALLATION TOLERANCES

A. Hydronic Systems: Adjust to within plus or minus 10 percent of design.

#### 3.04 ADJUSTING

- A. Ensure recorded data represents actual measured or observed conditions.
- B. Permanently mark settings of valves, dampers, and other adjustment devices allowing settings to be restored. Set and lock memory stops.
- C. After adjustment, take measurements to verify balance has not been disrupted or that such disruption has been rectified.
- D. Leave systems in proper working order, replacing belt guards, closing access doors, closing doors to electrical switch boxes and restoring thermostats to specified settings.
- E. At final inspection, recheck random selections of data recorded in report. Recheck points or areas as selected and witnessed by the Owner.

### 3.05 AIR SYSTEM PROCEDURE

- A. Provide written record with required and actual air quantities recorded at each fan.
- B. Adjust outside air automatic dampers, outside air, return air and exhaust dampers for design conditions.
- C. Measure temperature conditions across outside air, return air and exhaust dampers to check leakage.
- D. Where modulating dampers are provided, take measurements and balance at extreme conditions. Balance variable volume systems at maximum airflow rate, full cooling, and at minimum airflow rate, full heating.

# 3.06 WATER SYSTEM PROCEDURE

- A. Adjust water systems, after air balancing, to provide design quantities.
- B. Use calibrated Venturi tubes, orifices, or other metered fittings and pressure gauges to determine flow rates for system balance. Where flow-metering devices are not installed, base flow balance on temperature difference across various heat transfer elements in the system.
- C. Adjust systems to provide specified flows through heat transfer elements prior to thermal testing. Perform balancing by measurement of temperature differential in conjunction with air balancing.
- D. Effect system balance with automatic control valves fully open or in normal position to heat transfer elements.
- E. Effect adjustment of water distribution systems by means of balancing valves. Do not use service or shut-off valves for balancing.
- F. Where available pump capacity is less than total flow requirements or individual system parts, full flow in one part may be simulated by temporary restriction of flow to other parts.

# 3.07 SCHEDULES

Equipment Requiring Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing

- Plumbing Pumps
- HVAC Pumps
- Terminal Heat Transfer Units
- Radiant Heat Manifolds
- Snowmelt Heat Manifolds
- Air Handling Units
- Fans
- A. Report Forms
  - 1. Title Page:
    - a) Name of Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing Agency
    - b) Address of Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing Agency
    - c) Telephone and facsimile numbers of Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing Agency
    - d) Project name
    - e) Project location
    - f) Project Architect

### PAGE 5 OF 10

- g) Project Engineer
- h) Project Contractor
- i) Project altitude
- j) Report date
- 2. Summary Comments:
  - a) Design versus final performance
  - b) Notable characteristics of system
  - c) Description of systems operation sequence
  - d) Summary of outdoor and exhaust flows to indicate amount of building pressurization
  - e) Nomenclature used throughout report
  - f) Test conditions
- 3. Instrument List:
  - a) Instrument
  - b) Manufacturer
  - c) Model number
  - d) Serial number
  - e) Range
  - f) Calibration date
- 4. Electric Motors:
  - a) Manufacturer
  - b) Model/Frame
  - c) HP/BHP and kW
  - d) Phase, voltage, amperage; nameplate, actual, no load
  - e) RPM
  - f) Service factor
  - g) Starter size, rating, heater elements
  - h) Sheave Make/Size/Bore
- 5. V-Belt Drive:
  - a) Identification/location

PAGE 6 OF 10

- b) Required driven RPM
- c) Driven sheave, diameter and RPM
- d) Belt, size and quantity
- e) Motor sheave diameter and RPM
- f) Center to center distance, maximum, minimum and actual
- 6. Pump Data:
  - a) Identification/number
  - b) Manufacturer
  - c) Size/model
  - d) Impeller
  - e) Service
  - f) Design flow rate, pressure drop, BHP and kW
  - g) Actual flow rate, pressure drop, BHP and kW
  - h) Discharge pressure
  - i) Suction pressure
  - j) Total operating head pressure
  - k) Shut off, discharge and suction pressures
  - I) Shut off, total head pressure
- 7. Heat Exchanger:
  - a) Identification/number
  - b) Location
  - c) Service
  - d) Manufacturer
  - e) Model number
  - f) Serial number
  - g) Heating water entering temperature, design and actual
  - h) Heating water leaving temperature, design and actual
  - i) Heating water flow, design and actual
  - j) Heating water pressure drop, design and actual

- 8. Flow Measuring Station:
  - a) Identification/number
  - b) Location
  - c) Size
  - d) Manufacturer
  - e) Model number
  - f) Serial number
  - g) Design Flow rate
  - h) Design pressure drop
  - i) Actual/final pressure drop
  - j) Actual/final flow rate
  - k) Station calibrated setting
- 9. Heating Coil Data:
  - a) Identification/number
  - b) Location
  - c) Service
  - d) Manufacturer
  - e) Air flow, design and actual
  - f) Water flow, design and actual
  - g) Water pressure drop, design and actual
  - h) Entering water temperature, design and actual
  - i) Leaving water temperature, design and actual
  - j) Entering air temperature, design and actual
  - k) Leaving air temperature, design and actual
  - I) Air pressure drop, design and actual
- 10. Air Handling Units
  - a) Location
  - b) Manufacturer
  - c) Model number

PAGE 8 OF 10

- d) Serial number
- e) Arrangement/Class/Discharge
- f) Air flow, specified and actual
- g) Return air flow, specified and actual
- h) Outside air flow, specified and actual
- i) Total static pressure (total external), specified and actual
- j) Inlet pressure
- k) Discharge pressure
- I) Sheave Make/Size/Bore
- m) Number of Belts/Make/Size
- n) Fan RPM
- 11. Return Air/Outside Air Data:
  - a) Identification/location
  - b) Design air flow
  - c) Actual air flow
  - d) Design return air flow
  - e) Actual return air flow
  - f) Design outside air flow
  - g) Actual outside air flow
  - h) Return air temperature
  - i) Outside air temperature
  - j) Required mixed air temperature
  - k) Actual mixed air temperature
  - I) Design outside/return air ratio
  - m) Actual outside/return air ratio
- 12. Fan Data:
  - a) Location
  - b) Manufacturer
  - c) Model number

## PAGE 9 OF 10

- d) Serial number
- e) Air flow, specified and actual
- f) Total static pressure (total external), specified and actual
- g) Inlet pressure
- h) Discharge pressure
- i) Sheave Make/Size/Bore
- j) Number of Belts/Make/Size
- k) Fan RPM

# 13. Duct Traverse:

- a) System zone/branch
- b) Duct size
- c) Area
- d) Design velocity
- e) Design air flow
- f) Test velocity
- g) Test air flow
- h) Duct static pressure
- i) Air temperature
- j) Air correction factor
- 14. Air Terminal Unit Data:
  - a) Manufacturer
  - b) Type, constant, variable, single, dual duct
  - c) Identification/number
  - d) Location
  - e) Model number
  - f) Size
  - g) Minimum static pressure
  - h) Minimum design air flow
  - i) Maximum design air flow

# PAGE 10 OF 10

- j) Maximum actual air flow
- k) Inlet static pressure
- 15. Grille, Register, Diffuser Test Sheet:
  - a) GRD number
  - b) Room number/location
  - c) GRD type
  - d) GRD size
  - e) Area factor
  - f) Design velocity
  - g) Design air flow
  - h) Test (final) velocity
  - i) Test (final) air flow
  - j) Percent of design air flow

END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 07 00

## MECHANICAL INSULATION

## PART 1 GENERAL

### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes thermal insulation for piping systems including vapor retarders, jackets and accessories.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Division 09 Painting: Execution requirements for painting insulation jackets and covering specified by this section.
  - 2. Section 23 05 29 Hangers and Supports: Execution requirements for inserts for placement by this section.
  - 3. Section 23 05 53 Mechanical Identification: Product requirements for mechanical identification for placement by this section.

## 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASTM C195 Standard Specification for Mineral Fiber Thermal Insulating Cement.
- B. ASTM C449/C449M Standard Specification for Mineral Fiber Hydraulic-Setting Thermal Insulating and Finishing Cement.
- C. ASTM C547 Standard Specification for Mineral Fiber Preformed Pipe Insulation.
- D. ASTM C1136 Standard Specification for Flexible, Low Permeance Vapor Retarders for Thermal Insulation.
- E. ASTM D1784 Standard Specification for Rigid Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Compounds and Chlorinated Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Compounds.
- F. ASTM E84 Standard Test Method for Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials.
- G. ASTM E96 Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Transmission of Materials.
- H. NAIMA (North American Insulation Manufacturers Association) National Insulation Standards.
- I. SMACNA (Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors' National Association) HVAC Duct Construction Standards Metal and Flexible.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Product Data: Provide product description, thermal characteristics and list of materials and thickness for each service, and locations.

# 1.04 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Applicator: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.

### 1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Accept materials on site in original factory packaging, labeled with manufacturer's identification, including product density and thickness.
- B. Protect insulation from weather and construction traffic, dirt, water, chemical, and mechanical damage, by storing in original wrapping.

### 1.06 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Do not install insulation outside ambient conditions required by manufacturer of each product.
- B. Maintain temperature during and after installation for minimum period of 24 hours.

### 1.07 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Owens Corning.
  - 2. Certain Teed.
  - 3. Knauf.
  - 4. Armstrong.
  - 5. Johns Manville.
  - 6. Approved Equal.

## 2.02 MINERAL FIBER PIPE INSULATION

- A. Insulation: ASTM C547 Mineral Fiber Pipe Insulation, Type I 850(454).
- B. Vapor Retarder Jacket:
- C. White Kraft paper with glass fiber yarn, bonded to aluminized film.

- D. Moisture vapor transmission: ASTM E96; 0.02 perm-inches.
- E. Tie Wire: 0.048 inch stainless steel with twisted ends on maximum 12 inch centers.
- F. Vapor Retarder Lap Adhesive: Compatible with insulation.
- G. Insulating Cement/Mastic: ASTM C195; hydraulic setting on mineral wool.
- H. Insulating Cement: ASTM C449/C449M.
- 2.03 ELASTOMERIC CELLULAR FOAM PIPE INSULATION
  - A. Preformed Flexible Elastomeric Cellular Thermal Insulation in Sheet and Tubular form: ASTM C534; Type I, Tubular form.
  - B. Elastomeric Foam Adhesive: Air dried, contact adhesive, compatible with insulation.

#### 2.04 INSULATION JACKETS

- A. Pipe Fitting Jacket: ASTM D1784, One piece molded type fitting covers, off-white color.
  - 1. Connections: Pressure sensitive color matching vinyl tape.
- B. Canvas Jacket: UL listed.
  - 1. Fabric: 6 oz/sq. yd., plain weave cotton.
  - 2. Fire retardant lagging adhesive. Composite of insulation, jacket and lagging adhesive shall have a flame spread index not greater than 25 and a smoke developed index not greater than 50 per ASTM E84.
  - 3. Lagging Adhesive: Compatible with insulation.
- C. Aluminum Pipe Jacket:
  - 1. ASTM B209.
  - 2. Thickness: 0.020 inch thick sheet.
  - 3. Finish: Embossed.
  - 4. Joining: Longitudinal slip joints and 2 inch laps.
  - 5. Fittings: 0.016 inch thick die shaped fitting covers with factory attached protective liner.
  - 6. Metal Jacket Bands: 3/8 inch wide; 0.015 inch thick aluminum or 0.010 inch thick stainless steel.
- D. Stainless Steel Pipe Jacket:
  - 1. ASTM A167 Type 304 or 316 stainless steel.
  - 2. Thickness: 0.016 inch thick.
  - 3. Finish: Smooth.

4. Metal Jacket Bands: 3/8 inch wide; 0.010 inch thick stainless steel.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Division 01 Administrative Requirements: Coordination and project conditions.
- B. Verify that piping, equipment and ductwork has been tested before applying insulation materials.
- C. Verify that surfaces are clean and dry, with foreign material removed.

### 3.02 INSTALLATION – GENERAL

A. Install in accordance with NAIMA National Insulation Standards.

## 3.03 INSTALLATION – PIPING

- A. Exposed Piping: Locate insulation and cover seams in least visible locations.
- B. Insulated pipes conveying fluids below ambient temperature: Insulate entire system including fittings, valves, unions, flanges, and strainers.
- C. Mineral fiber insulated pipes conveying fluids below ambient temperature:
  - 1. Provide factory-applied or field-applied vapor retarder jackets. Secure factory-applied jackets with pressure sensitive adhesive self-sealing longitudinal laps and butt strips. Secure field-applied jackets with outward clinch expanding staples and seal all staple penetrations with vapor retarder mastic.
  - 2. Insulate fittings, joints, and valves with molded insulation of like material and thickness as adjacent pipe. Finish with PVC fitting covers.
- D. For hot piping conveying fluids over 140 degrees F, insulate flanges and unions at equipment.
- E. Mineral fiber insulated pipes conveying fluids above ambient temperature:
  - 1. Provide factory-applied or field-applied standard jackets. Secure with outward clinch expanding staples or the pressure sensitive adhesive system on standard factory-applied jacket and butt strips or both.
  - 2. Insulate fittings, joints, and valves with insulation of like material and thickness as adjoining pipe. Finish with PVC fitting covers.
- F. Inserts and Shields:
  - 1. Application: Piping or Equipment 1-1/2 inches diameter or larger.
  - 2. Shields: Galvanized steel between pipe hangers or pipe hanger rolls and inserts.
  - 3. Insert location: Between support shield and piping and under the finish jacket.

- 4. Insert configuration: Minimum 6 inches long, of same thickness and contour as adjoining insulation; may be factory fabricated.
- 5. Insert material: Compression resistant insulating material suitable for the planned temperature range and service.
- G. Continue insulation through penetrations of building assemblies or portions of assemblies having a fire resistance rating of one hour or less. Provide intumescent firestopping when continuing insulation through assembly. Finish at supports, protrusions, and interruptions. Division 07 for penetrations of assemblies with a fire resistance rating greater than one hour.
- H. Pipe exposed in mechanical equipment rooms 10' from floor: Finish with canvas jacket.
- I. Pipes exposed in exterior spaces: Finish with steel or aluminum jacket and seal weathertight.

# 3.04 PIPING INSULATION SCHEDULE

A. Glass Fiber Insulation Schedule:

Piping Systems	Pipe Size	Thickness
Heating Water/Glycol Supply	All	1-1/2"
Heating Water/Glycol Return	All	1-1/2"
Interior Cooling Glycol Supply	All	1-1/2"
Interior Cooling Glycol Return	All	1-1/2"

## B. Elastomeric Cellular Foam Insulation Schedule:

Piping Systems	Pipe Size	Thickness
Exterior Cooling Glycol Supply	All	1-1/2"
Exterior Cooling Glycol Return	All	1-1/2"

END OF SECTION

PAGE 1 OF 6

# SECTION 23 09 00 INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROL ELEMENTS

### PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes thermostats, control valves, automatic dampers, damper operators, and miscellaneous accessories.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 00 00 Basic Mechanical Requirements.
  - 2. Section 23 21 13 Hydronic Piping.
  - 3. Section 23 09 23 Controls and Sequence of Operations.
  - 4. Division 26.

### 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. AMCA 500 Test Methods for Louvers, Dampers and Shutters.
- B. NEMA DC 3 Low-Voltage Room Thermostats.
- C. NFPA 70 National Electrical Code.
- D. NFPA 90A Installation of Air Conditioning and Ventilation Systems.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Product Data: Provide description and engineering data for each control system component. Include sizing as requested. Provide data for each system component and software module.
- C. Shop Drawings: Indicate complete operating data, system drawings, wiring diagrams, and written detailed operational description of sequences. Submit schedule of valves indicating size, flow, and pressure drop for each valve. For automatic dampers indicate arrangement, velocities, and static pressure drops for each system.
- D. Manufacturer's Instructions: Provide for all manufactured components.

## 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of control components, including thermostats and sensors.

- C. Revise shop drawings to reflect actual installation and operating sequences.
- D. Operation and Maintenance Data: Include inspection period, cleaning methods, recommended cleaning materials and calibration tolerances.
- E. Warranty: Submit manufacturer's warranty and ensure forms have been filled out in Owners name and registered with manufacturer.

### 1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing the products specified in this section with minimum five years documented experience.
- B. Installer Qualifications: Company specializing in performing the work of this section with minimum five years documented experience and factory trained by manufacturer

#### 1.06 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

A. Products Requiring Electrical Connection: Listed and classified by Underwriters Laboratories Inc., as suitable for the purpose specified and indicated.

### 1.07 WARRANTY

- A. Division 01 Warranties and Bonds.
- B. Correct defective Work within a one-year period after Substantial Completion.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 CONTROL VALVES

- A. Globe Pattern:
  - 1. Up to 2 inches: Bronze body, bronze trim, rising stem, renewable composition disc, screwed ends.
  - 2. Over 2 inches: Iron body, bronze trim, rising stem, plug-type disc, flanged ends, renewable seat and disc.
  - 3. Hydronic Systems:
    - a) Rate for service pressure of 125 psig at 250°F.
    - b) Replaceable plugs and seats of brass.
    - c) Size for 3 psig maximum pressure drop at design flow rate.
    - d) Two-way valves shall have equal percentage characteristics, three-way valves linear characteristics. Size two-way valve operators to close valves against pump shut off head.

- B. Electronic Operators:
  - 1. Valves shall spring return to normal position (full heat).
  - 2. Select operator for full shut off at maximum pump differential pressure.
- C. Radiation Valves:
  - 1. Bronze body, bronze trim, 2 or 3 port as indicated, replaceable plugs and seats, union and threaded ends.
  - 2. Rate for service pressure of 125 psig at 250°F.
  - 3. Size for 3 psig maximum pressure drop at design flow rate.
  - Two-way valves shall have equal percentage characteristics, three way valves linear characteristics. Size two-way valve operators to close valves against pump shut off head.
  - 5. Operators (Modulating): Self contained, linear motorized actuator with approximately 3/4 inch stroke, 60 second full travel with transformer and SPDT contacts: 24 v DC, 6 watt maximum input.

#### 2.02 CONTROL DAMPERS

- A. Performance: Test in accordance with AMCA 500.
- B. Frames: Extruded aluminum, welded or riveted with corner reinforcement, minimum 12 gage.
- C. Blades: Extruded aluminum, maximum blade size 6 inches wide, 48 inches long, minimum 22 gage, attached to minimum 1/2 inch shafts with set screws.
- D. Blade Seals: Extruded vinyl for –50°F to 250°F operation, field replaceable.
- E. Jamb Seals: Spring stainless steel.
- F. Shaft Bearings: Graphite impregnated nylon sleeve, with thrust washers at bearings.
- G. Linkage Bearings: Graphite impregnated nylon.
- H. Leakage: Less than 6 cfm/sq. ft. at 4" wg.
- I. Temperature Limits: -50°F to 250°F.

#### 2.03 DAMPER OPERATORS

- A. General: Provide smooth proportional control with sufficient power for air velocities 20 percent greater than maximum design velocity and to provide tight seal against maximum system pressures. Provide spring return for two position control and for fail safe operation.
- B. Electric Operators:
  - 1. Spring return, adjustable stroke motor having oil immersed gear train, with auxiliary end switch.

C. Number: Sufficient to achieve unrestricted movement throughout damper range. Provide one damper operator for maximum 36 sq. ft damper section.

### 2.04 INPUT/OUTPUT SENSORS

- A. Temperature:
  - 1. Resistance temperature detectors with resistance tolerance of plus or minus 0.1 percent at 70 degrees F, interchangeability less than plus or minus 0.2 percent, time constant of 13 seconds maximum for fluids and 200 seconds maximum for air.
  - 2. Measuring current maximum 5 mA with maximum self-heat of 0.031°F/mW in fluids and 0.014°F/mW in air.
  - 3. Provide 3 lead wires and shield for input bridge circuit.
  - 4. Use insertion elements in ducts not affected by temperature stratification or smaller than one square meter. Use averaging elements where larger or prone to stratification sensor length 8 feet or 16 feet as required.
  - 5. Insertion elements for liquids shall be with brass socket with minimum insertion length of 2-1/2 inches.
  - 6. Room sensors: Locking cover.
  - 7. Outside air sensors: Watertight inlet fitting, shielded from direct rays of sun.
- B. Static Pressure Sensors:
  - 1. Unidirectional with ranges not exceeding 150 percent of maximum expected input.
  - 2. Temperature compensate with typical thermal error or 0.06 percent of full scale in temperature range of 40°F to 100°F.
  - 3. Accuracy: One percent of full scale with repeatability 0.3 percent.
  - 4. Output: 0 5 vdc with power at 12 to 28 vdc.
- C. Equipment Operation Sensors:
  - 1. Status Inputs for Fans: Differential pressure switch with adjustable range of 0" to 5" wg.
  - 2. Status Inputs for Pumps: Differential pressure switch piped across pump with adjustable pressure differential range of 8 to 60 psi.
  - 3. Status Inputs for Electric Motors: Current sensing relay with current transformers, adjustable and set to 175 percent of rated motor current.
- D. Damper Position Indication: Potentiometer mounted in enclosure with adjustable crank arm assembly connected to damper to transmit 0 100 percent damper travel.

#### PAGE 5 OF 6

## 2.05 THERMOSTATS

- A. Electric Room Thermostats:
  - 1. Type: NEMA DC 3, 24 volts, with setback/setup temperature control.
  - 2. Service: heating only or cooling and heating as required.
  - 3. Covers: Locking with set point adjustment, setpoint indication, with thermometer.
- B. Line Voltage Thermostats:
  - 1. Integral manual On/Off/Auto selector switch, single or two pole as required.
  - 2. Dead band: Maximum 2°F.
  - 3. Cover: Locking with set point adjustment, setpoint indication, with thermometer.
  - 4. Rating: Motor load.
- C. Room Thermostat Accessories:
  - 1. Insulating Bases: For thermostats located on exterior walls.
  - 2. Adjusting Key: As required for device.
  - 3. Thermostat Guards: Locking transparent plastic mounted on separate base.
- D. Immersion Thermostat:
  - 1. Remote bulb or bimetallic rod and tube type, proportional action with adjustable setpoint and adjustable throttling range.
- E. Airstream Thermostats:
  - 1. Remote bulb or bimetallic rod and tube type, proportional action with adjustable setpoint in middle of range and adjustable throttling range.
  - 2. Averaging service remote bulb element: Length as required.
- F. Electric Low Limit Duct Thermostat:
  - 1. Snap acting, single pole, single throw, manual reset switch which trips if temperature sensed across any 12" of bulb length is equal to or below setpoint.
  - 2. Bulb length: Minimum 20 feet.
  - 3. Provide one thermostat for every 20 sq. ft of coil surface.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that systems are ready to receive work.
- B. Beginning of installation means installer accepts existing conditions.

### 23 09 00-5

- C. Sequence work to ensure installation of components is complementary to installation of similar components in other systems.
- D. Coordinate installation of system components with installation of mechanical systems equipment such as air handling units and air terminal units.
- E. Ensure installation components is complementary to installation of similar components.
- F. Coordinate installation of system components with installation of mechanical systems equipment.

### 3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Check and verify location of thermostats and other exposed control sensors with plans and room details before installation. Locate 48 inches above floor. Align with lighting switches.
- C. Mount freeze protection thermostats using flanges and element holders.
- D. Mount outdoor reset thermostats and outdoor sensors indoors, with sensing elements outdoors with sun shield.
- E. Provide separable sockets for liquids and flanges for air bulb elements.
- F. Provide valves with position indicators where sequenced with other controls.
- G. Provide mixing dampers of parallel blade construction arranged to mix streams.
- H. Install damper motors on outside of duct in warm areas. Do not install motors in locations at outdoor temperatures.
- I. Provide conduit and electrical wiring in accordance with Division 26. Electrical material and installation shall be in accordance with appropriate requirements of Division 26.
- J. Systems operation instruction and training shall occur per Division 01 within one week after substantial completion with Owner's representative on site.

END OF SECTION

# SECTION 23 09 23 - DIRECT DIGITAL CONTROLS

## PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes control equipment and software.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 09 00 Instrumentation and Control Elements.
  - 2. Division 26 Electrical.

# 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASME MC85.1 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Terminology for Automatic Control.
- B. NEMA EMC1 (National Electrical Manufacturers Association) Energy Management Systems Definitions.

# 1.03 DEFINITIONS

- A. BACNet: An industry standard data communication protocol for Building Automation and Control Networks. Refer to AHSRAE standard 135-2010.
- B. BACS: Building Automation and Control System.
- C. BASC Contractor: The party responsible for performing the work herein, including associated trades and subcontractors.
- D. BIBB: BACnet Interoperability Building Blocks.
- E. BMS: Building Management System.
- F. DDC: Direct digital controls.
- G. IP: Internet Protocol.
- H. LAN: Local area network.
- I. MS/TP: Master-slave/token-passing. Refer to AHSRAE standard 135-2010.
- J. TCP: Transfer Control Protocol.

## 1.04 SCOPE SUMMARY

- A. The existing pneumatic Building Automation System (BAS) and associated control devices shall be removed and replace with a Bacnet-compliant Direct Digital Control (DDC) system. Removal of existing controls compressor also required.
- B. Review original design drawings to identify existing equipment. Contractor also required to walk through the building before bid to further identify equipment and scope of control replacement. Contractor to report to Owner before bidding any additional items work required beyond what is presented in the design documents.
- C. Furnish a native BACnet-based Building Automation System (BAS). System shall be based on a distributed control system in accordance with this specification. The operator's workstation, all building controllers, application controllers, and all input/output devices shall communicate using the protocols and network standards as defined by ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 135-2001, BACnet.
- D. Provide all necessary BACnet-compliant hardware and software to meet the system's functional specifications. Provide Protocol Implementation Conformance Statement (PICS) for Windows-based control software and every controller in system, including unitary controllers.
- E. Prepare individual hardware layouts, interconnection drawings, and software configuration from project design data.
- F. Implement the detailed design for all analog and binary objects, system databases, graphic displays, logs, and management reports based on control descriptions, logic drawings, configuration data, and bid documents.
- G. Design, provide, and install all equipment cabinets, panels, data communication network cables needed, and all associated hardware.
- H. Provide and install all interconnecting cables between supplied cabinets, application controllers, and input/output devices.
- I. Provide and install all interconnecting cables between all operator's terminals and peripheral devices (such as printers, etc.) supplied under this section.
- J. Provide complete manufacturer's specifications for all items that are supplied. Include vendor name of every item supplied.
- K. Provide supervisory specialists and technicians at the job site to assist in system startup, and commissioning.
- L. Provide a comprehensive operator and technician training program as described herein.
- M. Provide as-built documentation, operator's terminal software, diagrams, and all other associated project operational documentation (such as technical manuals) on approved media, which accurately represents the final system.

### 1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The direct digital control system provided shall be designed, furnished, installed, tested, certified and placed into service by a Control Contractor who is regularly engaged in the installation of

direct digital control systems in Alaska. The Control Contractor shall maintain an office in Alaska with parts and maintenance personnel to ensure prompt response (24 hour maximum) to an emergency call during the one year correction period.

- B. The Control Contractor shall be able to demonstrate that he has had experience designing and installing direct digital control systems of comparable type and size to that called for in these Specifications.
- C. The Control Contractor, if other than the manufacturer, shall hold a manufacturer's franchise or license to design and install control systems for that manufacturer.
- D. Within two weeks after award of contract submit to the Project Manager the following items for Contractor qualification:
- E. Name of manufacturer and proof that the Control Contractor holds a manufacturer's franchise or license to design and install the proposed control system.
- F. Proof of Alaskan Office, with full time service representative.
- G. List of Alaskan buildings with names, addresses, and phone numbers of Owners which are representative of direct digital control systems that have been installed by the Control Contractor. Include a brief description and approximate control system construction cost of each system submitted.
- H. Provide verification that each and every controller, sensor, and all other BAS components shall be individually tested and listed by the BACnet Testing Laboratories (BTL).

## 1.06 EQUIPMENT AND SHOP DRAWING SUBMITTALS

- Prior to programming, ordering of equipment, or installation of any portion of the system submit the following in a single tabbed and indexed PDF package for review by the Project Manager. The shop drawings shall include an electronic bookmark for every major system initial sheet. Shop drawings without bookmarks will be rejected without review for correction. Shop drawings shall also identify existing equipment that will be used with any new system components.
- B. System architecture diagram showing power supply to each component; interconnection of direct digital controllers, building management station, and peripherals; and indication of proposed location of direct digital controllers.
- C. Sequence of operations. Print sequence of operations on the schematic control diagrams so that the relevant sequence is on the same diagram with the control schematic it describes. The Sequence of Operations provided in the Contract Documents is written in directive language. Rewrite the sequence of operations to be submitted to the Owner in language that explains the sequences of operation. Remove all directives to the Contractor.
- D. Schematic control diagrams 11 inches by 17 inches minimum paper size with upper case lettering, minimum 1/16 inch high plotted from digitized files in AutoCAD format. Clearly indicate wire and terminal labels, set points, reset schedules, switch over points, signal ranges, and other points required to completely describe the system. Show interface with any existing control systems. Depict circuitry on schematic control diagrams to allow circuits to be traced from connection to connection using one of the following methods:
  - 1. Diagram each wire or tube depicting full length of circuit from connection to connection.

- 2. Reference each wire to a uniquely labeled terminal. Depict terminals on a sequentially labeled terminal strip showing attached wires and the device labels of the components attached at the other end. If the wiring label used is different than the terminal label, indicate the wire label. In addition, provide ladder diagrams indicating current or air flow through circuitry components.
- 3. Construct digitized schematic control diagrams using a symbol library so that symbols for similar equipment are common. Use separate layers or line type designations for the following items:
  - a) Device Symbols.
  - b) Equipment Symbols.
  - c) Ductwork.
  - d) Piping.
  - e) Wiring.
  - f) Valve schedules
- E. Control Wiring Floor Plans. Provide architectural floor plans overlaid with control components. Plans shall include locations of sensors, valves, dampers, transformers, control cabinets, mechanical and electrical equipment interlocked or controlled by BAS, and communication and power wiring.
- F. Subpanel and panel face layouts.
  - 1. Control components data sheets, installation, operation, and adjustment instructions. Further index and tab this section of the submittal by item number.
  - 2. Each control component shall be identified with a separate item number. Separate each item with a divider sheet with plastic index tabs.
  - 3. Provide two alphabetical listings of all items included in the binder in an index at the front of the binder. One index shall list items by functional name. The other index shall list items by symbol used in the control diagrams.
  - 4. Each sheet or page shall indicate the specific item(s) proposed for this project. Delete or cross out all other items.
  - 5. For all system elements operator's workstation(s), building controller(s), application controllers, routers, and repeaters, provide BACnet Protocol Implementation Conformance Statements (PICS) as per ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 135-2001.
  - 6. Provide complete description and documentation of any proprietary (non-BACnet) services and/or objects used in the system.
  - 7. Orientation and training instruction schedule and course outlines.
  - 8. Control Transformer Schedule. Provide control transformer schedule indicating tag id, location, equipment serviced, and VA consumed. Transformers shall be UL listed, class 2 power limited, provide built in circuit breaker and have a minimum of 15% spare capacity.

# 1.07 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS

- A. Provide electronic operations and maintenance manuals in accordance with Section 23 05 00 and Division 10 Standard General Provisions.
- B. Operation and Maintenance Manuals must be submitted for review, reviewed by the Project Manager, corrected in accordance with review comments, and accepted by the Project Manager before a request for final or substantial completion inspection will be considered by the Project Manager.
- C. The Operation and Maintenance Manual shall include the information required for the equipment review submittal, updated as required to reflect current as-built conditions, plus the following:
  - 1. A brief customized guide to system operation prepared for the proprietary programming and interfacing software. Include copies of the guide in the Operation and Maintenance Manual, laminated between two plastic sheets for use away from the workstations. The guide shall include:
    - a) Log on procedure.
    - b) Procedure for accessing interactive video display screens, changing set points, acknowledging alarms, creating history logs, and reviewing history logs.
    - c) Instructions for backing up the building management system and start up the system after a computer failure.
    - d) Instructions for backing up individual direct digital controllers and start them up after a controller failure.
  - 2. Maintenance information and parts lists for control components.
  - 3. Complete system as-built wiring diagrams indicating the following:
    - a) Wiring for all control and power circuits indicating the voltage and breaker location for each circuit.
    - b) Wiring for direct digital controllers and interface panels.
    - c) Terminal number or code name for terminals in direct digital controllers and interface panels with unused terminals marked "spare".
    - d) Assigned name, address, and engineering units for direct digital controller input and output terminals.
  - 4. Control Wiring Floor Plans. Provide architectural floor plans overlaid with control components. Plans shall include locations of sensors, valves, dampers, transformers, control cabinets, mechanical and electrical equipment interlocked or controlled by BAS, and communication and power wiring.
  - 5. Control Transformer Schedule. Provide control transformer schedule indicating tag id, location, equipment serviced, and VA consumed.
  - 6. Valve Schedule

- 7. List of software with current revision numbers, vendor name and support telephone numbers.
- 8. Include copies of programming and variable printouts for the direct digital control logic created to fulfill the sequence of operation requirements. Include the following information:
  - a) Print the sequence of operation corresponding to the program listing on that page.
  - b) Block Programming diagrams if block programming is used.
- 9. Provide backup copy of programming and graphics for the direct digital control system with instructions on how to install the backup software if the system needs to be re-installed. Provide on USB drive.
- 10. Provide digitized copies of O & Ms, as built schematic control diagrams, wiring diagrams, and graphic screens recorded on USB drive in PDF drawing format.
- 11. Provide a print out of the configuration files for each controller. Place controller specific print out in specific controller cabinet.
- 12. Provide other information required for the Owner to properly troubleshoot and maintain the control system.
- D. Published and bound building management system software or hardware manuals are not required to be included in the three ring "Operation and Maintenance Manual". Provide one digital copy of each published building management system software or hardware manual required for the maintenance and operation of building management system to the Project Manager one week prior to request for substantial completion. Provide a separate index sheet describing each separate manual as part of the "Operation and Maintenance Manual".
- E. Provide editing facilities used in the developing of the building management system so that any custom programming required to apply the building management system to this project is accessible to a trained operator for viewing, editing, or creating similar software structures. List software that cannot be changed by the operator with model and version number. Any custom software is considered the property of the owner with full right to copy. This software is required to work across the BACNET/IP network.
- F. After the final inspection and subsequent punch list inspections update each copy of the Operation and Maintenance Manual to reflect final as-built conditions.

#### 1.08 SYSTEMS DEMONSTRATION

- A. The Contractor will completely check out, calibrate and test all connected hardware and software to ensure that the system performs in accordance with the approved specifications and sequences of operation.
- B. Provide complete demonstration of system operation to the owner's representative at the project substantial completion inspection. The Contactor will demonstrate to the Owner's satisfaction that all equipment and systems operate in accordance with the sequence of operation. Demonstration will include all equipment controlled by the Direct Digital Control System.
- C. Building management station demonstration will consist of:

- 1. Running sample point log and system configuration reports as requested.
- 2. Display and demonstrate each data entry to show site specific customizing capability. Demonstrate parameter changes.
- 3. Step through penetration tree, display all graphics, demonstrate dynamic update and direct access to graphics.
- 4. Execute system commands in graphic mode including operation of control system set points, schedules, valves, dampers and control relays. Commands shall be executed as necessary to demonstrate the system is controlling in accordance with the sequence of operations.
- 5. Demonstrate update, and alarm responsiveness.
- 6. Demonstrate digital system configuration graphics with interactive upload and download, and demonstrate specified diagnostics.

### 1.09 WARRANTY

- A. Under provisions of Division 10 Standard General Provisions.
- B. All components, system software, parts and assemblies will be guaranteed against defects in materials and workmanship for one year from acceptance date.
- C. Labor to troubleshoot, repair, reprogram, or replace system components will be furnished by the Contractor at no charge to the owner during the warranty period.
- D. All corrective software modifications made during warranty service periods will be updated on user documentation and on user and manufacturer archived software.

## 1.10 COORDINATION

- A. Coordinate location of thermostats, humidistats, panels, and other exposed control components with plans and room details before installation.
- B. Coordinate equipment with Division 16 Section "Fire Alarm" to achieve compatibility with equipment that interfaces with that system.
- C. Coordinate supply of conditioned electrical circuits for control units and operator workstation.
- D. Coordinate equipment with Division 15 Section on starters and drives to achieve compatibility with motor starter control coils and VFD control wiring.
- E. Coordinate scheduling with the mechanical contractor and general contractor. Submit a schedule for approval based upon the installation schedule of the mechanical equipment.

### 1.11 WARRANTY

A. Warranty shall cover all costs for parts, labor, associated travel, and expenses for a period of one year from completion of system commissioning and final demonstration.

- B. Hardware and software personnel supporting this warranty agreement shall provide on-site or off-site service in a timely manner after failure notification to the vendor. The maximum acceptable response time to provide this service at the site shall be 48 hours.
- C. This warranty shall apply equally to both hardware and software.
- D. Off-site support services shall allow the local BMS subcontractor to connect over telephone lines or internet to monitor and control the facility's building automation system. This remote connection to the facility shall be within 4 hours of the time that the problem is reported during normal working hours. During the one-year warranty period, coverage shall be extended to include normal business hours, after business hours, weekends and holidays.

## PART 2 - PRODUCTS

### 2.01 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS

- A. Trane.
- B. Alerton.
- C. Automated Logic.
- D. Siemens Building Technologies, Inc. Landis Division.
- E. Delta Controls.
- F. Johnson Controls.
- G. Approved Equal.

#### 2.02 GENERAL DESCRIPTION

- A. Distributed logic control systems complete with all software and hardware functions shall be provided and installed. System shall be completely based on ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 135-2001, BACnet. This system is to control all mechanical equipment, including all unitary equipment such as pumps, air handlers, heat exchangers, etc. and any other listed equipment using native BACnet-compliant components.
- B. Operator's workstation software shall be Microsoft as the computer operating system. The Building Management System (BAS) application program shall be written to communicate specifically utilizing BACnet protocols. Software shall include password protection, scheduling (including optimum start), alarming, logging of historical data, full graphics including animation, after-hours billing program, demand limiting, full suite of field engineering tools including graphical programming and applications.
- C. Building controllers shall include complete energy management software, including scheduling building control strategies with optimum start and logging routines. All energy management software and firmware shall be resident in field hardware and shall not be dependent on the operator's terminal. Operator's terminal software is to be used for access to field-based energy management functions only. Provide zone-by-zone direct digital logic control of space temperature, scheduling, runtime accumulation, equipment alarm reporting, and override timers for after-hours usage. All application controllers all equipment and any other piece of controlled

equipment shall be fully programmable. Application controllers shall be mounted next to controlled equipment and communicate with building controller via BACnet LAN.

- D. Room sensors shall allow room setpoint adjustment within preset limits. Initial settings 68°-72°F.
- E. Provide all alarms, manual control, and status indication functions as indicated under the sequence of operation.
- F. The system shall be Web Enabled and shall be accessible through any computer connected to the internet using a standard web browser and appropriate password protection. Contractor shall include costs for all network wiring and coordination with the owner for IP Address connection.
- G. The system shall include remote notification services to allow messaging of critical alarms to owners' designated personnel and to the central alarm facility.

# 2.03 ARCHITECTURE/COMMUNICATION

- A. This project shall be comprised of a high speed Ethernet network utilizing BACnet/IP communications between System Controllers and Workstations. Communications between System Controllers and sub-networks of Custom Application Controllers and/or Application Specific Controllers shall utilize BACnet/MSTP (RS485) or BACnet/Zigbee or LonTalk (FTT10) or Modbus RTU, or Modbus TCP communications.
  - 1. Each System Controller shall perform communications to a network of Custom Application and Application Specific Controllers using BACnet/Zigbee (802.15.4) as defined by the Zigbee Standard.
    - a) Each communication interface shall be Zigbee Building Automation Certified product as defined by the BACnet Standard and the Zigbee Alliance.
    - Each System Controller shall function as a BACnet Router to each unit controller providing a unique BACnet Device ID for all controllers within the system.
  - 2. The Controls Contractor shall provide all communication media, connectors, repeaters and network switches routers necessary for the high speed Ethernet communications network.
- B. Wireless equipment controllers and auxiliary control devices shall conform to:
  - 1. IEEE 802.15.4 radios to minimize risk of interference and maximize battery life, reliability, and range.
  - 2. Communication between equipment controllers shall conform to ZigBee Building Automation (ZBA) standard as BACnet tunneling devices to ensure future integration of other ZBA certified devices.
  - 3. Operating range shall be a minimum of 200 feet; open range shall be 2,500 ft. (762 m) with less than 2% packet error rate to ensure reliable operation.
  - 4. To maintain robust communication, mesh networking and two-way communications shall be used to optimize the wireless network health.

- 5. Wireless communication shall be capable of many-to-one sensors per controller to support averaging, monitoring, and multiple zone applications.
- 6. Certifications shall include FCC CFR47 RADIO FREQUENCY DEVICES Section 15.247 & Subpart E

### 2.04 OPERATOR INTERFACE

- A. Furnish one PC based operator interface as shown on the system drawings. Each operator interface shall be able to access all information in the system. Operator interfaces shall reside on the same high-speed network as the System Controller(s).
  - 1. Each operator interface PC shall include the following:
    - a) Hardware type.
    - b) PC
    - c) Operating Systems.
    - d) Minimum Hardware.
    - e) Pentium Core i7 DUO or better.
    - f) 4 GB RAM.
    - g) 100 GB hard drive space.
    - h) Internet Browser compatible with operator interface requirements outlined in the operator interface section.
  - 2. Operator Interface
    - a) The operator interface shall be accessible via a web browser without requiring any "plug-ins" i.e. JAVA Runtime Environment (JRE), Adobe Flash.
    - b) The operator interface shall support the following Internet web browsers:
      - 1) Internet Explorer
      - 2) Chrome latest version
    - c) The operator interface shall support the following mobile web browsers:
      - 1) iOS (iPad/iPhone) 11 +
      - 2) Android (Tablet) V7.0 +
      - 3) Android (Phone) V7.0 +
  - 3. System Security
    - a) Each operator shall be required to login to the system with a user name and password in order to view, edit, add, or delete data.
    - b) User Profiles shall restrict the user to only the objects, applications, and system functions as assigned by the system administrator.

- c) Each operator shall be allowed to change their user password
- d) The System Administrator shall be able to manage the security for all other users
- e) The system shall include pre-defined "roles" that allow a system administrator to quickly assign permissions to a user.
- f) User logon/logoff attempts shall be recorded.
- g) The system shall protect itself from unauthorized use by automatically logging off following the last keystroke. The delay time shall be user definable.
- h) All system security data shall be stored in an encrypted format.
- 4. Database
  - a) Database Save. A system operator with the proper password clearance shall be able to archive the database on the designated operator interface PC.
  - b) Database Restore. The system operator shall also be able to clear a panel database and manually initiate a download of a specified database to any panel in the system.
- 5. On-Line Help and Training
  - a) Provide a context sensitive, on line help system to assist the operator in operation and configuration of the system.
  - b) On-line help shall be available for all system functions and shall provide the relevant data for each particular screen.
- 6. System Diagnostics
  - a) The system shall automatically monitor the operation of all network connections, building management panels, and controllers.
  - b) The failure of any device shall be annunciated to the operators.
- 7. Equipment & Application Pages
  - a) The operator interface shall include standard pages for all equipment and applications. These pages shall allow an operator to obtain information relevant to the operation of the equipment and/or application, including:
    - 1) Animated Equipment Graphics for each major piece of equipment and floor plan in the System. This includes:
      - (i) Each Chiller, Air Handler, VAV Terminal, Fan Coil, Boiler, and Cooling Tower. These graphics shall show all points dynamically as specified in the points list.
      - Animation capabilities shall include the ability to show a sequence of images reflecting the position of analog outputs, such as valve or damper positions. Graphics shall be capable of launching other web pages.

- 2) Alarms relevant to the equipment or application without requiring a user to navigate to an alarm page and perform a filter.
- 3) Historical Data, as defined in Data Log section below, for the equipment or application without requiring a user to navigate to a Data Log page and perform a filter.
- 8. System Graphics. Operator interface shall be graphically based and shall include at least one graphic per piece of equipment or occupied zone, graphics for each chilled water and hot water system, and graphics that summarize conditions on each floor of each building included in this contract. Indicate thermal comfort on floor plan summary graphics using colors to represent zone temperature relative to zone set point.
  - a) Functionality. Graphics shall allow operator to monitor system status, to view a summary of the most important data for each controlled zone or piece of equipment, to use point and-click navigation between zones or equipment, and to edit set points and other specified parameters.
  - b) Graphic imagery graphics shall use 3D images for all standard and custom graphics. The only allowable exceptions will be photo images, maps, schematic drawings, and selected floor plans.
  - c) Animation. Graphics shall be able to animate by displaying different Image lies for changed object status.
  - d) Alarm Indication. Indicate areas or equipment in an alarm condition using color or other visual indicator.
  - e) Format. Graphics shall be saved in an industry-standard format such as BMP, JPEG, PNG, or GIF. Web-based system graphics shall be viewable on browsers compatible with World Wide Web Consortium browser standards. Web graphic format shall require no plug-in (such as HTML and JavaScript) or shall only require widely available no-cost plug-ins (such as Active-X and Macromedia Flash).
- 9. Custom Graphics
  - a) The operator interface shall be capable of displaying custom graphics in order to convey the status of the facility to its operators.
  - b) Graphical Navigation. The operator interface shall provide dynamic color graphics of building areas, systems and equipment.
  - c) Graphical Data Visualization. The operator interface shall support dynamic points including analog and binary values, dynamic text, static text, and animation files.
  - d) Custom background images. Custom background images shall be created with the use of commonly available graphics packages such as Adobe Photoshop. The graphics generation package shall create and modify graphics that are saved in industry standard formats such as GIF and JPEG.
- 10. Graphics Library. Furnish a library of standard HVAC equipment such as chillers, air handlers, terminals, fan coils, unit ventilators, rooftop units, and VAV boxes, in 3-dimensional graphic depictions. The library shall be furnished in a file format compatible with the graphics generation package program.

PAGE 13 OF 29

- 11. Manual Control and Override.
  - a) Point Control. Provide a method for a user to view, override, and edit if applicable, the status of any object and property in the system. The point status shall be available by menu, on graphics or through custom programs.
  - b) Temporary Overrides. The user shall be able to perform a temporary override wherever an override is allowed, automatically removing the override after a specified period of time.
  - c) Override Owners. The system shall convey to the user the owner of each override for all priorities that an override exists.
  - d) Provide a specific icon to show timed override or operator override, when a point, unit controller or application has been overridden manually.
- 12. Engineering Units
  - a) Allow for selection of the desired engineering units (i.e. Inch pound or SI) in the system.
  - b) Unit selection shall be able to be customized by locality to select the desired units for each measurement.
  - c) Engineering units on this project shall be IP.
- 13. Scheduling. A user shall be able to perform the following tasks utilizing the operator interface:
  - a) Create a new schedule, defining the default values, events and membership.
  - b) Create exceptions to a schedule for any given day.
  - c) Apply an exception that spans a single day or multiple days.
  - d) View a schedule by day, week and month.
  - e) Exception schedules and holidays shall be shown clearly on the calendar.
  - f) Modify the schedule events, members and exceptions.
- 14. Data Logs
  - a) Data Logs Definition.
    - 1) The operator interface shall allow a user with the appropriate security permissions to define a Data Log for any data in the system.
    - 2) The operator interface shall allow a user to define any Data Log options as described in the Application and Control Software section.
  - b) Data Log Viewer.
    - 1) The operator interface shall allow Data Log data to be viewed and printed.

2)	The operator interface shall allow a user to view Data Log data in a
-	text-based format (time -stamp/value).

- 3) The operator shall be able to view the data collected by a Data Log in a graphical chart in the operator interface.
- 4) Data Log viewing capabilities shall include the ability to show a minimum of 5 points on a chart.
- 5) Each data point data line shall be displayed as a unique color.
- 6) The operator shall be able to specify the duration of historical data to view by scrolling and zooming.
- 7) The system shall provide a graphical trace display of the associated time stamp and value for any selected point along the x-axis.
- c) Export Data Logs.
  - 1) The operator interface shall allow a user to export Data Log data in CSV or PDF format for use by other industry standard word processing and spreadsheet packages.
- 15. Alarm/Event Notification
  - a) An operator shall be notified of new alarms/events as they occur while navigating through any part of the system via an alarm icon.
  - b) Alarm/Event Log. The operator shall be able to view all logged system alarms/events from any operator interface.
    - 1) The operator shall be able to sort and filter alarms from events. Alarms shall be sorted in a minimum of 4 categories based on severity.
    - 2) Alarm/event messages shall use full language, easily recognized descriptors.
    - 3) An operator with the proper security level may acknowledge and clear alarms/events.
    - 4) All alarms/events that have not been cleared by the operator shall be stored by the building controller.
    - 5) The alarm/event log shall include a comment field for each alarm/event that allows a user to add specific comments associated with any alarm.
  - c) Alarm Processing.
    - 1) The operator shall be able to configure any object in the system to generate an alarm when transitioning in and out of a normal state.
    - 2) The operator shall be able to configure the alarm limits, warning limits, states, and reactions for each object in the system.

- 16. Reports and Logs.
  - a) The operator interface shall provide a reporting package that allows the operator to select reports.
  - b) The operator interface shall provide the ability to schedule reports to run at specified intervals of time.
  - c) The operator interface shall allow a user to export reports and logs from the building controller in a format that is readily accessible by other standard software applications including spreadsheets and word processing. Acceptable formats include:
  - d) CSV, HTML, XML, PDF
  - e) Reports and logs shall be readily printed to the system printer.
  - f) Provide a means to list and access the last 10 reports viewed by the user.
  - g) The following standard reports shall be available without requiring a user to manually configure the report:
    - 1) All Points in Alarm Report: Provide an on-demand report showing all current alarms.
    - 2) All Points in Override Report: Provide an on-demand report showing all overrides in effect.
    - 3) Commissioning Report: Provide a one-time report that lists all equipment with the unit configuration and present operation.
    - 4) Points report: Provide a report that lists the current value of all points
- 17. VAV Air System. An operator shall be able to view and control (where applicable) the following parameters via the operator interface:
  - a) System Mode
  - b) System Occupancy
  - c) Ventilation (Outdoor air flow) setpoint
  - d) Ventilation (Outdoor air flow) status
  - e) Air Handler Static pressure setpoint
  - f) Air Handler Static pressure status
  - g) Air Handler occupancy status
  - h) Air Handler Supply air cooling and heating set points
  - i) Air Handler minimum, maximum and nominal static pressure setpoints
  - j) VAV box minimum and maximum flow
  - k) VAV box drive open and close overrides

- I) VAV box occupancy status
- m) VAV box Airflow to space
- n) Average space temperature
- o) Minimum space temperature
- p) Maximum space temperature
- B. Wireless Space Sensors
  - 1. Battery life shall be 15 years or greater to minimize the need for battery replacement in typical operating conditions.
  - 2. To check for proper operation, wireless space temperature sensors shall include a signal strength on the space sensor display.
  - 3. To allow local troubleshooting without specialized tools, error codes shall be displayed on the digital display. Error codes shall include: not associated, address to 000, improper software configuration, input voltage too high, or general sensor failure. Codes shall be indicated on inside of sensor back cover.
  - 4. To support use by the physically impaired, the wireless space sensor shall be a minimum font size of 12 points, and the LCD model shall be readable in low light conditions.
  - 5. An optional 2% relative humidity sensors module shall be available for humidity control applications to minimize the need for wires sensors and shall not shorten typical battery life to less than 15 years.
- C. Service Tools
  - 1. To support network setup and troubleshooting, service tools shall display link quality and hop quantities for each wireless device.
  - 2. Wireless service tool access to comm link shall be provided to minimize installation and troubleshooting labor.

## 2.05 APPLICATION AND CONTROL SOFTWARE

- A. Furnish the following applications software for building and energy management. All software applications shall reside and run in the system controllers. Editing of applications shall occur at the operator interface.
  - Scheduling. Provide the capability to schedule each object or group of objects in the system. Each of these schedules shall include the capability for start, stop, optimal start, optimal stop, and night economizer actions. Each schedule may consist of up to 20 events. When a group of objects are scheduled together, provide the capability to define advances and delays for each member. Each schedule shall consist of the following:
    - a) Weekly Schedule. Provide separate schedules for each day of the week.
    - b) Exception Schedules. Provide the ability for the operator to designate any day of the year as an exception schedule. This exception schedule shall override

the standard schedule for that day. Exception schedules may be defined up to a year in advance. Once an exception schedule is executed it will be discarded and replaced by the standard schedule for that day of the week.

- c) Holiday Schedules. Provide the capability for the operator to define up to 99 special or holiday schedules. These schedules may be placed on the scheduling calendar and will be repeated each year. The operator shall be able to define the length of each holiday period.
- d) Optimal Start. The scheduling application outlined above shall support an optimal start algorithm. This shall calculate the thermal characteristics of a zone and start the equipment prior to occupancy to achieve the desired space temperature at the specified occupancy time. The algorithm shall calculate separate sets of heating and cooling rates for zones that have been unoccupied for less then and greater than 24 hours. Provide the ability to modify the start algorithm based on outdoor air temperature. Provide an early start limit in minutes to prevent the system from starting before an operator determined time limit.
- 2. Data Log Application
  - a) Data Log data shall be sampled and stored on the System Controller panel and shall be capable of being archived to a BACnet Workstation for longer term storage.
    - 1) Data Log sample types shall include interval, start-time, and stop-time.
    - 2) Data Log intervals shall be configurable as frequently as 1 minute and as infrequently as 1 year.
  - b) Data Logs
    - 1) The system controller shall contain Data Log information for defined key measurements for each controlled HVAC device and HVAC application.
    - The Data Logs shall monitor these parameters for a minimum of 7 days at 15 minute intervals. The Data Logs intervals shall be user adjustable.
- 3. Alarm/Event Log
  - a) Any object in the system shall be configurable to generate an alarm when transitioning in and out of a normal or fault state.
  - b) Any object in the system shall allow the alarm limits, warning limits, states, and reactions to be configured for each object in the system.
  - c) An alarm/event shall be capable of triggering any of the following actions:
    - 1) Route the alarm/event to one or more alarm log
    - 2) The alarm message shall include the name of the alarm location, the device that generated the alarm, and the alarm message itself.
    - 3) Route an e-mail message to an operator(s)

- 4) Log a data point(s) for a period of time
- 5) Run a custom control program
- 4. VAV System Coordination. Provide applications software to properly coordinate and control the VAV system to ensure equipment safety and minimize energy use. This application shall perform the following functions:
  - a) Startup and shutdown the air handler safely. Ensure the VAV boxes are open sufficiently when the air handler is running, to prevent damage to the ductwork and VAV boxes due to high air pressure.
  - b) Calibrate VAV boxes.
  - c) Fan Pressure Optimization (ASHRAE 90.1) Minimize energy usage by controlling system static pressure to the lowest level while maintaining zone airflow requirements. System static pressure controlled to keep the "most open" zone damper between 65% and 75% open.
    - The Fan Pressure Optimization application shall have the ability to identify and display the discharge air setpoint of the air-handler and the VAV box that serves the critical zone (e.g., the zone with the most open VAV box damper). This information shall dynamically update with changes in the location of the critical zone.
    - 2) During commissioning, and with the engineer/owner, the controls contractor shall confirm the performance of Fan Pressure Optimization by conducting a field functional test that demonstrates critical zone reset.
  - d) Ventilation Optimization (ASHRAE 62) properly ventilate all spaces while minimizing operating energy costs, using measured outdoor air flow. Dynamically calculate the system outdoor air requirement based on "real time" conditions in the spaces (i.e., number of occupants, CO2 levels, etc.) minimizing the amount of unconditioned outdoor air that must be brought into the building.
  - e) Demand Controlled Ventilation the active ventilation setpoint shall modulate between the occupied ventilation and occupied standby ventilation setpoint; Reset the setpoint based on CO2 levels in the space.
- 5. Point Control. User shall have the option to set the update interval, minimum on/off time, event notification, custom programming on change of events.
- 6. Timed Override. A standard application shall be utilized to enable/disable temperature control when a user selects on/cancel at the zone sensor, operator interface, or the local operator display. The amount of time that the override takes precedence will be selectable from the operator interface.
- 7. Anti-Short Cycling. All binary output points shall be protected from short cycling.

### 2.06 SYSTEM CONTROLLERS

- A. There shall be one or more independent, standalone microprocessor based System Controllers to manage the global strategies described in Application and Control Software section.
  - 1. The System Controller shall have sufficient memory to support its operating system, database, and programming requirements.
  - 2. The controller shall provide a USB communications port for connection to a PC
  - 3. The operating system of the Controller shall manage the input and output communications signals to allow distributed controllers to share real and virtual point information and allow central monitoring and alarms.
  - 4. All System Controllers shall have a real time clock.
  - 5. Data shall be shared between networked System Controllers.
  - 6. The System Controller shall continually check the status of its processor and memory circuits. If an abnormal operation is detected, the controller shall:
    - a) Assume a predetermined failure mode.
    - b) Generate an alarm notification.
    - c) Create a retrievable file of the state of all applicable memory locations at the time of the failure.
    - d) Automatically reset the System Controller to return to a normal operating mode.
  - 7. Environment. Controller hardware shall be suitable for the anticipated ambient conditions. Controller used in conditioned ambient shall be mounted in an enclosure, and shall be rated for operation at -40°F to 122°F.
  - 8. Clock Synchronization.
    - a) All System Controllers shall be able to synchronize with a NTP server for automatic time synchronization.
    - b) All System Controllers shall be able to accept a BACnet time synchronization command for automatic time synchronization.
    - c) All System Controllers shall automatically adjust for daylight savings time if applicable.
  - 9. Serviceability.
    - a) Provide diagnostic LEDs for power, communications, and processor.
    - b) The System Controller shall have a display on the main board that indicates the current operating mode of the controller.
    - c) All wiring connections shall be made to field removable, modular terminal connectors.
    - d) The System controller shall utilize standard DIN mounting methods for installation and replacement.

- 10. Memory. The System Controller shall maintain all BIOS and programming information indefinitely without power to the System controller
- 11. Immunity to power and noise. Controller shall be able to operate at 90% to 110% of nominal voltage rating and shall perform an orderly shut-down below 80% nominal voltage
- 12. BACnet Test Labs (BTL) Listing. Each System Controller shall be listed as a Building Controller (B-BC) by the BACnet Test Labs with a minimum BACnet Protocol Revision of 14.

# 2.07 AUXILIARY CONTROL DEVICES

- A. Wireless space sensors for use in Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems
  - 1. Temperature and Humidity Range
    - a) The ambient operating temperature range for the wireless space sensor shall be 32°F to 122°F.
    - b) The ambient storage temperature range for the wireless space sensor shall be 40°F to 185°F.
    - c) The ambient operating and storage humidity range for the wireless space sensor shall be 5 to 95%, non-condensing.
  - 2. Components
    - a) Wireless space sensors shall be available as: temperature only, field configurable model with digital display, and optional 2% humidity module for use in either model above. The field configurable model shall all allow field configuration without a field service tool. Configuration options include: setpoint, override pushbuttons, fan speed, and system mode switches. System mode, fan speed and setpoint shall include a lock option. The digital display shall also be field configurable to display in Fahrenheit or Celsius units of measure, and can also be configured to display setpoint only.
    - b) The wireless space sensor addresses shall be held in non-volatile memory to ensure operation through system voltage disturbances and to minimize the risk of incorrect association.
    - c) The wireless space sensor shall be addressed using pushbuttons and display with numerical indication to simplify and reduce installation time and minimize risk of incorrect addressing. Two position DIP switches are not acceptable.
    - d) Installation and replacement of failed sensors shall be accomplished automatically after power up.
    - e) The wireless space sensor shall include security screws to protect against theft.
    - f) Wireless space sensor component certifications shall include:
      - 1) TFP-13651127 Canada Compliance
      - 2) UL 916 Energy Management Equipment

- 3) UL 94 The Standard for Flammability of Plastic Materials for Parts in Devices and Appliances: 5 VA flammability rating
- 4) UL 873 Temperature regulating and indicating equipment
- 3. Accuracy.
  - a) To ensure proper system performance, the wireless space sensors shall automatically determine when the space temperature is rapidly changing. When the space temperature is readily changing, the space temperature shall be transmitted at least once each 30 seconds. The maximum time between transmissions shall be 15 minutes. Space temperature sensing accuracy shall be +/- 0.5°F.
- 4. Power Requirements.
  - a) The wireless space sensor battery life shall provide at least 15 years life under normal operating conditions and must be readily available size AA, 1.5V.
- B. Wireless Communications Interface for use in Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems.
  - 1. Temperature and Humidity Range
    - a) The ambient storage temperature range for the wireless communications interface shall be -40°F to 185°F.
    - b) The ambient operating and storage humidity range for the wireless communications interface shall be 5 to 95%, non-condensing.
  - 2. Components.
    - a) The wireless communications interface shall be addressed using rotary switches with numerical indication to simplify and reduce installation time and minimize risk of incorrect addressing. Two position DIP switches are not acceptable.
    - b) Wireless Comm Interface certifications shall include:
      - 1) TFP-13651127 Canada Compliance.
      - 2) UL 916 Energy Management Equipment.
      - 3) UL 94 The Standard for Flammability of Plastic Materials for Parts in Devices and Appliances: 5 VA flammability rating.
      - 4) UL 873 Temperature regulating and indicating equipment.
      - 5) ZigBee Building Automation, BACnet Tunneling Device.

# 2.08 SYSTEM TOOLS

- A. Wireless Space Sensor Installation and Configuration Tools.
  - 1. To enable installation and servicing when specialized tools are required, site survey and installation tools as well as software shall be provided to the contractor use for system installation and commissioning for the duration of the warranty period.
  - 2. To enable installation and servicing when specialized tools are required, site survey and installation tools as well as software shall be provided to the owner for permanent possession for ongoing system maintenance and trouble shooting.

# PART 3 - EXECUTION

# 3.01 PROJECT MANAGEMENT

- A. Provide a designated project manager who will be responsible for the following:
  - 1. Construct and maintain project schedule
  - 2. On-site coordination with all applicable trades and subcontractors
  - 3. Authorized to accept and execute orders or instructions from owner/architect
  - 4. Attend project meetings as necessary to avoid conflicts and delays
  - 5. Make necessary field decisions relating to this scope of work
  - 6. Coordination/Single point of contact

#### 3.02 SEQUENCE OF OPERATION

- A. See drawings.
- 3.03 POINT SCHEDULE MATRIX I/0 SCHEDULE
  - A. Provide in accordance with sequence of controls.
  - B. The contractor shall collaborate with the owner directly to determine the owner's preference for naming conventions, etc. before entering the data in to the system.

# 3.04 INSTALLATION

- A. Provide all relays, switches and all other auxiliaries, accessories and connections necessary to make a complete operable system in accordance with the sequences specified. All field wiring shall be by this contractor.
- B. Install controls so that adjustments and calibrations can be readily made. Controls are to be installed by the control equipment manufacturer.
- C. Mount surface-mounted control devices on brackets to clear the final finished surface on insulation.

- D. Install equipment level and plumb.
- E. Install control valves horizontally with the power unit up.
- F. Unless otherwise noted, install wall mounted thermostats and humidistat 48" above the floor measured to the center line of the instrument, or as otherwise directed by the Architect.
- G. Install averaging elements in ducts and plenums in horizontal crossing or zigzag pattern.
- H. Install outdoor sensors in perforated tube and sunshield.
- I. Install damper motors on outside of duct in protected areas, not in locations exposed to outdoor temperatures.
- J. Install labels and nameplates on each control panel listing the name of the panel referenced in the graphics and a list of equipment numbers served by that panel.
- K. Furnish hydronic instrument wells, pressure sensors, valves, and other accessories to the mechanical contractor for installation in the piping system.
- L. Furnish automatic dampers to mechanical contractor for installation in the ductwork.
- M. Coordinate with Electrical Contractor for work required by them.

#### 3.05 ELECTRICAL WIRING AND MATERIALS

- A. Install, connect and wire the items included under this Section. This work includes providing required conduit, wire, fittings and related wiring accessories.
- B. All wiring, cable, raceways, boxes and cabinets to be compliant with the Division 16 requirements and the NEC.
- C. Installation shall meet the following requirements:
  - 1. All wiring in exposed shall be in conduit or raceway.
  - 2. Install concealed, accessible cable using plenum rated cable in bridle rings or drive rings. Do not rest cable on ceiling tiles.
  - 3. Conceal cable and conduit, except in mechanical rooms and areas where other conduit and piping are exposed.
  - 4. Bundle and harness multiconductor instrument cable in place of single cables where several cables follow a common path.
  - 5. Fasten flexible conductors, bridging cabinets and doors, along hinge side; protect against abrasion. Tie and support conductors.
  - 6. Number-code or color-code conductors for future identification and service of control system, except local individual room control cables.
- D. Electrical metallic tubing (EMT) with compression fittings or intermediate metallic conduit (IMC) may be used as conduit or raceway where permitted by the NEC.

- E. Concealed control conduit and wiring shall be provided in all spaces except in the Mechanical Equipment Rooms and in unfinished spaces. Install in parallel banks with all changes in directions made at 90 degree angles.
- F. Provide electrical wall box and conduit sleeve for all wall-mounted devices. Mount thermostats at 48" AFF.

## 3.06 CONNECTIONS

- A. Install conduit adjacent to machine to allow service and maintenance.
- B. Connect manual-reset limit controls independent of manual-control switch positions. Automatic duct heater resets may be connected in interlock circuit of power controllers.
- C. Connect hand-off-auto selector switches to override automatic interlock controls when switch is in hand position.
- D. Ground equipment.

# 3.07 AIR SENSING LINES

- A. All piping and tubing shall be properly supported using straps, cleats, or hangers as approved. Use of wire will not be permitted.
- B. Tubing passing through or buried in concrete shall be hard drawn copper in rigid steel conduit.
- C. Air tubing run exposed in mechanical equipment rooms shall be hard drawn copper.
- D. Air tubing in finished areas shall be run concealed.
- E. Air tubing for high pressure mains (over 20 psig) shall be copper.
- F. Single Tube Polyethylene plastic tubing will be permitted in lieu of copper, except for high pressure mains, in the following locations:
  - 1. Within thin wall electric conduit (EMT).
  - 2. Within control panels.
  - 3. Above ceilings where concealed and accessible.

#### 3.08 PERFORMANCE

A. Unless stated otherwise, control temperatures within plus or minus 2°F, humidity within plus or minus 3% of the set point and static pressure within 10% of set point.

#### 3.09 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A. Engage a factory-authorized service representative to perform startup service.

- B. Replace damaged or malfunctioning controls and equipment.
  - 1. Start, test, and adjust control systems.
  - 2. Demonstrate compliance with requirements, including calibration and testing, and control sequences.
  - 3. Adjust, calibrate, and fine tune circuits and equipment to achieve sequence of operation specified.

### 3.10 SYSTEM CHECKOUT AND STARTUP

- A. When installation of the system is complete, calibrate equipment and verify transmission media operation before the system is placed on-line. The manufacturer shall complete all testing, calibrating, adjusting and final field tests. Verify that all systems are operable from local controls in the specified failure mode upon panel failure or loss of power.
- B. Inspect each termination in the control panels and devices to make sure all wires are connected according to the wiring diagrams and all termination are tight.
- C. After the controls devices and panels are installed and power is available to the controls, perform a static checkout of all the points, including the following:
  - 1. Inspect the setup and reading on each temperature and humidity sensor.
  - 2. Inspect the reading of each status switch to verify the DDC reads the open and close correctly.
  - 3. Command each relay to open and close to verify its operation.
  - 4. Command each 2-position damper actuator to open and close to verify operation.
  - 5. Command each 2-position valve to open and close to verify operation.
  - 6. Ramp each modulating actuator to 0%, 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% to verify its operation.
  - 7. Ramp each modulating output signal, such as a VFD speed, to verify its operation.
  - 8. Test each safety device with a real life simulation, for instance check freezestats with ice water, water detectors with water, etc.
- D. Document that each point was verified and operating correctly. Correct each failed point before proceeding to the dynamic startup.
- E. Verify that each DDC controller communicates on its respective network correctly.
- F. After all of the points are verified, and power is available to the mechanical system, coordinate a startup of each system with the mechanical contractor. Include the following tests:
  - 1. Start systems from DDC.
  - 2. Verify that each setpoint can be met by the system.
  - 3. Change setpoints and verify system response.

- 4. Change sensor readings to verify system response.
- 5. Test safety shutdowns.
- 6. Verify time delays.
- 7. Verify mode changes.
- 8. Adjust filter switches and current switches for proper reactions.
- 9. Adjust proportional bands and integration times to stabilize control loops.
- G. Perform all program changes and debugging of the system for a fully operational system.
- H. Verify that all graphics at the operator workstations correspond to the systems as installed. Verify that the points on the screens appear and react properly. Verify that all adjustable setpoints and manual commands operate from the operator workstations.
- I. After the sequence of operation is verified, setup the trends that are listed in the sequence of operations for logging and archiving for the commissioning procedure.
- J. Provide any recommendation for system modification in writing to owner. Do not make any system modification, including operating parameters and control settings, without prior approval of owner.

## 3.11 COMMISSIONING, TESTING AND ACCEPTANCE

- A. Perform a three-phase commissioning procedure consisting of field I/O calibration and commissioning, system commissioning and integrated system program commissioning. Document all commissioning information on commissioning data sheets that shall be submitted prior to acceptance testing. Commissioning work that requires shutdown of system or deviation from normal function shall be performed when the operation of the system is not required. The commissioning must be coordinated with the owner and construction manager to ensure systems are available when needed. Notify the operating personal in writing of the testing schedule so that authorized personnel from the owner and construction manager are present throughout the commissioning procedure.
  - 1. Prior to system program commissioning, verify that each control panel has been installed according to plans, specifications and approved shop drawings. Test, calibrate and bring on line each control sensor and device. Commissioning to include, but not be limited to:
    - a) Sensor range.
    - b) Verify analog limit and binary alarm reporting.
    - c) Point value reporting.
    - d) Binary alarm and switch settings.
    - e) Actuator ranges.
    - f) Fail safe operation on loss of control signal, electric power, network communications.

- B. After control devices have been commissioned (i.e. calibrated, tested and signed off), each BMS program shall be put on line and commissioned. The contractor shall, in the presence of the owner's representative, demonstrate each programmed sequence of operation and compare the results with the specified sequence. In addition, each control loop shall be tested to verify proper response and stable control. System test results shall be recorded on contractor-generated commissioning data sheets and submitted for record. Any discrepancies between the specification and the actual performance will be immediately rectified.
- C. After all BMS programs have been commissioned, the contractor shall verify the overall system performance as specified. Tests shall include, but not be limited to:
  - 1. Data communication, both normal and failure modes.
  - 2. Fully loaded system response time.
  - 3. Impact of component failures on system performance and system operation.
  - 4. Time/Date changes.
  - 5. End of month/ end of year operation.
  - 6. Season changeover.
  - 7. Global application programs and point sharing.
  - 8. System backup and reloading.
  - 9. System status displays.
  - 10. Diagnostic functions.
  - 11. Power failure routines.
  - 12. Battery backup.
- D. Submit for approval, a detailed acceptance test procedure designed to demonstrate compliance with contractual requirements. This Acceptance test procedure will take place after the commissioning procedure but before final acceptance, to verify that sensors and control devices maintain specified accuracy's and the system performance does not degrade over time.
- E. Using the commissioning test data sheets, the contractor shall demonstrate each point and system function. Completed test data sheets shall be made available to the Owner if requested.

# 3.12 TRAINING

- A. The manufacturer shall provide a skilled instructor to give full instruction to designated personnel in the operation of the system installed. Instructors shall be thoroughly familiar with all aspects of the subject matter they are to teach. All training shall be held during normal working hours of 8:00 am to 4:30 PM weekdays.
- B. Provide 4 hours of training for Owner's designated operating personnel. Training shall include:
  - 1. Explanation of drawings, operations and maintenance manuals.
  - 2. Walk-through of the job to locate control components.

PAGE 29 OF 29

- 3. Operator workstation and peripherals.
- 4. DDC controller and ASC operation/function.
- 5. Operator control functions including graphic generation and field panel programming.
- 6. Explanation of adjustment, calibration and replacement procedures.
- C. Since the Owner may require personnel to have more comprehensive understanding of the hardware and software, additional training must be available from the Manufacturer. If the Owner requires such training, it will be contracted at a later date.

END OF SECTION

# SECTION 23 11 23 NATURAL AND PROPANE GAS PIPING

# PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes piping, fittings and valves for gas piping systems.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Division 09 Painting: Product requirements for painting for placement by this section.
  - 2. Section 23 05 53 Mechanical Identification: Product requirements for valve and pipe identification for placement by this section.

### 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASME SEC IX (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Welding and Brazing Qualifications.
- B. ASME B16.3 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Malleable Iron Threaded Fittings.
- C. ASTM A53 Pipe, Steel, Black and Hot-Dipped Zinc Coated, Welded and Seamless.
- D. ASTM A234/A234M Pipe Fittings of Wrought Carbon Steel and Alloy Steel for Moderate and Elevated Temperatures
- E. NFPA 54 (National Fire Protection Association) National Fuel Gas Code.
- F. NFPA 58 (National Fire Protection Association) Liquefied Petroleum Gas Code.
- G. 2012 International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC).

## 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittal Requirements: In addition to submittal procedures as outlined under Division 1, mechanical submittals shall be submitted as follows:
  - 1. Product Data: Submit data on pipe materials.

# 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Closeout Submittals.
- B. Contract Closeout Requirements: In addition to contract closeout requirements as outlined under Division 1, mechanical contract closeout requirements shall include the following:
  - 1. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of valves, piping system and system components.

# 23 11 23 -1

#### PAGE 2 OF 3

- 2. Operation and Maintenance Data: Submit installation instructions, spare parts lists.
- 1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE
  - A. Perform Work in accordance with NFPA 54 and NFPA 58.

# 1.06 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- 1.07 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING
  - A. Accept valves on site in shipping containers with labeling in place. Inspect for damage.
  - B. Protect piping and fittings from soil and debris with temporary end caps and closures. Maintain in place until installation. Provide temporary protective coating on cast iron and steel valves.

# 1.08 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

# 1.09 WARRANTY

- A. Division 01 Warranties and Bonds.
- B. Provide one-year manufacturer warranty for pumps and valves excluding packing.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

- 2.01 NATURAL GAS PIPING ABOVE GRADE
  - A. Steel Pipe: ASTM A53 Schedule 40 black.
    - 1. Fittings: ASME B16.3, malleable iron, or ASTM A234/A234M forged steel welding type.
    - 2. Joints: NFPA 54, threaded or welded for low pressure; welded for medium pressure.

# 2.02 PROPANE GAS PIPING - ABOVE GRADE

- A. Steel Pipe: ASTM A53 Schedule 40 black.
  - 1. Fittings: ASME B16.3, malleable iron, or ASTM A234/A234M forged steel welding type.
  - 2. Joints: NFPA 54, threaded or welded for low pressure; welded for medium pressure.

# 23 11 23 -2

## 2.03 FLANGES, UNIONS AND COUPLINGS

- A. Pipe Size 2 inches and Under:
  - 1. Ferrous pipe: 150-psi malleable iron threaded unions.
- B. Pipe Size Over 2 inches:
  - 1. Ferrous pipe: 150 psi forged steel slip-on flanges; 1/16" thick preformed neoprene gaskets.

### 2.04 BALL VALVES

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Crane.
  - 2. Milwaukee.
  - 3. Nibco.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. MSS SP-110, Class 150, 400 psi CWP, bronze, two-piece body, chrome plated brass ball, regular port, teflon seats and stuffing box ring, blow-out proof stem, lever handle, threaded ends, rated for natural gas service.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 PREPARATION

- A. Ream pipe and tube ends. Remove burrs. Bevel plain end ferrous pipe.
- B. Remove scale and dirt, on inside and outside, before assembly.
- C. Prepare piping connections to equipment with flanges or unions.

#### 3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Route piping in orderly manner and maintain gradient.
- B. Install piping to conserve building space and not interfere with use of space.
- C. Pipe vents from gas pressure reducing valves to outdoors.
- D. Install valves with stems upright or horizontal, not inverted.
- E. Protect piping systems from entry of foreign materials by temporary covers, completing sections of the work and isolating parts of completed system.

# END OF SECTION

# 23 11 23 -3

SECTION 23 21 13

HYDRONIC PIPING

# PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes systems, accessories, valves, pipe and pipe fittings for glycol heating and water heating.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 07 00 Mechanical Insulation: Product requirements for piping insulation for placement by this section.

# 1.02 REFERENCES

- ASME (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Boiler and Pressure Vessel Codes, SEC IX Qualification Standard for Welding and Brazing Procedures, Welders, Brazers, and Welding and Brazing Operators.
- B. ASME B31.9 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Building Services Piping.
- C. ASME B16.18 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Cast Copper Alloy Solder Joint Pressure Fittings.
- D. ASME B16.22 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Wrought Copper and Copper Alloy Solder Joint Pressure Fittings.
- E. ASTM B32 Solder Metal.

# 1.03 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

- A. Where more than one piping system material is specified, ensure system components are compatible and joined to ensure the integrity of the system is not jeopardized. Provide necessary joining fittings. Ensure flanges, union, and couplings for servicing are consistently provided.
- B. Use unions, flanges, and couplings downstream of valves and at equipment or apparatus connections. Use non-conducting dielectric nipple or flange connections or bronze union whenever jointing dissimilar metals in systems. Do not use direct welded or threaded connections to valves, equipment or other apparatus.
- C. Use ball valves for shut-off and to isolate equipment, part of systems, or vertical risers.
- D. Use ball valves for throttling or bypass services.
- E. Use <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>-inch ball valves with hose connection end and cap for drains at main shut-off valves, low points of piping, bases of vertical risers, and at equipment.
- F. Valve seat materials shall be compatible with glycol solutions applicable to this project.

# 1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Product Data: Submit data on pipe materials, pipe fittings, valves, and accessories. Provide manufacturers catalogue information. Indicate valve data and ratings.

## 1.05 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of valves.
- C. Operation and Maintenance Data: Submit instructions for installation and changing components, spare parts lists, exploded assembly views.

### 1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Perform Work in accordance with ASME B31.9 code for installation of piping systems and ASME SEC IX for welding materials and procedures.

# 1.07 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Fabricator or Installer: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.

#### 1.08 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Accept valves on site in shipping containers with labeling in place. Inspect for damage.
- B. Provide temporary end caps and closures on piping and fittings. Maintain in place until installation.
- C. Protect piping systems from entry of foreign materials by temporary covers, completing sections of the work, and isolating parts of completed system Protect.

## 1.09 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

# 1.10 WARRANTY

- A. Division 1 Warranties and Bonds.
- B. Provide one-year manufacturer warranty for valves excluding packing.

# 23 21 13-2

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

- 2.01 GLYCOL AND WATER HEATING PIPING, ABOVEGROUND
  - A. Steel Pipe: ASTM A53, Schedule 40, black. Allowed for 4" and larger piping only.
    - 1. Fittings: ASTM A234, forged steel welding type fittings.
    - 2. Joints: AWS D1.1, welded.
  - B. Copper Tubing: ASTM B88, Type L, hard drawn.
    - 1. Fittings: ASME B16.18, cast brass, or ASME B16.22 solder wrought copper.
    - 2. Joints: Solder, lead free, ASTM B32, 95-5 tin-antimony, or tin and silver, with melting range 430 to 535°F.

# 2.02 UNIONS, FLANGES, AND COUPLINGS

- A. Unions for Pipe 2 inches and Under:
  - 1. Ferrous Piping: 150 psig malleable iron, threaded.
  - 2. Copper Pipe: Bronze, soldered joints.
- B. Flanges for Pipe Over 2 inches:
  - 1. Ferrous Piping: 150 psig forged steel, slip-on.
  - 2. Copper Piping: Bronze.
  - 3. Gaskets: 1/16 inch thick preformed neoprene.
- C. Dielectric Connections: Non-conducting dielectric nipple or flange connections or bronze union whenever jointing dissimilar metals in systems.

## 2.03 BALL VALVES

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Crane.
  - 2. Milwaukee.
  - 3. Nibco.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Up to and including 2 inches: Bronze two piece body, chrome plated brass or stainless steel ball, teflon seats and stuffing box ring, lever handle, solder or threaded ends.
- C. Over 2 inches: Cast steel body, chrome plated steel ball, teflon seat and stuffing box seals, lever handle, flanged.

# 2.04 GATE VALVE AND BUTTERFLY VALVES

A. Not allowed.

# 2.05 SWING CHECK VALVES

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Crane.
  - 2. Milwaukee.
  - 3. Nibco.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Up to and including 2 inches: Bronze body and trim, bronze rotating swing disc, with composition disc, solder or threaded ends.
- C. Over 2 inches: Iron body, bronze trim, bronze or bronze faced rotating swing disc, renewable disc and seat, flanged ends.

# 2.06 SYSTEM CLEANER

A. Product Description: Liquid alkaline compound with emulsifying agents and detergents to remove grease and petroleum products: sodium tri-poly phosphate.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 PREPARATION

- A. Ream pipe and tube ends. Remove burrs. Bevel plain end ferrous pipe.
- B. Remove scale and dirt on inside and outside before assembly.
- C. Prepare piping connections to equipment with flanges or unions.
- D. Keep open ends of pipe free from scale and dirt. Protect open ends with temporary plugs or caps.
- E. Operate, fill, start and vent systems prior to cleaning. Place terminal control valves in open during cleaning.

# 3.02 CLEANING

- A. Concentration:
  - 1. As recommended by manufacturer.

## 23 21 13-4

#### B. Hot Water Heating Systems:

- 1. Apply heat while circulating, slowly raising temperature to 195°F and maintain for 12 hours minimum.
- 2. Remove heat and circulate to 100°F or less; drain systems as quickly as possible and refill with clean water.
- 3. Circulate for 6 hours at design temperatures, then drain.
- 4. Refill with clean water and repeat until system cleaner is removed.
- 5. Remove, clean, and replace strainer screens.
- 6. Inspect, remove sludge, and flush low points with clean water after cleaning process is completed. Include disassembly of components as required.

# 3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Install glycol and water heating piping in conformance with ASME B31.9.
- B. Route piping parallel to building structure and maintain gradient.
- C. Install piping to conserve building space and not interfere with use of space.
- D. Group piping whenever practical at common elevations.
- E. Sleeve pipe passing through partitions, walls and floors.
- F. Install piping to allow for expansion and contraction without stressing pipe, joints, or connected equipment.
- G. Provide access where valves and fittings are not exposed. Coordinate size and location of access doors with Division 08.
- H. Slope piping and arrange systems to drain at low points.
- I. Install valves with stems upright or horizontal, not inverted.
- J. Insulate piping.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 21 16

PIPING SPECIALTIES

# PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes pressure gages and pressure gage taps, thermometers and thermometer wells, expansion tanks, air vents, air separators, strainers, balance valves and glycol specialties.
- B. Remove existing glycol from glycol and properly dispose. Flush and clean existing piping system and replace glycol with new 50% propylene glycol
- C. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 21 13– Hydronic Piping.

# 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASME (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Boiler and Pressure Vessel Codes, SEC VIII-D Rules for Construction of Pressure Vessels.
- B. ASME B40.1 (American Society of Mechanical Engineers) Gauges Pressure Indicating Dial Type Elastic Element.
- C. ASTM E1 Standard Specification for ASTM Thermometers.
- D. ASTM E77 Standard Test Method for Inspection and Verification of Thermometers.

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 1 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Product Data: Submit for manufactured products and assemblies required for this Project.
  - 1. Manufacturer's data indicating use, operating range, total range, accuracy, and location for manufactured components.
  - 2. Submit product description, model, dimensions, component sizes, rough-in requirements, service sizes, and finishes.
  - 3. Submit schedule indicating manufacturer, model number, size, location, rated capacity, load served, and features for each specialty.
  - 4. Submit electrical characteristics and connection requirements.
- C. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Submit hanging and support methods, joining procedures, application, selection, and hookup configuration. Include pipe and accessory elevations.
- D. Manufacturer's Certificate: Certify that products meet or exceed specified requirements.

# 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of actual locations of components and instrumentation.
- C. Operation and Maintenance Data: Submit instructions for calibrating instruments, installation instructions, assembly views, servicing requirements, lubrication instruction, and replacement parts list.

### 1.05 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.

# 1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Accept valves on site in shipping containers with labeling in place. Inspect for damage.
- B. Provide temporary protective coating on cast iron and steel valves.
- C. Protect systems from entry of foreign materials by temporary covers, caps and closures, completing sections of the work, and isolating parts of completed system until installation.
- D. Do not install instruments when areas are under construction, except for required rough in, taps, supports and test plugs.

# 1.07 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

## 1.08 WARRANTY

- A. Division 01 Warranties and Bonds.
- B. Provide one-year manufacturer warranty for piping specialties.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

# 2.01 PRESSURE GAGES

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Trerice.
  - 2. Marshaltown.

- 3. Ashcroft.
- 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Gage: ASME B40.1, with bourdon tube, rotary brass movement, brass socket, front calibration adjustment, black scale on white background.
  - 1. Case: Cast aluminum.
  - 2. Bourdon Tube: Phosphor bronze.
  - 3. Dial Size: 3-1/2" diameter.
  - 4. Mid-Scale Accuracy: One percent.
  - 5. Scale: psi.

## 2.02 PRESSURE GAGE TAPS

- A. Needle Valve: Brass, <sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> inch NPT for minimum 300 psi.
- B. Ball Valve: Brass for 250 psi.
- C. Pulsation Damper: Pressure snubber, brass with 1/4 inch NPT connections.

# 2.03 STEM TYPE THERMOMETERS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Trerice.
  - 2. Marshaltown.
  - 3. Ashcroft.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Thermometer: ASTM E1, adjustable angle, red appearing mercury, lens front tube, cast aluminum case with enamel finish, cast aluminum adjustable joint with positive locking device.
  - 1. Size: 9-inch scale.
  - 2. Window: Clear Lexan.
  - 3. Stem: Extended brass, <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub> inch NPT.
  - 4. Accuracy: ASTM E77, 2 percent.
  - 5. Calibration: Degrees F.

## 2.04 THERMOMETER SUPPORTS

A. Socket: Brass separable sockets for thermometer stems with or without extensions as required, and with cap and chain.

# 2.05 DIAPHRAGM-TYPE EXPANSION TANKS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Amtrol.
  - 2. Taco.
  - 3. Armstrong.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Construction: Welded steel, rated for working pressure of 125 psig, with flexible EPDM diaphragm sealed into tank, and steel support legs or saddles. If required by the drawing's schedules: tested and stamped in accordance with ASME SEC 8-D; supplied with National Board Form U-1
- C. Accessories: Pressure gage and air-charging fitting, tank drain; pre-charge to 12 psig.

#### 2.06 AIR VENTS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Hoffman.
  - 2. Armstrong.
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Manual Type: Disk type vent with built-in check valve for manual or automatic operation, discs replaceable without draining system, 1/8 inch shank, rated at 50 psi, Hoffman No. 500 or equal; provide with air chamber, brass construction, 6 cubic inch volume, Hoffman No. 550 or equal.
- C. Float Type: Brass or semi-steel body, copper float, stainless steel valve and valve seat; 1/8 inch NPT connection to atmosphere with drain piping suitable for system operating temperature and pressure; with isolating valve. Hoffman No. 79 or equal.
- D. High Capacity Automatic Air Vent: Cast iron body, stainless steel and brass trim, EPDM diaphragm, rated for 300°F, 350 PSIG, <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub> inch system connection, 1/2 inch NPT connection to atmosphere with drain piping. Provide with isolation valve and strainer upstream of vent. Hoffman 792 or equal.

# 2.07 AIR SEPARATORS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Spirotherm.
  - 2. Taco.
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.

- 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Combination Air Separators/Strainers:
  - 1. Steel, tested and stamped in accordance with ASME SEC 8-D; for 125 psig operating pressure, with integral bronze strainer, tangential inlet and outlet connections, and internal stainless steel air collector tube.

# 2.08 STRAINERS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Grinnell.
  - 2. Armstrong.
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Size 2 inch and Under:
  - 1. Screwed brass or iron body for 175 psig working pressure, Y pattern with 1/32" stainless steel perforated screen.
- C. Size 2-1/2 inch to 4 inch:
  - 1. Flanged iron body for 175 psig working pressure, Y pattern with 3/64" stainless steel perforated screen.

## 2.09 BALANCE VALVES

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Bell & Gossett.
  - 2. Taco.
  - 3. Approved Equal.
- B. Calibrated, ball or plug type balance valve with precision machined orifice, readout valves equipped with integral check valves and gasketed caps, calibrated nameplate and indicating pointer. Threaded connections.

## 2.10 RELIEF VALVES

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Watts.
  - 2. Taco.
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.

- 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Bronze body, Teflon seat, stainless steel stem and springs, automatic, direct pressure actuated capacities ASME certified and labeled.

# 2.11 GLYCOL CHARGING

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Axiom.
  - 2. Wessels.
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.
  - 4. Approved Equal.
- B. Prefabricated automatic glycol make-up tank. Complete with pump, magnetic starter, pressure tank, pressure control, strainer, priming valve, adjustable pressure reducing valve set at 12 psig, shut off valve, pressures gauge.
- C. Factory automatic controls: Maintains fill pressure of glycol system, low level or excess pressure shall cut-off pump, audible low-level or excessive pressure alarm with silence switch, low-level or excessive pressure visible alarm, signal for remote alarm
- D. Construction: Translucent polyethylene tank with lid. Lid shall be capable of accommodating system relief piping. Pumping assembly shall be mounted on steel frame with legs. Tank shall be mounted on steel frame above pumping assembly. Size as scheduled on drawings

#### 2.12 GLYCOL SOLUTION

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Dowfrost HD.
  - 2. Approved Equal.
- B. Heating Fluid Solution: Inhibited propylene glycol and water solution, pre-mixed 50 percent glycol 50 percent water, suitable for operating temperatures down to –30°F.
- C. Cooling Fluid Solution: Inhibited propylene glycol and water solution, pre-mixed 40 percent glycol 60 percent water.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

# 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install positive displacement meters in accordance with AWWA M6, with isolating valves on inlet and outlet. Provide full line size bypass with ball valve for liquid service meters.
- B. Install one pressure gage per pump, with taps on suction and discharge of pump; pipe to gage.

- C. Install gage taps in piping.
- D. Install pressure gages with pulsation dampers. Provide needle valve or ball valve to isolate each gage. Extend nipples to allow clearance from insulation.
- E. Install thermometers in piping systems in sockets in short couplings. Enlarge pipes smaller than 2-1/2 inches for installation of thermometer sockets. Ensure sockets allow clearance from insulation.
- F. Install thermometer sockets adjacent to controls systems thermostat, transmitter, or sensor sockets. Where thermometers are provided on local panels, or pipe mounted thermometers are not required.
- G. Provide instruments with scale ranges selected according to service with largest appropriate scale.
- H. Install gages and thermometers in locations where they are easily read from normal operating level. Install vertical to 45 degrees off vertical.
- I. Adjust gages and thermometers to final angle, clean windows and lenses, and calibrate to zero.
- J. Where large air quantities can accumulate, provide enlarged air collection standpipes.
- K. Provide manual air vents at system high points and as indicated.
- L. For automatic air vents in ceiling spaces or other concealed locations, provide vent tubing to nearest drain.
- M. Provide air separator on suction side of system circulation pump and connect to expansion tank.
- N. Provide drain and hose connection with valve on strainer blow down connection.
- O. Provide balancing valves on water outlet from terminal heating units such as radiation, unit heaters, and radiant heat manifolds.
- P. Select system relief valve capacity so that it is greater than make-up pressure reducing valve capacity. Select equipment relief valve capacity to exceed rating of connected equipment.
- Q. Pipe relief valve outlet to nearest floor drain.
- R. Where one line vents several relief valves, make cross sectional area equal to sum of individual vent areas.
- S. Feed glycol solution to system through make-up line with pressure regulator, venting system high points. Set to fill at 12 psig. Pressure system cold at 5 psig.
- T. Flexible expansion loops may be used in place of expansion loops indicated on the drawings.
- U. Install flexible expansion loops in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. Where loops are installed hanging down, provide low point drain. Where loops are installed horizontal, provide end of loop support. Do not install with loops straight up to prevent air traps. Provide pipe guide within four pipe diameters of loop.

## 3.02 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Division 01 Quality Requirements.
- B. Test for strength of glycol and water solution and submit written test results.

#### 3.03 CLEANING

- A. Division 01 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Clean and flush glycol system before adding glycol solution. Refer to Section 23 21 13 Hydronic Piping.
- 3.04 PROTECTION OF INSTALLED CONSTRUCTION
  - A. Do not install hydronic gauges until after systems are cleaned.

# 3.05 AIR VENT APPLICATION SCHEDULE

### Location

Heating mains, at high points in system Combination air separator/strainers As Indicated on Drawings <u>Type</u> Automatic High capacity Per Drawings

END OF SECTION

# SECTION 23 21 23

# PUMPS

# PART 1 GENERAL

### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes ECM wet rotor, inline circulators and vertical inline pumps.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 21 13 Hydronic Piping.
  - 2. Division 26.

# 1.02 REFERENCES

A. UL 778 (Underwriters Laboratories, Inc.) - Motor Operated Water Pumps.

### 1.03 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

A. Ensure pumps operate at specified system fluid temperatures without vapor binding and cavitation, are non-overloading in parallel or individual operation, and operate within 25 percent of midpoint of published maximum efficiency curve.

# 1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Product Data: Submit certified pump curves showing performance characteristics with pump and system operating point plotted. Include NPSH curve when applicable. Include electrical characteristics and connection requirements. Submit also, manufacturer model number, dimensions, service sizes and finishes.
- C. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Submit application, selection, and hookup configuration with pipe and accessory elevations. Submit hanging and support requirements and recommendations.

## 1.05 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract Close-Out Procedures.
- B. Operation and Maintenance Data: Submit installation instructions, servicing requirements, assembly views, lubrication instructions, and replacement parts list.

# 1.06 QUALIFICATIONS

A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years' experience.

# 23 21 23-1

- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years' experience.
- 1.07 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING
  - A. Protect systems from entry of foreign materials by temporary covers, completing sections of the work, and isolating parts of completed system.
- 1.08 FIELD MEASUREMENTS
  - A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.
- 1.09 WARRANTY
  - A. Division 01 Warranties and Bonds.
  - B. Provide one-year manufacturer warranty for pumps.

## PART 2 PRODUCTS

### 2.01 ECM WET ROTOR CIRCULATORS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Taco.
  - 2. Armstrong.
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.
  - 4. Grundfos.
  - 5. Approved Equal.
- B. Type: EC motor, horizontal shaft, single stage, direct connected, variable speed, wet rotor motor for in-line mounting, for 175 psig maximum working pressure.
- C. single stage, canned-rotor type, in-line design. Pump casing shall be constructed of EN GJL-250 or ASTM-A 48 Class 35 cast iron. Pump casing / volute shall be rated for 175 psi working pressure for all jobs. Flanges shall be matched to suit the working pressure of the piping components on the job, with ANSI Class 125 flanges.
- D. Casing: Cast iron with ANSI Class 125 flanged pump connections.
- E. Impeller, Shaft, Rotor: Stainless Steel.
- F. Bearings: Metal Impregnated carbon (graphite) and ceramic.
- G. Motor: The pump must be driven by an electrically commutated electrical motor (ECM) with permanent magnet rotor. The rotor magnets shall by time stable, nontoxic ceramic magnets

(Sr-Fe). The electrically commuted electrical motor shall be driven by a frequency converter with an integrated PFC filter.

- H. Electronics / Controls:
  - 1. The pumps shall be able to operate as single or parallel variable speed pumps, where the speed is regulated by an integrated variable speed drive. The integrated electronics shall allow these pumps to run in parallel, standby or alternating modes.
  - 2. Electronically protected, rated for continuous duty and have a built-in startup circuit. The pump's electronics shall provide overcurrent, line surge and current limit protection, thermal monitoring, heat sink status and over temperature protection.
  - 3. The pump shall provide a port for a RJ-45 cable connection.
  - 4. The electronics shall provide "Auto" as factory default whereas the slope of the proportional curve will automatically match the required system curve, constant pressure control ( $\Delta$ p-c), variable differential pressure control ( $\Delta$ p-v), and constant curve duty (uncontrolled pump), RPM regulation.
  - 5. The pump electronics shall come standard with multiple digital inputs and one external digital output to be available for additional mechanical room control and pump status monitoring.
  - 6. The wiring / electronics enclosure shall be class 2, IP44.

# 2.02 CIRCULATORS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Taco.
  - 2. Grundfos
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.
  - 4. Armstrong.
  - 5. Approved substitution.
- B. Type: Horizontal shaft, single stage, direct connected for in-line mounting, for 150 psig maximum working pressure, 225°F maximum water temperature, UL listed.
- C. Casing: Cast iron or stainless steel (where scheduled) with flanged pump connections, suction/discharge pressure taps.
- D. Impeller, Shaft, Rotor: Stainless steel.
- E. Bearings: Permanently lubricated ball bearing.
- F. Seals: Carbon/silicon-carbide mechanical seal.
- 2.03 IN-LINE CIRCULATORS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Taco.
  - 2. Grundfos
  - 3. Bell & Gossett.
  - 4. Armstrong.
  - 5. Approved substitution.
- B. Type: Horizontal shaft, single stage, direct connected, with resiliently mounted motor for in-line mounting, oil lubricated, for 125 psig maximum working pressure.
- C. Casing: Cast iron, with flanged pump connections.
- D. Impeller: Cadmium plated steel, Stamped brass or cast bronze keyed to shaft.
- E. Bearings: Two, oil lubricated bronze sleeves.
- F. Shaft: Alloy or stainless steel with copper or bronze sleeve, integral thrust collar.
- G. Seal: Carbon rotating against stationary ceramic seat, 225°F maximum continuous operating temperature.
- H. Drive: Flexible coupling.

#### 2.04 VERTICAL IN-LINE PUMPS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Bell & Gossett.
  - 2. Armstrong.
  - 3. Taco.
  - 4. Grundfos.
- B. Approved Equal.
- C. Type: Vertical, single stage, close coupled, radial split casing, for horizontal or vertical in-line mounting, for 175 psig working pressure.
- D. Casing: Cast iron, with suction and discharge gage port, casing wear ring, seal flush connection, drain plug, flanged suction and discharge.
- E. Impeller: Bronze, fully enclosed, keyed directly to motor shaft or extension.
- F. Shaft: Alloy steel with 304 stainless steel impeller cap screw.
- G. Shaft Sleeve: Aluminum bronze.

#### PAGE 5 OF 5

H. Seal: Carbon rotating against a stationary ceramic seat, 225°F maximum continuous operating temperature.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install long radius reducing elbows or reducers between pump and piping. Support piping adjacent to pump such that no weight is carried on pump casings. For base mounted pumps, provide supports under elbows on pump suction and discharge line sizes 4 inches and over.
- B. Provide line sized shut-off valve and strainer on pump suction, and line sized soft seat check valve and balancing valve on pump discharge.
- C. Lubricate pumps before start-up.

### 3.02 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Division 01 Quality Control: Testing and Inspection Services.
- B. Section 23 05 93 Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing.

# END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 31 00

DUCTS

# PART 1 GENERAL

### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes low pressure metal ductwork.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 05 29 Hangers and Supports: Product requirements for hangers, supports and sleeves for placement by this section.

# 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ASTM A90 Weight of Coating on Zinc-Coated (Galvanized) Iron or Steel Articles.
- B. ASTM A525 General Requirements for Steel Sheet, Zinc-Coated (Galvanized) by the Hot-Dip Process.
- C. ASTM A527 Steel Sheet, Zinc-Coated (Galvanized) by Hot-Dip Process, Lock Forming Quality.
- D. NFPA 90A (National Fire Protection Association) Installation of Air Conditioning and Ventilating Systems.
- E. SMACNA (Sheet Metal Air Conditioning Contractors' National Association) HVAC Air Duct Leakage Test Manual.
- F. SMACNA (Sheet Metal Air Conditioning Contractors' National Association) HVAC Duct Construction Standards - Metal and Flexible.
- G. UL 181 (Underwriters Laboratories, Inc.) Factory-Made Air Ducts and Connectors.

# 1.03 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

A. No variation of duct configuration or sizes other than those of equivalent or lower loss coefficient is permitted except by written permission. Size round ducts installed in place of rectangular ducts in accordance with ASHRAE table of equivalent rectangular and round ducts.

# 1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Administrative Requirements.
- B. Shop Drawings: Indicate duct fittings, gages, sizes, welds, and configuration for medium pressure vehicle exhaust systems.
- C. Product Data: Submit data for duct materials, duct connectors, flexible duct.

# 1.05 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Project Record Documents: Record actual locations of ducts and duct fittings. Record changes in fitting location and type. Show additional fittings used.

#### 1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Perform Work in accordance with SMACNA HVAC Duct Construction Standards Metal and flexible.
- B. Construct ductwork to NFPA 90A standards.

#### 1.07 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.

# 1.08 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Do not install duct sealant when temperatures are less than those recommended by sealant manufacturers.
- B. Maintain temperatures during and after installation of duct sealant.

#### 1.09 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 DUCT MATERIALS

- A. Galvanized Steel Ducts: ASTM A525 and ASTM A527 galvanized steel sheet, lock-forming quality, having zinc coating of in conformance with ASTM A90.
- B. Fasteners: Rivets, bolts, or sheet metal screws.
- C. Hanger Rod: ASTM A36; steel, galvanized; threaded both ends, threaded one end, or continuously threaded.

# 2.02 LOW PRESSURE DUCTWORK FABRICATION

- A. Fabricate and support in accordance with SMACNA HVAC Duct Construction Standards Metal and Flexible, and as indicated. Provide duct material, gages, reinforcing, and sealing for operating pressures indicated.
- B. Construct T's, bends, and elbows with minimum radius 1-1/2 times centerline duct width. Where not possible and where rectangular elbows are used, provide airfoil turning vanes. Where acoustical lining is indicated, provide turning vanes of perforated metal with glass fiber insulation.
- C. Increase duct sizes gradually, not exceeding 15° divergence wherever possible; maximum 30° divergence upstream of equipment and 45° convergence downstream.
- D. Provide standard 45° lateral wye takeoffs unless otherwise indicated where 90° conical tee connections may be used.

#### PART 3 EXECUTION

# 3.01 EXAMINATION

A. Verify sizes of equipment connections before fabricating transitions.

# 3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Install and seal ducts in accordance with SMACNA HVAC Duct Construction Standards Metal and Flexible.
- B. During construction provide temporary closures of metal or taped polyethylene on open ductwork to prevent construction dust from entering ductwork system.
- C. Use double nuts and lock washers on threaded rod supports.

# END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 34 00

FANS

# PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes centrifugal fans, drives and accessories.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 31 00 Ducts.
  - 2. Division 26 Equipment: Execution and product requirements for connecting equipment specified by this section.

#### 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. ABMA STD 9 (American Boiler Manufacturers Association) Load Ratings and Fatigue Life for Ball Bearings.
- B. AMCA 99 (Air Movement and Control Association) Standards Handbook.
- C. AMCA 210 (Air Movement and Control Association) Laboratory Methods of Testing Fans for Rating.
- D. AMCA 300 (Air Movement and Control Association) Reverberant Room Method for Sound Testing of Fans.
- E. AMCA 301 (Air Movement and Control Association) Methods for Calculating Fan Sound Ratings from Laboratory Test Data.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Product Data: Submit data on all fans and accessories including fan curves with specified operating point clearly plotted, power, RPM, sound power levels for both fan inlet and outlet at rated capacity, and electrical characteristics and connection requirements.
- C. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Submit fan manufacturer's instructions.

# 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 10 Contract closeout procedures.
- B. Operation and Maintenance Data: Submit instructions for lubrication, motor and drive replacement, spare parts list, and wiring diagrams.

# 1.05 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing Work of this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- 1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING
  - A. Protect motors, shafts, and bearings from weather and construction dust.
- 1.07 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS
  - A. Do not operate fans for any purpose until ductwork is clean, filters in place, bearings lubricated, and fan has been test run under observation.
- 1.08 FIELD MEASUREMENTS
  - A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.
- 1.09 WARRANTY
  - A. Division 01 Warranties and bonds.
  - B. Provide one-year manufacturer warranty for fans.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

- 2.01 ROOF EXHAUSTERS GENERAL EXHAUST
  - A. Manufacturers:
    - 1. PennBerry.
    - 2. Cook.
    - 3. Greenheck.
    - 4. ACME.
    - 5. Approved Equal.
  - B. Product Requirements:
    - 1. Performance Ratings: Conform to AMCA 210.
    - 2. Sound Ratings: AMCA 301, tested to AMCA 300, and bear the AMCA Certified Sound Rating Seal.
    - 3. Fabrication: Conform to AMCA 99.

- 4. UL Compliance: UL listed and labeled, designed, manufactured and tested in accordance with UL 705.
- C. Construction:
  - 1. Fan Unit: V-belt or direct driven as indicated on schedule, with spun aluminum housing; resilient mounted motor; 1/2 inch mesh, 0.62 inch thick aluminum wire bird screen; square base to suit roof curb with continuous curb gaskets.
  - 2. Sheaves: Cast iron or steel, dynamically balanced, bored to fit shafts and keyed; variable and adjustable pitch motor sheave selected so required rpm is obtained with sheaves set at mid-position; fan shaft with self-aligning pre-lubricated ball bearings.
- D. Accessories:
  - 1. Solid state speed controller as scheduled.
  - 2. Disconnect Switch: Factory-wired, non-fusible, in housing for thermal overload protected motor.
  - 3. Back-draft Damper: Gravity actuated, aluminum multiple blade construction, felt edged with offset hinge pin, nylon bearings, blades linked.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

# 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Install fans with resilient mountings and flexible electrical leads.
- C. Install flexible connections between fan inlet and discharge ductwork. Ensure metal bands of connectors are parallel with minimum one" flex between ductwork and fan while running.
- D. Install fans with restraining snubbers. Adjust snubbers to prevent tension in flexible connectors when fan is operating.
- E. Provide sheaves required for final air balance.
- F. Provide safety screen where inlet or outlet is exposed.
- G. Provide backdraft dampers on discharge of exhaust fans or as indicated.
- H. Do not operate fans in normal operation until ductwork is clean, filters are in place, bearings are lubricated, and fan has been tested under observation.

# END OF SECTION

# SECTION 23 52 35

# HEATING BOILERS AND ACCESSORIES

# PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section Includes:
  - 1. Dual fuel gas fired, fire tube boilers.
  - 2. Controls and boiler trim.
  - 3. Hot water connections.
  - 4. Fuel burning system and connections
  - 5. Chimney connections.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Division 3 –Cast-In-Place: Execution requirements for concrete housekeeping pads specified by this section.
  - 2. Section 23 11 23 Fuel Piping.
  - 3. Section 23 21 13 Hydronic Piping.
  - 4. Division 26.

# 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. Underwriters Laboratories:
  - 1. UL 795 Commercial-Industrial Gas Heating Equipment.
- B. American Society of Mechanical Engineers:
  - 1. ASME Section IV Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code Heating Boilers
  - 2. ASME CSD-1 Controls and Safety Devices for Automatically Fired Boilers
- C. Hydronics Institute:
  - 1. HI Testing and Rating Standard for Heating Boilers.
- D. National Fire Protection Association:
  - 1. NFPA 54 National Fuel Gas Code.
  - 2. NFPA 58 (National Fire Protection Association) Liquefied Petroleum Gas Code.
- E. 2012 International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC).

# 23 52 35-1

### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 1 Administrative Requirements.
- B. Submittal Requirements: In addition to submittal procedures as outlined under Division 1, mechanical submittals shall be submitted as follows:
  - 1. Product Data: Submit general layout and dimensions. Include size and location of water, fuel, electric and vent connections, electrical characteristics, weight and mounting loads.
  - 2. Efficiency Curves: At a minimum, submit efficiency curves for 100%, 50%, and 5% input firing rates at incoming water temperatures ranging from 60°F to 160°F.
  - 3. Pressure Drop Curve: Submit pressure drop curve for flows ranging from 0 GPM to maximum value of boiler.
    - a) If submitted material is different from that of the design basis, boiler manufacture shall incur all costs associated with reselection of necessary pumps. Possible differences include, but are not limited to, the pump type, pump pad size, electrical characteristics and piping changes.
  - 4. Test Reports: Indicate specified performance and efficiency is met or exceeded. Provide combustion test that includes boiler firing rate, over fire draft, gas flow rate, heat input, burner manifold gas pressure, percent carbon monoxide (CO), percent oxygen (O), percent excess air, flue gas temperature at outlet, ambient temperature, net stack temperature, percent stack loss, percent combustion efficiency and heat output.
  - 5. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Submit assembly, support details, connection requirements and include start-up instructions.
  - 6. Manufacturers Field Reports: Indicate condition of equipment after start-up including control settings and performance chart of control system.

#### 1.04 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 1 Contract Close-Out Procedures.
- B. Contract Closeout Requirements: In addition to contract closeout requirements as outlined under Division 1, mechanical contract closeout requirements shall include the following:
  - 1. Operation and Maintenance Data: Submit manufacturer's descriptive literature, operating instructions, cleaning procedures, replacement parts list and maintenance and repair data.
  - 2. Provide one additional combustion air filter per boiler specified.

# 1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Boiler
  - Construction shall conform to ASME Section IV and UL 795. The boiler shall bear the ASME "H" stamp and be National Board Listed for 160 psi working pressure and 250°F.

- 2. Gas Train and Safety Controls: Conform to requirements of UL 795 and CSD-1 IR.
- B. Provide services of manufacturer's authorized and factory-trained representative to perform the following functions:
  - 1. Inspect and verify installation.
  - 2. Checkout and startup/supervision. Submit startup report.

#### 1.06 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section.
- B. Installer: Company specializing in performing work of this section.
- 1.07 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING
  - A. In accordance with Contract Documents.
  - B. Accept equipment and accessories on site in factory shipping packaging. Inspect for damage.
  - C. Protect equipment from damage by leaving packing in place until installation.
  - D. Equipment must be protected from inclement weather, flooding, electrical surges, etc.

#### 1.08 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to installation.

### 1.09 START-UP OF EQUIPMENT

- A. Operating and Maintenance Instructions are to be furnished with each unit.
- B. The boiler shall be factory assembled and fire tested requiring only connections to the water circulating system (supply & return), fuel, electrical power, exhaust vent and air inlet (as specified/shown in contract drawings).
- C. Factory-authorized representatives shall perform start-up service on each unit.

### 1.10 WARRANTY

- A. Division 1 Warranties and Bonds.
- B. Boiler shall have the following warranties;
  - 1. The pressure vessel/heat exchanger shall carry a 15-year from shipment, non-prorated, limited warranty against any failure due to condensate corrosion, thermal stress, mechanical defects or workmanship.
  - 2. The burner shall be conditionally guaranteed against any failure for (5) five years from shipment.

- 3. Manufacturer labeled control panels are conditionally warranted against failure for (3) three years from shipment.
- 4. All other components, with the exception of the igniter, flame detector and  $O_2$  sensor, are conditionally guaranteed against any failure for (2) two years from shipment.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

### 2.01 BOILERS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Aerco International.
  - 2. Riello.
  - 3. Buderus
  - 4. Viessman.
  - 5. Approved substitutions.

# 2.02 BOILER

- A. Description: Boiler shall be dual fuel fired (natural gas and propane), fully condensing, fire tube design. Power burner shall have full modulation with the minimum firing rate shall not exceeding 75,000 BTU/HR input and discharge into a positive pressure vent. Boiler efficiency shall increase with decreasing load, while maintaining setpoint. Boiler shall be factory-fabricated, factory-assembled and factory-tested, fire-tube condensing boiler with heat exchanger sealed pressure-tight, built on a steel base, including insulated jacket, flue-gas vent, combustion-air intake connections, water supply, return and condensate drain connections, and controls.
- B. Heat Exchanger: The heat exchanger shall be constructed of 439 stainless steel fire tubes and tubesheets, with a one-pass combustion gas flow design. The fire tubes shall be 1/2" or 5/5" OD, with no less than 0.049" wall thickness. The upper and lower stainless steel tubesheet shall be no less than 0.25" thick. The pressure vessel/heat exchanger shall be welded construction. The heat exchanger shall be ASME stamped for a working pressure not less than 150 psig. Access to the tubesheets and heat exchanger shall be no less than 8-inch diameter
- C. Pressure Vessel: The pressure vessel shall have a maximum water volume of 44 gallons. The boiler water pressure drop shall not exceed 4 psig at 170 gpm. The boiler water connections shall be 3-inch flanged 150-pound, ANSI rated. The pressure vessel shall be constructed of ASME SA53 carbon steel, with a 0.25-inch thick wall and 0.50-inch thick upper head. Inspection openings in the pressure vessel shall be in accordance with ASME Section IV pressure vessel code. The boiler shall be designed so that the thermal efficiency increases as the boiler firing rate decreases.
- D. Dual Returns: The boiler shall include dual return connections for low and high return temperature zones for added flexibility and thermal efficiency optimization. The boiler shall not have a minimum flow rate requirement through either return connection as long as the specified minimum flow of the boiler is met through a combination of the two return connections.

- E. Modulating Air/Fuel Valve and Burner: The boiler burner shall be capable of at least a 20-to-1 turndown ratio of the firing rate without loss of combustion efficiency or staging of gas valves. The burner shall not operate above 7.5% oxygen level or 55% excess air. The burner shall produce less than 20 ppm of NOx corrected to 3% excess oxygen. The unit shall be certified by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) as compliant with Rule 1146.2 for boilers and water heaters less than or equal to 2 MBTUs. The burner shall be metal-fiber mesh covering a stainless steel body with spark ignition and flame rectification. All burner material exposed to the combustion zone shall be of stainless steel construction. There shall be no moving parts within the burner itself. A modulating air/fuel valve shall meter the air and fuel input. The modulating motor must be linked to both the gas valve body and air valve body with a single linkage. The linkage shall not require any field adjustment. A variable frequency drive (VFD), controlled cast aluminum pre-mix blower shall be used to ensure the optimum mixing of air and fuel between the air/fuel valve and the burner.
- F. Fuel: The boilers shall use one of the following gas train options:
  - 1. Dual Fuel Capability. Dual fuel boiler (natural gas/propane) shall include a combustion system capable of operating on both Natural Gas and Propane. The boiler efficiency and turndown shall remain unchanged regardless of fuel source. The dual fuel system shall incorporate independent natural gas and propane gas trains and a fuel selector switch. This switching mechanism shall be such that it shall not be possible to flow both fuels simultaneously. The unit shall be calibrated to run on both fuel sources at start-up. No additional re-calibration shall be required when switching between fuel sources for a period of one year from the initial calibration.

EWT	100% Fire	50% Fire	7% Fire
160 °F	86.5%	87%	87%
140 °F	87%	87.5%	87.5%
120 °F	88.5%	89%	90%
100 °F	93.2%	94.5%	95.2%
80 °F	95.6%	96.8%	98.2%

G. Minimum boiler efficiencies shall be as follows at a 20-degree delta-T:

- H. The exhaust manifold shall be of corrosion resistant cast aluminum with a 6-inch diameter flue connection. The exhaust manifold shall have a collecting reservoir and a gravity drain for the elimination of condensation.
- I. Blower: The boiler shall include a variable-speed, DC centrifugal fan to operate during the burner firing sequence and pre-purge the combustion chamber.
  - 1. Motor Sizes: Minimum size as indicated. If not indicated, large enough so driven load will not require a motor to operate in the service factor range above 1.0.
- J. Ignition: Ignition shall be via regulated staged spark ignition with 100 percent main-valve shutoff and electronic flame supervision.
- K. Combustion Air: The boiler shall be designed such that the combustion air is drawn from the inside of the boiler enclosure, decoupling it from the combustion air supply and preheating the air to increase efficiency.

- L. Combustion Air Filter: The boiler shall be equipped with an automotive high flow air filter to ensure efficient combustion and unhindered burner components operation.
- M. Enclosure: The plastic and sheet metal enclosure shall be fully removable, allowing for easy access during servicing.
- N. O<sub>2</sub> sensor located in the Combustion Chamber: The boiler shall be equipped with an Oxygen sensor. The sensor shall be located in the boiler combustion chamber. Boilers without Oxygen sensor or boilers with an Oxygen sensor in the exhaust shall not be acceptable due to measurement estimation and performance accuracy.

# 2.03 CONTROLS

- A. The boiler shall have an integrated boiler control that is capable of operating the boiler and associated accessories including but not limited to: its pumps, valves and dampers.
  - 1. The control shall have a 5 inch color touch screen display as well as six function buttons that are separate from the display. User shall have the ability to navigate the menus via touchscreen or navigation buttons. Controls not equipped with navigation button options shall not be permitted.
  - 2. The control shall be equipped with a multi-color linear LED light to indicate the level of firing and/or air/fuel valve position.
  - 3. The control shall display two temperatures using two dedicated three-digit sevensegment displays.
  - 4. The control shall offer an Enable/Disable toggle switch as well as two buttons for Testing and Resetting the Low Water Cutoff.
- B. The Manager designated boiler control shall be capable of the following functions without the need for additional external controls:
  - 1. Sequence up to 16 boilers,
  - 2. Control boiler pumps and/or modulating motorized valves,
  - 3. Operate system pump or rotate two system pumps,
  - 4. Control and communicate with up to 6 SmartPlate domestic water heaters and their domestic hot water pump,
  - 5. The control shall connect to other plant boiler controls using RS485 and communicate using Modbus protocol.
- C. The control system shall be segregated into three components: "Edge" Control Panel, Power Panel and Input/Output Connection Box. T he entire system shall be Underwriters Laboratories recognized.
- D. The control panel shall consist of seven individual circuit boards using surface-mount technology in a single enclosure. Each board shall be individually field replaceable. These circuit boards shall include:
  - 1. A microcontroller board with integrated 5-inch touchscreen color display providing the user interface.

- 2. A 7-segment display board. This board includes two 3-digit 7-segment displays. These displays shall be used to view a variety of temperature sensor values and operating and startup function status.
- 3. An Interface board connects the microcontroller board to internal components using ribbon cables.
- 4. An electric low-water cutoff board connects to the test and manual reset functions on the microcontroller board.
- 5. A power supply board is designed to provide the different DC voltages to the rest of the boards. It also acts as voltage regulator and reduce power noise.
- 6. An ignition and combustion board. This board controls the air/fuel valve and Safety Shutoff Valve, flame status and ignition transformer
- 7. A connector board used to connect all external electrical connection.
- E. Combination plant: The managing boiler control shall be capable of setting and managing a combination plant that consist of up to two groups of boilers, their swing boilers and swing valves. The control shall be capable of performing all the listed features without the need for any additional controls. The use of additional controls to achieve any of these functionalities shall be prohibited to simplify installation and plant management. The combination plant control shall have the following capabilities:
  - 1. The control shall operate one group of boilers for heating and another group of boilers for domestic hot water using plate heat exchangers or indirect tanks.
  - 2. The control shall manage and rotate the lead boiler in each of the two groups independent of the other group.
  - 3. The control shall be capable of managing one or two swing boilers and their motorized swing valves to direct the output of the swing boiler(s) to one of the two groups based on the plant priority settings. The control shall also connect to the header and return sensors for each of the two groups of boilers and use those values to manage the set point for each group.
  - 4. The control shall offer two independent logics that run simultaneously managing each group of boilers. Each boiler group logic shall have its temperature values, setpoints, PID and feedback parameters that is independent of the other group settings and parameters.
- F. System Pump lead/lag rotation: The control shall be capable of operating two system pumps. It shall rotate the lead pump based on user time setting. The use of an external pump lead-lag control shall not be permitted unless function is performed by building management system.
- G. Control settings transfer using USB: The control shall simplify and significantly lessen startup and boiler setting time by being able to use a USB flash drive to copy settings from one boiler to another boiler. Installers shall use successfully preconfigured boiler settings in their portfolio to newly installed boilers.
- H. Combustion calibration: The control shall offer at least 5 calibration points. The use of less than 5 calibration points is not permitted to improve overall system efficiency under all firing rates. Each combustion calibration point shall operate with 5 to 7% O<sub>2</sub> levels to improve operating efficiency. Deviating away from these values shall not be acceptable.

- I. Assisted Combustion Calibration: The control shall offer an assisted combustion calibration feature to help reduce setup time and improve setup accuracy. The assisted combustion calibration shall adjust the O<sub>2</sub> level at each calibration point to help keep O<sub>2</sub> level within allowable efficiency. The control shall log, date and time stamp the calibrated point combustion values of O<sub>2</sub> and allow the user to log NOx, CO and flame strength. The control shall check these values against manufacturer allowable combustion values and color identify values out of manufacturer acceptable ranges. As an additional capability, the control shall also have the ability to perform manual combustion calibration. Not having Assisted Combustion Calibration function shall be prohibited.
- J. Valve Balancing: To help simplify installation and as part of a boiler plant, the control shall be capable of controlling an electronic modulating motorized valve for each of the boilers using the manager boiler control. It shall have a built-in logic to provide a maximum flow using an adjustable valve opening percentage point for each boiler. The control shall be capable of closing any valve that has an off boiler. If all boilers are off, the control shall keep at minimum one valve open to protect pumps.
- K. Building Automation: The control shall be able to communicate to Building Management Systems using BACnet and Modbus without the use of external gateways. The control shall be able to communicate over each of the two protocols using IP as well as RS485. The use of external gateways is not acceptable. The control shall be able to communicate to the building management system using:
  - 1. BACnet MS/TP and BACnet IP/Ethernet. When communicating over BACnet IP, the control shall offer an additional layer of IP security by mapping all control BACnet IP communication to the BACnet server's IP and MAC addresses. Not having this level of security shall deem the IP communication insecure and shall not be acceptable.
  - 2. Modbus RTU and Modbus IP.
- L. Unit and Plant Status: The control shall provide a quick view of the unit status and plant status.
  - 1. The unit status screen shall provide temperature setpoint, all water inlet and outlet and supply air and exhaust temperature sensors' values. It shall also provide unit current and target firing rates. Additional screens shall display unit run hours, cycle count and average cycles per hour.
  - 2. The plant status screens shall provide plant temperature setpoint, plant water supply and return temperatures, outdoor temperature and domestic hot water setpoint and current temperatures. Additionally, a status screen shall show the boiler status of each plant unit, plant firing rate.
  - 3. Unit and Plant event history: The manager control shall display the last 500 historical events per plant or 200 historical events for single unit installations.
- M. Software update: The control shall be capable of field software updates without a need for hardware component(s) replacement. This shall be performed either using software on a USB flash drive or via Internet connection. The software update mechanism shall be performed by a trained technician. The software update menus shall be secured using a password level. After the software update, the control shall retain all of its prior field settings.
- N. Copy settings from one boiler to the other: To significantly reduce installation time by reducing long repetitive work, the control shall have the capability of saving its settings to a USB flash drive. In addition, the control shall have the ability of copying new settings from a flash drive.

- O. Programmable Inputs and Outputs: The control shall be equipped with multiple relay and analog outputs and dry contact and analog inputs. Each shall be field programmable to meet installation needs. The following I/O options shall be available:
  - 1. Relay outputs: There shall be two output relays that are programmable. The following relay functions shall be selectable:
    - a) Swing Valve 2
    - b) System Pump
    - c) Summer Pump
    - d) Multi-temperature pump
    - e) Pump2
    - f) Louver
  - 2. Inputs and interlocks: The following control functions shall be available:
    - a) Flow input
    - b) Damper end switch input
    - c) Louver end switch input
  - 3. Analog output: There shall be three analog outputs that are programmable. The control shall have configurable analog outputs that can be used as one of the following options:
    - a) Boiler pump
    - b) Domestic hot water variable speed pump
    - c) Valve
    - d) Fire rate
  - 4. Analog input: There shall be three analog inputs that are programmable. The control shall have configurable analog inputs that can be used as one of the following options:
    - a) Remote setpoint
    - b) Smart Plate valve position
    - c) Domestic hot water variable speed pump flow
- P. Backup boiler: The control shall be able to operate a lower efficiency back up boiler during peak periods when main plant boilers are at or close to peak load.
- Q. Communication with SmartPlate: The control shall be capable of controlling and monitoring one or multiple plate heat exchanger(s). It shall be able to:
  - 1. Change the domestic hot water temperature setpoint and read its current temperatures.
  - 2. Monitor 3-way valve position.

- 3. Control the operation of the domestic hot water pump.
- R. The controls shall annunciate boiler and sensor status and include extensive self-diagnostic capabilities.
- S. The control panel shall incorporate:
  - 1. Setpoint High Limit: Setpoint high limit allows for a selectable maximum boiler outlet temperature and acts as temperature limiting governor. Setpoint limit is based on a PID function that automatically limits firing rate to maintain outlet temperature within a 0 to 10 degree selectable band from the desired maximum boiler outlet temperature.
  - 2. Setpoint Low Limit: Allow for a selectable minimum operating temperature.
  - 3. Failsafe Mode: Failsafe mode allows the boiler to switch its mode to operate from an internal setpoint if its external control signal is lost, rather than shut off. This is a selectable mode, enabling the control can to shut off the unit upon loss of external signal, if so desired.
- T. The boiler control system shall incorporate the following additional features for enhanced external system interface:
  - 1. System start temperature feature
  - 2. Pump delay timer
  - 3. Auxiliary start delay timer
  - 4. Auxiliary temperature sensor
  - 5. Analog output feature to enable simple monitoring of temperature setpoint, outlet temperature or fire rate
  - 6. Remote interlock circuit
  - 7. Delayed interlock circuit
  - 8. Easy Setup by providing simplified menu quick settings to expedite plant and boiler setup
  - 9. Delta-T Limiter
  - 10. Freeze protection
  - 11. Fault relay for remote fault alarm
  - 12. Warm-weather shutdown
  - 13. The control shall offer multi-level user security access using different passwords. For additional security, the passwords shall expire if control display was not touched for an extended period 30 minutes.
- U. Each boiler shall include an electric, single-seated combination safety shutoff valve/regulator with proof of closure switch in its gas train. Each boiler shall incorporate dual over-temperature protection with manual reset, in accordance with ASME Section IV and CSD-1.

- V. O2-Trim or AERtrim: Each boiler shall be equipped with the patented AERtrim system, an advanced O<sub>2</sub>-trim system for condensing boiler applications. The system shall utilize a low cost reliable automotive O<sub>2</sub> sensor that measures and monitors the oxygen content of the exhaust gases. The system shall adjust the blower speed to maintain optimal air-fuel ratios in the event of any site condition changes (air density, gas pressure, BTU content, etc.). The system shall have the following capabilities:
  - 1. Self-Diagnostics
    - a) System Status and Error Messages
    - b) When excessive trimming is occurring
    - c) When O<sub>2</sub> sensor has fallen out of calibration
  - 2. Adjustable parameter settings
    - a) O<sub>2</sub> target and range to meet site requirements
    - b) Schedule daily or weekly self-diagnostics

Output of O<sub>2</sub> information shall be displayed on the Edge control panel.

The  $O_2$  sensor shall be installed through the unit's burner plate and measure the oxygen content directly within the unit's combustion chamber.

Boilers without an equivalent  $O_2$  trim will be deemed unacceptable. Due to the moisture content of flue gases from condensing boilers, placing the  $O_2$  sensor in the exhaust manifold or stack will be deemed unacceptable.

- W. Each boiler shall be onAER ready with a standard Ethernet port and include a 5 year onAER subscription at no additional charge. AERCO's onAER service grants the user online access to real time operation and status of their system plant from any computer, tablet or mobile device along with the following capabilities:
  - 1. Efficiency status and trends
  - 2. O2 levels
  - 3. Efficiency and performance optimization tips
  - 4. Preventative Maintenance alerts and scheduling
  - 5. Predictive Maintenance algorithms.
  - 6. Warning and error messages
  - 7. Weekly or monthly performance and status reports
  - 8. Manage multiple boiler plants or buildings
  - 9. Customizable dashboard
  - 10. Add email contacts for alerts and reports, including local AERCO trained technicians
  - 11. Manage and store startup, maintenance and service documentation

The boiler manufacturer shall be able to provide a network hub or a network switch to connect up 16 boilers to an online network.

- X. Each boiler shall have integrated Boiler Sequencing Technology (BST), capable of multi-unit sequencing with lead-lag functionality and parallel operation. The system will incorporate the following capabilities:
  - 1. Efficiently sequence 2-to-16 units on the same system to meet load requirement.
  - 2. Integrated control and wiring for seamless installation of optional modulating motorized valve. When valves are utilized, the system shall operate one motorized valve per unit as an element of load sequencing. Valves shall close with decreased load as units turn off, with all valves open under no-load conditions.
  - 3. Automatically rotate lead/lag amongst the units on the chain and monitor run hours per unit and balance load in an effort to equalize run hours among active units.
  - 4. Option to manually designate lead and last boiler
  - 5. Designated manager control, used to display and adjust key system parameters.
  - 6. Automatic bump-less transfer of master function to next unit on the chain in case of designated master unit failure; master/slave status shall be shown on the individual unit displays.

# 2.04 ELECTRICAL POWER

- A. Single-Point Field Power Connection: Factory-installed and factory-wired switches, motor controllers, transformers and other electrical devices shall provide a single-point field power connection to the boiler.
- B. Electrical Characteristics:
  - 1. Voltage: 120 V
  - 2. Phase: Single
  - 3. Frequency: 60 Hz
  - 4. Full-Load Current: 16 Amps

### 2.05 VENTING

- A. The exhaust vent must be AL 29-4C stainless steel UL Listed for use with Category II, III and IV appliances and compatible with operating temperatures up to 230°F, positive pressure, condensing flue gas service.
- B. The minimum exhaust vent duct size for each boiler is six-inch diameter.
- C. Combustion-Air Intake: Boilers shall be capable of drawing combustion air from the outdoors via a metal or PVC duct connected between the boiler and the outdoors.
- D. The minimum sealed combustion air duct size for each boiler is six-inch diameter.

- E. Common Vent and Common Combustion Air must be an available option for boiler installation. Consult manufacturer for common vent and combustion air sizing.
- F. Follow guidelines specified in manufacturer's venting guide.
- G. Gas Train
  - 1. Gas train shall be UL/FM/CSD-1 compliant.
  - 2. The gas trains shall be certified to take a maximum of 5 psi Natural Gas and 2 psi Propane (LP). Additional step-down regulators are not allowed and can cause nuisance shutdowns of the unit.
  - 3. Pilot and main gas pressure regulator.
  - 4. Automatic main and redundant gas valves.
  - 5. Motorized automatic main and redundant gas valves and a normally open vent valve in between (if IRI).
  - 6. Motorized automatic main and redundant gas valves w/ Proof of Closure contacts and a normally open vent valve in between (if IRI w/POC).
  - 7. Leak test valves downstream of each gas valve.
  - 8. High and low gas pressure switches.
  - 9. Manual shut off valve upstream of burner and downstream of last gas valve.
- H. Water Trim and Controls
  - 1. ASME rated pressure relief valve set at 30 psig.
  - 2. Combination water pressure and temperature gage. Furnish graduated pressure gauge scale from 1-1/2 to 3 times of pressure relief valve setting.
  - 3. A water flow switch to prevent burner operation during low water flow conditions.
  - 4. An adjustable high limit temperature controller with manual reset to prevent water temperature from exceeding a safe system temperature.
  - 5. An adjustable operating temperature controller.

# 2.06 SOURCE QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Burner and Hydrostatic Test: Factory adjust burner to eliminate excess oxygen, carbon dioxide, oxides of nitrogen emissions and carbon monoxide in flue gas, and to achieve combustion efficiency. Perform hydrostatic testing.
- B. Test and inspect factory-assembled boilers, before shipping, according to ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code.
- C. If boilers are not factory assembled and fire-tested, the local vendor is responsible for all field assembly and testing.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install the boiler in accordance with manufacturer's printed instructions.
- B. Install plumb and level, to plus or minus 1/16 inch over base.
- C. Maintain manufacturer's recommended clearances around and over equipment, and as required by local Code.
- D. Arrange all electrical conduit, piping, exhaust vent, and air intake with clearances for burner removal and service of all equipment.
- E. Connect exhaust vent to boiler vent connection, full size of outlet.
- F. If shown in Contract Drawings, connect full sized air inlet vent to flanged connector on boiler.
- G. Connect fuel piping in accordance with NFPA 54 and NFPA 58.
- H. Connect fuel piping to unit, full size, at gas train inlet.
- I. Use full size (minimum) pipe/tubing on all gas vent connections.
- J. Connect water piping, full size, to supply and return connections.
- K. Install all piping accessories per the details on the contract drawings.
- L. Install discharge piping from relief valves and drain valves to nearest floor drain.
- M. Connect appropriate electrical power to the boiler.
- N. A dedicated disconnect shall be provided for each individual piece of equipment.

# 3.02 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Provide services of manufacturer's authorized representative as specified in this Section.
- B. Perform combustion test including boiler firing rate, gas flow rate, heat input, burner manifold gas pressure, percent carbon monoxide, percent oxygen, percent excess air, flue gas temperature at outlet, ambient temperature, net stack temperature, percent stack loss, percent combustion efficiency, and heat output. Perform test at minimum, mid-range, and high fire.

#### 3.03 CLEANING

- A. Must isolate boiler when any cleaning or testing of system piping is being performed.
- B. Flush and clean boilers upon completion of installation, in accordance with manufacturer's startup instructions.

# 3.04 DEMONSTRATION AND TRAINING

A. Demonstrate operation and maintenance procedures.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 23 05 53

# HEAT EXCHANGERS

# PART 1 GENERAL

### 1.01 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes brazed plate type, accessories and trim.
- B. Related Sections:
  - 1. Section 23 05 29 Hangers and Supports: Execution requirements for heat exchanger supports specified by this section.
  - 2. Section 23 21 16 Piping Specialties: Product requirements for heat exchanger trim for placement by this section.
  - 3. Section 23 21 13 Hydronic Piping: Product requirements for piping drains and relief valves to floor drains for placement by this section.

#### 1.02 REFERENCES

A. ASME (ANSI/American Society of Mechanical Engineers) - Boilers and Pressure Vessels Code.

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Division 01 Shop drawings, product data and samples.
- B. Submittal Requirements: In addition to submittal procedures as outlined under Division 1, mechanical submittals shall be submitted as follows:
  - 1. Product Data: Submit performance data.

#### 1.04 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Accept heat exchangers on site in factory protective packaging. Inspect for damage.
- B. Protect entry of foreign material into openings with temporary caps.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

# 2.01 BRAZED PLATE TYPE HEAT EXCHANGERS

- A. Manufacturers:
  - 1. Kelvion FlatePlate.
  - 2. Taco.
  - 3. Mueller.

### PAGE 2 OF 2

- 4. Bell & Gossett
- 5. Approved Equal.
- B. Construction: 316 L Stainless steel plates, copper brazed.
- C. UL listed.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Support heat exchangers on welded steel pipe and angle floor stand.
- B. Provide water to glycol heat exchanger with trim as follows:
  - 1. Water Inlets and Outlets: Isolation valves, strainer, thermometer wells and pressure gage taps.
  - 2. Heat Water Inlet: Isolation valve, strainer, thermometer well and pressure gage tap.
  - 3. Heated Water Outlet: Isolation valve, thermometer well for temperature regulator sensor, thermometer well and pressure gage tap, ASME rated pressure and temperature relief valve and drain with valve.

# END OF SECTION

# SECTION 23 64 23 AIR COOLED SCREW WATER CHILLERS

#### PART 1 GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section includes design, performance criteria, refrigerants, controls, and installation requirements for air-cooled rotary scroll packaged chillers.

#### 1.02 REFERENCES

- A. AHRI 550/590 Standard for Water Chilling Packages using the Vapor Compression Cycle
- B. AHRI 370 Sound Rating of Large Outdoor Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Equipment
- C. ASHRAE 15 Safety Code for Mechanical Refrigeration
- D. ASHRAE 90.1 Energy Efficient Design of New Buildings
- E. UL 1995 Central Cooling Air Conditioners
- F. ASTM B117 Standard Method of Salt Spray (Fog) Testing
- G. ASTM A123 Zinc (Hot-Dip Galvanized) Coatings on Iron and Steel Products
- H. ASTM A525 Zinc (Hot-Dip Galvanized) Coatings on Sheet Steel Products
- I. ASTM D1654 Evaluation of Painted or Coated Specimens, Subjected to Corrosive Environments
- J. ANSI/AFBMA 9-1978 Load Ratings and Fatigue Life for Ball Bearings.
- K. ISO 9001

# 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit dimensional plan and elevation view drawings, weights and loadings, required clearances, location and size of all field connections, electrical requirements and wiring diagrams.
- B. Submit product data indicating rated capacities, accessories and any special data.
- C. Submit manufacturer's installation instructions.

# 1.04 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

- A. Comply with codes and standards specified.
- B. Chiller must be built in an ISO 9001 classified facility.

# 23 64 23 -1

# 1.05 VERIFICATION OF CAPACITY AND EFFICIENCY

A. All proposals for chiller performance must include an AHRI approved selection method. Verification of date and version of computer program selection or catalog is available through AHRI.

# 1.06 DELIVERY, HANDLING AND STORAGE

- A. Comply with manufacturer's installation instructions for rigging, unloading, and transporting chillers.
- B. Chiller shall be capable of withstanding -40°F to 158°F storage temperatures.

#### 1.07 FIELD MEASUREMENTS

A. Verify field measurements prior to fabrication.

#### 1.08 WARRANTY

- A. Division 01 Warranties and Bonds.
- B. Provide one-year manufacturer warranty.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Trane.
- B. York
- C. Daikin.
- D. Approved equals.

#### 2.02 CHILLER DESCRIPTION

A. The contractor shall furnish and install air-cooled water chiller with scroll compressors as shown as scheduled on the contract documents. The chillers shall be installed in accordance with this specification and perform at the specified conditions as scheduled.

#### 2.03 CHILLER OPERATION

- A. Chiller shall be capable of starting and running at outdoor ambient temperatures from 32°F to 125°F.
- B. Chiller shall be capable of operating with a leaving solution temperature range 40°F to 65°F without glycol.

- C. Chiller shall be capable of starting up with 95°F entering fluid temperature to the evaporator. Maximum water temperature that can be circulated with the Chiller not operating is 125°
- D. Chiller shall provide evaporator freeze protection and low limit control to avoid low evaporator refrigerant temperature trip-outs during critical periods of chiller operation. Whenever this control is in effect, the controller shall indicate that the chiller is in adaptive mode. If the condition exists for more than 30 seconds, a limit warning alarm relay shall energize.
- E. The Chiller shall be capable of starting in 45 seconds after a power loss and power restoration.

# 2.04 COMPRESSORS

- A. Construct chiller using fully hermetic scroll type compressors with R410A optimized and dedicated scroll profile.
- B. Provide direct drive motor cooled by suction gas with only three major moving parts and a completely enclosed compression chamber that leads to increased efficiency.
- C. Each compressor shall have overload protection internal to the compressor.
- D. Each compressor shall include:
  - 1. Centrifugal oil pump.
  - 2. Oil level sight glass.
  - 3. Oil charging valve.
- E. Each compressor will have crankcase heaters installed and properly sized to minimize the amount of liquid refrigerant present in the oil sump during off cycles.

# 2.05 EVAPORATOR

- A. The evaporator shall be a high efficiency, brazed plate-to-plate type heat exchanger consisting of parallel plates. Braze plates shall be stainless steel with copper braze material.
- B. The water side working pressure shall be rated at 150 psig and tested at 1.5 times maximum allowable water side working pressure.
- C. The refrigerant side working pressure shall be rated at 460 psig and tested at 1.1 maximum allowable refrigerant side working pressure.
- D. Insulate the evaporator with a minimum of 0.75 inch (K=0.28) UV rated insulation.
- E. Evaporator heaters shall be factory installed and shall protect chiller down to -20°F. Contractor shall wire separate power to energize heat tape and protect evaporator while chiller is disconnected from the main power.
- F. Provide water drain connection, vent and fittings. Factory installed leaving water temperature control and low temperature cutout sensors.
- G. Water connections shall be grooved pipe.

H. Proof of flow shall be provided by the equipment manufacturer, mechanically installed and electrically wired, at the factory of origin.

### 2.06 FANS

- A. Low sound fans shall by dynamically balanced and direct driven.
- B. All condenser fan TEAO motors have permanently lubricated ball bearings and external overload protection.

#### 2.07 CONDENSER

A. The condenser coils shall have an integral sub-cooling circuit and shall be designed for at least 650 psig (44.8 bar) working pressure. Leak tested at 650 psig (44.8 bar).

#### 2.08 ENCLOSURES/CHILLER CONSTRUCTION

- A. Units shall be constructed of a galvanized steel frame with galvanized steel panels and access doors.
- B. Chiller panels, base rails and control panels shall be finished with a baked on powder paint. Control panel doors shall have door stays.
- C. Mount starters and Terminal Blocks in a UL 1995 rated weatherproof panel provided with full opening access doors. If a circuit breaker is chosen, it should be a lockable, through-the-door type with an operating handle and clearly visible from outside of chiller indicating if power is on or off.
- D. The coating or paint system shall withstand 500 hours in a salt-spray fog test in accordance with ASTM B117.

### 2.09 CHILLER MOUNTED STARTER

- A. The starter shall be across-the-line configuration, factory-mounted and fully pre-wired to the compressor motor(s) and control panel.
- B. Unit shall have a single point power connection.
- C. A control power transformer shall be factory-installed and factory-wired to provide unit control power.
- D. Control panel shall be dead front construction for enhanced service technician safety
- E. Unit wiring shall run in liquid-tight conduit.
- F. Power line connection type shall be standard with a terminal block.
- G. A molded case standard interrupting capacity circuit breaker shall be factory pre-wired with terminal block power connections and equipped with a lockable external operator handle, making it available to disconnect the chiller from main power.

# 2.10 REFRIGERANT CIRCUIT

- A. All chillers shall have 1 or 2 refrigeration circuits, each with two or three (manifolded) compressor on each circuit.
- B. Provide for refrigerant circuit:
  - 1. Liquid line shutoff valve
  - 2. Discharge service valve
  - 3. Filter
  - 4. Liquid line sight glass.
  - 5. Electronic expansion valve sized for maximum operating pressure
  - 6. Charging valve
- C. Full operating charge of R410A and oil.

# 2.11 CONTROLS

- A. Factory-mounted to the control panel door, the operator interface has an LCD touch-screen display
- B. Display shall consist of a menu driven interface with easy touch screen navigation to organized sub-system reports for compressor, evaporator, and motor information as well as associated diagnostics.
- C. The chiller control panel shall provide password protection of all set-points
- D. Chilled water temperature control shall be microprocessor-based, proportional and integral controller to show water and refrigerant temperature, refrigerant pressure, and diagnostics. This microprocessor-based controller is to be supplied with each chiller by the chiller manufacturer.
- E. The front of the chiller control panel shall display the following in clear language, without the use of codes, look-up tables, or gauges:
  - 1. Run time.
  - 2. Number of starts.
  - 3. Current chiller operating mode.
  - 4. Chilled water set point and set point source.
  - 5. Electrical current limit set point and set point source.
  - 6. Entering and leaving evaporator water temperatures.
  - 7. Saturated evaporator and condenser refrigerant temperatures.
  - 8. Evaporator and condenser refrigerant pressure.
  - 9. Differential oil pressure.

- 10. Phase reversal/unbalance/single phasing and over/under voltage protection.
- 11. Low chilled water temperature protection.
- 12. High and low refrigerant pressure protection.
- 13. Load limit thermostat to limit compressor loading on high return water temperature.
- 14. Condenser fan sequencing to automatically cycle fans in response to load, expansion valve pressure, condenser pressure, and differential pressure to optimize chiller efficiency.
- 15. Display diagnostics.
- 16. Compressors: Status (on/off), %RLA, anti-short cycle timer, and automatic compressor lead-lag.
- F. On chiller, mount weatherproof control panel, containing starters, power and control wiring, factory wired with terminal block power connection. Provide primary and secondary fused control power transformer.
- G. The chiller controller shall utilize a microprocessor that will automatically take action to prevent chiller shutdown due to abnormal operating conditions associated with evaporator refrigerant temperature, high condensing pressure and motor current overload.
- H. Provide the following safety controls with indicating lights or diagnostic readouts.
  - 1. Low chilled water temperature protection.
  - 2. High refrigerant pressure.
  - 3. Loss of chilled water flow.
  - 4. Contact for remote emergency shutdown.
  - 5. Motor current overload.
  - 6. Phase reversal/unbalance/single phasing.
  - 7. Over/under voltage.
  - 8. Failure of water temperature sensor used by controller.
  - 9. Compressor status (on or off).
- I. Provide the following operating controls:
  - 1. A variable method to control capacity in order to maintain leaving chilled water temperature based on PI algorithms. Five minute solid state anti-recycle timer to prevent compressor from short cycling. Compressor minimum stop-to-start time limit shall be 2 minutes. If a greater than 5 minute start-to-start, or greater than 2 minute stop-to-start timer is included, hot gas bypass shall be provided to insure accurate chilled water temperature control in light load applications.
  - 2. Chilled water pump output relay that closes when the chiller is given a signal to start.

- 3. Load limit thermostat to limit compressor loading on high return water temperature to prevent nuisance trip outs.
- 4. High ambient unloader pressure controller that unloads compressors to keep head pressure under control and help prevent high pressure nuisance trip outs on days when outside ambient is above design.
- 5. Compressor current sensing unloader chiller that unloads compressors to help prevent current overload nuisance trip outs.
- 6. Low ambient lockout control with adjustable setpoint.
- 7. Condenser fan sequencing which adjusts the speed of all fans automatically in response to ambient, condensing pressure and expansion valve pressure differential thereby optimizing chiller efficiency.
- J. Provide user interface on the front of the panel. If display is on the inside of the panel, then a control display access door shall be provided to allow access to the display without removal of panels. Provide user interface with a minimum of the following features:
  - 1. Leaving chilled water setpoint adjustment from LCD input
  - 2. Entering and leaving chilled water temperature output
  - 3. Pressure output of condenser
  - 4. Pressure output of evaporator
  - 5. Ambient temperature output
  - 6. Voltage output
  - 7. Current limit setpoint adjustment from LCD input.
  - 8. The chiller control panel shall provide leaving chilled water temperature reset based upon return water temperature.

# 2.12 SOUND

- A. Acoustics: Manufacturer must provide both sound power and sound pressure data in decibels. Sound pressure data per AHRI 370 must be provided at full load.
- B. If manufacturer cannot meet the noise levels, sound attenuation devices and/or barrier walls must be installed to meet this performance level.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

# 3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's requirements.
  - 1. Level the chiller using the base rail as a reference. The chiller must be level within 1/2" in over the entire length and width. Use shims as necessary to level the chiller.

### B. Service and Start-Up

- Provide all labor and materials to perform startup. Startup shall be performed by a factory-trained technician from the original equipment manufacturer (OEM). Technician shall confirm that equipment has been correctly installed and passes specification checklist prior to equipment becoming operational and covered under OEM warranty. This shall be done in strict accordance with manufacturer's specifications and requirements. Third-party service agencies are not permitted.
- 2. A start-up log shall be furnished by the factory approved start-up technician to document the chiller's start-up date and shall be signed by the owner or his authorized representative prior to commissioning the chillers.
- 3. Chiller manufacturers shall maintain service capabilities no more than 120 miles from the jobsite.
- 4. Provide local service agent with direct access to factory support on equipment.
- 5. The service provider shall employ a minimum of 1 full time, competent HVAC and automation system servicepersons on staff, whose office in which they operate from is within 120 miles of the job site and who have been within their employment for a minimum of 3 years.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 26 27 26 -

# WIRING DEVICES

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section includes wall switches; wall dimmers; receptacles; multioutlet assembly; and device plates and decorative box covers.

### 1.02 REFERENCES

- B. National Electrical Manufacturers Association:
  - 1. NEMA WD 1 General Requirements for Wiring Devices.
  - 2. NEMA WD 6 Wiring Devices-Dimensional Requirements.

#### 1.03 SUBMITTALS

- C. Section 013300 Submittal Procedures: Submittal procedures.
- D. Product Data: Submit manufacturer's catalog information showing dimensions, colors, and configurations.
- 1.04 QUALIFICATIONS
  - E. Manufacturer: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section with minimum three years experience.

# 1.05 EXTRA MATERIALS

F. Section 017000 - Execution and Closeout Requirements: Spare parts and maintenance products.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS

- 2.01 WALL SWITCHES
  - A. Leviton, Hubbell or approved equals
  - B. Product Description: NEMA WD 1, Heavy-Duty, AC only general-use snap switch.
  - C. Body and Handle: Ivory plastic with rocker handle.
  - D. Indicator Light: Lighted handle type switch.
  - E. Ratings:

#### PAGE 2 OF 4

- 1. Voltage: 120-277 volts, AC.
- 2. Current: 20 amperes.

### 2.02 WALL DIMMERS

- F. : NEMA WD 1, Shall be compatible with associated Light Fixture.
- G. Body and Handle: Ivory.
- H. Voltage: 120/277 volts.
- I. Power Rating: Match load shown on drawings
- J. Accessory Wall Switch: Match dimmer appearance.

#### 2.03 RECEPTACLES

- K. Leviton, Hubbell or approved equals.
- L. Product Description: NEMA WD 1, Heavy-duty general use receptacle.
- M. Device Body: Ivory plastic.
- N. Configuration: NEMA WD 6,
- O. Convenience Receptacle: Type 5-20.
- P. GFCI Receptacle: Convenience receptacle with integral ground fault circuit interrupter to meet regulatory requirements.

### 2.04 WALL PLATES

- Q. Manufacturer shall match device.
- R. Decorative Cover Plate302 stainless steel
- S. Jumbo Cover Plate: 302 stainless steel
- T. Utility Area Plates: Cast metal
- U. Weatherproof Cover Plate: Gasketed cast metal

# PART 3 - EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Section 013000 Administrative Requirements: Coordination and project conditions.
- B. Verify outlet boxes are installed at proper height.

#### WIRING DEVICES

- C. Verify wall openings are neatly cut and completely covered by wall plates.
- D. Verify branch circuit wiring installation is completed, tested, and ready for connection to wiring devices.

#### 3.02 PREPARATION

E. Clean debris from outlet boxes.

#### 3.03 EXISTING WORK

- F. Disconnect and remove abandoned wiring devices.
- G. Modify installation to maintain access to existing wiring devices to remain active.
- H. Clean and repair existing wiring devices to remain or to be reinstalled.

#### 3.04 INSTALLATION

- I. Install devices plumb and level.
- J. Install switches with OFF position down.
- K. Install wall dimmers to achieve full rating specified and indicated after derating for ganging as instructed by manufacturer.
- L. Do not share neutral conductor on load side of dimmers.
- M. Install receptacles with grounding pole on bottom.
- N. Connect wiring device grounding terminal to outlet box with bonding jumper and [branch circuit equipment grounding conductor (if provided).
- O. Install wall plates on flush mounted switches, receptacles, and blank outlets.
- P. Install decorative plates on switch, receptacle, and blank outlets in finished areas.
- Q. Use jumbo size plates for outlets installed in masonry walls.
- R. Install galvanized steel plates on outlet boxes and junction boxes in unfinished areas, above accessible ceilings, and on surface mounted outlets.

### 3.05 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- S. Section 017000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Field inspecting, testing, adjusting, and balancing.
- T. Inspect each wiring device for defects.
- U. Operate each wall switch with circuit energized and verify proper operation.

# PAGE 4 OF 4

- V. Verify each receptacle device is energized.
- W. Test each receptacle device for proper polarity.
- X. Test each GFCI receptacle device for proper operation.

### 3.06 ADJUSTING

- Y. Section 017000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Testing, adjusting, and balancing.
- Z. Adjust devices and wall plates to be flush and level.

### 3.07 CLEANING

- AA. Section 017000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Final cleaning.
- BB. Clean exposed surfaces to remove splatters and restore finish.

END OF SECTION 26 27 26

SECTION 26 51 00 -

INTERIOR LIGHTING

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section includes interior luminaires, lamps, ballasts, and accessories.

#### 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- B. Section 013300 Submittal Procedures: Submittal procedures.
- C. Shop Drawings: Indicate dimensions and components for each luminaire not standard product of manufacturer.
- D. Product Data: Submit dimensions, ratings, and performance data.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS

- 2.01 INTERIOR LUMINAIRES
  - A. Product Description: Complete interior luminaire assemblies, with features, options, and accessories as scheduled.
  - B. Substitutions: Or Equals can be submitted but will need to be approved prior to ordering.
  - C. Warranty: Fixtures shall be provided with a minimum 3 year body and parts warranty. LED's shall be rated for a minimum of 50,000 hours.

# PART 3 - EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXISTING WORK

- A. Disconnect and remove abandoned luminaires, lamps, and accessories.
- B. Extend existing interior luminaire installations using materials and methods compatible with existing installations.

#### 3.02 INSTALLATION

- C. Install suspended luminaires using pendants supported from swivel hangers. Install pendant length required to suspend luminaire at indicated height.
- D. Support luminaires larger than 2 x 4 foot size independent of ceiling framing.
- E. Locate recessed ceiling luminaires as indicated on Drawings.

- F. Install surface mounted luminaires plumb and adjust to align with building lines and with each other. Secure to prevent movement.
- G. Install recessed luminaires to permit removal from below.
- H. Install recessed luminaires using accessories and firestopping materials to meet regulatory requirements for fire rating.
- I. Install clips to secure recessed grid-supported luminaires in place.
- J. Install accessories furnished with each luminaire.
- K. Make wiring connections to branch circuit using building wire with insulation suitable for temperature conditions within luminaire.
- L. Install specified lamps in each luminaire.
- M. Ground and bond interior luminaires in accordance with Section 260526.

#### 3.2 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A. Operate each luminaire after installation and connection. Inspect for proper connection and operation.

#### 3.3 ADJUSTING

- A. Section 017000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Testing, adjusting, and balancing.
- B. Aim and adjust luminaires as needed to match existing conditions.

# 3.4 CLEANING

- A. Section 017000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Final cleaning.
- B. Remove dirt and debris from enclosures.
- C. Clean photometric control surfaces as recommended by manufacturer.
- D. Clean finishes and touch up damage.

# 3.5 PROTECTION OF FINISHED WORK

A. Section 017000 - Execution and Closeout Requirements: Protecting finished work.

# END OF SECTION 265100

# INTERIOR LIGHTING

SECTION 26 56 00 -

# EXTERIOR LIGHTING

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section includes exterior luminaries, poles, and accessories.

#### 1.02 SUBMITTALS

- B. Section 013300 Submittal Procedures: Submittal procedures.
- C. Shop Drawings: Indicate dimensions and components for each luminaire not standard Product of manufacturer.
- D. Product Data: Submit dimensions, ratings, and performance data.
- 1.03 INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPH FOR SUBMISSION OF PHYSICAL SAMPLES FOR SELECTION OF FINISH, COLOR, TEXTURE, AND OTHER PROPERTIES.
- 1.04 COORDINATION
  - E. Verify new fixtures are compatible with existing poles.

#### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 LUMINAIRES

A. Product Description: Complete exterior luminaire assemblies, with features, options, and accessories as scheduled.

# PART 3 - EXECUTION

#### 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Section 013000 Administrative Requirements: Coordination and Project conditions.
- B. Verify foundations are ready to receive fixtures.

#### 3.02 EXISTING WORK

C. Disconnect and remove abandoned exterior luminaries.

- D. Extend existing exterior luminaire installations using materials and methods compatible with existing installations if necessary.
- E. Clean and repair existing exterior luminaries to remain or to be reinstalled.

# 3.03 INSTALLATION

- F. If necessary re-plumb existing poles. Install shims to adjust plumb.
- 3.04 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL
  - G. Operate each luminaire after installation and connection. Inspect for improper connections and operation.
- 3.05 INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING WHEN PERFORMANCE SPECIFYING TECHNIQUES ARE USED OR WHEN NECESSARY TO DETERMINE INSTALLED ILLUMINATION LEVELS.

# 3.2 ADJUSTING

- A. Section 017000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Testing, adjusting, and balancing.
- B. Aim and adjust luminaries to provide illumination levels and distribution.

# 3.3 CLEANING

- A. Clean photometric control surfaces as recommended by manufacturer.
- B. Clean finishes and touch up damage.
- 3.06 PROTECTION OF FINISHED WORK
  - C. Section 017000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Protecting finished work.

END OF SECTION 26 56 00